Sussex County Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting
Thursday, December 15, 2022 — 6 pm
General District Courtroom — Sussex Judicial Center
15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884

ZOOM LINK
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84370107913
Meeting ID: 843 7010 7913

1. Commencement

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum
1.02  The Invocation

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance

1.04 Agenda Amendment(s)

1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda

2. Approval of Consent Agenda

2.01  Approval of Minutes: November 17, 2022 Board of Supervisors Regular Meetings
2.02 Warrants and VVouchers

2.03  Treasurer’s Report & Financial Update — for information only

2.04 Departmental Reports — for information only

2.05 Davenport Debt Capacity Analysis Budget Amendment

2.06 Employee Annual Leave Extension

2.07 Draft FY24 Budget Planning Calendar

2.08 DMV Select Revenue Resolution & FYE Budget Amendment Resolution

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation

3.01 Presentation: Improvement Association Head Start Program Performance

3.02 Resolution: Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90" Birthday

3.03 Airfield 4-H Conference Center Update — Millard Stith & Kathy Guindon

3.04 Resolution: Recognition of Mr. Charles “Dan” Hudson’s Retirement — Sussex Sheriff’s
Office

3.05 Recognition of Deputy Bonner for Community Assistance

3.06 Clenera/Blackwater Solar Project Overview — Ed Rumler, Clenera

4. Public Hearing

4.01 Conditional Use Permit #2022-04, Howell Godfrey, Jr., Applicant
(a) Public Comments
(b) Board Comments
(c) Action on Public Hearing Item

5. Appointments — none

6. Action Items

6.01 Historic Courthouse Analysis Findings and Recommendations, and Phase 2
Recommendations — Russell Pearlman, Wooten Company; and Andrew Moore, Glave &
Holmes

(next page)—



6.02 County Building Improvement Recommendations to House EMS — Russell Pearlman,
Wooten Company & Jeff Gary, Public Works Director

6.03  Proposed Legislative Recommendations — David Conmy

6.04 Proposed Changes to Outside Organization Funding Guidelines — David Conmy

6.05 Glyndon & Carver Right-of-Way Certification Resolution

6.06 Resolution Designating Shilton R. Butts as County Clerk

7. Citizens’ Comments
8. Unfinished Business — none
9. New Business — none

10. Board Members Comments
10.01 Blackwater District

10.02 Courthouse District

10.03 Henry District

10.04 Stony Creek District

10.05 Wakefield District

10.06 Waverly District

11. Closed Session — none

12.  Recess/Adjournment
12.01 Recess/Adjournment
12.02 Next Regular Meeting, January 19, 2023 @ 6 p.m.




At a Regular Meeting of the
Sussex County Board of Supervisors
Held in the General District Courtroom on
Tuesday, November 17, 2022 at 6 pm

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
C. Eric Fly, Sr.

A. G. Futrell

Debbie P. Jones

Wayne O. Jones

Susan M. Seward

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

Steve White, Tie Breaker

BOARD MEMBER ABSENT

STAFF PRESENT:

Richard Douglas, County Administrator

David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator

Jeff Gore, County Attorney

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer

Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director

Ernest Giles, Sheriff

Eric Danuser, IT Manager (Virtual)

Faith McClintock, Title

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director

Michael Poarch, Planner

Beverly Walkup, Planning Director

Matthew Westheimer, Shared Building Official

Monica J. Whitney, Permit Technician

Milton Jones, Shared Building Inspector

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/
Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

1. Commencement

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum (6:11 p.m.)

Chair Seward called the November 17, 2022 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of
Supervisors to order.

1.02 The Invocation

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Tyler.

1| Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all.

1.04 Agenda Amendments

Supervisor Futrell requested to move Consent Agenda Item 2.06 Animal Services Budget
Amendment (Shelter Improvements) to Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6.04.

Under Item 3. Recognitions, Supervisor Fly requested to postpone (move) Item. 301 Resolution:
Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90" Birthday to the Board's December 15, 2022 regular meeting.

1.05 Approval of Reqular Agenda

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the November 17,
2022 regular agenda inclusive of under Item 3. Recognitions postponing (moving) Item. 301.
Resolution: Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90" Birthday to the Board's December 15, 2022 regular
meeting and Consent Agenda Item 2.06 Animal Services Budget Amendment (Shelter
Improvements) to Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6.04. All Board members present voted aye.

2. Approval of Consent Agenda

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent agenda
inclusive of the following: (a) October 20, 2022 regular Board of Supervisors Meeting minutes;
(b) the Approval of Warrants and VVouchers; (c) the Treasurer’s Report and Financial Update; (d)
Departmental Reports; (e) Tobacco Commission Grant Resolution; (f) Public Safety Budget
Amendment; and (g) Approval of Governor's AFID Fund Performance Agreement, Project Arbie
(Restoration Bioproducts). All Board members present voted aye.

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation
Vice Chairman W. Jones entered at 6:17 p.m.

3.01 RESOLUTION: Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90" Birthday

This item was moved to the December 15, 2022 regular Board meeting.

302 RESOLUTION: Recoagnition of Wilborne Baptist Church 155th Anniversary

Wilborne Baptist Church is located on Newville Road near Waverly, Virginia. The County
presented a resolution to the Church for its 155th Anniversary.

Ms. Baker, a member of the Wilborne Baptist Church, was present to receive the resolution and
thanked the Board for their respect for the legacy of Wilborne Baptist Church.

2 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by D. JONES and carried: RESOLVED
that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Resolution #22-133 Recognizing
the 155th Anniversary of Wilborne Baptist Church, to-wit:

WHEREAS, Wilborne Baptist Church is located at 7138 Newville Road outside the Town
of Waverly, and has been an historical asset of Sussex County for over one and one-half centuries;
and

WHEREAS, Madison Wilborne, a local third generation free African-American carpenter
born in 1827, donated the property on which the church was to be built, and the first building was
erected about 50 yards from its present site; and

WHEREAS, the donated site was named in honor of Mr. Wilborne and with the initial
construction of a bush harbor provided a place of worship for families in the community just two
years after the end of slavery, and was formally deeded in 1872; and

WHEREAS, the first pastor and organizer of Wilborne Baptist Church was Reverend
Branch, who served from 1867 to 1882, and 15 pastors have served the church over the years; and

WHEREAS, other Sussex County churches to grow out of Wilborne Baptist Church
include Easter Baptist Church and Plank Road Baptist Church; and

WHEREAS, Wilborne Baptist Church served the educational needs of area African-
American children in the community by providing a one-room school that housed 1st through 5th
graders in the 1940s and 1950s; and

WHEREAS, members of Wilborne Baptist Church have actively defended our country and
served in World War 1, World War 11, Korean War, Vietnam War, and Gulf War; and

WHEREAS, Wilborne Baptist Church has promoted the value of higher education and
provided scholarships over the years, with members graduating from institutions such as the
University of Virginia, Virginia Tech, Ohio State University, Virginia Commonwealth University,
Virginia State University, Saint Paul’s College, Morgan State University, North Carolina A&T
University, Norfolk State University, and Richard Bland College; and

WHEREAS, under the leadership of Ms. Pauline Giles, Chairperson of the Trustee Board,
and Deacon Winfred Everson, Chairperson of the Deacon Board, the congregation of Wilborne
Baptist Church remains active today in providing a place of worship and supporting the community
and its local charities; and

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS that Wilborne Baptist Church is recognized for its significant accomplishment in
reaching the milestone of its 155th anniversary, to be celebrated on November 20, 2022, during its
11 am Sunday service, and is recognized for its important role over the past one and one-half
centuries serving the residents of Sussex County.

3| Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



ADOPTED this 17th day of November 2022, by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors.
All Board members present voted aye.

3.03 VACo Achievement Award Presentation and Recognition of Building Services Staff

Joe Lerch, VACo Director of Local Government Policy, was in attendance at the meeting and
recognized Sussex County for its VACo Achievement Award in partnership with Surry County,
for the joint building services program, one of 29 award recipients throughout Virginia (or 29
percent of submitted entries) under the 2022 Achievement Award program.

Mr. Lerch gave a brief background of the VACo Achievement Award program.

Building Official Matt Westheimer provided an overview of the joint building services program.
Mr. Westheimer introduced the building services staff serving Sussex and Surry Counties which
included Milton Jones (Shared Building Inspector), Monica Whitney (Permit Technician-Sussex)
and Wanda Pittman (Permit Technician-Surry).

Surry County Administrator Melissa Rollins and Deputy County Administrator David Harrison
were in attendance as well.

Copies of the VACo Achievement Award email; VACo Achievement Award press release; and
VACo’s winning Achievement Award submissions document were included in the Board packet.

4. Public Hearings

4.01 Zoning Amendment #2022-02 Costa Verde Investment, LLC, Applicant

Beverly Walkup, Planning Director, provided the staff report for Zoning Amendment #2022-02
Costa Verde Investment, LLC, applicant.

The applicant, Costa Verde Investment, LLC under ZA #2022-02 seeks to rezone Tax Parcel
Number 137-A-15 & 137-A-15A containing a total of 4.91 acres from A-1, General Agricultural
to I-1, Limited Industrial to accommodate a wholesale business (food warehouse distribution). The
property is located at 21330 Blue Star Highway in Jarratt in the Election District of Henry District.

The CSX Railroad along its northern side borders the proposed location for the rezoning located
at 21330 Blue Star Highway in Jarratt. To the west, there is Rideout Equipment Company, Inc.,
which includes two manufactured homes, and 301 self-storage. To the east, there is a
communication tower and forested land. To the south, Blue Star Highway (Rt. 301) and 1-95 runs
parallel to the site.

BACKGROUND

4 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



The subject property previously operated as a material recycling facility for plastic, cardboard, and
aluminum under a Conditional Use Permit approved on March 19, 2015. Prior to March 2015,
there were previous Conditional Use Permits that allowed for the storage of sand, gravel, and
mineral sands on the property.

DESCRIPTION

The applicant is requesting rezoning to the Limited Industrial District (I-1) to accommodate the
use of a wholesale food warehouse distribution facility. The applicant proposes to use the existing
buildings and infrastructure that are already in place.

The parcel is currently zoned General Agricultural District (A-1). The A-1 zoning district does not
allow for a wholesale business (food warehouse distribution).

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW

The current Comprehensive Plan land use designation for this property is commercial.
Development at the 1-95 interchanges and along U.S. 301 will ideally be concentrated into higher-
density commercial centers, rather than occurring in strips along the area’s major roadways. The
presence of vacant and/or abandoned commercial structures in the Planning Area provide ample
opportunities for reuse and should also guide the location of future commercial uses.

The proposed rezoning and use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

ORDINANCE REVIEW

The current zoning designation for this property is A-1. The district is established to protect land
and property values, ground water and surface water quality, and other resources. The intent is to
provide for the continued security of the county’s agricultural sector by encouraging the orderly
and responsible growth of its livestock, dairy, and poultry industry. Limited residential
development is anticipated in these areas.

The proposed rezoning designation for this property is I-1. The I-1 district is to permit certain
industries, which do not in any way detract from residential desirability, to located in any area
adjacent to residential uses. The limitations on (or provisions relating to) height horsepower,
heating, flammable liquids or explosives, controlling emissions of fumes, odors and/or noise,
landscaping, and the number of persons employed are imposed to protect and foster adjacent
residential desirability while permitting industries to locate near a labor supply.

The applicant is currently proposing to use the site as currently developed. Any expansion of the
site will require site plan review, including review and consideration of any anticipated additional
traffic impacts, possible improvements to mitigate and other potential impacts that may be noted
at the time of review.

AGENCY COMMENTS:

5 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



VDOT reviewed the application and noted no concerns with traffic impacts. VDOT concerns were
included in the Board packet.

STAFF CONCLUSIONS:

Strengths:

1. Allows an opportunity to bring in more commercial uses in this area.

2. Repurposes an existing site with buildings and infrastructure (well and septic) already in place.
3. Adjacent to an existing commercial use (Rideout Equipment Company, Inc.).

4. Access to Blue Star Highway; Proximity to 1-95 interchange; Potential access to the railroad.
5. Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Weaknesses:

1. None identified at this time.

The Planning Commission recommends approval for this rezoning.

Staff recommends that the Board approves Zoning Amendment #2022-02 Costa Verde Investment,
LLC, applicant.

Chair Seward opened the Public Hearing.

Public Comments were heard from Mr. Percy E. Chacon, the owner. Gabriella was present as the
translator. He purchasing the property. One of the conditions the property is the zoning has to be
changed.

Chair Seward closed the Public Hearing.
Comments were heard from Supervisor Seward, Tyler, and Futrell.

Copies of the Application for Rezoning/Conditional Zoning Amendment, Application Narrative
Description and Reason for Rezoning Staff Report, photos of the property, supporting
documentation and the Notice of the Public Hearing were included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and
carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Zoning
Amendment #2022-02, Costa Verde Investment, LLC.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Futrell, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

Voting nay: none

4.02 Building Services Fee Schedule Ordinance Amendment

County Administrator Douglas stated that a public hearing has been scheduled and advertised to
consider a minor change to the Sussex County Building Department Permit Fee Schedule.

6 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



In May 2022 the Board of Supervisors adopted an updated building code schedule ordinance,
which incorporated a new fee schedule as an exhibit (identical to the Surry County fee schedule
since we share a building services program). This exhibit contained a typographical error related
to applicable building permit fees for new commercial/industrial construction that needs to be
corrected to apply the correct fees to commercial/industrial projects. The Surry County Board of
Supervisors approved a similar resolution correcting this error at its last regular meeting.

Building Official Matt Westheimer noted that there was a small clerical error for the building fee
for the commercial building. Mr. Westheimer stated that it was supposed to have been one percent.
It had been one percent the previous year. He stated that drafts listed as one percent; however, the
final draft the field was blank with residential in parenthesis. He noted that Residential and
Commercial fees are not the same. The Commercial Fee should be one percent as in the past. The
amended Ordinance is merely a cleanup/correct the Commercial Fee.

Chair Seward opened the Public Hearing.
There were no public comments.
Chair Seward closed the Public Hearing.
There were no Board comments.

Staff recommended adoption of the ordinance to amend the building permit fee schedule at end of
the public hearing,

Copies of Resolution and Fee Schedule were included in the Board Packet.

ON MOTION OF W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and carried: RESOLVED
that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the ordinance amending the Sussex
County Building Department Permit Fee Schedule, to-wit:

WHEREAS, the County incurs significant costs administering and enforcing the Uniform
Statewide Building Code; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to 8 36-105 of the Code of Virginia, the County may impose
reasonable fees for the issuance of building permits and for enforcement of the Building Code to
defray the County’s costs to administer its program; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with state law at its regular meeting of May 19, 2022, the Board
of Supervisors adopted an updated Building Code Fee Schedule Ordinance, which includes new
fees applicable to solar voltaic panels; and

WHEREAS, the Building Code Fee Schedule Ordinance incorporated the new fee schedule
as an Exhibit, which contained a typographical error related to the applicable building permit fees
for new commercial/industrial construction; and

7 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



WHEREAS, in order to correct the typographical error, the adoption of an amended
Building Code Fee Schedule is necessary; and

WHEREAS, this Ordinance was properly advertised, as required by § 15.2-1427 of the
Code of Virginia; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, that the
Building Code Fee Schedule Ordinance adopted on May 19, 2022, is hereby amended to correct
the typographical error related to commercial/industrial building permit fees as shown on the
attached Sussex County Building Department Permit Fee Schedule, which is incorporated herein.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
adoption.

Sussex County Building Department
Permit Fee Schedule

A. Generally. No permit required by the building code to begin work for new construction or
any other building operation shall be issued until the fees prescribed by this section have
been paid, nor shall an amendment , for any reason, to a permit be approved until the
additional fee has been paid.

B. Administrative Services.

The fees for administrative services shall be as follows:

1. Permit amendments, renewals, extensions, reinstatement and change
of ownership/contract change, $40.00

2. If an application for a permit is cancelled by written request to the Building Official
within six months of the application date or within twelve months
of the issue date, a refund will be granted. The following
fee will be deducted from the refund: 30%

3. Public service request/Staff research/FOIA Fee Actual Admin Cost/
1 hr minimum

C. Building Permits. Building fees shall be as follows:

1. State Levy on all applicable permit fees 2.00%
a. Base permit fee $75
b. Minimum permit fee $75

2. Re-inspection Fee $100

3. Code Investigation Fee $100

8 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



4. New Construction (Residential and Commercial) Base fee plus:

Residential: All usable areas constructed; includes finished and $0.16 per
unfinished;sq.ft. on site built construction, modular homes, Finished
manufactured homes, additions alterations, remodels, decks, $.08 per sq.ft.
porches, garages, sheds, carports, etc. Unfinished

Commercial/industrial: All usable areas constructed; includes finished
and unfinished; churches, schools, industrialized buildings, etc. .  {same-asresidential)
including patios decks, etc. 1% of Contract

5. Swimming Pools $70.00

6. Fences around swimming pools and residential fences over 6’ in height $40.00

7. Commercial Fence (regardless of height) $40.00
8. Signs up to 10 sq ft in surface area, 20 sq ft for a double-sided sign,

the top of the sign being 10" or less from the ground $40.00

Signs more than 10 sq ft in surface area, 20 sq ft for a double-sided sign,

the top of the sign being more than 10' from the ground $60.00
9. Demolition or Moved structure $70.00
10. Chimney $70.00
11. Commercial re-roofing $50.00
12. Tents (over 900 square feet) $80.00
13. Elevator (Initial and annual re-certification) $50.00

14. Retaining Walls (as defined by the Building Code), Towers, Piers, etc  $50.00

15. Amusement Rides current: proposed:
a) Kiddie/ Small mechanical/ Inflatable $55.00
b) Circular ride or flat less than 20’ $75.00
c) Spectacular Ride $100.00
d) Coaster exceeding 30’ $200.00
Coaster exceeding 60’
$400.00

Generator for
amusement device
$165.00

9 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



16. Commercial Plan Review (New Construction) $250.00

Residential Plan Review (New Construction) $50.00
17. Commercial Change of Occupancy/Use Building Permit needed
18. Appeals $0.00

D. Electrical Permits.

1. Residential (New Construction) Base fee plus $.06 per sq. ft.
2. Electrical Upgrade or relocation of electrical service $50.00

3. Temporary Electric Pole (TEP) $50.00

4. Early meter release (Not a part of any other inspection) $50.00

5. Connections and Outlets (lights, etc in additions/remodels) $50.00

6. Commercial (New Construction) 1% of Contract (unchanged)
7. Generator $75.00 + Gas

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Futrell, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler
Voting nay: none

5. Appointments

There were no Appointments. However, there was discussion regarding the Industrial
Development Authority Board of Directors' attendance and appointments.

6. Action Items

6.01 Technology Zone Ordinance

Deputy County Administrator provided the Technology Zone Ordinance.

Section 58.1-3850 of the Code of Virginia authorizes any city, county, or town to establish a
technology zone or zones by ordinance. Establishment of such a zone authorizes the locality to
grant tax incentives and certain regulatory flexibility in the technology zone. Establishment of such
a zone for Sussex County for the Megasite and surrounding area could be a strategic incentive to
attract future economic development prospects to the zone area. The attached draft ordinance
provides incentives based on qualifying criteria and is revenue neutral (emphasis added).
Advertisement notifying the public of this proposed ordinance was included in the Sussex-Surry
Dispatch newspaper on November 2nd and 9th, 2022.

Deputy County Administrator
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance.

10 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



A Draft Ordinance to Amend the Code of the County of Sussex, Virginia, to Add a Technology
Zone and a copy of Public Notice were included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts Ordinance to amend the
Code of the County of Sussex, Virginia to add a Technology Zone, to-wit:

WHEREAS, the Code of Virginia 858.1-3850 enables localities to establish Technology
Zones which help cultivate economic growth by providing tax incentives or regulatory flexibility
to qualified technology businesses; and

WHEREAS, a technology zone can be a valuable tool for the encouragement of new and
expanding business investments in Sussex County; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Sussex County has determined that establishing technology
zones will serve the public health and welfare of the County and citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Supervisors of Sussex, County,
Virginia that the Code of the County of Sussex, is amended by adding the following:

TECHNOLOGY ZONE

Sec. 1. Purpose of Technology Zone.

The County of Sussex (or the “County”) has determined that the development of its commercial
tax base requires incentives, and further determines that an appropriate method of offering
incentives for the County is to create a Technology Zone.

Sec. 2. Definitions.

For the purpose of this article, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings given
below, unless clearly indicated to the contrary:

Administrator means the County Administrator or his designee.

Base Year means the calendar year preceding the calendar year in which the applicant
submits the Technology Zone Program Qualification Application.

Capital Investment means money used by a Technology Business to purchase Fixed Assets
and not moneys used for day-to-day operating expenses. Fixed Assets owned by the
Technology Business that are moved into the Technology Zone from another location
within the County shall not be included in the calculation of Capital Investments.

Employee means a person who is on the payroll of the Technology Business’s
establishment within the Technology Zone and whose workstation’s primary location is
within the Technology Zone.

11 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Existing Business means one that was actively engaged in the conduct of trade or business
in the County prior to an area being designated as a Technology Zone.

Fixed Asset means long-lived tangible property owned by a Technology Business that is
used by the Technology Business in the production of its income including real estate,
plant, machinery, and equipment.

Full-Time Employee means an Employee who is employed in a job for an indefinite
duration at a Technology Business located in a Technology Zone and is required to work
at least minimum number of hours as determined by the Federal Government to qualify as
a Full-Time Employee per week for a period consisting of forty-eight (48) consecutive
weeks.

Seasonal, temporary, leased, contract labor or an Employee whose job function is shifted
from an existing location within the County to a Technology Business within the
Technology Zone is not a Full-Time Employee.

Incentive Period means a ten (10) year period during which a Qualified Technology
Business receives the benefit of Technology Zone incentives.

New Business means a business not previously operating within the County prior to an area
being designated as a Technology Zone.

Technology Business means a Business whose primary purpose is the research,
development, or manufacture, distribution and/or design for lease, sale, or license of
Technology Products, Processes or Related Services. Technology business may also
include any advanced manufacturing operations utilized in the research and development
or production of consumer or commercial products, data center operations or information
technology operations. Technology business may also include distribution and
warehousing operations, particularly those utilizing automated systems, robotics, or other
advanced technologies in the warehousing or distribution of products for business or
consumer use.

Technology Products, Processes or Related Services means engaging in the activities of
automation, automotive vehicles, automotive components, autonomous Vvehicles or
components, batteries, biotechnology, biomedical research, chemicals, computer
hardware, computer software, defense, electric vehicles or components, electronics,
energy, environmental, homeland security, manufacturing equipment, advanced materials,
medical technologies, pharmaceuticals, photonics, electronic-based sub-assemblies and
components, testing and measurement, telecommunications, systems integration,
information systems, internet software, or data and data warehousing or training in the
above concentration areas.

In no case will the use of computers or telecommunication services used by a Business in
its administrative operations qualify the Business as a Technology Business.

12 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Qualified Technology Business means a Technology Business that has met the
qualifications set forth in this chapter and continues to meet the required qualifications.

Sec. 3. Administration.

This article shall be administered and enforced by the County Administrator.

An applicant seeking to obtain the benefits of the Technology Zone will hold preliminary
discussions with the County Administrator and Director of Economic Development, prior to any
investment, resulting in submittal of a completed Technology Zone Program Qualification
Application to the Director of Economic Development.

The Director of Economic Development, in consultation with the County Administrator, will
review the application to determine if the project meets the required criteria for Qualified
Technology Business and is consistent with the County’s policy for the consideration of
Technology Zone incentives. Applications must be signed by an official representative of the
Qualified Technology Business authorized to sign on its behalf.

No incentive application from an Existing Technology Business shall be approved until the
Commissioner of the Revenue determines that no unpaid taxes are outstanding. Further, an
Existing Technology Business shall not qualify for Technology Zone incentives by reorganizing
or changing its form in a manner that does not alter the basis of the Technology Business assets or
result in a taxable event.

Sec. 4. Boundaries.

The Boundaries of the Technology Zone shall be within the areas described in Appendix A of this
Chapter.

As technology zones are established by the Board of Supervisors, they shall be further identified
by reference to the map entitled “Sussex County Technology Zones” which shall be incorporated

into and made a part of this chapter and all future ordinances establishing a technology zone.

Sec. 5. Incentive Period.

Subject to the requirements of this chapter, Qualified Technology Businesses shall receive the
benefits of the Technology Zone incentives consecutively for up to a 10-year Incentive Period.

Sec. 6. Eliqgibility Requirements.

(a) Existing and new businesses. The following requirements shall apply to all businesses
seeking the Incentives provided in this chapter:
i. Business must be engaged in a qualified technology business;
ii. Wages paid to Full-Time Employees must be at least 25% above the region’s average
prevailing wage for similar positions in the applicable industry sector, as reported by

13 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Vi.

the Federal Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) or Occupational Employment and Wage
Statistics (Virginia Employment Commission);

Machinery and equipment that is either purchased or leased, must be new to the
County and associated with a qualifying plant expansion or renovation within the
Technology Zone;

. Businesses must commit to the creation of at least five net new jobs and at least

$5,000,000 in Capital Investment (machinery and equipment or real property); or,
creation of 10 net new jobs and at least $1,000,000 in new Capital Investment;
Businesses must make a capital investment of at least $1,000,000 to be eligible for
the Business Tangible Personal Property rebate; and

The increase in capital investment and new or additional full-time positions required
to qualify must occur within the investment and job creation schedule agreed upon
between the County Administrator and an official representative of the Qualified
Technology Business at the time of application.

(b) Any assets owned by a business which are moved into a technology zone from another
location within the County shall not be included in the increased new investment.

Sec. 7. Incentives.

Incentives of the Technology Zone must be accessed by the Qualified Technology Business within
one year of start of operations in the Technology Zone, or within one year of a qualified facility
expansion or renovation in order to receive the Incentives as outlined in this Chapter.

In the case of a qualified facility expansion or renovation, the rebate shall be limited to 100 percent
of the tax on the increase in the assessed value over the value from the Base Year assessed value.
The incentive period cannot be extended solely by relocating within or to another zone or by an
ownership change. The Treasurer shall issue a rebate within 60 days of receipt of full payment of
the taxes for each year of the incentive period.

The amount and schedule of incentives shall be as follows:

(@) Machinery & Tools:

100% rebate on Machinery & Tools Tax Years 1-5; and
75% rebate in Years 6-10

(b) Business Tangible Personal Property:

100% rebate on Business Tangible Personal Property Tax Years 1-5; and
75% rebate in Years 6-10

(c) Merchant’s Capital Tax:

50% rebate on Merchant’s Capital Tax Years 1-5

(d) Waiver of all site development fees (i.e. land disturbance, site plan review)

(e) Waiver of all building permit (i.e. plans review) and inspection fees, including structural,
electrical, plumbing and mechanical

14 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



(f) Waiver of rezoning, conditional use permit, or special exception fees

The amount and schedule of exemption may from time to time be amended in order to sustain the
economic development priorities established by the County.

Sec. 8. Certification Procedure.

The following certification procedure applies to Technology Businesses seeking to obtain the
benefits of the technology zone:

(@ A Technology Business must submit a Technology Zone Program Qualification
Application to the Director of Economic Development for certification as a Qualified
Technology Business.

(b) After a Technology Business has been certified as a Qualified Technology Business, in
order to receive a rebate, it must annually submit a Technology Zone Program Annual
Certification form with qualifying criteria and annual return of machinery and tools,
business tangible personal property, merchant’s capital tax, a detailed list of assets, along
with the number of Full-Time Employees employed by the Qualified Technology
Business, and an official Virginia Employment Commission report for wage verification
to the Commissioner of Revenue and the County Administrator, by the stated filing date.

(c) The Qualified Technology Business must pay the resulting machinery and tools tax,
business tangible personal property tax, and merchant’s capital tax, and then the
allowable portion of these taxes will be rebated. The Commissioner may request
additional documentation from the business, and that documentation must be received
within ten days from the date of this request unless the Commissioner agrees, in his/her
sole discretion, to an extension of time for the submission of such documentation. In no
case, however, shall the extension exceed 90 days. Failure to request the rebate or to
submit the required documentation in a timely manner, as determined by the
Commissioner, shall result in forfeiture of the machinery and tools, business tangible
personal property, or merchant’s capital tax rebate incentive for that year of the incentive
period. Neither a sale and lease-back agreement nor a subsequent purchase of equipment
originally leased shall extend the incentive period beyond the original incentive period.

(d) The rebate of tax on qualifying leased property must be issued directly to the lessor.

Sec. 9. Compliance.

(a) Failure of the Qualified Technology Business to pay in full by the due date any taxes
imposed by the County shall result in the loss of the exemption or rebate for that calendar
year. The County Administrator may withdraw the Qualified Technology Business status
for any business that is not compliant with any ordinance, regulation, or other legal
requirement pertaining to that business.

15 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



(b) If a Qualified Technology Business files for bankruptcy during any ten-year Incentive
Period, this will result in disqualification and the business will be ineligible to receive
Technology Zone incentives for the remainder of the Incentive Period.

(c) Inthe event that the Technology Business ceases to be a Qualified Technology Business,
or removes itself from operation in the County during any year within the first five years
of the tenyear Incentive Period, it shall be required, except as otherwise provided in this
ordinance, to Action ltems - Page 6 repay a pro-rated portion of incentives received
within 30 days to the County of Sussex. The pro-rated repayment will be determined by
the County Administrator and based on the life-to-date percentage of capital investment
and full-time jobs created in comparison to the commitments made at the time of
application for Technology Zone incentives.

(d) In the event a Technology Business is unable to continue to meet the eligibility
requirements within the timeframe established pursuant to Section 6(a)(vi), and the
business contacts the County Administrator within 90 days of the annual certification and
filing date, the County Administrator may in his/her discretion, approve an action plan
for the business which, among other things, may provide the business additional time to
meet the requirements of a Qualified Technology Business. If the business fails to meet
the eligibility requirements after the timeframe set forth in the action plan, it shall be
required to repay 100% of the incentives received within 30 days to the County of Sussex.

Sec. 10. Nonwaiver.

Unless expressly stated herein, this chapter shall not be construed to waive the requirement of any
ordinance, regulation, or policy of the County, including, but not limited to, those ordinances,
regulations, and policies that require permits and approvals for land use and construction except
as expressly mentioned in this chapter. Additionally, unless stated otherwise herein, nothing in this
chapter shall be construed as waiving the right of the County to enforce its ordinances, regulations,
or policies to collect any taxes, fees, fines, penalties, or interest imposed by law on a qualified
technology business or upon real or personal property owned or leased by a Qualified Technology
Business.

Sec. 11. Zoning Ordinance Not Affected.

This chapter is an economic development incentive and is not a zoning change. Nothing herein
shall be construed to affect any provision or requirement of the County Zoning Ordinance.

Sec. 12. Education and Promotion.

The County Administrator shall develop strategies and marketing tools to promote the benefits of
the Technology Zone to the public and potential businesses.

State Law Reference—Virginia Code Section 58.1-3850

This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.

16 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Futrell, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler
Voting nay: none

6.02 PPT Deadline Extension Resolution

County Administrator Douglas stated that a resolution to extend the personal and real estate
property tax payment deadline for tax year 2022, as prepared by the County Attorney, was included
in the packet for the Board’s consideration.

This resolution was requested by Chairwoman Seward with input from Treasurer Cox, to provide
additional time for tax payments (based on impacts from COVID, inflation, and increased vehicle
values). If approved, this resolution will extend the payment deadline from December 5, 2022, to
March 5, 2023.

Staff recommended that the Board of Supervisors approves Resolution #22-137 to extend the
personal property tax payment deadline for Tax Year 2022 to March 5, 2022.

A copy of Resolution #22-137 was included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approved Resolution #137 to
extend the personal and real estate property tax payment deadline for Tax Year 2022 to March 5,
2023, to-wit:

WHEREAS, national, state, and local economies have been negatively impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic; and

WHEREAS, due to the recent effect that inflation has had on the value of real estate and
personal property, the Board of Supervisors wants to provide residents some relief in paying tax bills;
and

WHEREAS, the real estate and personal property tax payments are due by December 5, 2022,
subject to penalties and interest for late payments; and

WHEREAS, Section 58.1-3916 of the Code of Virginia empowers the Sussex County Board
of Supervisors to grant by resolution an extension of time, not to exceed 90 days, for the payment of
real estate and personal property taxes whenever good cause exists; and

WHEREAS, COVID-19 and the recent effect that inflation has had on the value of real estate
and personal property constitutes good cause, and the Board of Supervisors wants to provide residents
some relief in paying tax bills and desires to provide all support possible to the community at this time.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS, VIRGINIA:

81. That the due date in FY 2022 for the payment of real estate taxes and personal property taxes(to
include merchant’s capital, machinery & tools, and mobile home taxes, vehicles, trailers, motorcycles

17 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



and boats) is hereby extended from December 5, 2022, to March 5, 2023, and that payment can be
made up to that time without late penalties and interest.

§ 2. That this resolution shall have no legal impact upon prior delinquencies.

8§ 3. That staff immediately communicate the extension information to the community.
8 4. That this resolution is effective upon adoption.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, Futrell, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler

Voting nay: none

6.03  Gro52 Property Buy-Back

The Board of Supervisors approved the sale of 22.5 acres of property on Cabin Point Road in
October 2020 to Gro52, at a price of $44,586, for the construction of a commercial hemp growing
facility. Unfortunately the company has yet to begin construction, and the purchase agreement
provides for a county buy-back of the property at the original price if the facility is not constructed
within 24 months of closing. Because this property is adjacent to county-owned mega site property
that is extremely important from an economic development perspective for the county, staff
recommends that the buy-back process be initiated by the County Attorney. A copy of his
recommended process, as well as a copy of the sales agreement and plat, are attached for your
review.

Staff recommends approval to initiate the buy-back process for the Gro52 property on Cabin Point
Road.

Copies of the County Attorney email, Gro52 sales agreement, and plat were included in the
Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves initiating the buy-back
process for the Gro52 property on Cabin Point Road. All Board members present voted aye.

6.04 Animal Services Budget Amendment (Shelter Improvements)

This item was moved from Item 2. Consent Agenda (Item 2.06) to Item 6. Action Items, as Item
6.04.

County Administrator Douglas stated that a budget amendment for animal shelter improvements
necessary to maintain state operational compliance, totaling $34,372 was included in the packet
for the Board's consideration.

The improvements are itemized in an email from the Animal Services Director and are related to
moisture issues necessitating the replacement of shelter flooring and cat room walls. These costs
are in addition to improvements completed under a recent donation from Energix related to sealing
all indoor and outdoor kennel flooring.

18 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



Staff recommends approval.

A copy of Resolution #22-130 FY23 Budget Amendment and email from the Animal Services
Director were included in the Board packet.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Animal Services
Budget Amendment (Shelter Improvements) #22-130, to-wit:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget
amendment for the Fire, Rescue, & Emergency Services function be and hereby is made for the
period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. This resolution will appropriate local reserve funds
to the Animal Services department for animal shelter renovations.

FUND # 100 GENERAL FUND

REVENUE
Fund 135 Local Reserves $34.,400
Total Revenues $34,400

EXPENDITURE

Fund 100 Administration ~ $34,400

Total Expenditures $34,400

Finance Department Note: Sufficient documentation has not been met to meet the County s Small
Purchase Policy.

Voting aye: Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward

Voting nay: Supervisor Futrell

Abstained: Supervisor Tyler

7. Citizens’ Comments

Comments were heard from Kevin Bracy (Courthouse District) regarding the Animal Shelter;
buildings on the complex; scrap metal; convenience sites-90 days to rectify problem; and 911 calls
on vicious dogs.

8. Unfinished Business

There was no Unfinished Business.

9. New Business

There was no New Business.

10. Board Member Comments

19 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



10.01 Blackwater District —Keep animals current on rabies shots.

10.02 Courthouse District — In regards/response to Waverly District: noted Grievance Policy for
problems with employees and Social Services Advisory Board.

10.03 Henry District — Employees at Jarratt Convenience Center - no lights, getting dark earlier;
asked Administration to expedite getting lights.

10.04 Stony Creek District — Stony Creek Annual Christmas parade 1st Sunday, December 4th;
wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.

10.05 Wakefield District — Have same approach in improving County buildings as for Animal
Services buildings.

10.06 Waverly District — Personnel Committee — convenience - convenience site employees
threatened; requested Personnel Committee meeting; letter for Courthouse District; Social
Services and Social Services Director and Board; vehicle logos.

There was discussion of Board's role regarding personnel.
11.  Closed Session

There was no Closed Session.

12. Adjournment

12.01 Adjournment

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:
RESOLVED that the November 17, 2022 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of
Supervisors hereby adjourned at 8:15 p.m. All Board members present voted aye.

12.02 Next Meeting

The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting is scheduled to be held, Thursday, December 15,
2022 at 6 p.m.

20 | Page — Minutes of November 17, 2022 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors



September 15, 2022
WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY

TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS:

CHECK NO.

2

$690,873.81

$0.00

AMOUNTS

.02

PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF Augst 2022

Total Regular Warrants

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS:

Total Deduction Warrants:

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL

222715-222753
222754-222761
222773-222819
222820-222827
222828

222829-222857
222858-222859
222860

222861-222865
222879-222881
222882-222928
222929-222938

222762-222772
222866-222878

$ 63,033.76
$ 110,149.35
$ 65,847.22
$ 25,562.83
$ 1,495.65
$ 158,143.39
$ 186.94
$ 497.30
$ 150.00
$ 4,300.52
$ 132,465.25
$ 26,537.66
$588,369.87

$ 51,996.11
$ 50,507.83
$102,503.94

$690,873.81

RUN DATE 8/4/2022

RUN DATE 8/4/2022

RUN DATE 8/11/2022
RUN DATE 8/11/2022
RUN DATE 8/17/2022
RUN DATE 8/18/2022
RUN DATE 8/18/2022
RUN DATE 8/22/2022
RUN DATE 8/23/2022
RUN DATE 8/25/2022
RUN DATE 8/25/2022
RUN DATE 8/31/2022

RUN DATE 8/16/2022
RUN DATE 8/31/2022


sricks
Highlight





Lol 00°
S3JLAJBS |BOLPIK

S3ILAJBS [RILP3W

00°2ST
ALNNOD X3SSNS 60810
ALNNDD X3SSNS 60810

v 82 wioL 00°
88.1609.012Y11T # 60810 SSILAJDS JIIBM

€€ ¥E6°€¢ WI0L 00"
£2A4 YILHVND LST 60810 UOLSSLULOY BJR) YINOA J33RJ)
34 39¥SN 2202 AINC 60810 UOLSSLUO) SJB) UINOA JBIBJ]

00°618'1 WI0L 00°
ALNNOJ X3SSNS 60810 SJ3U30 SNO3UR| |3ISLW

0,708 1oL 00°
200¥0S # 608104 1edoy B 8dueusjuLey buipiing
00°6.¢ WLI0L 00’

J41¥3HS X3SSNS 60810SJLRADY 3 BDURLBIULEW 3 ILUIA
44T¥3HS XISSNS 608T0 SdLeday BOUBUSIULEW BLILYBA
J4143HS XISSNS 60810SJ1eddY § dURUIIULEW BIDLUBA
J3T¥3HS X3SSNS 60810SJ1eddY § BoURUBIULEW 3DLUIA
J3143HS XISSNS 608T0SJLRA3Y B SDUBLBLEH 3{DLUBA

09°19 WI0L 00
44T43HS X3SSNS 60810 s3tjddng pooy
G681 V101 00"

S3ILAJSS [RILPAK
S3DLAJSS {LILPaK
S3J1AJIG |RILPaK
S3DLAJIS [RILPaN
S3DLAJIS |RILPaW

L041 # 60810
L041 # 60810
L0L1 # 60810
L0L1 # 60810
L1y # 60810

2¢ €21 WI0L 00
QYLNOD TWNY X3SSNS 60810SJteday § SOuRUSIULBKW 3|OLUBA

00°0ST WL0L 00°
DISSIWWOD SNINNV1d 60BT0UOLIESUBALO) PJROG/UOLSS LLLOY

00 02" €1 101 00°
99¢/1 # 608100 @buey) 3 "dinb3 auLbu3 ddi4
L1¥91 # 60810 punj s, uewddid 93e3S

16°8YL 101 00
J0VLISISEBONTY # 60810 s$at(ddng |eun3notLuby
JCVLISISEBLNTY # 60810 sai[ddng |eun3noLuby
JCVLISISEBONTY # 60810 saL(ddns |eLJolLiuep
JrVLIS3ISEBONTY # 60810 sai|ddng 321440

00°56 WL0L 00°
Ve ALNNDD X3SSNS 608T04Leday B 2dueudjuiey buip(ing

"2S30 INNOJJY /9 LWd LWd  "ON
HOV HOV  Y03HD 1IN

WL0L LWd Ad3 00°
LgLeee 00°9L
Le2£2zz 00°9L

WLOL 1Wd Ad3 00°
921222 w82

L0l LWd Ad3 00"
S¢lece G272€S91
S2L2ec 80°20V 'L

VI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
v2Leee 00°618°1

VI0L IWd Ad3 00°
€z/eez 0L°08

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°
celeee 00°GL
celece 00°6L
2eleee 00°SL
ceLeee 00°SL
c2leee 00°GL

V10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
124222 0919

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00
02L2e¢ 06°SLE
0¢Leec 00°95Y
02£22¢ 00 €21
02/¢cc G0 L2€
02ieee 00°L61

101 IWd Ad3 00°
61L2¢¢ ¢¢'€ct

TWL0L IWd Ad3 00°
8lece 00°0ST

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
(1422 00°v0c'e
£1/222 00°000°TT

TVI0L Wd Ad3 00
914222 v6 605
91/22¢ ¥ 811
914222 SL'6S
91/22¢ 86°09

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
SlLeee 00°56

INNOWY

80/220Z - P4V

WLO0L iWd ¥dd 00°
012-19¢-£221-009120-001
01¢-192-£221-009120-00T¥

W10L tWd ¥d3 00°
029-129-££21-001¢90-001¥

W1O0L tWd v¥d 00°
018-£98-0112-008180-001%
018-£98-0112-008180-001¥

101 LWd ¥dD 00°
012-112-6621-001120-001%

W10L IWd vdd 00°
0T¢-192-2£21-009120-001%

W10l LWd ¥dd 00°
015-215-9921-001150-001¥
015-615-5921-001150-001%
016-215-9921-001150-001
015-215-5921-001150-00T%
015-216-9921-001150-001%

TV10L LWd ¥dd 00°
015-155-9v21-005150-001%

WLOL 1Wd Yd) 00°
012-19¢-£221-009120-001%
012-192-£221-009120-001¥
0T1¢-192-£221-009120-001%
012-192-£221-009120-001¥
012-192-£221-009120-001%

W10L LWd Ydd 00°
012-192-9921-009120-00T¥

WI0L 1Wd vdD 00
0T¢-1v2-L121-00¥120-00T¥

101 LWd vdd 00°
012-£52-0006-005120-001%
p0S-012-152-0112-005120-001¥

WL0L LWd vdd 00°
012-192-2v21-009120-001
012-192-2¥21-009120-001¥
012-192-£p21-009120-001%
012-€52-1%¢1-0051¢0-001

TVIOL LWd Vdd 00°
015-155-2£21-005150-00TY

‘ON
_.z:ouu<

y5 87 €1-IWIL

WL0L LWd HOV 00°2S1 V10L %J3H) 00 avioL “JSid

2202/9¢/L 199142 S81100 0000000
220e/9¢/L G991/ VLIdSOH TYWINY VINVLNGSIO SBTTO0 0000000

WLOL LWd HIY '8 Ivi0L ¥3HD 00 vioL “3SI0
220¢/1¢/L 221240 88L1609 SONIYAS TVLSA¥D T1£8000 0000000

TV10L IWd HOV £€°¥€6°EC WI0L ¥3HD  00° Tvi0L “3SIa
2202/12/L 20-500¢€¢ 20000 0000000
ce0e/1e/L 10-500€¢ YD HLNOA ¥3LWYI $20000 0000000

WIO0L LWd HIV 00°618'1 WI0L WI3H)  00° WL0L JSIa
2202/%0/8 2262L0 9aM¥D DU0DHRIOM TWNOIIIY YILVHD 666666 0000000

VL0L tWd HOV 0,708 10L ¥J3HD  00° W10l OSIQ
220e/L0/L £8686¢ S¥IHL0¥E ONITMOD 020000 0000000

TVIOL iWd HOV 00°G.¢ TL0L W3HY  00° wioL “JsIad
¢202/82/L 29-220¢ 650200 0000000
2e02/91/L £40-220¢2 §50200 0000000
220e/2e/L 240-220¢ 650200 0000000
2e0e/0¢/L 290-220¢ 550200 0000000
2ede/0e/L £G0-2202 SNOTLWY81 V) HLIVIMNOWWOD G50200 0000000

V10L LWd HOV 09°19 WI0L YO3H) 00 L0l 3SIA
2e0e/ e/t 656240 SSINISNGIYIV TWHINID G8¥T00 0000000

WLOL LWd HOV G6°8LY°T WLO0L MM 007 101 JSId
2202/10/8 12¢€L 162100 0000000
2e0e/6el L €81€L 162100 0000000
2e0e/ie/L ELIEL 152100 0000000
2202/02/L Gp0EL 152100 0000000
2202/0e/L 6£0€L  AYVNI¥IL3A INIOJ NI18VD 152100 0000000

101 IWd HIV ce et VI0L ¥J3H3  00° 101 "JS10
2e0e/e/L 80011 ONY ONIMOL S.¥311iNg 8EL000 0000000

WLO0L IWd HIV 00° 051 WL0L M3HD 00 W10L "3SI1d
2202/20/8 [ZARTAUR:Y} NIA3Y ‘AJWNE 2/¢100 0000000

10L LWd HOV 00 ¢¥0Z°€1 WIOL MI3HD 00 Tvi0l "3SIQ
2e0e/6e/L no38801e 69.100 0000000
2e0e/61/L BIPT-1 11105 AINITYIWI DILNVILY 69.100 0000000

TWL0L IWd HOV 16°87L Tvi0L XIFHD 00 vi0l "SI0
2202/5¢/L WO19-WAAT-LYET L16100 0000000
2202/92/L PHLL-PADI-WINT £16100 0000000
2202/9¢/1L IWAD- LADL - TANT L16100 0000000
2e0¢/1€/L DCAY-DUGY-DXOT  S3DIAYIS TVILdVD NOZwWY L16100 0000000

I0L 1Wd HIV 00°56 VI0L NJIH)  00° 101 0SI1d
2e02/L2/L 2eLelLeny B 3LIWY3L SNOSV3IS 1T £26000 0000000
TV 31va ‘ON JWVN HOON3A ‘0N ‘ON
d/v 3DI0ANI 3II0ANT YOONIA ‘0'd

Y31S1934 ¥IIHI d/V ALNNOD X3SSNS  2202/v0/8  00TdV

¥05£86888458-00.28-LAvy-VI4-1 4060598 ‘Al 2dojaaul ubignoog



00061 WI0L 00
OISSIKW0D ININNVId 608T0UOLIRSUICWO) PJROG/UOLSS LULO)
(8°61¢ WwioL 00°

109811 # 60810 satddng [etuoiiuep
S9° 9y WI0L 00
£09€20L€ # 60810 {Pjudy/asea quawdinb]l
£09€20.€ # 60810 {ejuay/asea juswdinbl

00°G¢ WI0L 00°
ALNNOD X3SSNS 60810 SJ3Y3Q snoaue||3dSLi

00°06 Wi0L 00°
06T IN3Y X09 60810 uoLSURIX] 9AL1RJSd00) VA

1698 W1O0L 00

ALNNDD X3SSNS 60810 ButjuLd
00°GL V10L 00"

OISSIWNOD ONINNYId 60BTQUOLIRSUBCWO]) PJROG/UOLSS LU0
00°002 Vi0L 00"

OISSIWWOD ONINNVId 60810uOL1esuadwo) pJeog/uoLssLuio)
00°GL V101 00"

QISSIWWOD DNINNVd 608T0UOLIRSUSCWO) PJLOR/UOLSS LUkIO]
00°05L°¢€ W10L 00°

J3T¥3HS X3SSNS 60810 Sasuadx3 (eOLpaW dteuwu]
27149 V10L 00°

N0 LINJYID XISSNS 60810tA4aS Buluuedss g Buiwy 1y0adtW
00051 V10L 00"

OISSIWWOD SNINNVId 608T0UOLIeSURMWO) PLROg/UOLSS LURID]
00°051 V101 00°

OISSIWWO0D ONINNVId 608TQUOLIBSURCLO) PJROg/UOLSSLIIO)
00°005'8 V101 00°

ALNNOD X3SSNS 60810 S321AJ3S @637
00°051 V101 00°

OISSIHNOD ONINNVd 608T0uCt}PSUBALO) PJROG/UOLSS LWO)
oy TIT WL0L 00"

£00-500S # 60810 |ejudy/ases Juswdinbl
SL°€5¢ Wvi0L

00
TVE ALNNDD X3SSNS 60810 sat [ddng pooy

NOTLdI¥IS30 ANT HILVE 3530 INNOJJY /9 LWd L
HIV HV  03H) 13N

¢ 39

TLIOL LWd Ad3 00°
yvLeez 00°0ST

W01 iWd Ad3 00°
€vleee (B'61¢

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°
2vieéc ee'ete
chiece €eeee

W10l LWd Ad3 00°
Tvieee 00°SE

WIO0L 1Wd Ad3 00
0vieez 00°06

W10L IWd Ad3 00°
6€Lece L6°V8

WIO0L IWd Ad3 00°
8eLcee 00°SL

WIOL INd Ad3 00
{eleze 00°00¢

WIO0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
9eL¢ez 00°S¢

WICL 1Wd Ad3 00
SeLzez 00°0SL°€

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
veLeee 2y 149

WIOL iNd Ad3 00°
€€L2e 007091

IOL LWd Ad3 00°
2ELeee 007051

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°
164222 00°00S°8

TVIOL LWd Ad3 00°
0€/gee  00°0ST

WIO0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
6cizee ww'TlT

WIOL LWd Ad3 00°
8cL2ce SLUESE

Wd  "ON  INNOWY

80/¢202 - PV Y5 8Y:E1-IWIL

WI0L 1Wd vd) 00° L0L LWd HJV 007061 Wi0L M3H)  00° WL0L "3SId

0T2-1v2-L121-00v120-00TY ¢¢02/20/8 22110 SY Hd10aMNY “SONVHS 998100 0000000
WI0L 1Wd VdD 00° WIOL LWd HIV (8°61¢ WI0L M3H)  00° Wi0L "3SId
012-122-Ly21-002120-001T¥ acoe/ e/t 2ees9et AlddNS QUOY¥IHLNY €30000 0000000
WIO0L 1Wd ¥dI 00° WI0L IWd HIY S9° 9y i0L MJ3H)  00° WL0L “IS1
0€9-2€9-¢521-001€90-001¢ 2202/ST/L y¥68189¢ €20100 0000000
0€9-1€9-2521-001€90-001¥ 2202/S1/L ¥v68189¢ "ONI VSN HOJIY €20100 0000000
WL0L 1Wd vd) 00° VI0L LWd HOV 00°6¢€ VI0L X3HY)  00° W10L "JSIG
0T2-11¢-66¢1-001120-00T¥ ¢c0e/8¢/L 06€251 YIINID N3QUVD SINIVY 091100 0000000
WVL0L IWd ¥d) 00° WIOL IWd HOV 00706 WIOL MO3H3  00° W10L "3SIa
018-228-0T12-00€180-00TY 2202/20/8 2280 06TIN3¥X08 YILSYWLSOd S9T000 0000000
W10L 1Wd ¥dd 00° WL0L 1Wd HIV 16°V8 10L MO3H)  00° W01 "SI
012-112-€€21-001120-00T¥ ¢e0e/81/L 669LE ANVAWOD ONILNI¥d N3MO /BIT00 0000000
W.I0L iWd vdd 00° WI0L 1Wd HOV 00°GL WI0L MJ3HD  00° V1oL “ISIa
012-1¥2-£121-00¥120-001p 2202/20/8 2eLTL0 WY M MIYONV "S3AVW 009100 0000000
WIOL 1Wd ¥dd 00° WIOL LWd HV 00°00¢ WIOL Y03H3  00° WI0L "3SId
012-T¥2-£121-00¢¥120-001¥ ¢e0¢/¢0/8 221140 WL AY¥3L "DUNEN3SSYW 60€000 0000000
Wi0L LWd vdd 00° WWIOL LWd HIV 00°SL TVI0L X03HD)  00° vi0L “3SId
01¢-1v2-£121-00¥120-001% 2202/¢0/8 221TL0 Wa SINN3Q "NOSWW 26€100 0000000
WI0L IWd vd) 00° WI0L IWd HIVY 00°05L'€ WIOL J3H)  00° 101 "JSIC
015-155-€6¢1-005150-00T¥ 2e02/20/8 2202 AINC Od OW YNVLITIW "0 WivW €¥6100 0000000
101 Lid ¥dD 00° WI0L 1Wd HOY 2v 149 IOL MO3HD  00° 101 "JSIG
029-129-9€21-00T290-001% 2e02/S1/4L 8€/95 ONI "SWILSAS NVI07 621000 0000000
WI0L Wd ¥dd 00° WIOL LWd HIV 00°0ST i0L 3HD  00° Wi0L "3S1d
012-1¥2-£121-00¥120-001% 220e/20/8 2zITL0 M Y3904 "ONIN £/¥100 0000000
WIO0L IWd ¥dd 00° WI0L 1Wd HOV 00°0St 101 M3HY 00 vi0L "3SI0
012-1pc-L121-00¥120-001F ¢¢0z/20/8 [AANVIUE] JNVYd "ONIAYI SZpT00 0000000
Wi0L iWd Vd) 00° WI0L IWd HIV 00°005°8 TIOL MJ3H)  00° Wi0L "JSIg
0¢2-182-€221-001¢20-001¥ 2e0e/5e/L €16TT  "J°d 09 B A3TIM AL4IH €0100 0000000
WL0L LWd vdd 00° WIOL LWd HIV 007051 WI0L M3H)  00° WL0L OSIa
012-T¥2-L121-00¥T20-00TY 2202/20/8 2eltLo e 3113AV4VT T "ONOWO3 €21000 0000000
V101 iWd Vdd 00° WIOL tWd HIVY [N WI0L XI3HD 08 Wi0L "3SIC
012-T12-25¢1-001120-001¥ 2e0e/20/8 L19ve1 SWILSAS IN3WNJ00 1S9100 0000000
Wi0L 1Wd V4D 00° WI0L INd HIV SL€5E WIOL XI3H)  00° vi0L "3SIa
015-155-9¥21-00S150-001¢ ¢z02/10/8 EVIE6LNW 13UV S.4IWAV4 300 206000 0000000
“ON NIV 3iva ‘ON INVN YOON3A “ON ON
INNOJJV d/v 3DI0ANI JDI0ANI HOONIA ‘0'd

Y3LSII MI3HI d/v ALNAOD X3SSNS  2202/v0/8  00TdY

¥aS£86888458-0028-Lavy-v¥ad-1 4060598 :Al @dojaaul ubignooq



9.°€€0°€9 W10l 00°
9/ €£0°€9 Wil 00°
6L 6Y Wi0L 00°
¥9120€£€8182.E # 60810 SSILAJIS JBIBM
9¢ 901 Wi0L
1009818200020 # 60810 |BIURY/3sea] »:msarzau
0056 WI0L 00°
YvLSI93Y X3SSNS 60810 Bu1uLdg
Sh'E W10l 00"
9561982 T0ESZYTT # 60810 S3ILAJIDS JIIEM
£9°6¥1 Wi0L 00
1004118210020 # 60810 Lejudy/asea juawdinbl
0005.°1T Wi0L 00°
NOILYJ0TWV €2Ad 60810 U0L1RLI0SSY YINoA A|JaABM
00°8€9 Wi0L 00°
NOILYJDOTIV €2A4 60810  K39100S piy [e637 eLutbuip
0070052 w101
NOILVI0TIV €2A4 6081033u8) SUIZL3L) Lo_:ww 1jeduel
82°65¢ w101 00"

£018250001 # 60810 S3J1AJ3S | PNIORJIU0)

NOILdI¥OS3G ANI HOLYE

£ 39w

"3S30 LNAOJIY /9 .En_ .En.
HOV HOV  MJ3H)

WLIO0L IWd Ad3 00°
WLOL LWd Ad3 00

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°
€6/222 6L'6Y

WIOL IWd Ad3 00°
254222 98901

I0L LWd Ad3 00°
15(2zz2  00°S6

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°
0522 Gv't

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°
6vLeie €9°6v1

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00
BpL2eZ 00°06L°1

101 JWd Ad3 00°
LvLeee 00°8E9

WLO0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
9v/2z2 00°00S°2

WL0L LWd Ad3 00°
SvL222 82°65¢

LNNOWY
LN

‘ON

80/220¢

3iva

hlo

220e/v/8
STt

zz0z/v/8
IOL HL

-

*Q3LSACOV SV STVLOL L33HS 907 ATHIIM 3L STvDI  -9L°EED €9

“Q3INIWNIO0 ATSNOIATYG ¥O #0138 Q3LSIT SNOTLd3DX3 HLIM LNIWAVE ¥0d Y3LSI9FY SIHL 3A0¥ddY AGIYIH 1

101 LWd vdD 00 WL0L LWd HOV 9.7€€0°€9 WIOL MI3H) 00
WI0L 1Wd vdd 00 WL0L LWd HIV 9,°€€0°€9 WIOL X3HY 007
W10L LWd ¥dd 00° WL0L LWd HIV 6L 6% WL0L MM 00 vloL 3SIa
019-119-££21-001190-001¥ 2e0e/1e/L 221210 ¥9T120EL SONIYdS WLSA¥D 1/8000 0000000
WiO0L LWd vd) 00° TI0L LWd_HIV 9€°901 WLO0L MI3H) 00 vioL “JSIg
019-219-2521-001190-001% 2202/91/L £228/£€ SIDIAYIS TWIONWNIZ XO¥3X p¥9100 0000000
W10L IWd VdD 00° W1O0L IWd HOV 00°G6 WL0L XI3HD WwioL JSIa
0€2-162-£€21-001€20-001¥ ce0e/8e/L £18.¢ ANVAWOD uz:.z:_m N3M0 £81T00 0000000
V101 IWd vd) 00° WI0L LWd HIV Sy'e WL0L ¥I3HY  00° Lol JS1d
0€9-1£9-££21-001€90-001¥ 2202/91/L 22910 9551¥821 SONTYHAS TWLSAYD 18000 0000000
WLOL 1Wd ¥d) 00° 101 IWd HOV £9°6¥1 Wi0L X3H) - 00 101 "3SI0
029-129-2521-001290-001¥ ceoe/en/L £091/€€  SIDIAYIS TWIONYNIZ XO¥3X p¥9100 0000000
TVL0L IWd vdD 00° WI0L 1Wd HIY 00°0S.°1 WL0L HI3H) Wi0L "3Sid
018-5¥8-0112-009180-001¥ 2202/2¢0/8 €2Ad zo:<~ucmm< :._._..9 ATRIIAVM 2€2100 0000000
101 IWd ¥dd 00° W10L tWd HOV 0089 104 I3HI i W0t "3SHQ
018-028-0172-00€180-001¥ 2202/20/8 £2Ad E.wsom n:< w931 VA $22100 0000000
WL0L IWd Vd) 00° WI0L LWd HOV 00°005°2 WL0L W3IH)  00° Tv101 2510
018-6¥8-0112-009180-00T7 2202/20/8 £2A4 37ILID ¥OINIS LLVYYVC 3HL 950200 0000000
10L 1Wd vdd 00° WIO0L LWd HIV 82652 WI0L XOIHD wi0L OSIQ
0T2-112-8221-001120-001% 2202/18/L 09£5802008 S._ <w: 11-Q3HS 819100 0000000
“ON TV 31va “ON INYN HOAN3IA “ON “ON
INNOJJV d/v 3D10ANE JDI0ANT HOON3A ‘0'd
PdIdv  GG:BY-E1-IWIL Y3LSI9FY WIFHD d/V ALNNOD X3SSNS  2202/¥0/8 0014V

¥05€85888458-00L8-LAY¥-V¥3-1 4060598 :al 2dojaau3 ubignoog



SE'6YT 0TI
Se YL 011

00°6¥1
100-0906600-020 # 0TBT0

9y 0LL
889590/ # 01810
889590/¢ # 01810

G2 '8LE°E
N0d LINJYID X3SSNS 0TBIO0

00°82£°001

34vS J1780d X3SSNS 01810
220Z 3NNC 01810

2202 INAC 0T8T0

S1°9
L03S # 01810
6¢ ¥€6°¢2
S9 #12v 01810
0¢ 65
L0£T # 01BTO0
00°880°2
£0L1 # 01810
(041 # 01810

L0L1 # 01810
(041 # 01810
L041 # 01810
041 # 01810
L041 # 01810
04T # 01810
£0L1 # 01810

L0LT # 01810

NOILdI¥JS30 ANI Hl1ve

1 39vd

i0L 00"
VI0L 00°
JdWMWmm\WmmmJ mmw&a_suu
Wi0L 00"

sat(ddng (er403tuep
satddng eLs0tuep

V101 00°
J0BJIUO) 3OLAJIS 3DURUBIULEK
w101 00°

"JW3 Pd - JAS 'PaW Adudbuawl
“IW3 Pd - JAS PaW Aouabuawl
“1W3 Pd - JAS 'PaW Aousbuswl

Wi0L 00"
|ejuay/asea juaudinbl

Wi0L 00"
J0JRJISLULWpY 14n0) dwo)

00°
S3D1AJAS |ROLP3H

w10l

00
S92LAJSS [BOLPAY
S3JLAJIS {BILPIM
S3ILAJAS |RILPW
S9ILAJIS [BILPAW
S3DLAJAS |BILPIM
S3ILAJAS [BILP3K
S3ILAJIS [BILPAK
S921AJ3S | BILPaM
S201AJIS [RILPAN
S301AJIS |EILP3N

wioL

"3S30 INNGIIV 1/9 LWd LWd

WIOL LWd Ad3 00°
TWL0L 1Wd Ad3 00°

WIO0L LWd Ad3 00°
194222 00°S¥1

WL0L LWd Ad3 00°
094222 95'GEV
092222 06'¥EE

WLI0L LWd Ad3 00°
661222 SC'BLE'E

TLI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
86.222 00°000° L
86/¢e¢ 00 0v8°1S
85/¢¢¢ 00'888°1¢

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
15L2ee S1°9

TVLOL 1Wd Ad3 00°
967222 62 ¥E6'C

TIOL 1Wd Ad3 00~
§6/222 0265

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00°
y5L2ez 0096
¥SLeze
vSLece
v§L2ee
vSLcee
¥5L2¢¢
¥Siece
¥5L22¢
v6Lece
v§Leee

00 0v1
00°1€2
00 TSE
00°89¢

“ON
HIV HOY MJ3HD

INNOWY
LIN

"gALSNPOY SV STVAOL 133HS 907 ATMIIM 3HL STVNDI
“GIINIWND00 ATSNOTATYA ¥O MO138 Q3LSIT SNOIL3DX3 HLIM INIWAVA ¥04 ¥3LS1934 SIHL IA0YddY AB3Y3H 1

Ava ,
<e|ps
2207/v/8
—Avg

2202/v/8
WIO0L 3L

-6E 61 011

V101 LWd ¥dD 00 TVIO0L LWd HOV S 6vT 011 TI0L ¥O3IHD  00°
101 LWd ¥dd 00° VL0L IWd HOV GE6Y1 011 TVI0L ¥I3H)  00°
WL0L LWd Ydd 00° WLOL 1Wd HOV 00°G¥1 101 M3H)  00° W10L "3S10
0T€-T1€-2521-00TT€0-001Y 2202/v2/9 19€826¢  S3DTAY3IS WIONWNIJ XOH3X v¥9100 0000000
101 LWd ¥dd 00° L0 IWd HOV 9v°0LL WI0L ¥3HY  00° Wi0L "SI0
012-192-£¥21-009120-001% 2202/62/9 2-0-79vSLG6GEL G£6100 0000000
012-192-£¥21-009120-001¥ 2e0e/ve/9 1-0-¥9¥5565€L "ONI"S31dVLS G£6100 0000000
W10L LWd ¥dd 00 VL0l 1Wd HOVY S2°8LE°¢ WLI0L M3H)  00° V1oL "JsId
029-129-5521-001290-001% 2202/50/5 0GELIONIS “INI “J¥vML0S N3DISJ 2G6100 0000000
WL01 LWd ¥dd 00° WLO0L 1Wd HIVY 00822001 W01 WI3HI  00° w10L "3SIa
¥25-012-252-0112-005120-001¢ 2202/80/L 2202901M ST1T00 0000000
$25-012-25¢-0112-005120-001v 2202/60/L 220290AYM GTT100 0000000
¥25-01¢-252-0112-005120-001v 2202/80/L 2202900S JONVINGWY ¥v1S3417 STIT00 0000000
TVL0L iWd ¥dd 00 VL0L LWd HOV SI'9v WL0L ¥I3H  00° vioL "ISId
029-129-2521-001290-001% 220¢/90/1 0Tivet SW3LSAS IN3WNJ0Q TS9T00 0000000
WL0L LWd Ydd 00° V101 LWd_HOV 62 ¥E6'¢C VL0L MI3H) 00 10l 2SI
019-119-%121-001190-001Y 2202/€0/8 1462 JTIASNI3UO 40 ALNNOD 229000 0000000
101 LWd Vdd 00° W10L LWd HOV 0¢°6S WIO0L ¥O3H)  00° W10L “JSIQ
012-19¢-£221-009120-001Y 2202/61/1 INSSIY-6690L  AYYNI¥ILIA LNIOd NISVD 162100 0000000
WL0L LWd ¥dd 00° WLO0L IWd HOV 00°880°¢C WL0L ¥J3HY  00° w101 “JSId
0T¢-192-£221-009120-001F 2202/£0/1 INSSIIY-1¥50L 152100 0000000
012-192-£221-009120-001 120¢/10/11 INSSIIY-£0£69 152100 0000000
01¢-192-£221-009120-00T¥ 1202/62/01 INSSI3Y-86969 152100 0000000
012-192-£221-009120-001% 1202/£2/01 INSSI3Y-0£969 162100 0000000
012-192-£221-009120-001% 1202/02/01 INSSI3Y-££569 162100 0000000
012-192-£221-009120-001F 1202/S1/01 INSSIY-8E569 162100 0000000
012-192-£221-009120-001F 1202/51/9 1£089 152100 0000000
012-192-£221-009120-001¢ 1202/¥1/9 £2089 162100 0000000
01¢-192-£221-009120-001% 1202/0€/€ 3NSS13Y-8€0£9 152100 0000000
01¢-192-£221-009120-001% 1202/€1/1 $9299  AYYNIY¥3ILIA LNIOd NIBVD 1G2T00 0000000
“ON NIV 11va ‘ON IWYN HOGNIA ‘ON ‘0N
INNOJJV d/v J010ANI 3010ANI JOON3A 0'd
80/2202 - PdIV  82°65°ET-3MIL Y3LST93Y NI3HD d/v ALNNOD X3SSNS  2202/¥0/8 0014V

$S£86888458-00.L8-2Avy-Vr34-1 4060598 ‘Al 2dojaaul ubignoog



100SnS # 11810
100SNS # 11810
100SnS # 11810
100SNS # 11810
1009nS # 11810
100SAS # 11810

Seeri’e
82€2.528v0 # 11810

00°002°'

SIOLAJDS [RUOLSSAI0Ud JAYID
S3DLAJSS [BUOLSS3J0Ud JAYID
S33LAJIS |2UOLSSIS0Ud JAYI0
S3JLAJSS [BUOLSSIJOUd JBUIQ
S3TLAJDS {BUOLSSBL0Ud JAULD
S3JLAJAS [BUOLSSIL0Jd JBYID

Wi0L 00°
aa3

WI0L

ALNAGD X3SSNS TT810LRd3Y B ulel msmum»w mcpu—sz

00 6SE
44TY3HS X3SSNS 11810

00°S¢

WLi0L 00
SBILAJDS WOISAS UOLIRWIOIU]

Wi0L 00

44143HS X3SSNS TT8T0SJLeday § oueudIULEW I[DLUSA

09°19
431Y3HS X3ISSNS 11810

69 t1

W10L 0g’
s31|ddns poo4

Wi0L 00"

T00G # 11810541803y § 2JUBUBIULEK BLOLUBA

99°848
L041 # 11810
L0L1 # 11810

€5 ¥9

Wi0L 00"
S3JLASDS [BOLPAY
S30LAJDS [BILP3aW

WI0L 00’

441¥3HS X3SSNS 1110S4LedaY § AduBUAIULRY 3DLYDA

J4TY3HS X3SSNS 11810

Ev'1L
INIWISUNEWI Y T1810

9802 €1
ALISSNS # 11810
ALISSNS # TIBI0
ALISSNS # 11810
ALISSNS # T1810
ALISSNS # 11810
ALISSNS # 11810
ALISSNS # 11810
ALISSNS # 11810

00" ¥¥5°€
95001 # 11810
00°000°1
NOILVIOTV €2A4 11810

NOILdT¥DS30°ANI HOLvE

1 39vd

sJ1eday 9oURUSIULEW B[D1YSA

L0l 00
SBILAJIS WO Lup

WI0L 00’
dui|osen
se/abea| Ly
seq/sbes| LW
obea| W
3682 (W
abea LW
3bea| W
9beay th

WI0L 00"
W3YSAS BuLIunoddy

L0l 00
$5049 pay

sBLZee
§8L22¢
GBL2ce
S8L¢ce
S8L2ce
S8Lcee

evzel’l
AR
erzel’l
areel’l
eyeel’l
ereet'l

W10 LWd Ad3 00°

y8L2ce

GE'6¥1'E

Wi0L 1Wd Ad3 00°

€842¢e

007002 ¥

Wi0L IWd Ad3 00°

[A: 12444

00°6SE

101 LWd Ad3 00°

184222

00°GL

WIO0L IWd Ad3 00

08£22¢

09°19

101 IWd Ad3 00°

6LLecc

69°¥1

IVIO0L LWd Ad3 00°

8LLece
8L12¢¢

99°281
00949

WL0L LWd Ad3 00°

LLL2ee
111222

00°0¢
€5 vy

WIi0L 1Wd Ad3 00°

9lLeie

e

101 IWd Ad3 00

SLLeee
SLLeee
§LL222
SLLeee
SlLece
SLi22e
SLL22¢
SiLeee

08'y8

WIOL LWd Ad3 00°

yiLeee

00°¥¥S°€

WI0L LWd Ad3 00

glleee

"3S30 INNOJOY /9 hza PZm “ON

HIV HOV  D3HD

00°000°T

INNOWY
1IN

80/2¢20¢

012-792-6221-009120-001v
012-¥92-62¢1-009120-001%
012-%92-6221-009120-001%
012-#92-6221-009120-001¥
012-792-6221-009120-001v
0T¢-¥92-6221-009120-001¢

WIO0L IWd ¥dd 00°

012-€92-9£21-009120-001%

VL0L LWd ¥dD 00°

0T2-122-£421-002120-001p

TV10L lWd vdd 00°

016-915-¥221-00T150-001%

WL0L LWd ¥d) 00°

015-215-9921-001150-0017

VIOL LWd VdD 00°

015-165-9¥21-005150-001F

WL0L 1Wd vdd 00°

015-216-59921-001150-001v

WL01 LWd Vdd 00°

012-192-£221-009120-001%
0T2-192-£221-009120-001¢

W10L IWd Vdd 00°

015-216-5921-001150-001¢
015-616-5921-00T150-001y

Wi0L LWd Vdd 00°

016-155-v21-005150-001Y

WLIOL IWd ¥dD 00°

0TZ-TTL-¥9¢1-001140-501%
015-216-¥921-001150-001¢
015-215-%9¢1-001150-001%
012-1¥2-¥921-00¥120-00TY
012-29¢-¥921-009120-001¥
012-122-%921-002120-001¥
012-192-921-009120-001¢
012-1v2-$921-00¢7120-001¥

101 iWd Vd) 00°

012-1£2-1221-00£120-001Y

IOl tWd Vdd 00°

018-918-0T12-00€180-001¥

N
INNO3JV

PV €EPT-GT-3WlL

2202/62/L 09e€98 £2£100 0000000
2202/6¢/1 65€€98 €2£100 0000000
220z/62/L 85¢€£98 €24100 0000000
2z0e/6e/L £SEEIB €2£100 0000000
2202/62/L 95€€98 €2£100 0000000
cebe/6e/L GGEE98 1AY3S ALIYNIIS OTHOMVOUYD €2/100 0000000

WL0L LWd HOV GET6YT'C WI0L M3 00° Wi0L "3SIa
2202/(2/L 220 82£2/G28Y0  WIMOd VINIDYIA NOINIWOG ¥B0000 0080000

Wi0L LWd HOV 00°00Z'v TI0L ¥J3HD 00~ WL0L "OSId
2202/20/8 222080 30 WOIYLIIT3 G¥vIIA BT0ZOO 0000000

WI0L LWd HOV 00°6S€E WL0L XJ3H) 101 "3SI0
2202/20/8 £06¥¢ mumoQJOz:uuh IN3Y3ANOD 677100 0000000

WIO0L LWd HOY 00°6L WI0L ¥I3HD  00° WI0L "3SI0
2202/10/8 £9-2202 SNOILYYSI TV HLIVIMNOWWOD 550200 0000000

W01 1Wd HOV 09'19 101 X03H)  00° W10l "3SIa
2202/€0/8 9v862uC SSINISNBIYOY vYINID G8¥100 0000000

VIOL LWd HOV 691 Wi0L M3H) 00 WIO0L “JSId
2202/80/8 B6EL£-GEEST @713143¥vM 30 1S3n0YVD 82/000 0000000

TWI0L LWd HOV 99°898 I0L WI3HD 007 w104 "ISIA
2202/50/8 262€L 162700 0000000
2e02/20/8 VEZEL  AYVNIY3L3A INIOd NIGYD 152100 0000000

WVI0L LWd HOV £5°'v9 WI0L ¥3H) 00 Wwi0L "JSid
2202/80/8 90211 8££000 0000000
2202/50/8 LBTTT ONV ONIMOL S.¥311n8 8££000 0000000

WLO0L LWd HOV ev 1L g V0L ¥I3HD  00° Wi0L "3S1a
2202/€0/8 2202L0 M WY1T1M ONYNG £¥0200 0000000

WIO0L tWd HOV ¥9°80¢ €1 i0L MO3HD 007 WI0L "ISI0
¢20e/1€/¢L 221€L0 ALISSNS £0ST00 0000000
¢g0e/1E/L 221EL0 ALISSNS . £0ST00 0000000
¢e0¢/1E/L 221€L0 ALISSNS £0S100 0000000
220¢/18/¢ 221€L0 ALISSNS £0ST00 000000
2202/1€/L 221€£0 ALISSNS £0ST00 0000000
2202/1¢/L 221€£0 ALISSNS £0S100 0000000
220e/1€/L 221EL0 ALISSNS £0ST100 0000000
2e0e/1¢/L 221€L0 ALISSNS ONI STI0 37vaS¥yve £0ST00 0000000

WL0L LWd HOV 00 p¥S'E WLI0L NIIHD Wi0L "3SId
ce0e/9el/t 9€-2202as3 ux<3huom 4<m_u_z:z Iv8 600000 0000000

WI0L IWd HIY 0070001 i0L WI3H) 00 vi0L "3S1A
cene/11/8 €2Ad SS0¥D 439 NIIYIWY LP0T00 0000000
WY 3iv0 ‘0N IWVYN HOON3A “ON ‘ON
dnv 3010ANI I010ANT YOON3A 0'd
YILSI9IY HOIHD d/V ALNNOD X3SSNS  2202/11/8  Q0Tdv

9399v06..593-Lv28-4vOr-34€0-12£8 1889 :al edojeau3 ubisnoog



25°8€L°2 Wi0L 00’ WI0L iWd Ad3 00° WI0L LWd Vdd 00° WIOL IWd HV 25'8EL°C 101 XJ3H) 00 101 “3S1d

929811 # 11810 saL(ddns pooy N 008222 25°8EL°2 015-T95-9¥¢1-005150-001Y 220¢/v0/8 €91Evee 301AY3ISC004 SYY 88¥T00 0000000
00°501°T Wi0L 00" 101 LWd Ad3 00° WIO0L 1Wd ¥d 00° 101 LWd HOY 00°501°1 IVI0L XJ3H)  00° v10L "JSIa

34¥S J178nd X3SSNS 11810 adoueuajuLel Judwdinb3 66222 00°S01°T 012-€5¢2-v521-005120-001% 2202/50/8 G-2202 40" T138dWVD SIWVC 1Y3IBOY S20200 0000000
06°81 WwiolL 00° WIOL IWd Ad3 00 VIOL LWd vdd 00° WLO0L IWd HIV 0681 V101 MI3H) 00" WI0L "JSIQ

AVd JIVWNI TI8T0 Aed ajeuu] 86¢¢2¢ 06°81 015-1595-G1¢1-00S150-001% 2202/10/8 220 ¥ YIHLNT NOSTIVHOIY 666666 0000000
434 w101 00 WI10L IWd Ad3 00° I0L LWd VdJ 00° WWIOL LWd HIV EERA4 WIOL ¥J3HD  00° v10L "JSIQ

ALNNOD X3SSNS 11810 SUGLIBDLUNUWOI3 |3} 164222 SS'¢6Y 012-€92-¥€21-009120-00T 2ede/e0/8 9682€ NOILIINMWW0D3T3L SdIT1IHd 9¥2100 0000000
00°05.°8 W10L 00° I0L LWd Ad3 00° W10L IWd Vdd 00° WI0L LWd HVY 00°05.°8 WL0L YJ3H)  00° Wi0L "3SId

ALNNQOD X3SSNS TTBT03ILAJAS BuLl|nsuo) juawabeuey 96222 00°05L°8 01€-21€-5221-00TTE0-00TY ¢e02/60/8 yI# A¥3S WSIVYddY S.NOS¥V3d E91000 0000000
69 8¥¢ 101 00° TVI0L LNd Ad3 00° TVL0L 1Wd Vdd 00° WIOL LWd HOV 69°8¥2 WI0L W3HY  00° Wi0L 3SIO

INIWISUNEWIZY T18T0BULULRJ] UON-3683} LW/3uL|0SeD G6L2¢¢ 61 ¢St 0Ty-1TP-¥9¢1-00TTH0-001% 2202/€0/8 ¢0 ¢2€080 d ) £50200 0000000

INIWISUNGWI Y TT810 S1P3W S6L¢2¢ 05796 0Ty-TT¥-5021-00TE0-001¥ 2202/€0/8 10 222080 dy N3AVY WyHYVd £50200 0000000
00°S1€ WI0L 00" W10L IWd Ad3 00° Wi0L LWd ¥dd 00° WIO0L IWd HIV 00°ST€ V0L ¥J3H) 00 V101 "3SIa

ALNNOJ X3SSNS T18T0 sat|ddns |etuo3Luer y6422c 00°SIE 01¢-¥92-£v21-009120-00TY 2202/01/4 2202£000NS SIJIAY3S Cvd 952100 0000000
00 %5 W10l 00 WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00 TL0L LWd Yd) 00° WI0L LWd HIV 00°vS WI10L ¥J3HD  00° 1oL "JSIa

Avd 3LVWNI TI810 feg aeuu] €642¢¢ 00°¥S 015-1595-G121-005150-001Y 2c02/10/8 220 NW TIVHIIW NYWMIN 666666 0000000
00°0%0°1 W10L 00° WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00° W10L LWd ¥dd 00° WIOL LWd HOV 00°0¥0°1 WIOL MJ3H)  00° w101 "0S14

G1E80T # 11810 sa}|ddnS 91440 26222 00°0¥W0'T 012-192-1921-009120-001¥ 2e0e/6e/t {STLLT 00 9vL % ONvE TYNOILYN €96T00 0000000
00°5¢ WL0L 00" 101 tWd Ad3 00° WLOL 1Wd Vdd 00° W10L LWd HOV 00°SZ WI0L ¥33H) 00 WL0L JSId

OYINOD TWNV X3SSNS 1T8I0 S3JLAJBS (RUOLSSDL0Ud 43U 16L¢e¢ 00°GL 012-19¢-62¢1-009120-001% 2202/60/8 226080 dVW MV ONV 1S3d JIINVILY-QIW €86100 0000000
L1°G8 Wi0L 00° WL0L iWd Ad3 00 WI0L IWd ¥d) 00° WIO0L IWd HIV L1°58 v10L WI3HY 00 W10l "3SIQ

2619262698 # 11810 SUOLIRDLUMULOD3 |3 06L2¢¢ L1°G8 012-€92-¥€21-009120-00T¥ 220¢/€1/L  22L0 T1599v2vey IJW 9v0100 0000000
68°629 WIO0L 00° WIOL LWd Ad3 00° WLOL IWd Ydd 00° TVI0L 1Wd HOY 68629 101 XI3H)  00° WL0L "3SId

08020500066 # 1181041ed3Yy B ddueuajuiey buipying 68/22¢ 6¢°5eE 012-1¢2-¢421-002120-001Y 2e0e/21/¢L 164216 €EvT00 0000000

08020500066 # T18T0JLeday § doueusjuiey Bulpling 68L¢c¢ 96°1€1 01¢-122-2£e1-002120-001Y 220c/81/L ¢STiLe €EY100 0000000

08020500066 # TI8T0.1eddy § 3oueusiuiew butp|ing 68L2¢C ¥9eLl 012-12¢-2£21-002120-001Y 2c0e/ L0/ 041606 S.3M07 €EYTO0 0000000
00°91¢ 101 00° WI0L 1Hd Ad3 00° W10L IWd ¥dd 00° WIOL IWd HIV 00°91¢ WIOL M3HD  00° W10L "3SIC

ALNNOJ X3SSNS TT8TOlRdRY B ULeW Swa}sAS butp|ing 88/¢¢c 00°91€ 012-122-€£21-002120-00T¥ ¢e0e/en/8 1891 “ONI WIINVHIIW NISN3C 696100 0000000
¥8°101 Wvi0l 00 WI0L LWd Ad3 00° WIO0L IWd ¥dd 00° WI0L LWd HV 8101 WI0L ¥J3HD  60° W10L "3SIQ

65T # TI810J1ed3Y § ddueuajuLey buip|ing (8422 86'€8 0TS-185-2£21-005150-001y 220e/€2/1 ¥5€L¢1-102¢ 670000 0000000

6ST # T1810.1eday § adueudjuiey Butp|ing 1B/222 9811 016-155-¢£¢1-00S150-001% 2e0e/vi/L v5€9¢1-L022 TYYMAIVH LLYRIVE 6¥0000 0000000
L6 626 W10L 00° WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00° WI0L 1Wd ¥dd 00° WIO0L 1Wd HOV 16626 viOL XI3HD  00° Wi0L "SI

J41Y43HS X3SSNS TTBT0SLLed3Y B SJUBUAIULEW 3|DLY3A 98L22¢ 6626 0T5-215-99¢1-001150-001T# 2202/9¢/L 08v5¥89¥ HLNOS Q04 A3WH LE910G 0000000
9€°6(6°8 WwioL 00" Vi0L LWd Ad3 00" WI0L IWd ¥d) 00° WI0L LWd HJV 9€'6.6'8 WIOL Y3H)  00° W10l "3S1d

100SNS # 11810 S3JLAJRS |BUOLSSILIOUG JBYIQ G8l2ec cv'ecl'l 012-¥92-62¢1-009120-001¥ 2202/6¢/L 29€€98 €2£100 0000000

100SNS # TTBT0 SIILAJBS |BUDLSSDLOU JAYID §8/2¢e 2b'2el’1 012-¥92-6221-009120-001% 2e0e/6e/L 19€€98 €2£100 0000000

NOILdI¥IS3Q ANI HOLVE "0S30 INNOJJY /9 LWd IWd  'ON  LNNOWY “ON IV EIN(t] ‘ON JWYN HOONIA ‘ON ‘ON

HJY HOV  NJ3HD L3N 1NNOJV d/v J010ANI I0TOANI HOON3A 0'd

80/2¢0¢ - P43V BE:PT'SI-IWIL Y3LSION MI3HI d/v AINNOD X3SSNS  ¢202/11/8  001dY

g399va6..593-Lv28-dvOr-34€0-L2ed 1889 :al edojeaus ubignaog



Tvi0L 2810

€

00°50¢ W10k 00" WL0L 1Wd Ad3 00 101 IWd vdd 00° WI0L IWd HOY 00°50¢ TVI0L MO3HD  00°
J4T43HS XISSNS T1BTOSJLedRY B SDUBUBIULEN BILUIA y1822¢ 00°581 015-215-5921-001150-00T% 2ele/8e/L |7ArAL . 060000 0000000
J4T¥IHS X3SSNS TTBTOS4LedSY B SIURUIIULEW B(DLUBA 718222 00°02 016-215-5921-001150-001¢ 2e02/ e/t 691.1 INI "SYOLOW ATY3AVM 060000 0000000
58°8€9 Wi0L 00 WWi0L LWd Ad3 00° WI0L LWd VdD 00° WL0L LWd HIY S8°8E9 WI0L XJ3H)  00° W10k "3S10
90025250€€01 # TTBI0 S8OLAJSS |BUOLSSII04d 4OUI0 £18222 98°8¢9 012-€92-6221-009120-001 2e02/5¢/L 6-¥2¥2-856079E 40 INIWIDYNVW 3LSYM £/8000 0000000
£8°b1IE WL0L 00° TWIO0L IWd Ad3 00 WI0L LWd Ydd 00° V101 LWd HOV £8°v1E WVI0L W3HD 007 Wi0L "2s10
8610006VSEEETSE # 11810 SUCLIBDLUNWLODI| 3L 2182e¢ €8'viE 015-915-¥€21-001150-001v 2202/1€8/L  22L0 BYED68S690 NOZI¥3A 634000 0000000
00°881 WL0L 00" VLOL 1Wd Ad3 00 WIO0L LWd VdD 00° WIOL IWd HIV 00881 WLO0L W3IHI 007 WLO0L "JSId
0.z # 11810 satyddng (eun3[noLJby 118222 00 0SI 012-192-2v21-0091¢0-001¥ 2e02/¥0/8 L9VSE9 £80000 0000000
0EvLZ # T1810S41Rd9Y § BOURUDIULEK SLDLUBA 1182¢¢ 00°8¢ 012-£5¢-5921-005120-001¥ 2202/10/L £E2p€9 ONI Si¥vd 01NV 33310 NvA £8000C 0000000
6979861 WI0L 00" WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00° L0L IWd ¥dd 00 WIOL LWd HOV 6979861 WI0L W3 007 Wwi0L "3SI0
0-1vMXS # 11810 §91(ddnS 331440 01822z 1€ 0vy 0£9-1€9-14¢1-001E90-001¥ 2202/60/8 200-9€0EVT0 080000 0000000
0-1yMIXS # TI8I0 SUOL1BDLUNUIOIB{3] 0182¢¢ 90°9¢E€ 0€9-1€9-€2T-001€90-001Y 2202/¥0/8 100-9€0€¥10 080000 0000000
0-1vMIXS # 11810 sa1ddns 331440 018222 ¢€012'1 0£9-1€9-1¥21-001€90-001Y 2202/€0/8 100-¥262pT0 SLINOOYd 301440 ALID Tdl 080000 0600000
00°GL Wi0lL 00" YLO0L LWd Ad3 00° vi0L INd Vdd 00 WLOL IWd HIV 0064 WI0L ¥I3HY  00° vL0L "3SI0
T1££895 # TIBI0 S9JLAJDS |BUOLSSD0M] J2UI0 608222 00°5¢ 016-216-6221-001150-001% 2202/10/8 £02202-11€£895 YN¥3LTY B NSIY NOINNSNWYL €€8100 0000000
00°L1E Wi0L 00° W10L IWd Ad3 00 WI0L IWd Vdd 00° VI0L LWd HOV 00 L1€ L0L MO3HD 00 10l 3SIC
2816665001 # T18T03eW "43Y¥ "sy00g “'dsqns * Qnd 80822c 00 (1€ 0€9-1£9-2021-001€90-001% 2202/10/8 £0£2189%8 1S3M NOSWOHL S8¥000 0000000
vy 19 Wi0L 00 WL0L 1Wd Ad3 00 101 LWd ¥d) 00° W10L LWd HOV by 19 WI0L W3HD - 00° W10l "JSId
25€09£99 # 11810 seg/abes| I L0822 ¥v'19 016-215-¥921-001150-001¥ 2202/1¢8/L y0LT19 ONI SITDYINI 10440 291000 0000000
€¢ Ley Wiol 00" WL0L LWd Ad3 00 WI0L LWd ¥dd 00° WI0L IWd HIV £€¢ Ley Ti0L WO 007 Wi0L 2SI
¢z02 ANC 11810 sasuadx3 (eLpaW S3euu] 90822 €2'lev 01S-165-£621-006150-001 2202/80/8 228080 dJS AJVWSYHA ¥33¥D ANOLS £90000 0000000
eL0Le vi0L 00° WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00° VL0L 1Wd Vdd 00° W1I0L IWd HOY aLole WI0L W3H) 00 vi0L "3SId
889590.2 # 11810 sai|ddnS aL440 s08zee 2L 0L 01Z-112-121-001120-001Y eeoz/1e/tL 1-0-16520v19¢L “INIS31dVLS S¢6100 0000000
00 bl wi0L 00° WLO0L IWd Ad3 00° WI0L LWd ¥d) 00° WLO0L LWd HOV 00 ¥l L0L WIHD 007 . WwioL "3SIO
Avd 3LVWNI TIBI0 Aeq ajeuu} y08222 00 ¥vl 015-196-G121-005150-0017 2202/10/8 [4Z1URI OONVI¥0L HLINS 666666 0000000
00°09 Wwi0L 00° WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00 WL0L LiWd Ydd 00° WI0L LWd HIV 00 05 TWi0L W3HY  00° Wil "3SIQ
J4143HS X3ISSNS TIBTQ  SIDLAJSS WAISAS UOLIRULOIU] £082¢¢ 00°9C 015-215-+221-001150-001¥ 2202/50/8 S10-21vL1 (8100 0000000
44T43HS XISSNS TIBIO SIOLAJISS SWIISAS UOLIBULOJU] £082¢¢ 00'G¢ 015-155-v221-005150-001% 2e0e/s0/8 S10-¢1pll W0 37dWIS £8£100 0000000
1T°vv6°9 Wi0L 00" WL0L IWd Ad3 00° WL0L JWd ¥d) 00° W10L 1Wd HIV Tv6'9 IVL0L M3HY  00° Wil 0510
ALNROD X3SSNS TIBT0 S3JLAJIS [RUOLSSLO0UG JIUIQ 20822¢ 95 °8¥9 012-£52-62¢1-005120-001¢ 2202/v0/8 J:72) 604100 0000000
ALNAQD X3SSNS 11810 S8JLAJSS |PUOLSS3L0J4 JBUIQ 208222 8y O¥1'1 012-¥92-6221-009120-001% 2202/10/L T21LE 604700 0000000
AINNOD X3SSNS 11810 S3DLAUSS |RUOLSSDLOUG J3UIQD 208222 L0°SST'S 0T¢-122-6221-002120-001y 2202/10/L 12T “ONI'SIAVISNMYY ZLINHIS 604100 0000000
00791 WI0L 00 WLO0L LWd Ad3 00° WL0L 1Wd ¥dD 00° TWI0L 1Wd HIV 00941 i0L W3H) 007 Wwi0L “JSid
LL1ELP8BIZ0%0 # TI8I0 saL|ddng |eLJojiuer 108222 26°LE 015-155-£v21-00S150-001p 2202/40/L 1094 2£8000 0000000
LL1EL¥8BIZ0¥0 # 11810 SSJLAJSS JDIBM 10822¢ 26 99 015-155-££21-005150-001¢ 2202/L0/1L 1094 2€8000 0000000
LL1ELY6BT20P0 # 11810 saL|ddng poos 1082¢2 912t 015-165-9v21-004150-001Y 2e0e/L0/L 0094 123410 8N S.WYS 2£8000 0000000
NOILdIYDSIA ANT HOLV 3530 INNOJIV /9 LWd LW  "ON  INNOWY ‘ON NIV 3iva ‘ON IWVN YOONIA ‘ON ‘ON
HOY HIV  %03HD 13N 1NNOJJV d/v 3D10ANT JITOANT YOAN3A ‘0'd
Y3LS193Y NIIMD d/V ALNAQD X3SSNS  2202/11/8 0014V

39vd

80/2202 - P4V

€ P GT-MIL

g389vQ6..593-L¥28-4vO¥-34€0-1¢Ed _,m_.mw :q1 edojoauz ubignoog



2¢ L¥8'59 Wi0L 00"
22°L¥8°S9 viol 00°
81°'G2 Wi0L 00
¥ST9¥9v6120v0 # 11810 sat|ddng |eLuojtuep
88°21 WL0L 00"
91 # T1810JLedoy ¥ ueusjuiley bulp|Lng
0521 10L 00"
O¥INOD TWNV X3SSNS TIBTOSJLRd3Y § DURUIIULEKY 3(ILUSA
00°TTI W10L 00"
3JIY3HS X3ISSNS 11810 SBILAJDS WOy Lun
0070071 WioL 00°

1d30 90718 X3SSNS T8I0 SIOLAJRS SWIISAS UOLIBWIOLU]

NOILJI¥IS3A AN] HOLVE

v 3vd

"3S30 INNOJJY /9 LWd LWd  "ON
HIV HOV  NJ3HD 13N

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00
WL0L 1Wd Ad3 00°

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
61822¢ B1'S¢

WIOL LWd Ad3 00°
818zc¢ 88°¢1

101 LWd Ad3 00
L182¢¢ 0S¢t

101 IWd Ad3 00°
918¢c¢ 00'TIIL

101 IWd Ad3 00°
G18222 00°00p'T

INNOWY

"Q3L5A0QV SV STVIOL 133HS 507 ATNIIM 3HL SVND3

cerfs
— auva

7e0z/T1/8
— v

€t\1-3

-22°(¥8'99 WI0L 3HL

"03LNIWNI0T ATSNOIATYA ¥O MO138 03LSIT SNOILA3IIXI HLIM INIWAVA ¥04 ¥3LSIOY SIHL A0UddY AG3Y3H |

WIO0L IWd vdd 00° 101 tWd HIV 22°L¥8°99 WI0L XI3H) 00
WIO0L iWd vd) 00° WIOL Ikd HIV ee 8’99 Wi0L M3HY  00°
101 1Wd ¥d) 00° WLO0L IWd HOV 81°6¢ TYi0L ¥J3H)  00° Wi0l "3SIA
012-122-Lve1-002120-001¥ 2202/90/¢ vLLT 123810 8N10  S.WVS 2€8000 0000000
WL0L IWd Vd) 00° WI0L LWd HOV 8821 WL0L XI3HY  00° viOL JSIQ
012-1¢2-2£e1-002120-001Y 2e02/9¢/L ¢e5Let-L02z TYYMOUVH LIV 670000 0000000
TWI0L 1Wd ¥dd 00° WI0L 1Wd HIV 0521 V104 MOIH)  00° vi0L JSIG
012-192-59¢1-009120-001% ce0z/Se/L L8011 ONv ONIMOL S.¥31Ln8 BEL000 0000000
101 1Wd ¥dD 00° WL0L LWd HIY 00111 WIOL M3H)  00° Wi0L 3S1d
015-619-¥¥21-00TTS0-00T¥ 2202/10/8 GIVBLANT "d¥9 AL34VS J178Nd Y3WLIM 80YI00 0000000
WI10L 1Wd VdD 00 L0L IWd HOV 00°00v°'T WI0L MO3HY  00° Wi0L "3SIa
012-2v2-¥221-00¥120-00T¥ 2e02/01/¢L 9¢¢-2202 "ONI JYVMOONIM 950100 0000000
‘ON TV 31v0 ‘ON INVN HOON3A ON “ON
INNOJIV d/v JD10ANI 33I0ANI UOON3A ‘0d
80/2202 - PdI¥Y £ YT ST-IMWIL YILSI93Y NIIHI d/v AINNGD X3SSNS  ¢202/11/8  00Tdv

g38ava6..6g3-,¥28-4vOr-34€0-1.2£81849 ‘i adojeau3 ubignoog



T %\ R
2

Z70Z/11/8
. ‘.

"03LSNCOY SY STVIOL 133HS 90T ADIIIM HL SIVN03 -£8 295G 101 3HL
“Q3LNIWNDCQ ATSNOIATYA YO MOT38 GILSIT SNOTLAIDXI HLIM INIWAVA Y04 Y3LSI9IY SIHL 3ADUddY ABIYIH I

£€B°295°62 Wi0L 00 101 1Wd Ad3 00 WL0L 1Wd YdD 00 WI0L 1Wd HIV £8'299'6¢ TI0L MO3H)  00°
€8 295°5¢ w101 00 WI0L Lkd Ad3 00 V101 LWd ¥dd 00° WIO0L IWd HOV £8°295°6¢ Tv10L XO3H) 00

€8'v1E WI0L 00° I0L tWd Ad3 00 V101 1Wd ¥dd 00° L0 LWd HJV €8 vIt WI0L ¥IIH) 00 WioL 2SI
8610006¥SEEETSE # 21810 SUOLIBDLUNIAKOD3| 3] £28eee €8'YIE 015-915-v€21-001150-001v 2202/0€/9 2290 8vE0685690 NOZIY3A 69000 0000000

06 €28'1 W01 00 WI0L iWd Ad3 00° WIOL 1Wd Vd3 00 WIO0L 1Wd HIV 06°€28°1 Wi0L WO3H) 00 Wi0L JSId
889590.Z # 21810 3L ddng 331440 928¢cc 86'GEL 0T¢-112-1921-001120-001% 2e0e/L1/9 £-0-66€1598G€L 626100 0000000
889590/¢ # 21810 saLddns 21440 9c8cee 86'¢ - 0T¢-112-1921-001120-001¥ 2202/01/9 2-0-66€15985€L §£6T00 0000000
889590£¢ # 21810 satiddns 331440 928222 v6'¥BL'T 0T2-112-T¥21-001120-001p 2202/01/9 1-0-66€£15985€¢ “ONIS37dVLS S£6T00 0000000

€6°G16 8 .i0L 00 WVIOL IWd Ad3 00 VI0L 1Wd vdd 00 WIOL LWd HOV £5°616°8 Wi0L ¥3HY 00 w10l "2S1d
ALNNOD X3SSNS 21810 S8JLAJDS |BUCESS310U4 JIUIQ G2822c T19°€¥6’1 012-¥92-6221-009120-001¥ 2202/10/9 9£99¢ 604100 0000000
AINNQD X3SSNS ZT8T0 SSOLAJIS [BUDLSS30Jd J3YIQ G28222 ¢6'1L6°9 012-122-6221-0021¢0-001¥ 2202/10/9 9£99€  INI"S3IVISNMY1 ZLTNHIS 60£100 0000000

09 192 L Wi0L 00 Wi0L 1Wd Ad3 00° WL0L IWd VdJ 00° WIO0L LWd HOV 09'1vL'L Wi0L MIHD 00 104 3S10
ALNNDJ X3SSS CT810 saotaJas |eba ye8eee 09 1vL'L 022-182-£221-001220-001 2z0e/10/¢L 2210£0 S3IDIAYIS I3 NNAS MdvW 065100 0000000

62 89 W10l 00 WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00° WIOL IWd vdd 00° Wi0L IWd HOY 6285 Ti0L WI3HD  00° vi0L JSId
SLTT # 21810 SIDLAJSS JIleM £2822¢ 62°8S 012-€9¢2-££21-009120-001¢ 2202/02/8 220280 SLLT Y3LYM ALNNOD ITTIASN3FYI 972000 0000000

00°9¢L°2 Wi0L 00" WIO0L IWd Ad3 00 101 1Wd Ydd 00° WL0L 1Wd HOV 00°9€L°¢C Tvi0L MJ3H) 00 Wi0L 3SId
X3SSNSVASN # 2TBT0 S3DLAJBS SwR)SAS UOLIRWIOIU] 228222 00°9€L'¢C 0€2-162-2¢1-001€20-001Y 2¢0e/02/1 221EPISAD 1 SWILSAS ONILOA NOINIWOG 850200 0000000

L1°806°€ WIoL 00 W10L IWd Ad3 00° WL0L LWd VdD 00° 104 1Wd HOV £1°806°€ WI0L ¥3HY 00 WI0L “JS1a
£000£€0996 # 21810 J143313 128cee  11°0ve 0T¢-£92-9£21-009120-001¢ 2202/82/L  22L0 £000£E0996 y80000 0000000
261044776 # 21810 oL41913 1¢8cce €681 012-€92-9£21-009120-001% 2202/92/L 220 26V¥10LLVY6 ¥80000 0000000
££9EE6EL06 # 21810 JL433913 12822¢ 0¥ 8I1 015-155-9/21-005150-001Y 2202/82/L  2eL0 €E9EE6EL06 780000 0000000
6€82585588 # 21810 RISECIE! 128222 ¢ €6v 012-€92-9£21-009120-001¥ Z20e/82/L 220 6EB2S8G588 ¥80000 0000000
£69€0£8£EL # 21810 J1430313 1¢822¢ 6.°t9 0T2-192-9£21-009120-001y 2202/82/L  2el0 €69E0L8LEL 80000 0000000
21/85€50€9 # 21810 01410313 12822 8E'1L 012-¥92-9£21-009120-001T¥ 2202/82/L  ¢cL0 T14BSESOEY 80000 0000000
80S£0€0695 # 21810 01433313 § seg auedoud 128222 69181 012-162-6/21-0051¢0-001¢ 2202/82/L 2210 BOSLOE069S 80000 0000000
9£LLEL080S # 21810 o433 1eBeee 8¢ vl 012-€92-9£21-009120-001¥ 2202/42/L  22L0 9ELLELOBOS ¥80000 0000000
S0529€90vC # 21810 J1430913 12822¢ 29'€€9°2 015-15G-9£21-005150-001p 2e0e/62/L  celh S0529£90¥¢ ¥80000 0000000
256€621950 # 21810 J1418(3 18222 659 012-£92-9£21-009120-001¥ 2202/82/L  22L0 2S6€621950  Y3MOd VINIDYIA NOINIWOO vB0OOO 0000000

1699 W10l 00" WI0L IWd Ad3 00 W10L 1Wd vdd 00 TWL0L 1Wd HOV 15°v9 101 ¥IHY 00 W04 JS1d
y13S # 21810 |ejudy/asea juawdinbl 028222 15°¥9 012-£52-¢5¢1-005Tc0-0017 2202/10/1 y86ECT SW3LSAS IN3WNO0Q TS9100 0000000
NOILJI¥IS30 ANI HOLVE "3S30 INNDDDV 1/9 Wd IWd  "ON  INNOWY “ON ,_xuu,.\ .MEB oz.. IWYN HOON3IA ..oZ ‘ON
HOY HOV  J3HD L3N INNOJJV dv 3010AN] 3010ANI HOON3A 0'd

T 39vd 80/2202 - P4V 92:92°SI-3Wll Y31SI1934 HI3HI d/V ALNNOD X3SSNS  2202/11/8 00TV

a398vQa6..583-2v28-dvOr-34€0-1zeg 1 ag9 :al @dojeau3 ubisnooq



I

§9°G6v "1
9979671

997661
¢¢9180 Avd 1J341Q 91810

NOILdI¥IS30 ANI HOLVE

39vd

"03LSNCaY SV STVLOL L3FHS 907 ATHIIM 3HL STVND3 -G9°G6v T V101 3HL
"03INIWNI00 ATSNOIATYd ¥O MOT3 Q3LSIT SNOILAIOXI HLIM INIWAVA ¥04 YILSIDFY SIHL IA0YddY AEIYIH I

101 00° W10L 1Wd Ad3 00° 101 IWd vdd 00° W10L 1Wd HOV §9°G6¥ ' 1 VI0L ¥I3HD  00°
10L 00° VIO0L 1Wd Ad3 00° WI0L LWd ¥dd 00° W10L LWd HOV §9°G67 1 WI0L ¥I3H)  00°
w101 00 10L 1Wd Ad3 00° WIOL LWd Vd) 00 VIO0L LWd HIV 5975671 VLOL ¥J3H) ~ 00° w101 "JSId
sasuadx3 pangLuIsiLpun 8282¢¢ S9°G6V'T -6666-006660-00TF 220e/L1/8 AYVIVS-229180 "1 NOLT3 "XVYNOYOYE 666666 0000000
3530 INNOJDY /9 IWd LWd  "ON  INNOWY ‘ON TNV Jlva ‘ON JWYN HOON3A “ON ‘ON
HIV HOY  X03HD L3N INNOJJV d/v 30I0ANI JDI0ANT YOON3A ‘0'd

80/¢20¢ - Pd¥Y  £0-65-1T-3IWIL Y31ST93¥ N03HD d/v ALNNOD X3SSNS  ¢c0¢/.41/8  00TdV



192212098. # €1810
v96669872L # £1810

18°0(8°¢
G00S06061Z # €1810
6¥10910989 # €1810

8/¥SZ18ETY # €1810
9Sr618EZLY # EI8T0
€1EL68Y1LY # E18T0
00€0€0v0cy # €1810
9968059LLE # €1810
6005E€005€E # £1BT0
121€Er880T # €1810
G82991€960 # E1BT0
00" L€V

TIVE ALNNOD X3SSNS €1810
TIVE AINNOD X3SSNS €1810

00 0¥E'v

SIWLCTE]
SIWLCTE]

TL0L 00"
SINLETE!
SINCTE]

214393\3
SIWETE|
CINETE!
EIWCETE]
SIWETE]
91413(3
SINETE!
CINLETE|

Iv10L 00°
sa|ddng poo4
sal|ddng poo4

V101 00°

AINNDD X3SSNS €18101ed3Y B ULeW SWa)SAS butpling

0070522
6102¥91009vS # €1810
00841

44I43HS X3ISSNS €18T0
J4IY3HS X3SSNS €1810

00°00€

Wi0L 00"
sd01S AWQ-Y30"ISLW

v10L 00°
S9OLAJSS WJOL LUf)
S9D1LAJSS WJOY LUf)

WwioL 00°

44143HS X3SSNS €18T0  SuLeddy dOURUIIULEW B[DLUIA
44T43HS X3SSNS €1BT0SJLRADY B BOUBUIULEK B[ILYDA
44TY3HS X3SSNS €TBIS4LRADY B BOUBUDIULEW B|DLUSA
441Y3HS XISSNS £TBTOSJ LAY B DOUBUSIULEK BILUIA

09°19
44I43HS X3SSNS €18T0

05°661

101 00"
satddng poo4

w101 00°

1005 # €1810SJLedSY B dUBUIIULEK IILY3A
100G # €18T0SJLedaY B dURURIULEW B|DLYBA

00 0%

w101 00°

44T43HS XISSNS €18T0SJLRAY B OUBUSIULEK 3[ILYIA
44143HS XISSNS £18T0SJLRADY B SOUBUIIULEK B(ILYIA

007091

Wi0L 00"

ALNNOD X3SSNS €1810.1ed3Y B ddueUIIULEK BuLp|Lng

05°60%
€15 # €18T0

NOILdI¥IS30 ANI HOLvd

T 39

w101 00"
saLddng juswadJojul me7)

0v82¢¢
0v8ece

¢t 8EY
€L7°€E0°T

Wi0L LWd Ad3 00°

6€8¢¢¢
6£8¢22
6€82¢¢
6£82¢¢
6€8¢2¢
6€822¢
6€8cce
6£8¢¢¢
6£822¢
6£82¢¢

947001
81°¢19
20’ 1E
¢¢ 81¢
€6°691
90°8¢
659
11°562°T
vy ecl
¥8°G81

WIO0L 1Wd Ad3 00°

B8EBZCC
8€8cce

0¥ '89¢
097891

VI0L LWd Ad3 00°

££82¢¢

00°0¥E'¥

TI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°

9€82¢2

00°052°¢

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00°

GEBCCe
GEBeee

00°9¢1
00°2¢

WIOL LWd Ad3 00°

vE822e
€822
¥€822¢
¥€8cee

00°GL
00°GL
00°GL
00°G

101 1Wd Ad3 00°

€£82¢¢

09°19

101 1Wd Ad3 00°

2€8¢2¢
¢£8¢c¢

Se 161
G¢'8

101 LWd Ad3 00°

1€822¢
1€8¢2¢¢

00°0¢
00°02

W01 IWd Ad3 00°

0€8¢ce

007091

W10L LWd Ad3 00°

628222

"0S30 LNNOJJV 179 LWd LWd  "ON

HOV HIV  MJ3HD

05607

1IN

012-€92-9£21-0091¢0-00T¥
012-€92-9£21-0091¢0-001%

W10L IWd Yd) 00°
072-€9¢-9£21-009120-001¥
0T¢-€92-9£¢1-009120-00T¥
012-¥9¢-9£21-0091¢0-001%
012-€92-9£¢1-009120-00T¥
0T¢-€92-9£21-009120-001¥
012-£92-9£21-0091¢0-001%
0T2-£92-9£21-0091¢0-001%
0T2-£92-9£¢1-0091¢0-001¥
0T¢-€9¢-9£¢1-009120-00T¥
0T2-£92-9£¢1-0091¢0-00T¥

WLOL LWd Vdd 00°
01G-195-9¥¢1-00S150-001%
0TS-155-9¥¢1-009150-001¥

W10L LWd Vd) 00°
0T¢-T¢e-€£21-002120-0011

W10L 1Wd Vdd 00°
0T-TT¥-66¢1-001170-0011

V10L LWd ¥dd 00°
015-195-v¥21-005150-0011
01G-215-¥¥21-001150-001Y

TV10L LWd ¥dd 00°
016-615-6921-001150-00T¥
015-215-5921-001150-001%
015-215-G921-001150-001v
019-215-99¢1-001150-00T%

V101 1Wd ¥d 00°
019-1595-9¥21-005150-001v

10L LWd ¥dd 00°
015-215-99¢1-001150-001¥
015-215-99¢1-00T1150-00T¢

W1O0L LWd Vdd 00°
075-¢15-59¢1-001150-001¥
0T5-¢15-59¢1-001150-00T¥

WLO0L LWd Vdd 00°
0T¢-Tec¢-2¢£21-0021¢0-00T¥

W10L 1Wd ¥dd 00°
015-215-5¥¢1-001150-00T¥

‘ON
1NNOJJV

80/2¢0¢ - PV ¥1:G5:0T-3WIL

2e02/6e/L  22l0 (9¢cve098L 80000 0000000
2202/20/8 2280 ¥9666987¢/ YIMOd VINISYIA NOINIWOQ ¥80000 0000000

WIOL LWd HOY 18°048°¢ IO0L MJ3HD  00° Wwi0L "IS1a
2e02/62/L  22L0 G00506061L ¥80000 0000000
ce0z/6z/L  22L0 6¥10910989 80000 0000000
2202/20/8 2280 8/¥5218E19 80000 0000000
2202/20/8 2280 9Sv6I8ELLY 80000 0000000
220¢/62/L  cTl0 EIEL68YILY 780000 0000000
2e02/82/L 2¢O 00E0E0¥0CY 780000 0000000
2202/10/8 2280 9968059/.L€ ¥80000 0000000
220¢/62/L 220 600S€E005E ¥80000 0000000
2e02/6e/L  22L0 TeleerBa0l ¥80000 0000000
2202/20/8 2280 G8Z991€960  YIMOJ VINIDWIA NOINIWOQ ¥80000 0000000

VL0L LWd HOV 00°LEV W10L XJ3HD  00° 101 "SI0
2202/S1/8 T96€610M 206000 0000000
220¢/80/8 £08E6LMW 1INV S, ¥3IWdv4 200 206000 0000000

WLOL LWd HOVY 00°0¥E'Y I0L ¥J3HD  00° 101 "3SIC
¢c0¢/60/8 ¢¢6080 30 ¥IIY10373 QUv11I0 810200 0000000

WIO0L LWd HOV 00°05¢'¢ WI0L W)FHD  00° w101 "3SIO
¢c0¢/80/8 669002122202 SIDIHIA HOLOW 40 1u¥dIa £61000 0000000

WIOL LWd HOV 00°8¥1 WI0L ¥3HD  00° 101 "OSIC
¢c0¢/0€/L 8yl €19100 0000000
¢c0¢e/0€/L 9v1el SYANVITI WOLSNI €T9100 0000000

W1I0L 1Wd HIV 00°00€ WIOL ¥J3HD  00° 101 "JSIO
2¢02/80/8 ¥8-2¢0¢ G50200 0000000
¢c0e/21/8 0£L-220¢ G50200 0000000
2e02/€1/8 §9-¢20¢ G50200 0000000
2e02/80/8 2-150-220Z SNOILVYEITVI HLIVIMNOWWOD S50200 0000000

I0L IWd HOV 09°19 V0L MJ3H)  00° wioL "ISId
¢c0¢/60/8 1866240 SSINISNGINIY VUINID G8v100 0000000

W10L LWd HOY 057661 WI0L XJ3H)  00° 101 "SI0
¢c02/91/8 929.€-SEEST 82,000 0000000
2e02/S1/8 109.€-GE€ST Q7314VM 0 1SINDYYD 822000 0000000

WI0L LWd HIV 00°0% V101 MI3H)  00° w10l "3SIa
¢20¢/51/8 A 8££000 0000000
220¢/51/8 6€211 ONV ONIMOL S.¥371N8 8€£000 0000000

I0L LWd HOV 00091 VI0L MWOIHY  00° 101 "3SIa
¢20¢/¥0/8 95686 SHLIWSALI¥NI3S S.A3THING T8T000 0000000

W10L LWd HOV 05607 V101 MJ3H)  00° 101 3SIA
¢c0¢/¢1/8 ¥0/0v  ONI VA 40 Nyv8 AY3LLv8 00€000 0000000
THIIV 31va ‘ON JWVN YOOANIA “ON ‘ON
d/v JJI0ANI 3II0ANI dOON3A ‘0'd
Y3LSI9FY HIOIHI d/v ALNNOD X3SSNS  ¢202/81/8  00Tdv



00°

00

JURJY gJD-SLIUOYRIOG

00°

00
saL|ddns 801440
00
saL|ddns 801440

00°
J1412913

ey 99 WI0L
B00€5000559¢ # €181019al0dd 196png - UOLIINUISUO)
007002 €1 0L
NN4ONLY 0T-/T#9800 €1810
00°000°8 w101
1334LS ¥311Ng G2z £18103193(04d 136png - u0L3oNU3SUO)
Sv '8¢ w101
44I4¥3HS X3SSNS €1810
86°¢9 w101
889990/¢ # €1810
2918 w101
100296195 # €1810
18°G8¥ V101

00°

AINNOD X3ISSNS €18T0SJLRA3Y B SOURUSILUBW 3[ILYIA

81°¢8

10L

00"

T00596/G.S # €T8100W "43y "syoog ' 'Isgns “*|4nd

18722

101

00"

09€0£E€0066 # €£18104Leday B 3dueusluley buip|Lng

00°%80°S0T

34vS JI78Nd X3SSNS €1810
¢¢0¢ AINC €1810

¢¢0Z AnC €1810

9€°6/6°8
100SNS # €1810
1005NS # €1810

100SNS # €1810
100SNS # €1810
100SNS # €1810

100SNS # €1810
100SNS # €1810
T00SNS # €1810

9€°G88
02Ty9E2TIT # €1810

96°9/5°G
105¢7€0£96 # €1810
G000€€0596 # €1810
¢0SLTE0E96 # €1810
€0G/¥€0956 # £1810
100090€626 # E1810

NOILJT¥IS3I0 ANI HOLvE

¢ 39vd

W10L

00°

"IW3 Pd - OAS “PaW Adousbuaw3
"1W3 Pd - JAS "paW Aduabusw3
"1W3 Pd - JAS "PaW Aduabdaw3

W10L

[ERITNEN
S9OLAJIS
ERITNER
S9JLAJDS
S9DLAJDS
S3ILAJIS
S92 LAJDS
S9ILAJIS

w101

vioL

00"
LBUOLSS3I0Ud J3y10
LBUOLSS3104d J3y10
|BUOLSS3104d JaYaQ
LBUOLSS3L04d JBYLQ
[RUOLSS3L04d JaylQ
[BUOLSS3104d J3Y10
[BUOLSS3L04d 4310
{eU01SSaL04d J3YlQ

00"
sen auedodd

00"
L4383
RIWEETE]
L3183l
BITNCIE]

214399(3

10L LWd Ad3 00°

¢S8¢ce

v v99

WI0L LWd Ad3 00° B
198¢¢¢ 007002 €1

w101 1Wd Ad3 00°

058¢¢¢

00°000°8

WIO0L 1Wd Ad3 00°

6¥822¢

Sv°8¢

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00°

8v8¢c¢

86°¢9

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00°

L¥8ece

29°'v8

V101 LWd Ad3 00°

9v8ece

18768y

W10L LWd Ad3 00°

G¥8¢ce

81°¢8

w101 1Wd Ad3 00°

yv8ece

18722

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°

€v8cce
£782¢¢
£v8ece

0000622
00°895°€S
00°919°€2

VI0L LWd Ad3 00°

2v8eee
¢v8ece
2¥8¢ce
¢v8ece
2v8ece
¢¥822e
2v8ece
éy8ece

er'eet’l
ereel’l
ereel'l
arael’l
reel'l
ereel’l
[ARTAN!
reet't

WI10L LWd Ad3 00°

1v8cee

9€°588

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°

0¥82¢¢
0%822¢
0¥8¢ce
0¥8¢2¢
0v8cce

"3S30 INNOJJV 1/9 IWd IWd  "ON

HOV HOV

A33HD

6¢°L1E
91°86¢
€9° €85
05°118°¢
€€ V6

INNOWY
1IN

80/¢20¢

- PRV

WIO0L LWd Vd) 00

-01¢5-000580-€21

WIO0L LWd Vdd 00°

0T¢-¥v2-£006-00%T¢0-00T¥

TIO0L 1Wd Ydd 00°

-0T¢S-000980-€21¥

WI0L 1Wd ¥dd 00°

015-21S-T¥21-00T1S0-00TY

WI0L 1Wd ¥dd 00°

0Tc-Tve-1v21-00¥120-00TY

W10L 1Wd vdd 00°

012-¥92¢-9£21-0091¢0-00T¥

W10L 1Wd vdd 00°

0T2-1¢¢-99¢1-0021¢0-00T¥

TVLO0L 1Wd Vdd 00°

0Tv-TT¥-202T-001T¥0-001F

W10L 1Wd vdd 00°

0T9-155-2£¢T1-009150-00TY

WI0L LWd Vdd 00°
¥25-01¢-¢92-0112-005120-001¢
¥¢5-012-¢5¢-0112-005T20-00T¥
¥25-01¢-¢5¢-0112-005120-00T¥

101 LWd Vdd 00°

012-¥9¢-6¢21-0091¢0-001¢
01¢-¥92-6¢¢1-009120-00T%
012-¥92-6¢21-0091¢0-00TH
0T2-¥92-6¢21-0091¢0-001F
0T¢-¥9¢-6¢21-009120-00T%
01¢-¥92-6¢¢1-009120-00TY
012-¥92-6¢21-009120-001%
012-¥9¢-6¢21-009120-001%

WI0L 1Wd Vdd 00°

015-159G-6£21-005150-001¥

w101 1Wd Vdd 00°

012-€9¢-9£21-0091¢0-001%
012-€92-9/21-009120-00T¥
012-€9¢-9£21-0091¢0-00T¥
012-€9¢-9£21-009120-00T%
0T2-¥9¢-9421-009120-00T¥

“ON
INNOJJV

PT-G5-0T-IWIL

WI0L IWd HOV ¢y '¥99 VIOL XO3H)  00° 10L "3S1a
¢202/10/8 8-G¢vc-90861cE 40 INIWIOVNVW 3LSWM €£/8000 0000000

WI0L IWd HOV 00°002 €T WVI0L MO3H)  00° Wwi0L "3SIa
¢202/51/8 225180 VINIQYIA 40 ¥3WNSYIYL 962000 0000000

WI0L 1Wd HVY 00°000°8 WI0L MI3HD  00° w101 "JSIa
cc02/10/8  €#1S ¥ILNg Seg NOILONYLSNOD 9DHL 9T8T00 0000000

WI0L LWd HOV Sv'82 I0L XJ3H)  00° 1oL "3SIa
2¢0¢/01/8 0-6¢6£697 WOOY AddNS IHL 99/100 0000000

TWIO0L 1Wd HOV 8629 VIOL H3HD  00° w101 "JSIO
¢e02/10/L 1-0-05€95009¢€L "ONI"S31dVLS G/6T00 0000000

WI0L LWd HJY 29°v8 10L XJ3HD  00° 101 "JSIa
¢20c/€0/8 ¢¢80 100296195 ¥3d00J JI¥LI3T3 IAISHLNOS 2//100 0000000

WI0L 1Wd HOV 18°G8¥ WI0L MI3HD  00° w101 "3SIa
¢c02/v0/8 06161 ONI QY04 N3MO 950000 0000000

WI0L 1Wd HOVY 81°¢8 TVIOL M3H)  00° 10L "3SIa
¢202/10/L €Ive9lice "00 B Y3ON39 MIHLLVW TTL000 0000000

101 1Wd HOV 18°¢¢ WI0L MO3HD  00° w101 "JSIa
¢e02/10/L 640606 S.IM0T €EYTO0 0000000

WI0L LWd HOY 0080501 WI0L ¥3Hd - 00° 101 "3SIa
¢c0¢/¢1/8 ¢2¢0¢20L01M STTT00 0000000
2¢0¢/21/8 ¢20220L0AVM GTTT00 0000000
¢c02/21/8 ¢202.03S JONVINGWY YV1S34IT STTTO0 0000000

WI0L 1Wd HOVY 9€°6/6'8 VI0L XI3HD  00° v10L "3SIA
¢¢02/50/8 66/998 €¢£100 0000000
¢¢0¢/50/8 857998 €¢£100 0000000
¢202/50/8 151998 €¢£100 0000000
¢202/50/8 95/998 €¢£100 0000000
¢202/50/8 §5£998 €¢£100 0000000
¢202/50/8 752998 €2£100 0000000
¢202/50/8 £5£998 €2£100 0000000
¢20¢/50/8 ¢5/998 IAY3IS ALIYNI3S QTY0MVAYYD £2£100 0000000

101 LWd HOY 9€°588 101 M3HD  00° 101 "JSIa
¢20¢/90/L 986766111 SY9T134Y¥34 269100 0000000

VIOL LWd HOY 96°9/5°S WI0L MO3HD  00° 1oL "3SIa
¢c0e/6e/L  2el0 105¢7E0£96 780000 0000000
¢c0e/6¢/L  2¢L0 S000€€0596 ¥80000 0000000
¢e0¢/6¢/L  22L0 20SLTE0E96 780000 0000000
2c0¢/6e/L el €05.¥E0956 ¥80000 0000000
¢c02/20/8 2280 T100090€626 ¥80000 0000000
TV 3Lva ‘ON JWYN HOONIA “ON ‘ON
d/v JOI0ANI JIIOANI HOON3A ‘0'd
YILSION HIIHI d/v¥ ALNNQD XISSNS  220¢/81/8  00Tdv



AP100  8/18/2022  SUSSEX COUNTY
P.0. VENDOR INVOICE
NO. NO. VENDOR NAME NO.

0000000 001408 WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GRP. INV78455

0000000 001408 INV78866
0000000 001408 INV81269
DISC. TOTAL .00 CHECK TOTAL

0000000 000879 WOMACK PUBLISHING CO. 43446
DISC. TOTAL .00 CHECK TOTAL
0000000 001296 WORK ZONE, LLC 111387
0000000 001296 111438

DISC. TOTAL .00 CHECK TOTAL
0000000 000873 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF
DISC. TOTAL .00 CHECK TOTAL

0000000 000879 WOMACK PUBLISHING CO.
DISC. TOTAL .00 CHECK TOTAL

.00 CHECK TOTAL
.00 CHECK TOTAL

I HEREBY APPROVE THIS REGISTER FOR PAYMENT WITH EXCEPTIONS LISTED BELOW OR PREVIOUSLY DOCUMENTED.
EQUALS THE WEEKLY LOG SHEET TOTALS AS

THE TOTAL 158.143.39-
849-22
6184

g-18-22
T DATE

8[; 22

3217228-2425-7

700 RENEWAL-22

158,143.39
158,143.39

A/P CHECK REGISTER TIME-10:55:14  ActPd - 2022/08

INVOICE A/P ACCOUNT
DATE ACCRL NO.
8/01/2022 4100-051100-1244-512-510
8/02/2022 4100-051500-1244-551-510
8/04/2022 4100-051500-1244-551-510
343.26 ACH PMT TOTAL .00 CPA PMT TOTAL
7/20/2022 4100-021400-1235-241-210
420.60 ACH PMT TOTAL .00 CPA PMT TOTAL
7/29/2022 4100-021200-1244-221-210
8/02/2022 4100-021200-1244-221-210
239.80 ACH PMT TOTAL .00 CPA PMT TOTAL
8/01/2022 4100-021600-1229-264-210
2,720.31 ACH PMT TOTAL .00 CPA PMT TOTAL

4100-021400-1202-241-210
.00 CPA PMT TOTAL

.00 CPA PMT TOTAL
.00 CPA PMT TOTAL

8/03/2022
56.00 ACH PMT TOTAL

ACH PMT TOTAL
ACH PMT TOTAL

JUSTED.

—%W@ NANC W
7@kt L

NET CHECK  ACH ACH
PMT PMT G/L ACCOUNT DESC.

AMOUNT ~ NO.

28.00 222853
34.00 222853
281.26 222853

.00 EPY PMT TOTAL

420.60 222854
.00 EPY PMT TOTAL

119.90 222855
119.90 222855
.00 EPY PMT TOTAL

.720.31 222856

.00 EPY PMT TOTAL

56.00 222857
.00 EPY PMT TOTAL

.00 EPY PMT TOTAL
.00 EPY PMT TOTAL

Uniform Services

Uniform Services

Uniform Services
.00

Advertising
.00

Uniform Services
Uniform Services
.00

Other Professional
.0

PAGE 3

BATCH INV.DESCRIPTION

01813 SUSSEX SHERIFF
01813 SUSSEX SHERIFF
01813 SUSSEX SHERIFF

TOTAL 343.26
01813 # 5449
TOTAL 420.60
01813 SUSSEX COUNTY
01813 SUSSEX COUNTY
TOTAL 239.80
Services 01813 # 250963363000
TOTAL 2,720.31

Public., Susc./ Books, Ref. M01813 # 150700
.00 TOTAL 56.00

.00
.00

TOTAL
TOTAL

158,143.39
158,143.39



767981
¥6°981

GE 081
ALNNOD X3ISSNS ¥1810

65°9
v16¥85126¢ # Y1810

NOILdI¥IS3a ANI HO1vd

T 39w

vioL
W10L
V101

101

00" V101 1Wd Ad3 00°
00" I0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
00° W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
SSJLAJSS WJo4 Lun 65822¢ GE°081
00" W10L LWd Ad3 00°
JLJ39913 858¢c¢ 659

3530 INNOJDV /9 IWd IWd  "ON  INNOWY
HIV HIV  HJ3HD 13N

va
2C|4\| 2
a
R
LV

T

"031SNCQY SY STVAO0L L33IHS 9071 ATHIIM IHL STvVN03 -76°981 101 3HL
"03INIWNJ00 ATSNOIAIYd ¥O MO138 GILSIT SNOILAIIXI HLIM INIWAVA ¥0d YILSIOR SIHL IAQUddV ABIYIH 1

WI0L 1Wd ¥dd 00° W10L LWd HIV 76981 V10L ¥O3HD  00°
101 LWd ¥dD 00° WLI0L 1Wd HIV 76981 VI0L X33HD  00°
101 1Wd VdI 00° W10L 1Wd HIY GE08T V101 ¥3IHD  00° w101 "3SIa
0TZ-TTe-¥721-0011¢0-001¥ ¢c0¢/82/9 0S0Z¢ SIIHJVYD QOOMHOTY 184100 0000000
VLOL LWd Vdd 00° WI0L 1Wd HOV 6579 10L MJ3HD  00° W10L JSId
0TG-155-9£¢1-00S150-001Y 2e02/62/L  22L0 ¥16¥BSTC6Z  YIMOd VINISYIA NOINIWOA ¥80000 0000000
“ON TV Lva ‘ON JWYN YOON3A ‘ON ‘ON
INNOJJV drv JOI0ANI 3DI0ANI JOAN3A ‘0'd
80/¢20¢ - Pd¥Y  9y:v0-TT-IWIL YILSI9FY MIIHD d/v AINNGD X3SSNS  ¢202/81/8  00Tdv



3LV,
\N.ﬂ_\hnw _W\
——va

220z /22/8
€C €3

‘031 SY SIVIOL 133HS 907 ATHIIM 3HL STVN03 -0€°L6Y 101 3HL
“03LNIWNI00 ATSNOIAIYG ¥O MO138 QILSIT SNOILAIDXT HLIM INIWAVA YOJ ¥ILSI9Y SIHL 3A0¥ddV AGIUIH I
0E L6¥ Wi0L 00° 101 LWd Ad3 00° WLOL LWd ¥d) 00° W10L 1Wd HIV 0E L6V W10L XI3H)  00°
0E" L6V 1oL 00" WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00° W10 LWd ¥dd D0 101 LWd HOV 0€" L6V Wi0L WI3HY 007
0t" L6 WI0L 00° WIOL IWd Ad3 00 W10L LWd Vd3 00 WL0L 1Wd HIV 0€ L6V WI0L XI3H) w10l "3S1a

ALNROD X3SSNS £1810 OURUBIULEW S[ILUBA 098222 0€ L6V 012-1£2-5921-00£120-001¥ 2202/60/8 8101252 3AILONOLNY uoEa NVOIY3WY 650200 0000000
NOILdI¥IS30 ANI HOLVE '3S3Q@ INROIIV /9 Ea ._.za ‘ON  INNOWY “ON TV 31va ‘ON IWUN moozm> “ON "ON
HIOY HOV  MD3HD L3N 1NNOJJY d/v JOI0ANT 30I0ANI YOONIA 0'd
[ 39vd 80/2202 - Pd3V €8BS 8 -IWIL Y3LS193Y NI3HI d/V ALNNOD X3SSNS  2202/2¢/8 0014V

§16183640258-9€56-8.E-G249-029824A¥ ‘Al @dojeaus ubignaog



00°0ST
00°0ST

00°0€
404NC 02810

00°0€
INWAYd  ¥OUNC 02810

00°0¢
d40UnC 02810

00°0€
YOUNC 02810

00°0¢
INWAYd  HOMNC 02810

INWAVd

INWAVd

INWAVd

NOILdT¥IS30"ANI HJLlve

1 39vd

W10L
1oL
w10L

w101

w101

W10l

I0L

2Z(sT b

TiR
\NN‘WM.W

"@3LSNCav SV STVL0L 133HS 907 ATHIIM FHL STVND3 -00°0ST 101 3HL
"031N3WNJ00 ATSNOIAIYd YO MOT38 Q3LSIT SNOILIOXI HLIM LN3IWAVD Y04 YILSIO SIHL IAQUddY AGIY3H I

00° WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00° W10L 1Wd Vdd 00° WI0L LWd HIV 00051 WI0L XJ3H)  00°
00° W10L 1Wd Ad3 00° WIOL LWd vdd 00 WI0L 1Wd HOV 00°0ST WI0L XI3HD  00°
00" WI0L LWd Ad3 00° W10L LWd Vdd 00° WI0L LWd HOV 00°0¢€ WIO0L ¥J3HD  00° W10L "ISIC
S994 SSSURLM G98¢¢¢  00°0€ 019-T19-€121-001190-00T¥ ¢202/01/S NC0TS02¢,66100000 NOSHIVC "0 VIATAS 666666 0000000
00° 101 LWd Ad3 00° W1I0L 1Wd vdd 00° V101 LWd HOV 00°0€ WI0L X3HD  00° w101 "JSIa
S934 SSaULM ¥98¢¢¢ 00°0€ 019-119-€12T-00T190-00T¥ ¢¢02/01/G NCOTS022¥€£000000 STLYY SSITNV) NOUVHS 666666 0000000
00° W10L 1Wd Ad3 00° WIO0L iWd ¥dd 00° WIOL 1Wd HOV 00°0€ WI0L X3HD  00° W10L “JSIC
S834 SSAULLM €98¢c¢  00°0€ 019-1T19-€12T-00TT90-00T¥ ¢c0¢/0T/S NC0TS02CS66100000  SANVHS INFONIA HA100NY 666666 0000000
00" W10L 1Wd Ad3 00° 101 1Wd ¥dd 00° WI0L LWd HOV 00°0€ WIOL X3H)  00° W10L “ISIa
S99 SSaULM 2982¢¢  00°0€ 019-T19-€T21-00TT90-00TY ¢202/01/G NC0TS022966100000 YYNCIA QUVITIIM MIVW 666666 0000000
00° 101 1Wd Ad3 00° WLOL LWd Vdd 00° WIO0L LWd HOY 00°0€ I0L ¥J3H)  00° W10L "ISIO
S994 SSaULLM 19822¢ 00°0€ 019-T19-€121-001190-00T¥ ¢202/01/G NCOTS022¥8€000000 PJeARH WBLL{LM OLd3 666666 0000000
"3S30 INNOJJY /9 IWd IWd  "ON  INNOWY “"ON TV iiva ‘0N JWYN HOANIA “ON ‘ON
HIV HIV  NJ3H) 13N INNOJJY d/v 30I0ANT JOI0ANI YOAN3A ‘0'd

80/¢20¢ - PdY  80:60-9T-3WIL Y31ST934 HO3IHD d/v AINNOD X3SSNS  ¢20z/€¢/8  00Tdv



1

25°00€° Y w101 00° VIOL 1Wd Ad3 00°
25°00€°y 1oL 00" 101 LWd Ad3 00°
¢l'eig’e w101 00" 101 1Wd Ad3 00°

SJaY3Q Snosuel |IISLW 1882¢¢ 0€° /2§
L3n4 (asalq 188222 66 66€'T

L10 18822¢ €1 '9L§

18822¢ 0£°01¢€

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00°
088¢¢¢ 00089
088222 00262

I0L LWd Ad3 00°
6/8¢¢¢ 0%'919

v870¥/99 # 61810
¥870v£99 # 61810
7870v.99 # 61810
¥8¥0¥£99 # 61810 L10

00°2.8 V101 00°
ALNNQD X3SSNIS 618T0LRASY B ULBW SWRISAS BuLplLng
ALNNOD X3SSNS 6T8T0LRA3Y B ULPW SWdISAS Bulp|Lng

07919 w101 00°
§200nS # 61810 aoueuduLey Judwdinbl

‘ON  INNOWY
HIV HIV  XJ3HD 13N

NOILdI¥IS3A ANI Hdivd

39vd

80/¢¢0¢ - PdIdV

3Lva
z[S¢

___3dlva
22-32-%8

'

w101 3HL

"03LSNCQY SV STVIOL L3FHS 9071 ATHIIM IHL STVND3I -¢5°00€"¥

"03LN3WNJ00 ATSNOIAFYA YO MOT38 Q3LSIT SNOILdIDXI HLIM IN3WAVA ¥04 ¥ILSIOFY SIHL 3A0¥ddY AGIHIH 1

W10L 1Wd vdd 00° W10L LWd HIV 25°00e'Y 101 MI3HD  00°

W10L 1Wd vdd 00° WI0L LWd HIV 25°00€'Y WI10L M3HD  00°

W1O0L LWd Vdd 00° WI0L IWd HOV 21'e18’e WI0L XJ3H)  00° w101l "ISId
012-T1¢-66¢1-001120-00T¥ ¢202/0€/9 L¥0609 ¢91000 0000000
012-¥92-8£21-0091¢0-00T¥ 2202/0€/9 L¥0609 ¢91000 0000000
012-192-8£21-0091¢0-00T% 220¢/0€/9 L¥0609 ¢91000 0000000
0T¢-1¢2-8£¢1-00¢1¢0-001y ¢202/0€/9 L¥0609 ONI S3IDYINI ¥1044nS 291000 0000000

WI0L 1Wd vdd 00° IO0L 1Wd HOV 00°¢/8 101 H3HD  00° w10l "3SIQ

012-1¢¢-€£21-002120-001% ¢c0¢/60/¢ INSSIFY-66€T 696100 0000000

0T¢-T¢2-€LeT1-00¢120-00TY 2202/60/¢ 3NSSIFY-86ET “ONT IYOINVHOIW NISNIC 696100 0000000
WI0L 1Wd vdd 00° WIO0L LWd HJVY 0¥'919 VIOL XO3HD  00° V101 3SId

0¢9-1¢9-¥5¢1-001290-00T¥ ¢¢02/0€/9 299819 NOILYY0dY0) X-3dI4 209000 0000000

‘ON TV EINl] ‘ON JWYN YOAN3A ‘ON ‘ON

INNOJJV d/v 3010ANI 3DI0ANI YOON3A ‘0d

L1:20°ST-3WIL YILSI9W HIIH) d/v ALNNOD X3SSNS  ¢202/5¢/8  00TdV



1

00°00¢ 1oL 00

44I¥3HS X3SSNS 81810 SJaylQ snoaue||adSLW
00°008 V101 00°

NOILNGTYINOD €2A4 8T8TOUBLLY "PAW - "0J PLaliudisay)
18°1€8°¢ V10L 00"

00£0€009 # 81810 saL|ddns pooj
09°19 101 00"

44T43HS X3SSNS 81810 saL|ddns poo4
2L g6e WL0L 00°

1005 # BIBT0SJLedDY B 30URLDIULERN 3(ILUIA
1005 # 818T0JLed3Y B @oueudjuLey BuLp|ing
100G # 818T0SJLRdIY B OURURIULEK 3|ILU3A
100G # 81810 SJLeday DURUDIULEW LDLUBA
1005 # BIST0SJLRdBY § BOUBUSIULEK 3[DLYDA
100G # 8TBTOSJLRARY B SdUPURIULRY DDLU\

08°2ry v10L 00"

LOLT # 81810 S32LAJSS [RILPAW
00°G61 V101 00"

44TY3HS XISSNS BT8T0S4LedIY B 30ULUIIULEW 3[ILY3A
G6°61 V101 00"

44TY3HS XISSNS BIBT0 SJLeday adueudjuLey 3[ILY3A
00591 vioL 00"

INIFWISHNEWITY BIBTO abe3s04
[ ] v10L 00"

40103410 ONINNYTd 818I0921AUAS Bull|nsuo) juswabeuey
NOILISOd Y3INNVId 8T81029LAJS Buly|nsuo) Juswabeuey

00°882 W10L 00"
€15 # 81810 saL|ddnS quawadJojul Me
00°G22 €1 V10l 00°
) 95001 # 81810 Wa1sAS buLiunoddy
’ 00°G2¢ WI0L 00"
99¢L1 # 81810 puny s, uewadt4 33e3s
8¢ 602 v10L 00°
9980LEL2€S # BIBTO sasuadx3 |eILPaW djewu]
e1°GT1 w101 00°

EVE6E # BIBTO S994 J3y3Q § JJ/ueg

NOILJI¥IS30"ANI HO1va

39vd

3530 INNOJJV 1/9 IWd LWd  "ON
HIV HOV  3D3HD 13N

W10L IWd Ad3 00°
968¢¢¢ 00°00€

TI0L LWd Ad3 00°
568222 007008

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
¥6822¢ LE'1€8°C

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
€682¢¢ 09°19

W10L LWd Ad3 00°
2682¢¢ Ge'LE
¢68¢c¢ 66 ¥1
¢682c¢ 82°9L1
¢68¢¢¢ 89°6€
¢682c¢ ¢S Ly
¢68¢c¢ -00°¢¢

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°
168¢¢¢ 08 chy

WI10L LWd Ad3 00°
068¢¢¢  00°G6T

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
68822¢ G661

101 1Wd Ad3 00°
8882¢¢ 00°991

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
£882¢¢ 00°008°¢
188222 €E°EEL’E

WV10L LWd Ad3 00°
988¢c¢  00°88¢

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°

G88cc¢  00°'Gee €1

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
¥882¢¢ 00°G2€

101 1Wd Ad3 00°
€88c¢¢  8E'60¢

V101 LWd Ad3 00°
¢88¢2c¢ €1°STT

LNNOWY

W10L 1Wd ¥d) 00°

0T¢-112-6621-00T1¢0-00TY

W10L 1Wd Vdd 00°

€¢5-01¢-2¢G¢-01T¢-005120-001v

WI0L 1Wd ¥dd 00°

01G-195-9¥21-005150-00TY

W10L 1Wd vd) 00°

01G-1959-9¥21-005150-00Ty

V101 LWd ¥dJ 00°

015-¢15-99¢1-001150-00T¥
015-155-¢£¢1-005150-001¥
015-¢15-99¢1-001150-001#
015-615-G9¢1-001150-001¥
015-¢15-59¢1-001150-001%
015-215-59¢1-001150-00T¥

101 1Wd Vdd 00°

0Tc-19¢-£¢¢T1-0091¢0-001¥

W10L LWd vdd 00°

015-¢15-9921-001150-00T¥

W10L IWd Vdd 00°

015-615-99¢1-00T150-00TY

W10L 1Wd Vdd 00°

0T€-TTE-TECT-00TTE0-00TY

101 LWd Vdd 00°

0T¢-Tt¢-G¢21-00¥1c0-001Y
012-1¥2-G2¢1-00¥120-00T¥

101 1Wd vdd 00°

015-¢15-5¥21-0011S0-00T¥

W10L LWd vdd 00°

0T¢-T£2-Tec1-004120-00T¥

W1O0L IWd Vd) 00°

¥05-0T¢-152-0112-005120-001¥

101 LWd Vdd 00°

015-155-€6¢1-009150-00T¥

WI0L IWd Vd)d 00°

0T¥-TT¥-¢6¢1-001T¥0-00TY

80/220¢ - PdIOV

“ON

INNOJJV

1€:90°GT-3WIL

WIO0L LWd HOV 00°00€ V101 ¥3HD  00° 101 “ISId
¢c0¢/10/8 2¢0¢ ANt ONOWHOTY 40 ALID €90200 0000000

WI0L LWd HOVY 00°008 VI0L ¥O3H)  00° w101 "JSIa
2c0¢/50/8 €2A4 ¥INSYIYL 03 QIIIHYILSIHD BES000 0000000

WI0L LWd HOV LE°1€8°2 WIO0L M3H)  00° Ww10L "3SIA
¢c02/91/8 L0€CTEEC6-CT SY3IH10¥G A3N3HD 0E€9T00 0000000

WI0L 1Wd HIV 09°19 V101 M03HD  00° 101 "JSId
¢20¢/41/8 ¥100€YC SSINISNBIYIY TVYIN3D S8YT100 0000000

WI0L LWd HOV ¢L 7862 WI0L M03HD  00° 1oL JSIa
¢202/81/8 1022/1-v8¥S 822000 0000000
¢c0¢/¢¢/8 S18.E-GEEST 82£000 0000000
2202/2¢/8 S18/€-GEEST 824000 0000000
¢c0¢/81/8 L0/£€-5EEST 824000 0000000
¢c02/L1/8 199/€-GEEST 822000 0000000
¢c02¢/91/8 L¥9L€-GEEST QT3143VM 40 LSINDUVD 82£000 0000000

WIOL LWd HIY 08 cvy L0L MI3H)  00° W10L "3SIA
¢e0e/91/8 0TYEL  AYYNIYILIA INIOd NIEVD TG2T00 0000000

WIOL IWd HOVY 00°G6T VIOL ¥J3H)  00° w101 "3SIa
¢c0e/L1/8 1/etl ONV ONIMOL S.¥371N9 8€£000 0000000

101 LWd HOV G661 W10L MI3HD  00° 1oL 3SId
220¢/61/8 €ELL¥9  W3INID IDIAY3S S.1L1¥8 €8T000 0000000

L0L 1Wd HOV 00°591 WI0L ¥J3HD  00° 101 "SI0
2¢0e/21/L (42 AVAVR:E] N3T13 "3NO0E 80T000 0000000

W10L LWd HOY €C7EET'9 101 MO3HD  00° W10L "ISIa
¢202/91/8 E#ANT G6#0M 99100 0000000
2202/91/8 EFANT VE#OM dNOY¥9 A3 THY38 9/9T00 0000000

WIOL LWd HOV 00°88¢ W10L ¥3HD  00° w10l 3SIa
¢¢0¢/81/8 £G6/0¥  ONI VA 40 NJv8 AY¥3LLvd 00€000 0000000

WI0L LWd HOV 00°G22 €T VIOL H3H)  00° W10L "ISIA
2c02/22/8  9500T-22202SLVM  JdYML40S IVAIJINNW Iv8 600000 0000000

WI0L LWd HOV 00°G¢e I0L XJ3HD  00° w10l "JSId
¢e02/01/8 ND3IBLITE ILMI0S ADNISYIWI JILINVILY 69100 0000000

WIO0L LWd HIY 8E°60¢ V10L HJ3HD  00° 101 "ISIA
¢202/51/8 0956£06€£¢€S G13IHS BSSOYI INT8 WIHLNY TTOTOO0 0000000

10L LWd HOV €161 WI0L XI3H)  00° 101 "OSId
¢202/51/8 0€T9£0000T "ONI "SINIWAYd IOV 096100 0000000
THIIV iLva ‘ON JWVN JOONIA “ON ‘ON
d/v 3DI0ANI 3010ANI YOGN3A ‘0'd
Y3LST9I HIIHI d/¥ ALNNOD X3SSNS  2202/5¢/8  00Tdv



€¢'€e
£€09€20.€ # 81810

00°80T
INIWISUNGWI Y 81810

00°'Tee ¢S
N0J LINJYID X3SSNS 81810

29" Ly
098¢6¢ # 81810

897988
02T¥9€ZTT # 81810

057041
OYINOD TWNY X3ISSNS 8T8TO

00°6¢
ALNNDD X3ISSNS 8T8T0

18748
80JS # 81810
L03S # 81810

0¥ 59¢
ALNNOD X3SSNS 81810
ALNNOD X3SSNS 8T8TO
ALNNOD X3SSNS 81810

£9°16
221656vE # 81810

01°289°L2
100-%25£589-100 # 81810

668
95ST¥BZT0ES2YTT # 81810

GE'Z8E’T
€99901 # 81810

¢8°Ge

VL0l 00"
|P3uURYy/asea juawdinb]

V10l 00°
UOLSUIX] 9AL1RJ3d00) YA

V101 00"
JuRJD pJ0oddy - Juswdinbl

WI0L 00"
Le3udy/asea] Juawdinbl

101 00"
sen auedodd

WL0L 00"
saL|ddng [euny|noLuby

WI0L 00"
S3JLAJAS | I LD

VL0L 00
|e3uay/asea Juawdinbl
|ejuay/asea juawdinbl

V101 00°
S8JLAJRS [BILPaY
SIILAJDS | RILPaW
S3JLAJDS [BILpay

101 00"
SUOL]RD LUNWWOD3 3]
101 00"

3seYdUNnd/asea s, 1w

V101 00"
S3ILAJIS JITeM

WL0L 00°
|eudY/asea] juawdinbl

wviol 00°

200v2S # 81810JLeday B ddueudjuLey bulpiing

0070072

W.i0L 00

ALINNOD X3SSNS B8IBI0 SIILAJSS [BUOLSSSL04d JBYQ

00°G/

w101 00°

44T¥3HS X3ISSNS B18T0 SuLeddy OURUSIULEK 3| ILUIA

NOILAI¥IS3IQ ANI HILvE

¢ 39vd

WIOL 1Wd Ad3 00°
cl6cce €¢€e

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
116222 00801

WIOL IWd Ad3 00°
0T6¢c 00°12€"eS

WIO0L LWd Ad3 00°
606¢c¢ 29°LLY

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
8062¢¢ 897988

LI0L LWd Ad3 00°
£06¢c¢ 0G°0L1

10L LWd Ad3 00°
906¢¢¢ 00°S¢

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°
G06¢¢¢ 66 L€
G062¢¢ ¢8°LY

VI0L LWd Ad3 00°
¥06¢¢¢ 06°1
¥06¢c¢ 0L°69
¥06¢¢c 08°€61

101 1Wd Ad3 00°
€062¢¢ 1916

IO0L LWd Ad3 00°
206222 01°289°L2

W1I0L LWd Ad3 00°
1062¢¢ 66'8

WIOL LWd Ad3 00°
006¢2¢ GE'28E'T

TIO0L IWd Ad3 00°
668¢¢¢ ¢8°G¢

T10L LWd Ad3 00°
86822¢ 000072

WI10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
£68¢¢¢ 007G/

3530 INNOJJV /9 1Wd LWd  "ON  INNOWY

HOV HOY  MJ3HD 13N

80/¢20¢ - PRV

WI0L LWd Vdd 00° WIOL 1Wd HJV
0€9-1€9-25¢1-001€90-00T¥ ¢¢0¢/01/8
W10L LWd ¥dd 00° WI0L LWd HIV

018-2¢¢8-0112-00€180-00T¥

WIO0L LWd Vd) 00°
00£-029-1¢9-¢5¢1-001¢90-00T¥

W10L LWd Vd) 00°
01¢-£9¢-25¢1-0051¢0-00T¥

WI0L LWd Vd) 00°
01S-155-6£¢1-005150-00TY

101 LWd vdd 00°
0T2-19¢-2v¢1-009120-001v

¢c02/91/8

WIOL 1Wd HOV
¢e0e/0e/L

WIOL LWd HOY
¢202/10/6

WI0L 1Wd HOVY
¢c02/81/8

VIOL 1Wd HOV
2202/G1/8

IVIOL 1Wd HOV
¢202/€2/8

WI0L LWd HOV
2¢02/51/8
2202/50/8

WIOL 1Wd ¥dJ 00°
0T¢-T1¢-£ecT-00T120-00TY

W10L IWd Vd) 00°
019-¢19-¢5¢1-001190-001%
029-129-2521-001290-00T¥

WI0L LWd Vdd 00°

01¢-19¢-£¢21-0091¢0-001¥ 2¢02/91/8
01¢-19¢-£2¢1-009120-001¥ ¢¢0¢/91/8
012-19¢-£¢21-009120-00T¥ ¢202/91/8
WIOL LWd vd) 00° 101 LWd HOVY
01¢-€5¢-v€2T1-005120-00T¥ ¢202/01/8
WI0L 1Wd vdd 00° IOL LWd HIV
109-015-215-€5¢1-00T150-00TY ¢c0¢/L1/8
W10L LWd vdd 00° WIO0L LWd HOY
0€9-T€9-££2T-00T€90-00TY ¢202/91/8
WI0L LWd vdd 00° WIOL 1Wd HOV
012-£9¢-25¢1-009120-00T¥ ¢¢0¢/10/6
W10L 1Wd vd) 00° TWI0L 1Wd HOY
012-19¢-2£21-009120-00Tv ¢c0e/02/L
I0L LWd ¥dd 00° WVI0L IWd HIV
0T2-T12-62¢1-0011¢0-00T¥ ¢c0¢/%0/8
WI0L 1Wd vd3 00° TVIO0L 1Wd HOY
015-615-99¢1-00T150-00T¥ ¢c0e/ee/8
‘ON T4V iLva
INNOJJV d/v JII0ANI

T€-90°ST-3WIL

€¢°€¢

29° LY

89988

057041

00°G¢

TWIOL 1Wd HOV 07 '59¢

018022X2¢1656vE
01°289"L¢
668

¢¢9180 9551v821
Ge'z8e’1
¢8°G¢
00°00v°¢C

00°5¢

Y31STI3Y MO3HD d/v

I0L XI3HD  00° w101 "OSIQ
1910T69¢€ "ONI "VSN HOJTY €20100 0000000

10L X03H3  00° w101 "3SIa

229180 d4 NOAFYE "3JW3IId 816100 0000000
TI0L MJ3H)  00° vL0L "3SIO

6200~ 14-ANI S3IIY0TONHIIL IT140M 607100 0000000
VI0L X33IHY ~ 00° WI0L "OSIa

9£6£068€ SNOILSINDIY WNIIS 1vE019 S09100 0000000

VI0L MI3HD)  00° 1oL "3SId
5062820211 SY9T113¥934 269100 0000000
101 XI3HD  00° Wi0L "3SId

6/¥0€T INI Q3LINN S¥3IWdV4 668100 0000000

WI0L XI3H)  00° 10L "3SIa
¥09T 3LVIJIOSSY WIIG3IW VIYOdW3 LE6T00 0000000

VI0L X3H)  00° 10l "IS1a
§58YeT 199100 0000000
Evivel SWILSAS IN3WNJ0a TS9T00 0000000

VI0L MI3HD  00° w101 "3S1a
¥86¢/2 G81100 0000000
286¢/2 G81T00 0000000
186¢/¢ V1IdSOH TWWINY VINVINASIQ S8TT00 0000000

WIOL XIHY)  00° VL0L "JSIA

J71°ALIIYIA 268100 0000000

WI0L W3  00° 1oL "ISIa

GPEE6ETB 1 SIDIAYIS WIINYNIL 1130 ¥90200 0000000

WIOL MIH  00° vi0L "JS1d
SONIYdS WISAYD 1/8000 0000000
TWI0L MI3H)  00° w101 "3SIa

080¥¥68€  ANVAWOD 19 371SVD NMOYWD S¥8000 0000000

TI0L X3HD  00° 10l JSIa
£6¢S1E SY3IHL04E ONITIMOD 020000 0000000

WIO0L XIHY)  00° vi0L "3SId
£€50£0¥Y  O13I4¥3LS3HD 40 ALNNOD 190200 0000000

VI0L XI3HD  00° W10l "JSIC
180-220¢ SNOTLVYEITVI HLIVIMNOWWOD SS0200 0000000

‘ON JWVYN HOONIA ‘ON ‘ON
uu~o>zH xoozm> ,o.n

ALNNOD X3SSNS  2e0¢/S2/8  00Tdv



d

€

2910005£99¢2€155 # 81810
2910006/992€15S # 81810
2910005/99¢2€155 # 81810
2910005/992€155 # 81810
2910005£99¢2€15S # 81810
2910005/992€155 # 8I8T0

2910005£992€1SS # 81810
2910005£99¢2€155 # 81810
2910005£992€15S # 81810
2910005£99¢€15G # BI810
2910005/99¢2€155 # BI8I0
2910005299¢€155 # 81810
2910005£99¢€15S # 8I8I0
291000G299¢€155 # 81810
291000G6£992€15S # 81810
2910006/992€15S # 81810
2910005/99¢2€15S # 81810
2910005/992€155 # 81810
¢910005£992€15S # 81810
2910005£992€15S # 81810
2910005£992€15S # 81810
29100052992€15S # 81810
29100052992€155 # 81810

00°Gel
I3 LLVAM 818T0

r19e’1
30 441¥3HS X3SSNS 81810

20°605°¢
9-66€€ #004d BIBT0
9-66E€ #[0ud 81810

0 1L
JVYLSI9FY X3SSNS 81810

00°89
ALNNOD X3SSNS 81810

0070521
NOILYJI001Y €2A4 81810

00°Gev
44I43HS X3SSNS 81810

€1°€22'¢
¥8v0v£99 # 81810
¥8%0v.99 # 81810
7870v.99 # 81810
¥8¥07/99 # 81810

NOILdI¥IS3A ANI HOLvd

39vd

SUOL]RD LUNULI0IR | 3]
SUO LRI LUNIAOJ3 | 3]
SUO LRI LUNUIOD3 | 3]
SUO LRI LUNULI0J3 | 3]
SUO LD LUNILIOI3| 3]
SUO LR LUNUI0J3| 3]
SUO LRI LUNULOJ3 3]
SUO L3RI LUNLLL0J3 3]
SUO LRI LUNUALI0D3 3]
SUOL7PI LUNIAIOD3 |3
SUO 1702 LUNUALOS | 3]
SUO L7182 LUNUALO3 | 31
SUO 170D LUNILODA |3
SUOL]RD LUNUAIOD3 | 3]
SUO LRI LUNUWOI3| 3|
SUOL7RI LUNUIODA (3]
SUO LRI LUNULOJ3 3]
SUO LRI LUNUIOJ3 3]
SUO L7 LUNUILOD3 [ 3]
SUO L1 LUNUILOIS | 31
SUOLIRILUNURIODD| 3]
SUOL7RD LUNU0JA 3]
SUOL1RILUNUW0J3| 3]

v.0L 00"
Sa0UBJ3LU0Y) pue SAoySHIOM

Ivi0L 00"
SJBY1Q SNOBUB| |3IS LW

v10L 00"
S8ILAJIS |RUOLSSIL0Ud JBYI0

S9ILAJSS |RUOLSSIL0Ld JAYID

W10L 00"
sat|ddng 201440

V101 00"
sasuadx3 a|eS pue [eLatpnp

V101 00"
“Yjy UaK Bunop A3uno) xassns

V101 00"
SJaY1Q Snoaue| |3IS LK

Tv10L 00"
SJ3Y10 SNoaUB| [ 3ISLY

[an4 (asaLq
110
(10

"0S30 INNOJJV /9 LWd 1Wd

126¢¢¢ 80°0S
126¢¢¢
126¢¢e
1¢62ce
1¢6¢¢c ¥8°8¢
T¢6ccc €8°8¢
1¢62¢¢ €882
1¢6¢¢¢ €8°8¢
1¢6¢cc €882
1¢6cee €8°8¢
1¢6ccc ¥8°82
1¢6¢ce v8'8¢
T¢6cec ¥8°8¢
T¢bcec ¥8°8¢
1¢6cec 18°8¢
126222
1¢6¢¢c
1¢62ee
1¢6cce 98°LS
126¢¢c 98°LS
1¢6ece
126¢¢¢
126¢¢¢

I0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
0¢6ece 00°GeT

101 1Wd Ad3 00°
616222 27 19€°T

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
816¢¢¢ 0050/
81622¢ 20°¥08°T

V101 LWd Ad3 00°
L16¢ec 0v'1L

101 IWd Ad3 00°
916¢c¢c 0089

WI10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
GT6¢2¢ 00°052°T

W10L LWd Ad3 00°
v16¢¢cc 00°Gev

W10L 1Wd Ad3 00°
€16¢e¢ 21'°€
€16¢cc SI E0V'T
€16¢¢¢ 19 €91
£16¢2¢ G8°€99

‘ON  INNOWY
HOV HOV  XD3HD 13N

2c02/Te/L 22l
2e0e/Te/L el
¢c0e/Te/L 22l
¢c0e/Te/L 22l
2e02/Te/L  2¢LD
2e0e/T1e/L 22l
2e02/Te/L 22l
2e02/1e/L  ¢ell
2e0e/1e/L 22l
2e0e/1e/L 22l
2e0e/12/L 22l
2202/1e/L  ¢cll
2e0e/1e/L  ecll
2e02/1e/L 22l
2e0z/1e/L  ¢cll
2e02/12/L 22l
2e0¢/1e/L ¢ell
220¢/1e/L  2ell
2e0e/12/L 22l
2e02/12/L ¢l
2e02/1e/L  22lo
2e0e/1e/L 2ell
ce0e/1e/L 2elo

019-219-¥€21-001190-001%
019-219-¥€21-001190-001%
019-219-¥€21-001190-001%
019-219-¥€21-001190-001%
012-1T¢-7E21-001T20-001¥
0T2-11¢-¥€¢1-001T20-001¥
019-1T19-¥€21-001190-001¥
079-TT9-¥€21-001190-00T%
019-¢19-7€21-001190-00T¥
019-¢19-¥€21-001190-001%
019-T19-v€21-001190-001%
0T9-T19-¥€21-001190-001%
0Ty-TT¥-¥ECT-00TT¥0-00TY
0T2-TT2-¥€T-0011¢0-00T%
0T¢-€52-¥E21-005T20-00TY
019-219-v€21-001190-001%
0TE-TTE-¥ECT-00TTE0-00TY
0€¢-16¢-¥€¢1-001€20-00TY
0T¢-T12-¥EZ1-001120-001%
019-T19-¥€21-001190-001%
019-¢19-7€21-001190-001¢
0€9-2£9-v€21-001€90-001¥
0TZ-192-¥€2T1-0091¢0-00Tv

W10L 1Wd Vdd 00° WVI0L LWd HOV 00°GeT
0£9-2€9-€021-001€90-00TY ¢c0e/8¢/L

W10L LWd Vd) 00° TLI0L LWd HOV 2P 19e’T
015-215-66¢1-001150-001v 2¢0¢/81/8

WI0L 1Wd vdd 00° W10L LWd HIV 20°605°¢
0T2-£5¢-6¢¢1-005T¢0-001¢ 2¢02/¥0/S
0T¢-€52-62¢1-005120-00T¥ ac0e/L0/v

V101 1Wd Vdd 00° 101 1Wd HIV 0¥ 1L
0€2-16¢-T¥2¢1-001€20-00TY ¢c0e/v1/L

W10L 1Wd Vdd 00° TVi0L LWd HOV 00°89
0TY-TT¥-16¢1-00TT¥0-00TY 2202/91/8

W10L 1Wd Vdd 00° VI0L LWd HOV 00°05¢'T
078-1v8-0112-009180-001¥ 220¢/81/8

10L 1Wd Vdd 00° 101 LWd HIV 0052
01¢-T11¢-66¢1-001120-001¥ ¢e02/ve/ L

W10L 1Wd vdd 00° V10L tWd HOV €L°eee’e
0T2-T12-66¢1-0011¢0-001v 2c0e/1¢8/L
0T2-¥92-8£21-009120-001¢ ¢c0¢/16/L
01¢-1¢¢-8£¢1-002120-001¢ ¢c0e/1€/L
012-192-8£21-009120-00T¥ ¢e0e/1e/L

‘ON TV iLva
INNO3JV d/v JDI0ANI

80/220¢ - PdIY  TE-90-ST-IWIL YILSIIN HIFHI d/Y

1720521090
1720521090
170521090
17240521090
1¥£05¢1090
1720521090
1720521090
1720621090
1720521090
1720521090
1720521090
1720621090
1720521090
1720521090
1720521090
1720521090
1720521090
1720521090
1720621090
1720521090
1740521090
1720521090
120521090

WIO0L XJ3HD
SWILOIA 404 MYOMLIN YA ¥8T000 0000000

618¢

101 XI3HD
"ONI STVINZY 30ISdOL 659100 0000000

228180 ¥l

101 %I3HD

0%59L
L1¥9L

101 HJ3HD

0-5686997

101 ¥J3HD

692000 0000000
69000 0000000
692000 0000000
69,000 0000000
692000 0000000
69,000 0000000
69£000 0000000
69,000 0000000
692000 0000000
69000 0000000
69000 0000000
69000 0000000
692000 0000000
692000 0000000
692000 0000000
69000 0000000
69£000 0000000
69£000 0000000
69£000 0000000
69000 0000000
69000 0000000
69000 0000000
NOZIY3A 69,000 0000000

1oL "ISsId

W10k "3SI0

w101 "JSIa
996100 0000000

ANVdWOOD NILOOM 3HL 996100 0000000

L0L "JSIa

WO0Y A1ddNnS 3HL 992100 0000000

w101 "ISIO

6018 ILINSNOD ALI¥OHLNY YNIXVL ¢/8T00 0000000

IVL0L HJ3HD
S.NIW ONNOA ALD X3SSNS ¥¥8000 0000000

€¢Ad

VI0L HI3HD
2¢v2L0 0SIS 0 S.44IY¥3HS ALNNOD X3SSNS S90¢00 0000000

V101 MJ3HD

669119
669119
669119
669119

‘ON
JII0ANI

JWYN JOANIA ‘ON ‘ON

AINNOJ X3SSNS

W10l "JSIa

101 "OSIQ

w101 "JSIA

¢91000 0000000
¢91000 0000000
¢91000 0000000

ONI S3T9YINT ¥1044nS 291000 0000000

HOON3A ‘0'd

¢c02/S¢/8  00Tdv



G2 99 ‘2€1 1oL 00°
G2 99y "2el 101 00"
97 0¥8’ Y 101 00°

8EE288661TT09Y0Y # 818T0LRdaY B uLew SWa)SAS bulp|ing
8EEC8B66TTI09V0Y # BT8I0  S3JUAU3LUO) pue sdOYSHIOM
8E£C8866TTI09V0Y # 818T0UOLIRIL| ddy/a4RM]J0S JBINAWO)

B8EEZBBO6TTI0970Y # 81810

6€°99L°¢€
97€2886611109¥07 # 81810

SJay1Q snoaue|(|ISLi

V101 00"
2JueuauLel quawdinbl

9vE2886611109%0 # 818T0LRdaY B uLeW SwaISAS bulp|ing

97€2886611109707 # 81810
97€2886611109v07 # 81810
97€288661110970Y # 81810
97EZ88661110970Y #

97€Z886611109707 # 81810
97£Z886611T0970Y # 81810

¢v09
GS0ZGETBTTZYTT # 81810

007811
1008477£00020 # 81810

00°9£
ALNNOD X3SSNS 818T0

18°G6€
QYYHOTY " SY19N00 81810

107¢8v'¢
10000-¥2802902S # 81810
10000-%28029025 # 81810
10000-+28029025 # 81810

y1°852°1
2910005£992€15S # 81810

NOILdI¥IS3Q ANI HOLvd

¥ 39vd

sat|ddng 301440
sat{ddng 831440
S3ILAJIS WJOSLUN

818101eday § uley swdlsAS buLp|ing

buLbpo
uoLyejuodsued]

101 00"
S9OLAJDS JD]EM

WI0L 00"
| PIUdY/asea] Juawdinb]

v10L 00°
30URUIYULEK BJLYBA

V101 00°
dLysJaqual uoL}ezLuebdg

vL0L 00"
SUOL7eI LUNILIOJS |8
SUOL}RDLUNWLOJD |3
SUOL7RD LUNIIOID |3

101 00"
SUOL7BD LUNUWOI3 | 3|

TVIO0L 1Wd Ad3 00°
W10L IWd Ad3 00°
WLO0L LWd Ad3 00

826ccc
8¢6cce
8¢6¢ce
8¢6¢ce

Ge'168°¢
99°£99
86°6C
L5°192°T

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°

Leb2ee
£26¢¢e
12622
Le6cee
Le6cee
£e62ee
12622
1262¢

0¥°89
IT°4S
v'8

96 ¢y
LLEL0°T
04°682°2
¥0°G1e
00°6T

WIO0L LWd Ad3 00

9¢6¢2e

209

WI0L LWd Ad3 00°

G262

00°811

WIO0L LWd Ad3 00°

¥26c¢dc

0079,

WIOL LWd Ad3 00°

€26dcc

18°G6€

WI0L 1Wd Ad3 00°

226222
¢2622¢
a¢6eee

£L°GS1
2T eIt
AR

101 LWd Ad3 00°

Jt4 244

3530 INNOJIY /9 IWd LWd  "ON

HOV HOV  XD3HD

88°/S

INNOWY
13N

el

a~.vnm_u

31vd
£C'ST 3
"03LSNCAY SV STIVLOL L3IFHS D07 ATIIM FHL STVND3 -G2 99v '2€1 WL0L FHL

"03IN3WNJ00 ATSNOIATYd ¥0 MOT38 QILSIT SNOILAIDXI HLIM INIWAVA W04 YILSIHIY SIHL IAQUddY AGIWIH I

WI0L 1Wd vdd 00° WI0L 1Wd HOV Ge 99y ¢el TVI0L XO3HD  00°

WI0L LWd vdd 00° WIO0L 1Wd HOV G2 99y '2€1 I0L XI3IHY  00°

WI0L 1Wd vdd 00° WI0L IWd H)V 9y 0v8'v WI0L M3H)  00° WIl0L "JSIa
012-12¢-€£21-002120-00T% ¢20¢/S1/8 ¥0 ¢280 8EEC §66100 0000000

80/¢20¢ - PRV

0TZ-112-€021-001T¢0-001% ¢202/60/8 €0 ¢¢80 8EEC §66100 0000000
012-11¢-85¢1-0011¢0-00T¥ ¢202/1e/L ¢0 ¢80 8EEC 566100 0000000
0Tc-11¢-66¢1-001120-00T¥ ¢c0e/Se/L 10 ¢280 BEEC JNVE 1SINYL S66T00 0000000

WI0L LWd ¥dd 00°

01¢-1¢¢-¥5¢1-0021¢0-00Ty

WI0L 1Wd vdd 00°

0TZ-TTL-¥ECT-00TTL0-G0TY

“ON
»z:ouu<

1€:90:GT-3WIL

WI0L LWd HIVY

WIOL LWd HIY
¢¢0¢/61/8

2c0e/1e/L

THIIV 3Lva
d/v JIT0ANI

Y31SI93Y HO3HD d/V

6£799L°¢

v1'85¢°1
2240 Tv/0521090

L0 2280 9¥EC

‘ON
JII0ANI

WI0L MI3HD  00°

WI0L M3H  00°

101 "3SIa
G66100 0000000

01¢-1¢¢-€£21-002120-00T% 2202/61/8 90 ¢¢80 9vEe G66100 0000000
0Tp-TIv-T¥21-001170-00T¥ 2c02/¢1/8 G0 2280 9¥Ee G66100 0000000
0Ty-1Ty-T¥21-0011%0-00TY ¢c02/€1/8 ¥0 2280 9v€C G66100 0000000
012-12¢-y¥21-002120-00T¥ ¢c0¢/01/8 £0 2280 9rEe S66100 0000000
01¢-Te¢-€£21-0021¢0-00TY ¢c0¢/80/8 20 2¢80 9v€C §66100 0000000
0Tv-TTP-¥021-0011¥0-00T¥ ¢c0¢/20/8 10 2280 9vEe G66100 0000000
0Ty-TI¥-9021-00TT¥0-00TY ¢c02/¢0/8 10 2280 9vEe JNvVE LSINYL S66100 0000000
W10L 1Wd vdd 00° WI0L 1Wd HOV 09 VI0L X03HY)  00° w101 "3SIa
019-219-££21-00T190-00T% 2c02/81/8 ¢28180 SGG02S€ET SONIHAS WLSAYD T/8000 0000000
V101 1Wd Vdd 00° WIO0L LWd HOVY 00°8TT VI0L XJ3HD  00° WI0L "3SIa
0T2-19¢-2¢5¢1-009120-001% 2202/51/8 6/TvEYE  SIDTAY3S TWIINYNI4 XOHIX ¥¥9T00 0000000
WL0L 1Wd Vdd 00° WI0L 1Wd HOY 00°9L 101 X3HY  00° 101 "3SId
01¢-1£2-59¢1-00£120-001F ¢e0e/ L0/t 6v1LT ONI "SYOLOW AT¥3AYM 060000 0000000
W10L 1Wd vdd 00° WIOL 1Wd HOV 18°66€ WI0L MI3H  00° 101 "3SIa
012-T12-T10¢T-00TT20-00TY ¢202/€T/L CCETL0 YWITA YWITA €££000 0000000
WI0L 1Wd Vdd 00° WI0L LWd HOV T0°28v°¢ 101 X3HD  00° w1i0L "3SIa
0T5-195-v€21-005150-001¢ ¢202/21/8 86¢1VECT66 6€0000 0000000
015-¢15-v€¢1-001150-00Tv ¢c02/21/8 86¢1vEET66 6€0000 0000000
01G-915-¥€2T-0011S0-001% ¢202/21/8 86¢1VEET66 SSIT13IYIM NOZIY3A 6€0000 0000000

VLOL "3SId
69£000 0000000

JWYN JOAN3A ‘ON ‘ON
YOAN3A ‘0'd

ALNNQD X3SSNS  2202/52/8  00TdY



PAYROLL
DEDUCTION
CHECKS




AP100P

P/0
NO.

00000
00000
00000
00000

00000
00000
00000
00000
00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000

00000

00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000

8/16/2022

VEND.
NO.

000245
000245
000245
000245

000881
000881
000881
000881
000881

001397
001397

001021
001021

000872
000872

001570

001851

001819

000247
000247

000831
000831

001027

THE TOTAL

VENDOR
NAME

ANTHEM BLUE CROSS AND

LEGAL SHIELD

MINNESOTA LIFE INS CO

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT

NEW JERSEY FAMILY

NYS CHILD SUPPORT PROCESS
PRINCE GEORGE COUNTY TREA

TREASURER OF VIRGINIA

VACORP

VALIC RETIREMENT

A/P CHECK REGISTER

PAYROLL DEDUCTION CHECKS

INVOICE
NO.

DC040220816220800
DC040220816220800
DC041220816220800
DC041220816220800

DC005220816220800
DC005220816220800
DC015220816220800
DC126220816220800
DC126220816220800

DC097220816220800
DC097220816220800

DC200220816220800
DC200220816220800

DC090220816220800
DC090220816220800

DC108220816220800
DC114220816220800
DC117220816220800

DC080220816220800
0C080220816220800

DC035220816220800
DC035220816220800

DC091220816220800

INVOICE
DATE

8/16/2022
8/16/2022
8/16/2022
8/16/2022

8/16/2022
8/16/2022
8/16/2022
8/16/2022
8/16/2022

8/16/2022
8/16/2022

8/16/2022
8/16/2022

8/16/2022
8/16/2022

8/16/2022
8/16/2022
8/16/2022

8/16/2022
8/16/2022

8/16/2022
8/16/2022

8/16/2022

TIME-10:53:05

ACCOUNT .
NO.

100-000200-0100-
105-000200-0100-
100-000200-0100-
105-000200-0100-

100-000200-0100-
105-000200-0100-
100-000200-0100-

" 100-000200-0100-

105-000200-0100-

100-000200-0100-
105-000200-0100-

100-000200-0100-
105-000200-0100-

100-000200-0100-
105-000200-0100-

100-000200-0100-
100-000200-0100-
100-000200-0100-

100-000200-0100-
105-000200-0100-

100-000200-0100-
105-000200-0100-

100-000200-0100-

CHECK TOTAL

CHECK TOTAL

CAECK TOTAL

CHECK TOTAL

CHECK TOTAL
CHECK TOTAL
CHECK TOTAL

CHECK TOTAL

CHECK TOTAL

CHECK TOTAL

CQECK TOTAL
CLASS TOTAL
FINAL TOTAL

4,210.50
601.50
5,265.00
27.625.00

548.83
870.00
25.00

895.00

179.84
179.84

121.33
121.33

569.75
569.75

2.,376.19

437.50
2,813.69

51,996.11
51,996.11-

1 HEREBY APPROVE THIS REGISTER FOR PAYMENT WITH EXCEPTIONS LISTED BELON OR PREVIOUSLY DOCUMENTED.
EQUALS THE WEEKLY LOG SHEET TOTALS AS ADJUSTED

555

y-/0-2&

"ifl I;:>';2::a;.

51,996.11-

1

CHECK
NO.

222762
222762
222762
222762

222763
222763
222763
222763
222763

222764
222764

2221765
222765

222766
222766

222767

222768

222769

222770
222770

222771
222771

222772

00000

00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000



00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000

00000

00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000

NOILdI¥OS3a

-\

8(8¢¢¢

£18¢¢2
[18222

948¢¢¢
9/822¢

§.8¢¢¢
vi8cc¢
€.82¢¢

¢L8ece
¢L8¢ee

148¢2¢
148222

0£82¢¢
0£82¢¢

69822
898222

£9822¢

£98¢22¢ .

198¢2¢
198222
198¢ce

9982¢¢
9982¢¢
998¢2¢

\. 9982¢¢

"Q3LNIWND00 ATSNOIAIYA ¥O MOT38 Q3LSIT SNOILAIOXI HLIM INIWAVA Y04 ¥3LSI9FY SIHL IACY¥ddY ABFYIH I

-£8°£05°0S
£€8°£05°0S

00°5¢9
007529

00622y
00°625°S
00°62¢'92
00°992°G
05°109
05°210°S

¥8°01L°T
157201
82°1€9
L1°(8
887688

101 NI
WI0L SSV1)
WIO0L MJ3HD

TIO0L %J3HD

WIO0L MI3HD

101 MI3H)
WV10L %I3HI
WI0L XI3H)

WI0L MI3HD

101 XJ3HD

WI0L MI3HD

101 MI3HD
TL0L JI3HD

IO0L %J3HD

WL0L XJ3HD

~00T0-002000-001

-0010-002000-501
-0010-00¢000-00T

-0010-002000-S0T
-0010-002000-00T

-0070-002000-50T

-0010-002000-00T

-00T0-002000-00T

-0070-002000-50T
-0070-002000-00T

-0010-002000-S0T
-0010-002000-00T

-0010-002000-S0T
-0070-002000-001

-0070-00¢000-50T

~0010-002000-001

-0010-002000-50T
-0010-002000-00T
-0010-002000-00T
-00T0-002000-S0T
-00T0-002000-00T

-0010-002000-S01
-0010-002000-00T
-0070-002000-501
-0010-002000-001

ON

LNNGJIV

T2:0v-TT-3WIL

¢c0c/1¢€/8

2e02/1¢/8
¢e0e/1¢/8

2e02/1¢/8
¢c0e/1e/8

2c02/1¢/8
2202/1¢/8
2202/1¢/8

2¢02/1¢/8
2e02/1¢/8

¢c0¢/1¢E/8
220e/1¢/8

2202/1€/8
2202/1¢/8

2e0¢/1e/8
2202/1¢/8

2e02/1¢/8
¢202/1€/8
2202/1¢/8
2202/1€/8
¢c0e/1¢e/8

¢c0e/1€/8
2202/1€/8
¢c0¢/1€/8
2202/1€/8

31va
3DI0ANI

0080221€802216030

0080221€80225€030
0080221€80225€030

0080221€80¢208030
0080221€802208020

0080221£8022€2100

0080221€80¢2¥1120

0080221€802280120

0080221€80¢206030
0080¢21€80¢206000

0080221€802200220
0080221€80¢200¢30

0080221€8022.6020
0080221€8022£6030

0080221€802262120

00802¢1€802¢82100

0080221€802292120
0080221€802292120
0080221€802251020
0080¢21€802¢50020
0080221€802250020

0080221€80¢¢1¢0J0
0080¢21€80¢¢1¥020
0080221€802¢0+020
0080¢21€80220+020

30I0ANI

SHO3HD NOILONG3Q TI0HAVd

YILSTOI NI3HD d/V

INIWFIILTY JITVA

d¥00VA

VINIQYIA 30 Y3UNSYRIL

UN0J QINIBWOD NOLJWYHLNOS

$S3304d L¥0ddNS GTIHD SAN

ATIWYd A3SY3C MIN

INIWIYILIY JQIMNOILWN

02 SNI 3417 VLIOS3NNIW

QT3IHS VO3

00 G3INISWOD ALID NITINWYA

FWNSYIYL "NOLAWVH 40 ALID

ONV SSOYJ 3N18 W3HLINY

IWVN
JOONIA

£20100

1€8000
1€8000

£¥2000
£¥2000

£00200

158100

045100

248000
2£8000

120100
120100

L6€T00
L6E100

290200

090200

188000
188000
188000
188000
188000

§v2000
§%2000
§v2000
§%2000

‘ON
"AN3A

2202/1¢/8

00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000
00000
00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000
00000

00000
00000
00000
00000
00000

00000
00000
00000
00000

“ON
0/d

d00Tav



y = ¢ Fm.mfw
5 2 N.|nvuw.ww

"Q3ASNCOV SY STYLOL L3S 90T ATHIIM JHL STvAD3 -€87£05°0S WI0L 3HL



2.03

SUSSEX COUNTY

TREASURER’S REPORT

AND

FINANCIAL UPDATE

SUBMITTED BY DESTE J. COX, TREASURER

NOVEMBER 30, 2022

Consent Agenda - Page 1


sricks
Highlight


] ¥
RGNS

TREASURER’S OFFICE

DESTE JARRATT COX 15074 COURTHOUSE ROAD Phone (434)246-1086 or
TREASURER P.O. BOX 1399 (434)246-1087 _

SUSSEX COUNTY SUSSEX, VA. 23884 Fax (434)246-2347

Statement of money in the banks to the credit of Sussex County as shown by the Treasurer's books
at the close of business November 30, 2022

TRUIST #201- SUSSEX, VA

Bank Balance -=-==-=mnmmm e e e $42,494.36
Bank Fees/Adjustments e $121.44
Deposits in Transit-------====-cmcemommmmmmee ($5,913.27)
Outstanding Checks=-=====mm e $0.00 $36,702.53
Investments and CD'§=--==--m e

#679672 - Truist #251 $2,325,000.00  $2,325,000.00
BSV #301- STONY CREEK, VA
Bank Balance T $9,849,198.53
Bank Fees/Returned Checkg----------- $208.01
Credit Card Fees/Adjustments------------- $445.73
Deposits in Transit ==-=====nmsm e $9,328.24
Outstanding Checks et ($807,777.81)  $9,051,402.70
PRIMIS #401- WAVERLY, VA
Bank Balance--------=-=-e-emmmememmeeemeen $105,842.26
Deposits in Transit------- --- - ($16,039.25) $89,803.01
Investments and CD'§==n=mmmmmmm s

#30383118 - Primis #451 $1,020,167.51

#30383043 - Primis #451 $2,020,772.95

$3,040,940.46

QZAB -06 #702 Investment Balance--===-====mmmm e 2,212,327.47
LGIP INVESTMENT #803 Investment Balance----------------mcmmemmuv 2,113,126.18
VA INV POOL #804 Investment Balance---=-=----m-mmmmmm e 145,261.89

TOTAL IN BANKS REC W/GL-----mmmmmmmmmemmeee $19,014,564.24
Letters or statements from each of the above mentioned Respectfully submitted:

banks are on file in the Treasurer's Office of

Sussex County certifying the balance as listed above. X’Q(, i Q &)[
= :

Deste J. Cox, Treayﬁrer /

Consent Agenda - Page 2



NOVEMBER 2022

SUSSEX COUNTY - DESTE J. COX, TREASURER
REVENUE/EXPENDITURE SUMMARY REPORT

General Fund

FUND BALANCE as of 11/30/22 = $ 8,096,126

PRIOR FY -
CURRENT YTD
Ui ) ANNUAL MONTH YTD ACTUAL | Through |COLLECTED %
REVENUES APPROPRIATED | AcTiviTy | 11/30/2022 |11/30/2021 Y7D
Real Estate - 2022 5,511,434 2,654,755 2,725,799 2,866,782 49.5%
Public Service Corp - 2022 713,720 202,599 202,658 223,682 28.4%
Personal Property - 2022 3,858,156 1,926,321 1,972,464 1,677,715 51.1%
Machinery & Tools - 2022 560,919 108,712 108,712 458,429 19.4%
Local Sales & Use Taxes (net) 1,040,124 90,108 468,795 455,575 45.1%
Transient Occupancy Tax 80,000 4,234 38,879 35,044 48.6%
Consumer Utility Taxes 93,000 7,891 32,337 40,368 34.8%
Business License Taxes 70,050 3,342 15,902 16,476 22.7%
Motor Vehicle Licenses 229,800 70,397 80,412 88,248 35.0%
Landfill Tipping Fees 5,550,000 400,445 | 2,292,093 2,344,194 41.3%
Delinquent Taxes RE 172,500 20,584 86,626 52,586 50.2%
Delinquent Tax Personal Property 88,100 6,895 52,646 46,796 59.8%
Penalties - All Property 115,000 3,141 14,412 12,114 12.5%
Interest - All Property 30,000 3,257 9,270 9,052 30.9%
Court Fines 840,000 57,884 287,112 342,137 34.2%
EMS Billing 300,000 0 6,821 n/a 2.3%
State 4,122,872| 1,147,957 | 2,466,847 2,369,372 59.8%
Federal 1,500 0 0 84,077 0.0%
Transfer in from Reserve 304,331 51,125 304,331 351,047 100.0%
Designated Use of Fund Balance 3,098,739 0 0 0 0.0%
PRIOR FY -
CURRENT YTD
- ANNUAL MONTH YTD ACTUAL | Through
EXPENDITURES APPROPRIATED | ACTIVITY | 11/30/2022 |11/30/2021 |SPENT % YTD
General Government 3,646,421 203,086 1,137,381 892,591 31.2%
Judicial Administration 1,290,437 90,294 553,950 477,278 42.9%
Fire, Rescue, EMS 2,748,996 173,871 1,395,810 1,006,604 50.8%
Sheriff's Operations & Jail 6,434,447 383,216 2,167,883 2,117,631 33.7%
Public Works 2,078,465 134,228 966,909 587,943 46.5%
Health & Welfare 908,783 44,044 265,650 655,019 29.2%
Education 7,750,121 661,490| 2,763,782 2,431,704 35.7%
Parks Rec & Cultural Enrichment 273,760 1,750 144,880 154,436 52.9%
Planning/Community Dev 1,413,623 78,155 437,892 298,275 31.0%
Debt Service 1,581,016 221,443| 1,345,256 1,335,757 85.1%

Consent Agenda - Page 3




General Fund

CURRENT ACTUAL
ANNUAL MONTH 11/30/2022 | YTD 11/30/2021 | Spent %

i : 2 YEAR TO PRIOR FISCAL
-EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT APPROPRIATED ACTIVITY DATE YEAR YTD
Board of Supervisors 168,687 15,115 61,234 51,688 36.3%
Administration 2,028,334 72,098 439,741 368,710 21.7%
Contingency Acct ( 7/1/22 = $100,000) 21,854 0 0 0 0.0%
HRA Admin Fee 5,600 0 0 N/A 0.0%
HRA Employer Spend 160,000 26,351 91,881 N/A 57.4%
IT & Central Acct 102,093 192 77,040 23,306 75.5%
County Attorney 150,000 8,500 50,242 56,004 33.5%
Registrar/Board of Elections 247,538 19,438 99,280 83,667 40.1%
Com of Revenue 277,659 20,285 109,280 104,202 39.4%
Reassessment Services 48,163 9,000 40,815 32,951 84.7%
Treasurer | 436,493 32,108 167,870 172,063 38.5%
General Government 3,646,421 203,086 1,137,381 892,591 31.2%
Courts | 110,423 3,914 41,724 37,748 37.8%
Clerk of Courts 457,126 31,414 213,622 157,292 46.7%
Com Atty/Vic Wit 722,888 54,966 298,604 282,237 41.3%
Judicial Administration 1,290,437 90,294 553,950 477,278 42.9%
Fire/Rescue/EMS 2,237,671 136,530 1,205,581 835,985 53.9%
Aminal Control 511,325 37,341 190,229 170,619 37.2%
Fire, Rescue, EMS 2,748,996 173,871 1,395,810 1,006,604 50.8%
Court Sec/Spot/FO/E911 4,299,923 223,894 1,343,637 1,291,499 31.2%
Confinement of Inmates 1,979,571 135,388 761,574 797,252 38.5%
Crater Crim Justice Aca. 154,954 23,934 62,673 28,880 40.4%
Sheriff's Operations & Jail 6,434,447 383,216 2,167,883 2,117,631 33.7%
Building & Grounds 1,045,151 68,348 515,263 192,047 49.3%
Envir Inspections 197,540 8,280 52,967 76,903 26.8%
General Works 297,197 11,420 116,590 93,337 39.2%
Convenience Ctrs. 538,577 46,180 282,089 225,655 52.4%
Public Works 2,078,465 134,228 966,909 587,943 46.5%
Health - Outside Agencies 236,615 0 43,149 112,276 18.2%
Com. Support Services - Outside Agencies 202,815 9,036 91,771 144,445 45.2%
Local Contrib to DSS 289,353 0 47,684 158,667 16.5%
Local Contrib to CSA 180,000 35,009 83,046 239,631 46.1%
Health & Welfare 908,783 44,044 265,650 655,019 29.2%
Educ Contrib - Outside Agencies 951 0 951 2,982 100.0%
Local Contrib to Sch Fd 7,749,170 661,490 2,762,831 2,428,722 35.7%
Education | 7,750,121 661,490 2,763,782 2,431,704 35.7%
Library/Cultural - Outside Agencies 204,260 0 101,380 106,076 49.6%
Recreational Contrib- Outside Agencies 69,500 1,750 43,500 48,360 62.6%
Parks Rec & Cultural Enrichment 273,760 1,750 144,880 154,436 52.9%
DHCD UNOS Grt ] 576,732 56,519 216,854 133,838 37.6%
Planning/Building/Zoning 483,630 21,636 151,601 176,362 31.3%
CDBG Pocahantas Grt 283,325 0 12,000 -67,538 4.2%
Crater Planning Com 8,771 0 8,771 4,895 100.0%
IDA | 12,500 0 0 0 0.0%
Va Gateway Region 47,166 0 47,166 47,417 100.0%
Crater SBDC 1,500 0 1,500 3,300 100.0%
Planning/Community Dev 1,413,623 78,155 437,892 298,275 31.0%
Debt Service 1,581,016 221,443 1,345,256 1,335,757 85.1%
Debt Service 1,581,016 221,443 1,345,256 1,335,757 85.1%

Consent Agenda - Page 4




SUSSEX COUNTY

NOVEMBER 2022

'REVEN’U_EIEXP’E’NDITURE SUMMARY REPORT

Capital Projects Fund - Fund 302

FUND BALANCE as of 11/30/22 = $ 130,235 plus

$669,470 F&R Dedicated Funds

PRIOR FY -
CURRENT YTD
ANNUAL MONTH YTD ACTUAL Thr ough

APPROPRIATED | ACTIVITY | 11/30/2022 |11/30/2021
Interest Earned 900 0 3,131 128
Gifts/Donations Fire & Rescue 0 0 0 0
Transfer from General Fund 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Projects Fund Revenues 900 0 3,131 128

4 PRIOR FY -

CURRENT Y1D
ANNUAL MONTH YTD ACTUAL Through

EXPENDITURES | APPROPRIATED | ACTIVITY | 11/30/2022 |11/30/2021
Replace E911 Equip 56,322.00 0 0 0
Voting Machines 8,625.00 0 0 0
Sheriff Patrol Vehicle 53,739.77 0 0 68,394
Brush Truck - CH Vol FD 0 0 0 0
Transfer to Other Funds 17,626 16,726 16,726 175,054
Communications 20,000.00 0 0 0
Renovations-Co. Buildings 216,303.00 0 0 0
School Projects 27,000.00 0 0 0
Animal Shelter & Complex 0.00 0 0 0
Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures 399,616 16,726 16,726 243,448

SUSSEX COUNTY

NOVEMBER 2022

REVENUE/EXPENDITURE SUMMARY REPORT

Reserve Fund 135

FUND BALANCE as of 11/30/22 = $ 5,877,921

PRIOR FY -
CURRENT YD
ANNUAL MONTH YTD ACTUAL Through
REVENU APPROPRIATED | ACTIVITY | 11/30/2022 |11/30/2021
Interest 4,000 15,539 15,539 1,066
Transfer from General Fund 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 0
Total Reserve Fund Revenues 2,004,000 2,015,539 2,015,539 1,066
PRIOR FY -
CURRENT YD
ANNUAL MONTH YTD ACTUAL Through
EXPENDITURES =~ APPROPRIATED | AcriviTy | 11/30/2022 |11/30/2021
Transfer to General Fund 291,605 34,400 287,605 176,020
Transfer to VPA Fund 0 0 0 579
Transfer to Cap Proj Fund 0 0 0 0
Total Reserve Fund Expenditures 291,605 34,400 287,605 176,599

Consent Agenda - Page 5




BUILDING
INSPECTIONS
DEPARTMENT

@& @

Ee,

2) |/
| HBH PN
[][EE8

December 15, 2022
Monthly Report




BUILDING DEPARTMENT
MATT WESTHEIMER , MCP, CBO
BUILDING OFFICIAL

(434) 246-4390

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA
P. O. Box 1397 SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884
FAX (434) 246-8259

MEMORANDUM
DATE: December 1, 2022
TO: Richard Douglas, County Administrator
FROM: Matt Westheimer, Building Official

SUBJECT:  November 2022 - Monthly Report

Please accept this as the November 2022 update for the Building Department.
BUILDING ACTIVITY

e November 2022

Building Electrical Plumbing & | Mechanical Field Improvement Revenue
Permits Permits Sprinkler Permits Inspections Value Generated
Permits
8 13 5 5 77 $6,283,658.40 | $69,776.82

e November 2021

Building Electrical Plumbing & | Mechanical Field Improvement Revenue
Permits Permits Sprinkler Permits Inspections Value Generated
Permits
12 8 2 4 72 $1,079,501.00 | $3,790.16

e January 2022 — December 2022 (Yearly totals)

Building Electrical | Plumbing & | Mechanical Field Improvement Revenue
Permits Permits Sprinkler Permits Inspections Value Generated
Permits
124 153 54 86 930 $19,548,300.08 | $143,767.23
Inspections completed within 24 hours For July 100%
Plans reviewed within 10 business days For July 100%

SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV
Consent Agenda - Page 7




Sheriff’s Department

December 15, 2022
Monthly Report

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn




“ONE FAMILY, ONE MISSION,
ONE GOAL”

Sheriff Telephone 434-246-5000

Sussex County Sheriff’s Office Fax 434-246-5714
P. O. Box 1326 www.sussexsheriffva.com

Sussex, Virginia 23884 Email egiles@susova.us

Sussex County Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report
Month of November 2022

PATROL

CALLS FOR SERVICE
Type:

Sheriff

Fire

Rescue

Animal Control
Town of Wakefield
Traffic

TOTAL

COURTS

Court:

Circuit Court
General District
JDR Court

Court:

Circuit Court
General District
JDR Court

CIviL

Type:

Subpoenas Served
Jury Summoned
Criminal Warrants
DMV Notices
Levies

TDO

ECO

Other Civil Consent Agenda - Page 9




Fines and Forfeitures $53,543.32
Sheriff’s Fees $450.00
Courthouse Security $6,823.23

| Gallons of Fuel Used | 5,450.31 gallons

JAIL

During the month of November 2022, our average daily population was 30.90 inmates. The jail booked in
29 individuals during November 2022.

The classification of these inmates as reported by the Commonwealth of Virginia’s LIDS computer system is
as follows:

Pre- Trial 31 inmates, having been confined a total of 433 days
Sentenced Misdemeanant | 7 inmates, having been confined a total of 63 days
Sentenced Felons 10 inmates, having been confined a total of 242 days.
Others 10 inmates, convicted but not sentenced, etc.
Weekenders 2 inmates serving a misdemeanor sentence.

Transports of inmates for various reasons are listed below:

Court / Jail 18
Medical 4
Juvenile 0
Road Crew 0
TDO (Mental) 1
TOTAL 28

Consent Agenda - Page 10




PUBLIC WORKS
DEPARTMENT

BOS MEETING
December 15, 2022




Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 10/01/2022 12:00 AM to 10/31/2022 11:59 PM

Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)

Origin Material Tons
DC Special Misc-Tons 523.50
Origin Total 523.50
DE MSWT 171.39
DE Sandblast Grit-Tons 64.32
Origin Total 235.71
MD Sludge Indus-Tons 48.14
MD Sludgelndus-Tons 82.53
Origin Total 130.67
NC CDTC 49.67
NC MSW-Tons 0.37
NC MSWT 3,503.75
NC Special Misc-Tons 4,619.40
Origin Total 8,173.19
NY MSWT 51,786.18
Origin Total 51,786.18
PA MSWT 66.28
Origin Total 66.28
SUSS BUS MSWT 27.38
SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 1,052.31
Origin Total 1,079.69
SUSS RES CDTC 2.45
SUSS RES MSWT 369.41
Origin Total 371.86
VA Auto Fluff-Tons 734.95
VA CDTC 53.47
VA MSWT 21,833.04
VA Off Spec Food-Load 161.72
VA Sludgelndus-Tons 29.15
VA Special Misc-Tons 43.22
VA Spwaste Cover RGC-Tons 91.08
Origin Total 22,946.63
Totals 85,313.71

Consent Agenda - Page 10B




Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 11/01/2022 12:00 AM to 11/30/2022 11:59 PM

Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)

Origin Material Tons
DC Special Misc-Tons 452.31
Origin Total 452.31
DE MSWT 420.11
DE Sandblast Grit-Tons 28.13
DE Special Misc-Tons 22.79
Origin Total 471.03
MD CDTC 46.51
MD MSWT 104.68
MD Sludge Indus-Tons 44.36
MD Sludgelndus-Tons 59.06
Origin Total 254.61
NC CDTC 30.96
NC MSW-Tons 1.10
NC MSWT 3,853.54
NC Special Misc-Tons 5,306.88
Origin Total 9,192.48
NJ MSWT 84.98
Origin Total 84.98
NY MSWT 59,936.47
Origin Total 59,936.47
PA MSWT 60.96
Origin Total 60.96
SC MSWT 18.27
Origin Total 18.27
SUSS BUS MSWT 26.33
SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 983.85
Origin Total 1,010.18
SUSS RES MSWT 426.34
Origin Total 426.34
VA Auto Fluff-Tons 109.82
VA CDTC 491.69
VA DCLN 61.91
VA MSWT 20,706.93
VA Off Spec Food-Load 565.21
VA Sludgelndus-Tons 13.43
VA Special Misc-Tons 58.35
VA Spwaste Cover RGC-Tons 491.12
Origin Total 22,498.46
Totals 94,406.09

Consent Agenda - Page 10C




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda Item #2.05
Subject: Davenport Debt Capacity Analysis Budget Amendment

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Staff recommends payment of the attached invoice for services received from
Davenport & Company, LLC in the amount of $37,560.05 associated with debt capacity and debt
affordability analyses and deliverables prepared for the Board of Supervisors that were necessary
to determine the County’s capacity to move forward with various capital projects (administrative
building/historic courthouse renovation, fire/EMS stations, utility improvements, etc.). While
these costs are typically included as part of project debt-related fees, Davenport has requested
payment now or in multiple payments over 2023, since it is not anticipated that the County will
move forward with securing debt over the next several months (the board may elect to be
“reimbursed” for these fees as part of a debt application process). The attached resolution
provides the necessary funding to pay the Davenport invoice in its entirety.

Recommendation: Board approves resolution for payment.

Attachments: Draft Copy of Resolution #22-143 and Davenport Invoice Number PF22-234

REQUESTED ACTION: The Board approves Resolution #22-143 for payment to Davenport in the
amount of $37,560.05 for services.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

S. White
(Tie Breaker)




RESOLUTION #22-143
FY23 BUDGET AMENDMENT

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget
amendment for the General Government and Administration department be and hereby is made
for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. This resolution will appropriate local
reserve funds for the debt capacity and debt affordability analyses provided by Davenport.

FUND # 100
GENERAL FUND

REVENUE
Fund 135 Local Reserves $37,560
Total Revenues $37,560

EXPENDITURE

Fund 100 Administration $37,560
Total Expenditures $37,560

Susan B. Seward, Chairman
Sussex County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Richard Douglas, Clerk
Sussex County Board of Supervisors

Adopted this 15" day of December, 2022.



DAVENPORT

!"""l
PUBLIC FINANCE

Invoice

Date: November 15, 2022 Davenport Contact: Roland Kooch
Invoice Number: PF22-234 804-697-2906
Client: Sussex County, Virginia Accounting Information:  Ben Wilson
Attention: Mr. Richard Douglas 804-697-2920
Remit To (If Via Check) Remit To (If Via Wire)

Davenport & Company LLC Bank: Truist Bank, Richmond, VA
Attn: William R.B. Hershey Account Name: Davenport & Company LLC

Post Office Box 85678 ABA Routing Number: 061-000-104

Richmond, Virginia 23285-5678 Account Number: 001027956

Information With Wire: Please Reference Invoice Number

Please Reference Invoice Number Attention: Melinda Greene (804) 698-2632

Description of Services

Financial Advisory Services associated with Debt Capacity and Debt Affordability analyses and deliverables
prepared for the Board of Supervisors, as invoiced under the agreement dated April 29, 2019.

Amounts Due on Account

Financial Advisory Services $35,000.00
Additional Fee (Equal to 4% of Fee Amount) 1,400.00
Direct Expenses 1,160.05

= Includes hotel, meals, and mileage

Total Due: $37,560.05

Member NYSE | FINRA | SIPC Page 1



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda #2.06
Subject: Request for Leave Carryover

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: As the end of the year approaches, employees have been monitoring their leave
closely to avoid losing any at the end of the year due to the maximum carryover limits. Due to
the lack of staffing, some employees will forfeit many hours if not used by the end of the year.
This will affect employees that follow County leave policies-which include those under County
Administration and the Sheriff’s Department.

County Administration and the Sheriff’s Department are requesting an extension to use their
vacation/annual, holiday and compensatory leave until May 1°t.

Please note that the Sheriff’s Department has requested that leave for staff be recorded
internally effective January 31, 2023 pay period.

Recommendation: That the Board approves the request for extension to use vacation/annual,
holiday and compensatory leave until May 1°t.

Attachments: Copies of Sheriff Giles’ Letters

REQUESTED ACTION: That the Board approves the request for extension to use vacation/annual,
holiday and compensatory leave until May 1% for County Administration and the Sheriff’s
Department.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)

Consent Agenda - Page 14




“ONE FAMILY, ONE MISSION,
ONE GOAL”

s
T

ff E. L. Giles, Sr. Telephone 434-246-5000

Sussex County Sheriff's Office Fax 434-246-5714
P. O. Box 1326 www.sussexsheriffva.com

Sussex, Virginia 23884 Email egiles@susova.us

November 28, 2022

Mr. Richard Douglas, County Administrator
County of Sussex

P. O. Box 1397

Sussex, Virginia 23884

IN RE: Employee Leave Balances Extension

Dear Mr. Douglas:

[ submitted a letter on November 18, 2022, requesting that the Board of Supervisors approve an extension of
employee leave balances and annual leave and holiday leave that they would forfeit at the end of this

calendar year. | am requesting an extension of Comp. Leave as well. As you all know, we have been
short-staffed and employees have been unable to use their accrued time.

| am requesting for an extension to May 1, 2023 to allow employees to use their leave balances,

| appreciate your consideration into this matter. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Respectfully.

C A e

Ernest L. Giles. Sr., Sheriff
County of Sussex

cc: The Honorable Susan Seward. Board Chairman
Ms. Shilton Ricks. Assistant to the County Administrator
Ms. Louise Brucato, Payroll Division/
File

Consent Agenda - Page 15



“ONE FAMILY, ONE MISSION,
ONE GOAL”

Sheriff E. L. Giles, Sr. Telephone 434-246-5000
Sussex County Sheriff's Office Fax 434-246-5714
P. Q. Box 1326 www.sussexsheriffva.com
Sussex, Virginia 23884 Email egiles@susova.us

November 18, 2022

Mr. Richard Douglas, County Administrator
County of Sussex

P. O. Box 1397

Sussex, Virginia 23884

IN RE: Sheriff’s Office Leave Balances
Dear Mr. Douglas:
{ am respectfully requesting that the Board of Supervisors approve for the Sussex County Sheriff’s Office to

keep our employee’s leave balances internally as other Constitutional Officer’s do. [ am requesting this so
that the Sheriff’s Office will have current leave balance records for our employees.

Currently, we provide employees leave balances to the County’s Payroll Division along with salary and
overtime to be paid. Going forward, we wish to implement keeping employee leave records internally and
provide the Payroll Division with just salary and overtime information.

[ appreciate your consideration into this matter. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Respectfully,

County of Sussex

cc: The Honorable Susan Seward, Board Chairman
Ms. Shilton Ricks, Assistant to the County Administrator
Ms. Louise Brucato, Payroll Division
File

Consent Agenda - Page 16




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda Item #2.07
Subject: Draft FY24 Budget Planning Calendar

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Attached for your consideration is the Draft FY24 Budget Planning Calendar for the
upcoming FY24 fiscal year.

Recommendation:

Attachment: Draft Copy of FY24Budget Planning Calendar

REQUESTED ACTION: Staff approves FY24 Budget Planning Calendar or make adjustments as
needed.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

S. White
(Tie Breaker)

Consent Agenda - Page 17




November 2022
December 20, 2022

January 21, 2023

January - March 2023

January 26, 2023
January 30 - Feb. 10, 2023
February - April 2023
February 16, 2023
March 2, 2023

March 16, 2023

March 23, 2023

March 30, 2023

April 20, 2023

April 26, 2023

May 18, 2023
June 1, 2023

12/6/2022 4:49 PM

Sussex County
FY2024 Budget Planning Calendar

FY2024 Budget Planning

Distribution of Budget Schedules to County Departments and to
Outside Agencies with instructions from the County Administrator

Department Budget Schedules and External Agency requests due to
County Administration

Development of Revenue Estimates with Treasurer, Commissioner &
Finance

Planning Session/BOS Retreat

County Administrator Budget Work Sessions with Departments
Preparation of Proposed Operating Budget and 5-Year CIP
Departmental “Big Ticket” Presentations — Constitutional Officers
Departmental “Big Ticket” Presentations - Administration

Budget Work Session - Health Insurance & Schools

Budget Work Session - Revenue & Expenditures

Budget Work Session - External Agencies

Present FY2024 Proposed Operating Budget and 5-Year CIP to BOS
Advertise FY2024 Proposed Budget and CY2023 Tax Rates
FY2024 Budget Public Hearing

Adoption of the FY2024 Operating Budget, FY2024 — FY2027 CIP and
Calendar Year 2024 Tax Rates

Consent Agenda - Page 18



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda Item #2.08
Subject: DMV Select Revenue & FYE Budget Amendment Resolutions

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Treasurer Cox has requested, and the County Administrator is in agreement, that
funds be allocated from future DMV-related revenue (estimated to be approximately
$32,000/year) to provide a salary supplement for her staff to provide the DMV Select services.
Presently two staff member salaries are less than a customer service position salary at a DMV full
service center. The DMV Select opened on October 11t providing residents of Sussex County
access to selected DMV services through the Treasurer’s office, and has been well received to
date. As you may recall, the state requires at least 80 percent of the revenues generated shall
be appropriated by Sussex County to the Treasurer to compensate for the additional work
involved with processing transactions, so this request is consistent with the state requirement.

Since the DMV Select has been only been operational since October, it is requested that reserve
funds be used to provide this supplement through the current fiscal year. The attached
resolution provides $18,750 in local reserves for a supplement retroactive to October 1%t

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the attached resolutions (#22-146A & #22-
146B) appropriating local reserves to provide for a local supplement for Treasurer staff providing
DMV Select services retroactive to October 1, 2022.

Attachments: Copies of Resolution #22-146A DMV Select Revenue & #22-146B FYE23 Budget
Amendment

REQUESTED ACTION: Board approves Resolutions #22-146A & #22-146B appropriating local
reserves to provide for a local supplement for Treasurer staff providing DMV Select services
retroactive to October 1, 2022

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

S. White

(Tie Breaker)

Consent Agenda — Page 19




SUSSEX COUNTY RESOLUTION

At a Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex held at the Courthouse
therefore, on the 15 day of December 2022.

PRESENT: VOTE:
Susan B. Seward, Chair

Wayne O. Jones, Vice Chair

C. Eric Fly, Sr.

Alfred G. Futrell

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

Debbie P. Jones

RESOLUTION #22-146A

WHEREAS, DMV Select opened on October 11, 2022, providing residents of Sussex County
access to selected DMV services through the Treasurer’s office; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with FY23-24 State Biennial Budget, at least 80 percent of the
revenues generated shall be appropriated by Sussex County (“County”) to the Office of the
Treasurer to compensate the Office for the additional work involved with processing
transactions; and

WHEREAS, to ensure employees in the Treasurer’s Office are adequately compensated for the
extra duties, the Treasurer and County agree that 100 percent the first $25,000 in revenue will be
provided to the County and said funds shall be used to supplement the salaries and fringe
benefits of employees in the Treasurer’s Office; and

WHEREAS, any remaining revenue shall be divided with 80 percent appropriated to the
Treasurer’s Office to support the costs associated with running DMV Select, and 20 percent to
the County; and

WHEREAS, this formula shall apply retroactively to October 1, 2022.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors for Sussex County,
Virginia, as follows:

81. That 100 percent of the first $25,000 in revenue will be provided to the County and said

funds shall be used to supplement the salaries and fringe benefits of employees in the Treasurer’s
Office; and

82. Any remaining revenue shall be divided between the parties with 80 percent appropriated to
the Treasurer’s Office and 20 percent to the County; and

83. This formula shall be retroactive to October 1, 2022.

Consent Agenda - Page 20



Approved by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors and effective this 15" day of December
2022.

By:

Susan Seward, Chair

Attest:

Clerk to the Board

Consent Agenda - Page 21



RESOLUTION #22-146B
FYE23 BUDGET AMENDMENT

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget
amendment for the Treasurer’s Office be and hereby is made for the period of July 1, 2022 through
June 30, 2023. This resolution will appropriate local reserve funds to the Treasurer’s Office for
DMV Select salary supplements.

REVENUE
Fund 135 Local Reserves $18,750
Total Revenues $18,750

EXPENDITURE

Fund 100 Treasurer’s Office $18,750
Total Expenditures $18,750

Susan B. Seward, Chairman
Sussex County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Richard Douglas, Clerk
Sussex County Board of Supervisors

Adopted this 15" day of December 2022.

Consent Agenda - Page 22



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Recognition #3.01
Subject: Presentation — Improvement Association Head Start Performance

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Staff from the Improvement Association will be in attendance with the Head Start
students to sing Christmas Carols.

Recommendation: N/A

Attachment: N/A

ACTION: N/A

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)

Recognition - Page 1




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Recognitions #3.02

Subject: RESOLUTION: Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley 90t Birthday

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Per Supervisor Fly’s request, the Board approved this resolution a previous Board meeting
recognizing Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley on her 90" birthday on September 27th. Ms. Seeley has spent the
majority of her adult life in Sussex County. She has been dedicated to the teaching of music to hundreds of
children and citizens in the County.

Supervisor Fly would like to take this opportunity to thank and recognize Mrs. Seeley for the selfless giving of
herself to provide peace and inspiration to the children and citizens of Sussex County.

A family member and or friend will be present to accept the resolution.

Recommendation:

Attachment: A copy of the resolution celebrating Mrs. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley

ACTION: None

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

S. White
(Tie Breaker)

Recognition - Page 2




Resolution

Recognizing
Ms. Nan Ellen Bland Seeley

Now, let it be known that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors do hereby adopt this resolution
on this Thursday, October 20, 2022 to celebrate the 90th birthday of Nan Ellen Bland Seeley who
has brought great joy and happiness to so many youth and adults in Sussex County.

On September 27, 1932, Nan Ellen Bland Seeley was born in Charlottesville, Virginia to Reverend
Lineous Preston Bland Jr. and Mrs. Ethel Price Heckman Bland. Under the guidance and
nurturing of her parents, family and friends, Nan Ellen Bland Seeley would grow in stature and
spiritual strength in preparation for her life long mission of serving others and bringing joy to the
world in many ways and with the many talents she was given by God.

Furthermore, let it be known across Sussex County that Mrs. Seeley would pursue and excel in
her educational endeavors and graduated from Longwood College in 1954, the third oldest public
college in Virginia and would embark on a life long mission to teach music to God’s children.

Once again God would move His mighty hand and prepare the path that would allow Mrs. Seeley
to spend the majority of her adult life in Sussex County, making life better for each of us.

Let it be known that on June 16, 1956 Nan Ellen Bland would marry Walter Clifton Seeley Jr. and
out of this blessed union, Nan Ellen Bland Seeley would grow her family with the birth of three
sons, Mark Evans Seeley, Scott Preston Seeley and Jeffrey Anderson Seeley.

Now let it be declared that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors does hereby recognize the
great contributions that Nan Ellen Bland Seeley has and continues to provide to the County of
Sussex through her selfless community service and her inspiring dedication to the teaching of
music to the children and citizens of Sussex County.

We further recognizes that Mrs. Seeley has taught and inspired hundreds of children and adults
to learn and discover the joy of music and to embrace the inter and outward peace that can only
be experienced through the gift of music. In this we can truly say that Nan Ellen Bland Seeley has
brought peace to an unsettled world fulling the promise, “blessed are the peacemakers for they
shall be called the children of God”

Therefore, Nan Ellen Bland Seeley, we the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County along with
her citizens do thank God and recognize that you are a gift from Him to us and we thank you for
the many gifts you have given to all who have lived and who will live in our great County.

Therefore, we the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County, do put our hands to paper and order

the clerk of this Board to spread this resolution across the minutes of this County so that all may
know and celebrate the 90th birthday of Nan Ellen Bland Seeley.

Recognition - Page 3



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Recognition #3.03

Subject: Airfield 4-H Conference Center Update — Millard Stith & Kathy Guindon

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Mr. Millard Stith, the former interim Director of the Airfield 4-H Conference, will be
in attendance to provide an update and to introduce Dr. Kathy Guindon, the Center Director .

Recommendation: N/A

Attachment: N/A

ACTION: N/A

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)

Recognition - Page 4




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Recognition #3.04

Subject: Resolution: Recognition of Mr. Charles “Dan” Hudson Retirement — Sussex Sheriff’s
Office

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Staff received a request from Sheriff Giles to have the Board of Supervisors to
recognize and adopt a resolution for Mr. Charles “Dan” Hudson—after serving 26 combined years
in the public service sector of Law Enforcement.

Fellow co-workers in the Sheriff’s office, the Board, County Administration and county staff
would like to congratulate Mr. Hudson on this major accomplishment of retiring.

Recommendation: That the Board approves and adopts the resolution honoring Mr. Charles
“Dan” Hudson on his retirement.

Attachment: Copy of the Resolution #22-147

ACTION: That the Board approves and adopts the resolution honoring Mr. Charles “Dan” Hudson

on his retirement.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)

Recognition - Page 5




Resolution #22-147

In Recognition of the Retirement
Charles “Dan” Hudson

WHEREAS, Charles “Dan” Hudson began his career in the corrections
field prior to joining Sussex County Sheriff’s office on September 1, 1997;
and

WHEREAS, on June 2, 2000, Mr. Hudson resigned to work for the
County of Surry with Sheriff Brown as a Patrol Deputy; and

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2003, he returned to the County of
Sussex as a Patrol Deputy until he rose through the ranks; and

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2020, Mr. Hudson was promoted to
Sergeant;

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2022, Sergeant Hudson officially retired
from the Sussex County’s Sheriff's Office with a combined 26 years of
service in the public service sector of Law Enforcement.

BE IT RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, by
this recognition, hereby commend and extend our appreciation to Mr.
Charles “Dan” Hudson on his retirement with best wishes for many happy
and productive years in the future.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this
Resolution be spread upon the minutes of this Board meeting this 15" day
of December 15, 2022.

Susan B. Seward, Chair
Board of Supervisors

Recognition - Page 6



“ONE FAMILY, ONE MISSION,
ONE GOAL”

iff E. L. Giles, Sr. Telephone 434-246-5000

Sussex County Sheriff’s Office Fax 434-246-5714
P. O. Box 1326 www.sussexsheriffva.com

Sussex, Virginia 23884 Email egiles@susova.us

Retirement of Charles “Dan” Hudson

Charles “Dan” Hudson began his career in the corrections field prior to joining the Sussex County Sheriff’s
on September 1, 1997 until his resignation on June 2, 2000 to work for Sheriff Brown as a Patrol Deputy

in the County of Surry. On September 8, 2003, Charles “Dan” Hudson returned to the County of Sussex as a
Patrol Deputy until he rose through the ranks where he was promoted to Sergeant on January 1, 2020.

Sgt. Hudson officially retired from the Sussex County Sheriff’s Office on November 1, 2022, with a
combined 26 years of service in the public service sector of Law Enforcement.

Recognition - Page 7




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Recognition #3.05
Subject: Recognition of Deputy Bonner for Community Assistance

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Chairwoman Seward will recognize Deputy Bonner for his quick response and life
saving measures involving a resident in the Waverly area on October 11t™. A copy of an email
sent to the County Administrator from the resident that details this medical incident and
expresses her gratitude to Deputy Bonner and Lifestar, is attached for your review.

Recommendation: No action requested

Attachment: Copy of email from resident

ACTION:

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)

Recognition - Page 8




(P

Jessica Harrison

From: Richard Douglas <rdouglas@sussexcountyva.gov>
Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2022 7:19 PM EGEIVIE
To: Ernest Giles; Reid Foster |
Subject: Fwd: Contact Form from Brenda Morris O0CT 17 2022
Sussex Sheriff's Office
Administration
Get QOutlook for i0S

From: sussexcountyva.gov <noreply@sussexcountyva.gov>
Sent: Sunday, October 16, 2022 6:43 PM

To: Richard Douglas

Subject: Contact Form from Brenda Morris

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not follow guidance, click links, or open
attachments unless you know the content is safe.

iPlasmaCMS Contact Form Message
Generated on October 16, 2022

Name: Brenda Morris
Phone: 804.720.8531
Email: Greensupt@aol.com

Message: Dear Mr Douglas:

In the early morning hours of Tuesday, October 11, my husband dialed 911 for help because I was having heart pain. The
response from Deputy Bonner was immediate, followed very closely by The Waverly Rescue Squad. Their prompt arrival
and assessment and administration of life saving techniques of heart attack is the only reason I am here today. They
transported me to the helicopter and that itAEUR(tm)s crew and their wise decisions brought me to Chippenham Hospital,
where the care was seamless, prompt and successful. I cannot tell you how grateful and proud I am of Deputy Bonner and
Jenny and CIiff, with the Waverly Rescue Squad. Their service is priceless. Great decisions led to life saving, I am
forever grateful.

Just one final note that is of utmost importance, the Walnut Hill Road sign we discussed in June, has not been installed to
date. The crew confirmed it missing, but GPS brought them to me.

Again, I am very proud of the Sussex SheriffiAEUR(tm)s Department and The Waverly Rescue Squad. They are the best!

IP ADDRESS: 141.193.239.128

USER AGENT: Mozilla/5.0 (iPad; CPU OS 15_6 like Mac OS X) AppleWebKit/605.1.15 (KHTML, like Gecko)
GSA/233.0.478398274 Mobile/15E148 Safari/604.1

Recognition - Page 9



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Presentation #3.06
Subject: Clenera/Blackwater Solar Project Overview — Ed Rumler, Clenera

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Ed Rumler, Development Manager for Clenera of Boise, Idaho, will provide an
overview of his company and a planned application for the Blackwater solar project near
Wakefield. Mr. Rumler briefed the Planning Commission at its December 5% regular meeting.

Recommendation: No action requested at this time.

Attachment: Copy of Presentation

ACTION: N/A

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)

Recognition - Page 10




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Public Hearing Item #4.01
Subject: Conditional Use Permit #2022-04, Howell Godfrey, Jr., Applicant

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: The applicant seeks a conditional use permit (CUP) to operate a public shooting
range on approximately 20 acres of land. The property is currently owned by the Town of
Waverly and is the site of the former Waverly airport.

Recommendation: The Planning Commission held a public on the application on November 7,
2022 and recommended approval contingent upon the recommended conditions.

Attachments: See attached staff report and application documents.

ACTION:

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)




County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2022-04

STAFF REPORT
APPLICATION SUMMARY:
Project: The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range
Location: The property is located on the north side of Rt. 460
(General Mahone Highway), approximately 2 miles
northwest from the Town of Waverly.
Tax Parcel Number(s): Portion of Tax Parcel 16-A-1
Proposal: Outdoor Shooting Range as a commercial business
Applicant: Howell Godfrey Jr.
4076 Spring Grove
Claremont, VA 23899
APPLICATION:

The applicant, Howell Godfrey Jr. under CUP #2022-04 seeks a conditional use permit for
a shooting range on approximately 20 acres of land. The intent is to have an outdoor
shooting range that is available for public use. The property is located on the north side of
Rt. 460 approximately 2 miles northwest from the Town of Waverly.

ELECTION DISTRICT:
Blackwater Election District
LOCATION:

The location for the proposed shooting range is on tax parcel 16-A-1 which includes 20
acres out of a 167-acre parcel. To the north, there is mostly forested or agricultural lands.
To the south, there is Butler’s Towing & Repair and a communication tower. To the west,
there is Garrison Enterprise, John’s Auto Body, and two nearby residences. To the east, the
property is adjacent to Sussex Shooting Sports, Emanuel Tires, and forested lands.

BACKGROUND:

The applicant has entered into a purchase agreement to purchase 40 acres of tax parcel 16-A-1,
which is currently zoned for General Agriculture (A-1). The applicant plans to utilize this site to
open a publicly available outdoor shooting range. On August 18, 2022, the County amended the
Zoning Ordinance for the A-1 district to require a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for shooting clays,

1|Page



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2022-04

field and pistol ranges. Therefore, the applicant will need to obtain a conditional use permit in order
to proceed his plans for this specific use.

DESCRIPTION:

The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to operate an outdoor shooting range
as a commercial business to be available to the public. They will offer lane rentals for
firearms such as handguns, rifles, and shotguns. The shooting range anticipates having 3
employees on staff which will be Certified Range Safety Officers. The hours of operation
will vary depending on the amount of daylight. The hours of operation would be typically
10:00 am to 6:00 pm for Wednesday & Thursday and 9:00 am to 6:00 pm for Friday
through Sunday.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW:

The current Comprehensive Plan future land use designation for this property is Industrial.
Future industry and investment should build on existing industrial development along U.S. 460 and
near Cabin Point Road north and west of the Town of Waverly. This area contains existing facilities
(landfill, composting facility, and feed mill) and land being actively marketed for commercial
and/or industrial investment (Sussex mega site and Cabin Point site).

ORDINANCE REVIEW:

The current zoning designation for this property is A-1. The district is established to protect
land and property values, ground water and surface water quality, and other resources. The
intent is to provide for the continued security of the county’s agricultural sector by
encouraging the orderly and responsible growth of its livestock, dairy, and poultry industry.
Limited residential development is anticipated in these areas.

The zoning district only allows this use through a CUP. If the CUP is granted, the applicant
will be required to submit a site plan for staff approval prior to construction of any new
site improvements, including building expansion.

STAFF CONCLUSIONS:

Strengths:

1. There are no residences immediately adjacent to the 20 acre site to be developed as
part of the shooting range.

2. The use provides an opportunity to bring in a new commercial business.

Provides a recreational activity for public use in the form of shooting sports.

4. There are no known publicly available shooting ranges within a 30 miles radius.

(8]



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2022-04

Weaknesses:

1. Located adjacent to a similar “private” use- Sussex Shooting Sports.

2. The use has the potential to create a noise impact as proposed with shooting to occur
completely outdoors.

3. The proposed use is less than 200° to a major roadway (Route 460)

AGENCY/DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:

Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ):

In response to the request below, there is not enough information provided for DEQ staff
to determine if there are applicable state environmental laws and regulations for this
proposal. The applicant for the local zoning conditional use permit should consult with
the DEQ - Piedmont Regional Office to determine if environmental permitting is
required. As a reminder if land disturbing activities are proposed, erosion and sediment
control plans and Construction Stormwater General Permit coverage may be required prior
to commencing construction activities. Additionally, any proposed impacts to surface
waters may require a Virginia Water Protection Permit from DEQ.

Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT):

1) The existing entrance that is proposed for use as the site main entrance shall be
improved to accommodate 2-way traffic and shall meet the moderate volume
commercial entrance design standard as shown in Figure 4-15 of Appendix F of the
VDOT Road Design Manual.

2) Sight distance is sufficient for exiting vehicles, however, we recommend clearing of
brush and small trees in order to make the entrance more visible and to provide increased
sight distance.

3) A new commercial entrance permit shall be obtained by the applicant from the
Department for the proposed site access.

Virginia Department of Health (VDH):

If they planning to construct any facilities that would require a well and septic system,
they will need to submit plans to VDH to review.

Sussex County Erosion and Sediment Control Program:

If the project disturbs over 10,000 square feet, Erosion and Sediment Control Plans will
be required for County review and approval, and issuance of a land disturbance permit.

Public Safety:

The Public Safety has stated that he is not in favor of the project unless there is a berm for them
to be shooting into.

3|’F¢."f'§.'



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2022-04

» Sussex Service Authority

Question about the use of restrooms or portable potties. What does this do for future
development of the remaining property?

THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning Commission recommends approval of the conditional use permit contingent
with the following conditions:

1.

2.
3.

10.

The hours of operation shall be 10:00 am to 6:00 pm for Wednesday & Thursday
and 9:00 am to 6:00 pm for Friday through Sunday.

The shooting range itself shall have a minimum setback of 300 feet from Rt. 460.
The applicant shall maintain an undisturbed natural or man-made sound
buffer/barrier a minimum distance of 200’ around the entire perimeter of the
shooting area. The buffer shall be enhanced and/or created where insufficient or
non-existent, specifically along the front of the property parallel with Rt. 460 to add
an additional safety measure and to lessen the noise impact.

Impact berms shall be installed at a minimum height of 20’ for rifle and 16> for
pistols as shown on the conceptual site plan dated 6/6/22, to stop any misdirected
rounds that may tend to travel slightly to one side or the other either by accident or
ricochet. A side berm shall be added on the east side of the rifle range to provide
for additional safety. Side berms shall be a minimum of 15°.

All berms shall be free from rocks, stones or objects that may tend to increase the
possibility of ricochets.

The surface of the entire range shall be relatively clear of any objects, stones, or
excessive growth that may tend to enhance the possibility of ricochets, or create
bad footing conditions. The entire range shooting area shall be relatively flat and
level.

A line of target brackets or holders shall be placed on the target area. Materials
shall be designed so as not to create any ricochet hazard.

The target line shall be placed no more than 20° in from of the impact berm. There
shall be a space between each target bracket or holder, approximately equal to the
width of one target. The top of the targets, when attached to the brackets or holder,
should be approximately 6’ off the ground and in a relatively straight and level line.
The firing line shall be clearly marked on the ground surface across the entire width
of each firing range. The numbered distance shall be placed on both sides of each
firing line to indicate the distance from the firing line to the target.

There shall be an audible sound system to amplify voice commands. The sound
system shall enable the range officer to project loud and clear voice commands to
all shooters during actual shooting exercises. An adequate communications system
shall be established to allow all shooting officers, and other staff to communicate
with one another, and should be conveniently located to minimize the loss of time
between an emergency and the call for assistance. The system shall also be capable
of contacting the appropriate assistance in case of injuries or other unforeseen
emergencies.



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2022-04

11. A control tower shall be placed at the center point of the range, approximately 15
to 20 yards behind the farthest firing line, and provide the range office with a clear
unobstructed view of all shooters and the range personnel. The floor decking shall
be at least 6’higher than the ground. A flag pole, for displaying a red flag or banner
whenever the range is in use, shall be installed close to or attached directly to the
control tower. The top of this pole should be at least 26 higher than ground level.
The flag or banner should be large enough to be conspicuously viewed from any
location in the range area.

12. Adequate lighting shall be provided as determined by the Zoning Administrator.

13. A rest or break area shall be available in a location that is safe from any firing line.

14. A security fence shall be installed to keep other pedestrians and vehicles from
entering the shooting area while in use.

15. Adequate parking shall be provided as determined by the Zoning Administrator.

16. The range shall contain some form of storage shed or field office. The structure
shall be relatively secure for the storage of target materials.

17. Any future site or building improvements to the site will require site plan review.

18. The existing entrance that is proposed for use as the main entrance to the site shall
be improved to accommodate 2-way traffic and shall meet the moderate volume
commercial entrance design standard as shown in Figure 4-15 of Appendix F of the
VDOT Road Design Manual.

19. The area around entrance shall be cleared of brush and small trees in order to
make the entrance more visible and to provide increased sight distance to the
satisfaction of VDOT.

20. A new commercial entrance permit shall be obtained by the applicant from the
Department for the proposed site entrance.

21. The site shall provide a toilet facility for men and women, handwashing stations,
and potable water available for its employees prior to full operation.

22. Suitable access to the range site shall be provided for emergency vehicles.
Emergency personnel should be familiar with the access road(s) and location of the
range site. Additionally, emergency personnel shall be notified of the hours of
operation for the shooting range.

23. Follow EPA Best Management Practices regarding Lead Management and
Reclamation.

Following the Planning Commission Meeting:

Since the Planning Commission meeting, concerns were raised with regard to allowing this type
of use to run indefinitely with the property. Staff discussed this concern with the applicant
regarding adding a condition that would limit the CUP to 2 years to construct the shooting range
or the CUP will be void. The applicant agreed; therefore, staff recommends adding condition #24,
as follows:

Condition #24. The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range shall be in full operation within 2 years
of obtaining the CUP or the CUP shall be null and void.

S|Page



County of Sussex, Virginia CUP #2022-04

ATTACHMENTS:

Application

Statement of Reasons Letter
Property Description
Conceptual Plan

Standard Operating Procedure

VVVVY

6|Pa

[a,+]



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
23116 Mehemn Road
COURTLAND, VIRGINIA 23837

September 27, 2022

Michael Poarch
Community Development

Sussex County
P. O. Box 1397
Sussex, VA 23884

RE: Blackwater Outdoer Sheoting Sports
TM #16-A-1
General Mahone Highway (Rt. 460)
Sussex County

The Residency has completed its review of the submitted Conditional Use Permit application dated
September 16, 2022 and received by the VDOT Land Development Office September 21, 2022 for the
Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Sports. We submit the following comments and recommendations:

1) The existing entrance that is proposed for use as the site main entrance shall be improved to
accommodate 2-way traffic and shall meet the moderate volume commercial entrance design
standard as shown in Figure 4-15 of Appendix F of the VDOT Road Design Manual.

2) Sight distance is sufficient for exiting vehicles, however, we recommend clearing of brush and
small trees in order to make the entrance more visible and to provide increased sight distance.

3) A new commercial entrance permit shall be obtained by the applicant from the Department for
the proposed site access.

Information about Land Use Permitting as well as the required forms can be found on the VDOT
website at:

http://www.virginiadot.org/business/bu-landUsePermits.asp.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (757) 346-3068 or Joshua.Norris(@vdot.virginia.gov.

Sincerely,

VirginiaDOT.org
WE KEEP VIRGINIA MOVING



Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Sports | 2
September 27, 2022

Joshua R. Norris

Land Use Engineer

Virginia Department of Transportation
Franklin Residency

VirginiaDOT.org
WE KEEP VIRGINIA MOVING



Re: Review of Conditional Use Permit Application for Outdoor Shooting Range

Robb, Jaime Bauer <jaime.robb@deq.virginia.gov>
Wed 9/21/2022 8:46 PM

To: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not follow guidance, click links, or open attachments unless you
know the content is safe.

In response to the request below, there is not enough information provided for DEQ staff to determine if
there are applicable state environmental laws and regulations for this proposal. The applicant for the
local zoning conditional use permit should consult with the DEQ - Piedmont Regional Office to determine
if environmental permitting is required. As a reminder if land disturbing activities are proposed, erosion
and sediment control plans and Construction Stormwater General Permit coverage may be required prior
to commencing construction activities. Additionally, any proposed impacts to surface waters may require
a Virginia Water Protection Permit from DEQ.

Respectfully,

_jaime Robb

Deputy Regional Director | DEQ - Piedmont Regional Office | 804-527-5086 | jaune.robbia deq,virginia. gov

On Wed, Sep 21, 2022 at 4:25 PM Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.goy> wrote:
Good Afternoon,

We received a conditional use permit application that will be presented to the Planning Commission on November 7,
2022. As part of the review, we wanted to gather initial feedback or comments from each respective agency or
department.

Brief Description

The application of the Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range is for a conditional use permit to develop an outdoor
shooting range. The property is located on General Mahone Highway (Route 460) where the old Waverly Airport use to
be.

Please see the attached documents for your review and reference. Please provide any comments or feedback.

Sincerely,

M. Poarch
County Planner
Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department



Review of Conditional Use Permit Application for Outdoor Shooting Range

Garcia, Karen <karen.garcia@vdh.virginia.gov>
Mon 9/26/2022 1:38 PM

To: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not follow guidance, click links, or open attachments uniess you
know the content is safe.

Good Afternoon Mr. Poarch
| am the new EHS for Sussex HD, Courtney sent me the plans for the Shooting Range at Waverly.

Would you please confirm with the project's owner if they are planning to construct any facilities that would require a
well and septic system? If so, they need to submit plans to VDH to review.

Let me know if you have any questions

Thank you.

Karen Garcia
Environmental Health Specialist Sr.
Virginia Department of Health, Crater Health District

Sussex County/Surry County Health Departments

20103 Princeton Rd, Sussex, VA 23884 (Sussex Office)
Sussex Office Number: {434) 246-8611, ext, 17
**Office days: Mondays, Wednesdays, & Fridays

474 Colonial Trail West, Dendron, VA 23839 (Surry Office)
Susry Office Number: (757) 294-3185, ext. 10
**Office days: Tuesdays & Thursdays



Re: Review of Conditional Use Permit Application for Outdoor Shooting Range

Frank Irving <firving@ssa-va.org>
Thu 10/20/2027 10:06 AM
To: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not follow guidange, click links, or open attachments unless you know the content is safe

Michael

The application does not say what they are going to use for restrooms. Do you know if they are going to simply have a portable potty cut their or not
Also am curious to know what does this do for future development of the remaining property.

Sussex Sporting Sports was owned by the Dances who own Dances Sporting Goods in Colonial Heights.

Thanks
Frank

On Oct 20. 2022, at 9:18 AM, Michaet Poarch <mpoarch®sussexcountyva.gov> wrote:
Good Morning,

| just wanted to follow up to see if you have any comments in regards to this Conditional Use Permit Application. As a side note, do any of you have any information about the
Sussex Sporting Sports that is on Route 4607 if you do, please let me know.

Sincerely,

M. Poarch
County Planner
Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department

From: Michael Poarch

Sent: Wednesday, September 21, 2022 4:24 PM

To: Fowler, Jason <jazan, fawler@vidot.virginla.goy>; Jaime Bauer Robb <jaime.robb@deq virginia.gov>; Reid Foster <rioster@sussexcountyva,gav>; 'Frank Irving' <firving@ssa-va.org>; Courtney
Thomas <Courtnev.thomas®vdh.virginia.gov>

Cc: Beverly Walkup <Lwilkup @ susiemoy ntyvi.6ov>

Subject: Review of Conditional Use Permit Application for Outdoor Shooting Range

Good Afternoon,

We received a conditional use permit application that will be presented te the Planning Commission on November 7, 2022, As part of the review, we wanted to gather initial
feedback or comments from each respective agency or department.

The application of the Blackwater Qutdoor Shooting Range is for a conditional use permit to develep an outdoor shooting range. The property is located on General Mahone
Highway (Route 460) where the old Waverly Airport use to be,

Please see the attached documents for your review and reference. Please provide any comments or feedback.

Sincerely,

M. Poarch

County Planner

Sussex County Planning & Zoning Depanment

<CUP #2022-04- Blackwater Outdoor Shooling Range.pdi> <Location of subject property.pdf>



RE: Review of Conditional Use Permit Application for Outdoor Shooting Range

Reid Foster <rfoster@sussexcountyva.gov>
Thu 1072072022 10:16 AM

To: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
I am no in favor of this. There is no berm for them to be shooting into. Dances Sporting goods owns the Sussex Sporting Sports

From: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>

Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 9:18 AM

To: 'Frank krving' <firving@ssa-va.org>; Reid Foster <rfoster@sussexcountyva.gov>
Subject: Fw: Review of Conditional Use Permit Application for Qutdoor Shooting Range
Importance: High

Good Morning,

| just wanted to follow up to see if you have any comments in regards to this Conditional Use Permit Application. As a side
note, do any of you have any information about the Sussex Sporting Sports that is on Route 4607 If you do, please let me
know.

Sincerely,

M. Poarch
County Planner
Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department

From: Michael Poarch

Sent: Wednesday, September 21, 2022 4:24 PM

To: Fowler, Jason <jason.fowler@vdot.virginia.gov>; laime Bauer Robb <jaime.robb@deq.virginia.gov>; Reid Foster
<rioster@sussexcountyya.gov>; ‘Frank Irving' <firving@ssa-va.org>; Courtney Thomas <Courtney.thomas®@ydh.virginia.gov>
Cc: Beverly Walkup <bwalkup@sussexcountyva,goy>

Subject: Review of Conditional Use Permit Application for Outdoor Shooting Range

Good Afternoon,

We received a conditional use permit application that will be presented to the Planning Commission on November 7, 2022,
As part of the review, we wanted to gather initial feedback or comments from each respective agency or department.

Brief Description
The application of the Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range is for a conditional use permit to develop an outdoor shooting
range. The property is located on General Mahone Highway (Route 460) where the old Waverly Airport use to be.

Please see the attached documents for your review and reference. Please provide any comments or feedback.

Sincerely,

M. Poarch
County Planner
Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department



“Good Things Are Happening in Sussex Couniy!”
Sussex County, Virginia
Planning and Zoning Department

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST FOR CONDITIONAL PERMITAPPLICATIONS

In conjunction with Article XV, Administration and Enforcement of the Sussex County Zoning
Ordinance, as amended, the following information shall be submitted for a Conditional Use Permit
Application. Please note that it is the applicant’s responsibility to ensure that the application is in
compliance with all Federal, State and County regulations.

No application for a Conditional Use shall be certified as complete unless the following information
is provided, unless the Zoning Administrator reduces the number of required copies.

1. Fifteen (15) copies of the original, executed application and one (1} original executed
application. Both the applicant(s) and the property owner(s) must have their signature(s)
notarized on page No. 2 of the application.

2. The appropriate fees have been submitted with the application. Checks should be made
payable to: Treasurer, Sussex County.

3. Fifteen (15) copies of a statement of the reasons for seeking such permit, and if applicable,
astatement of conditions.

4, Fifteen (15) copies) of a narrative description of the property which shall include the Tax
Parcel [dentification Number.

5. One (1) copy of the most recent deed(s) for the property(s) associated with the application.

6. A concept plan of the property showing all existing and proposed physical improvements
and such other information as is necessary to clearly indicate to the Planning Commission
and Board of Supervisors that adequate provisions shall be made for compliance with all
standards for that particular use and the extent of the property to be so used on a given
parcel or parcels. Such document shall be drawn to scale and shall include the following
information:

1. A vicinity map at a scale of no less than one (1) inch equals two thousand (2,000) feet

2. Title of drawing

3. Date of drawing

4. Existing wood line
5. North arrow

6. Scale bar

7.

Dimensions of property, iocation, size and elevation of existing buildings and proposed buildings,
roadways, sidewalks, parking and loading spaces, and landscaping.

8. Current zoning of parcel(s) to be rezoned, including tax map number(s) and owner(s)

9. Current zoning of adjacent parcel(s), including tax map number(s) and owner(s)

10. Street names including route number and width(s) of the right-of-way(s)

11. Fifteen (15) full size copies, with one (1) reduced 11-inch X 17-inch copy shall be submitted

12. Please note that additional information on the site layout may be requested by the

Zoning Administrator during the review process in order to more effectively review

the application and prepare the staff reports for the Planning Commission and Board

of Supervisors,



“Good Things Are Happening in Sussex County!”
Sussex County, Virginia
Planning and Zoning Departrent

7. Fifteen (15) copies of such supplemental material as may be necessitated by the proposal.

8. One (1) electronic copy of all application documents.

9. All real estate taxes must be paid and current at the time of submittal; otherwise, the
submittal will be refused at the counter. Proof of the most recent tax payment to the County
must accompany the application.

I, the undersigned, certify that this application is complete, accurate and contains all required and
requested information, documents and other submittals, and that all statements made herein are, to the
best of my knowledge, true and correct. | further certify that | have exercised due diligence to obtain
the most recent, complete and correct information available. I understand that any section not
completed in its entirety may delay processing of this application and the date of the Planning
Commission public hearing and that the submitial of a complete application does not guarantee the
application will be placed on the next available Planning Commission agenda.

Howell Percell Godfrey Jr.

Printed or Typed Name

AN, ﬁmgzwn Y/ 9/16/2022
ignature V Date




“Good Things Are Happening in Sussex County!”
Sussex County, Virginia
Planning and Zoning Department

APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT

This application should be used to petition for a permit for certain uses which, because of their unique characteristics or
potential impacts on adjacent land uses, are not generaily permitted in certain zoning districts as a matter of right, but
which may, under the right set of circumstances and conditions be acceptable in certain specific locations. The following
application requirements are consistent with the procedures set forth in Section 16-274, Public hearing on Conditional Use

Permit, of the Sussex County Zoning Ordinance, as amended.

A. APPLICATION:

Conditional Use Permit (Are applicant proposed conditions attached?): - Yes J:LNO

The proposed use or activity is listed as a conditional use in the A1 zoning district as per

Section Sec. 34-193  in Article i1l of the Sussex County Zoning Ordinance.

Proposed Use, Activity, or Type of Improvement: Commercial business - outdoor shooting range

Fair Market Value of Improvements? $ 100,000

B. PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Project Name: 1 he Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range

Property Address (if any): 4401 General Mahone Hwy Waverly, VA 23890

Election District: Blackwater

Comprehensive Plan Designation: Recreational

The use permit will apply to 20 acres out of 151 total acres
Tax Parcel Identification # 16-A-1 Numbser of actes to be effected: 20
Tax Parcel Identification # Number of acres to be effected:
Tax Parcel [dentification # Number of acres to be effected:

Proposed Utilities (check all that apply):  Public Water D_Private Well | |
Public Sewer Private Septic | |

Are there any deed restrictions on the property? _DYes No

(If yes, please attach a copy of the deed restrictions.)




C. APPLICATION INFORMATION:
Applicant(s) Name(s); Howell Godfrey Jr.

“Good Things Are Happening in Sussex County!”
Sussex County, Virgima
Planning and Zoning Depertment

Address; 4076 Spring Grove Ave

City, State, Zip Code: Claremonl, VA 238099

Email; howellgodfreyd3@gmail.com  pay No.:

Phone No.: 7579456285

Property Owner(s} Name(s): 1he Town of Waverly

Address: 119 Bank St
City, State, Zip Code: Waverly, VA 23850

Phone No.; {804) 834-2330

Email; @mcphaul@iown.waverlyva.us

Fax No.:

Applicants/Owners Affidavit (includi

Applicani: Howell Percell Godfrey Jr.
Printed or Typed Name

Applicant: c)j 7‘

complinnce with alt deed restrictions and covenants

This application must be signed by the owner(s) of the subject property or must have attached written evidence of

the owner's consent, which may be in the form of a hinding contract of sale with the owner's signature or a letter

signed by the owner(s), containing written authorization to act with full authority on the owner(s) behalf in fiting
this use permit application. Signing this application shafl certify the owner’s compliance with all deed restrictions

and covenants, and shall constitute the granting of authority of the County to enter onta the property
of conducting site analyses and complinnce with Federal, State and County regulations,

Signotur
County of Sussex., Commonwealth of Virginia

Mer: eesfe

the County of Sussex, Commenwealth of Virginia,
this_# ¢ dayof 46;;;:1../‘ 2022

Subscribed and sworn to before me ﬂ:@i g:g 2
» A Notary Publi¢ in and for

set\" -\.._,,..-.?“ﬁC)

e .
;{;Nolnry Public
. %

! =

ColffifibionExfres__ /2/3, /35
REG. 8 j«s
MY COMMISSION § 3
EXMRES S S
s Fo3

for the purpose

Owner: /}7’) 4 %A[b&t {

Pritiied or Typed Name

0t Date: £/31 /20 2. Owner: i/@ MIL/L Da«j /7,7—«@#2"

Signature

County of Sussex, Commonwealth of Virginia

Subscribed and swom to before me q , 7‘ ?/_b Q’Z
Mﬂt&}ﬁﬂﬂ&; A Notary Public in and for
the County of Susgex, Commonwealth of Vir inia,

,é{,‘ﬂ_&ﬁ) b[ T .20

this_ ] dayof

h)
Ween Ot e
Notary Public

My Commission Expires

DNV
\2)
."‘.1

S
.‘"humnl

c,“'4
",



“Good Things Are Happening in Sussex County!”
Sussex County, Virginia

Planning and Zoning Departrent
Owner: Owner:
Printed or Typed Name Printed or Typed Name
Owner: Date: Owner: Date:
Signature Signature

County of Sussex, Commonwealth of Virginia

Subscribed and sworn to before me

, A Notary Public in and for
the County of Sussex, Commonwealth of Virginia,
this day of , 20

County of Sussex, Commonwealth of Virginia

Subscribed and sworn to before me

. A Notary Public in and for
the County of Sussex, Commonwealth of Virginia,
this day of , 20

“_-ﬁotary Public

My Commission Expires

Notary Public

My Commission Expires




“Good Things Are Happening in Sussex County!”
Sussex County, Virginia
Planning and Zoning Department
COUNTY OF SUSSEX
DISCLOSURE OF REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS

Applicant Howell Percell Godfrey Jr.

Address 4076 Spring Grove Ave

Streel
Claremont VA 23899
City State Zip
REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS TO BE AFFECTED
Location or Address o “Deseription o

4 -(-)1 General Mahone Hwy Waverly, VA 23820

151 acres of woodlands

= — o
— — e ——
_—

OTHER OWNERS OF AFFECTED REAL ESTATE

{Not Required tor Corporation whose stock is traded on a national or lecal stock exchange or having more than 500

sharcholders.

Name of Individuals Corporation/Partnership Address
Business Association

The Town of Waverly, Inc

119 Bank St, Waverly, VA 23890

Does any member of the Susses County Planning Commission or governing body have any interest in such property. cither
individually. by ownership of stock in a corperation owning such land. partnership. as the bepeficiary ofa trust, or the

setthon of a res ovable trust, or whether o member of the impediate houschold of any member ol the Planaing Commission o
governing body has any such interest? Yes No

I yves. names of membaers:

E]

I do solemnly swear that the foregotng stawement(s) and attachmentsig). )
Applicani: Howelt Percell Godirey Jr. _ Applicant: y j
Printed or Ty ped Name

County of Sussex

Subseribed and swoern to belore me I)lar-u. jc‘:ﬂd 5(’6 5/::’ 4 // . 5
A Notary Public inand for the County o Susfex. Commonrweatth of H

A

re cgmplete, corrgg L and wrue. a
/i % Date: Q/H/)U L

Sigmefure I

g,

3 e e e W .
Commonwealth of Virgin 0\“;3(\9 mefsley"-‘f,,”

*a,

%,
“
., -
- ,

Lo . . . [4 5
Virginia. this__.3 { day ot ﬁtu‘? (s ¥ L0 R : , W gﬂ“}fm& {a
3 ', Kl
‘ ) ~ %%, ., e F
Ty <V e 5 lfm.’JZ@f/ o a O
L Aowry Phiblic 7 “u WE ALT
- . LT
My Commission Expires A2/ % JJ‘:»/



Vead Baove 3y 2053

THI3 DEED, mads thla ls&t day of November, 1934, by and between H., A. Gbey and Pesr)]
Gray, hia wife, Garland Gray and Agnes T. Grag, hils wife, and Elia"Y, Gray, parties of
the foret part, and the Town of Taverly, Incorporated, of Virginia, party of ths second

L

part.
WITHESSETH: that for and in consideration of the sum of nlne hunored six (§908.00)

dollars, cash in hand paid, receipt whereof im hercby acknowledged, the said parties of
the first part do hereby grant and convey; with General Warranty, unte the pald party

o4 - @l A

(7
Y pooreitds b ‘o o

of the second part, the following desoribed property, to-wit:
4all of that certsin plece or parcel of land looated in Waverly agistoriel Distriot,
Sussex County, Virginia, containing by estimation one hundred fifty one {151} scres,mora

or leas, known as the “"Waverly ilrport®, and deacribed as followa: beginaing at a point

s ’ﬂ 'aglkl’z:)

north of U. S. Route No, 460 where the western boundary of a tract of lend belonging to

-7

'the Virginia Portland Cement Company corasses said U. S. Route Bo. 460, running westwardl
along the northern boundery of said U. S, Route No. 460 a dis tance of two thousand eightd
hundrea [2800) feet; thence running northward by & line parallel with the westernm boundal
Ty of the seld tract of land belonging to the Virginla Portlend Cezent Company to & roing
lotated two thousaasd ssven hundred ninety eight (2798} fect from the Forfelk and western
right of way; thence emstwerd in a strai;ht line to & point on the western boundaty of
the suld truct of land belanglaog to the said Yirginia Portland Cement Company locoted

two trhousend seven hunared ninety elght (2798) foet from the Norfolk and Wesiem right
of way; thenoe runoing southward along the western boundary of the soald Portiand Cement
Compeny's land to the point of beginning., It ia 8xpressly underatood and agreed, though
the measurements of this deed are from the Horfolk ané Western right of way, tho iand
located between the Norfolk and Weatsrn right of way and the said U, 5. Route lo. 480,
within the confines of theae momaurezents, 18 not included in thias conveyance and recaing

the property of the partiea of the first part,

The sali® parties of the first rert covenant thot they have the right to convey the :
v81d land to tha grantee; thot they have done no a0t to snoumbsr the aokd lmnd; that the :__
grantee shall have qulet possession of said lend, free from all encunbrancea, and they, o
the salc parties of the first part will executs such other and further assurance-cf said A
lond a» may be requisite, (?' A
Witness he following slgnatdres and seala, . a
H. 4, Gray (SEAL) :;
Besrl ?. Gray {SE4L)
Garland Gray {SEAL) *
Agnes T. Gray {SEALY )
Elle V. Gray {SEAL)

Etata of Virginia, Cou.ty of Sussex, to-mas:
I, H. E. Herbert, a Botary public in and for the County of Suesex, State of Virginia,
do hereby sertify that H. a, Gray and Pear} Gray, his wife, Garland Gray ond Agnes T.Gra
Ets wife, ana Ella V. Gray, whoae newmes are signed to the forsgoing deed doted the lst

ay of November, 1934, have sach acknowledged the sawme before me in oY county and state
Rforesaid. My com:=ission oxpires September 24, 1935,
Given under my hand thia 2nd day of Bovember, 1934,

H. BE. Herber¥ Hotery Publie,

Virginia: In the Clerk's Office of Sussex Circult Court December 15, 1934,
! fhls Deed of Sale from H. 4. Gray et ale %o Town of Waverly, Ine, was this day lodged in

the s2id offies, and with the certificate ®nnoxed, admitted to record mt 11 c'olock A, ¥

pnt indexed as required by law. .
M,—( Taeste: o Jd(aaj»ruu-(/: Clerk,




Statement of Reasons

The Timberneck Corporation

The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range Project

The Timberneck Corporation has entered into a purchase agreement to purchase 40 acres of tax
ID: 16-A-1, which is currently zoned for General Agriculture {A-1). The corporation plans to utilize this
site to open a publicly available outdoor shooting range, The Blackwater Cutdoor Shooting Range
(BOSR). As such we are required by Sussex County to obtain a conditional use permit to operate this
business on the aforementioned property.

All operations will adhere and not deviate from the established Standard Operation Procedure {(SOP).
This also includes how patrons will enter/exit the range and accupy lanes. BOSR’s operation hours will
be 10AM — 6PM for Wednesday & Thursday and 9AM — 6PM for Friday - Sunday. These hours will be
applicable as daylight permits and may be extended during the summer months. The staff will initially
consist of 3 employees, not including ownership. All employees will be ‘Range Safety Officer’ certified by
the National Rifle Association.

e 1-General Manager
e 2 —Range Safety Officer

We will offer lane rentals for firearms use for handguns, rifles, and shotguns. We will have age
restrictions such as listed below. More information can be found in our SOP.

¢ Individuals under age 18 are prohibited from entering all range facilities. (Does not include
special events and sponsored programs)

¢ Individuals ages 18 - 20 will be permitted to use the range for shotguns or rifles only if not
accompanied by an adult 21 or older.

¢ Individuals under the age of 21 who possess a handgun will not be allowed on the range and will
be asked to ieave the property unless accompanied by someone 21 or older.

BOSR will have a positive impact on the following areas:

1. Community
a. The facilities will be utilized by the Sussex Sheriff Department.
b. The business will be a place of recreation for the citizens of the surrounding areas.
c. We will offer hunter and youth safety classes.
d. This business complements the rural culture of the county.

2. Exclusivity
a. This will be the only publicly available outdoor shooting range within a 45-mile radius of
the site.

b. This will be the only minority and veteran owned shooting range in the state of Virginia.
3. Economic Activity
a. Through our exclusivity, the business will increase tourism throughout the area.



J/.ﬁ&qu}wﬁ

Howell P. Godfrey ir.

President, The Timberneck Corporation



Property Narrative Description

The Timberneck Corporation

The Blackwater Qutdoor Shooting Range Project

Tax Parcel Identification Number: 16-A-1

All of that certain piece or parcel of land located in Waverly Magisterial District, Sussex County, Virginia,
containing by estimation one hundred fifty-one (151) acres, more or less, known as the "Waverly
Airport"”, and described as follows: beginning at a point north of U.S. Route No. 450 where the western
boundary of a tract or iand belonging to the Grayland Company LP crosses said U.S. Route No. 460,
running westwardiy along the northern boundary of said U.S. Route No. 460 a distance of two thousand
eight hundred (2800) feet; thence running northward by a line parallel with the western: boundary of
the said tract of land belonging to the Grayland Company LP to a point located two thousand seven
hundred ninety eight (2798} feet from the Norfolk and Western right of way; thence eastwardina
straight line to a point on the western boundary of the said tract of land belonging to the said Grayland
Company LP located two thousand seven hundred ninety eight (2798) feet from the Norfolk and
Waestern right of way; thence running southward along the western boundary of the said Grayland
Company's land to the point or beginning. It is expressly understood and agreed, though the
measurements of this deed are from the Norfolk and Western right of way, the land located between
the Norfolk and Western right of way and the said U. s. Route No. 460, within the confines of these
measurements, is not included in this conveyance and remain the property of the parties of the first
part.

N1 il

Howeli P. Godfrey Jr.
President, The Timberneck Carpeoration




NOLLIOH LS DD Yo JDr

| Old

ON L33HS

o

e o

SR o e

P 36VD

Ll e e

NYId T IAD TeNLdI INDD
JONVY ONILOOHS ¥00dLNO
¥ILVMOVE

e e o e

SNOISIATY

SNOISH] L1IHILYY

®

i e e mraaric? : e

T

T PR =

2V Sl

I EEaRANEaaws ue EEBEEEENEEN

sbuey

|0351d
abuey
oIy

VidV
d4ONYJd

o e e =
Wl /‘u ”
i |
e e =
ey WY Lt
el -
i e e —
" e
Tixog e
how S al
H L] o wy | i W K e




NOILIOYLINOD HOJ LON

¢9old

"ON 133MS
8 A
wn aa
[ e
TR 3LvD
1010} ON 102rOld

NV1d 3018 TYNLdIINOD
AONVH ONILOOHS ¥00a1no
HILVMHOVIE

a3

SHOISIAIL

SHNOSERA LI YH

®

S oooooooonenood

Aul..fl.l\..llnlJllal.....llA\\-.va.rf
// J
N 7
S
A WEAE -

HNOH ¥3d STIIHIA LFE = DO} (LET X 006"}
HYE Nd

HNOK §3d STIIHIA Y97 » 000') 194's X DOS'L
HY3Id MY

w4D "L4 DS 005"} (WINY DNITINE

T iILYY DAV NYEd Nd

8L J3LVH DAY HYId WY

V49 14 DE 000'L B34 NOLLYHINTGD dL T1OMIA

58F 300D M - HRUINAD ALIRANWODS TYNOULYINITY
*NOILIGT Hidh - NOLLYHINID dRil

DOoOoOoooDoao

Bonevy Flohi

rArae
[ P W




THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR
SHOOTING RANGE

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION
DBA: THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE
ADDRESS: 4401 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890
PHONE: (757) 945-6285
EMAIL: blackwater.osr@gmail.com
https://www.facebook.com/BOSR460

Chief Range Safety Officer: Breyona Dandridge

DEDICATED TO THE PROMOTION OF SAFETY SPORTSMANSHIP AND
MARKSMANSHIP

Last Edited: 17-Oct-22 Edition 3



TA

BLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION.......ccirimnnsmmsmnssssssssssssesssssssssmssssssssssssssssassssssnssasssessasnns 5
T o T T4 0] o] LTSRS PRTPRRON 5
B.  Organizational Chart .......coiieiiiecieee ettt sttt st e st e st e e sa b e e sabe e s abeesabeesabeesabeenabeesabeeeabeesbeesaree s 6

CHAPTER 2: SAFETY PLAN ..o ciiiiiiississssasssssssssssssssmsssssssssssssssssssss nmsssss sessmssssssmssns ssnssassns ssnssanssnssmssnns 7
Y=Y 1Y WV o Y 0 1 V= PURU 7
L T o P oT oY e Tk (o Y=Y {1 4V USSP PUUPRROt 7
O 1 o To I Y= 1 =1 4V o - o OSSP PSRRI 8
D. Perimeter Gates, FENCING, AN SIBNS.....uiiiiiiiiiieiieceiee e cie et e et e e st e e e st re e e s seaeesnteeeesstaeeeesteeesnsseeeeasaeesnnnns 9
E.  FIFEAIMS CRECK ceiutiiiiieiiiieee ettt sttt e s e e s a e e s at e e sabe e sabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesaseesabaenaseens 9
Fo AMMUNIEION CRECK cueiiiiiiiiieeeeee e sttt st e st e e st e e s abe e sabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabeesabaesaseens 9
T Y 1= AV o T T 20T £ =T Vol RSP 10

CHAPTER 3: RANGE OPERATIONS. ... crisimssnsssssmsssnssssssssssssssssssmsssssssssmssssssmssssssnssassss snssasssnssas 12
F T VT o To 1] I SO R TP 12
2 B 1= o 1T - | P PP P SRS P PR 12

DETINIEIONS 1ttt ettt sttt et e st e st e e s be e s a b e e s bt e e a b e e s bt e e a bt e st e e eab e e st e e eabee s beeeabeesabeenabeesabeenaree s 12
T o Yol [ 413 o Tl U LY I OO PPRPROPPPROt 13
1D T Yo = Lol O K I = To (UL =] 4 a =T ) APt 13

=Ty 4 g o1 o] o TP PP TR PUUTTPRIN 13
E.  AHOWADIE FIFBAIMS ..eeiiiiiiee ettt e e sttt e e e s bt e e e st e e e sttt e e e sabbeeesabeeesaabaaeesabbeeesanbaeesnansaeesnssaaanns 14
[ A = CaI Y- | (=Y A O Lol =Y ST UPPTN 14
LT ¥ Vg T~ U] 1SS 15

Liability Waiver and AgE RESTIICLIONS ......viiiiiieeceiiee e ciee et ee et e ee e e et e e s ata e e e s ea e e e sstee e s ntaeeesnsaeeesnsseeeeansseesansens 15
H.  Range TrainiNg REQUINEMENTS ...cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeiereeeeeeeee ettt e e e et e e e e e e e terereeeeereteeeterererereseresesesesesererererererererenens 15
. GENETAI RANEE RUIES ....eeeetiieeeee sttt e et e e et e e e s e e e e e et e e e e staeeesaneeeeassteeeaassseeesnsaeeesnnseeesnnsaeesannens 15
J. [ (oYU T 5o} @ o1=] - 4 o] o W UPP 16
O = 1V [T T o =4 SRR 16
L. AlICONOI/ DIUZ POLICY wvveeivviieieeeeteecetee ettt ettt ettt et e etae e etee e et e etaeeetaeeeaeeentseeesaeentseeesseensseeesseessseessseessseessseensreessneesnes 17
M. Personnel RESPONSIDIITIES. .....c.cuviieieiiii e e e e e e e e st e e e eateeessnseeeesssteeeeansaeessnnseeesnreaaans 17

Y T aE T=4=T S PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPRE 17

2 LY o( IR 1 1= AV @ i ol Y oSSR 17

1] 1 8 ol o S OO PRSP 18

(OIS o]0 0= ST U PO PP UPPPTRRRRIRt 18
A PR |V 1=Yo T Tor=Y I U o) o Yo o AU UPPRN 19
O. Hold Harmless AGreemMENT FOIM .....c.uiiiiiiee e ettt e e e e ecittt e e e e e e e eettb e e e e e e eeeaataeseaaeseasansbaseeaeeessnssaseeaeeeesansrereeaans 19
P.  Wavier and Release from Liability Agreement FOIM .........ooiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 19
Q. RaNge UsSe ABIreemMENT FOIM......ciiiiiiieiee ettt e e s e e e e e st e e e e e s e s nr e e e e e e e s e s ennrnneneeens 19
O ¥ [0 =TT | (=1 oY SN 19

2 LT =(=X 80 0414 = 0 Vo KSR 19
S, Firearms Carry & HanAIING .........uueiiiiiei ettt e e ettt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e eeseabaaaeeaaeeeeannaaaeeeaaeeennnnrens 21
T, CASE FIrE PrOCERUUIE .....eiei ettt ettt e e st e e sttt e e s eabe e e e s abtee e s sbeeesaabeeeeaabeeeesntaeesaaseeessnbeeeennnen 22
{0 T 1o Y=l WY T U =TS URPRN 22
V. Range Rules Specific to Black POWAEI FIr€armS ........uuuiiiiiiiieiiiiieee ettt e eeesttee e e e e e e s etrare e e e e e e e nnaaeeeaeeeeennrens 23
W. NRA HYZIENE GUIABINES ..c.eeeeeeeeeieee ettt et e e e e e e et e e e esta e e s abeeeeansaeeeessaeeeansaeeaansseeeassaeennnnnnns 24
X.  Emergencies and INCIdeNt REPOITING ...eeccuuiieieciie et et e e et ee et e e et e e e stae e e e aae e e staeeeesssaeesansaeeessseeeesssseesnnsens 24

Page 2 of 59



Y. FIrST AT PrOCEAUIES ... .vvvveeii ettt ettt eee ettt e e e e e e et ar e e e e e e seeaatae et eeeeeassstsaseeeeeeaaasbbaseeeeeeseassrareseeessanssnrees 24

Z.  Personal Protective EQUIPMENT ....occeiii ettt e e st e e e et e e e e e e e e e s et e e e e nsaeesensaeeesnsseeeennsaeesannenas 24
AA. Procedure for Cleaning Surfaces Contaminated with Biohazardous Material.........ccccoceeiviieecciieecciiee e, 25
BB. Facility Operating PrOCEUUIES .....ccouuiiiiieiee ettt e ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e s abbaeeeeeseesntbaseeaeeeasnsasaeaaeeesaansraaeaaens 25
Main BUilding - OPeNINg PrOCEAUIE. ........uviiieiee ettt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e bt eeeeeeeeesasbaaeeaeeeesnstaseaaseeasnstaneaaeseanns 25
Store/Building - ClOSING PrOCEAUIE .......cocveeereieetieetee et eteeeeteeeeteeeeteeeeteeesteeeeteeeeteeeetesenteeenseeebeeensesentesensesentesenseeenes 26
2 LY o( = @] oY= o 11 V= o o Yol Yo [V T <SSR 26
CC. RANGE - OPEratiNng PrOCEAUIE ......veieeiiie ettt e et e e e et e e e ate e e s abe e e e st aeeeestaeessnsaeeesnsseeeanssaeeennsnns 27
Y oY q = o o T X T o ST 28
MAKING the LINE SAf@ ..cc..eeiee ettt e et e et e e e st e e e s ata e e s e ssaeeesaseeeeastaeesansaeeeansseeeassaeesnnsenns 28
Lo TR @ (o T (g Fd o do Yol =T [F ] o DU UUURN 29
APPENDIXES ...otiotiimiinisssssnsnsisssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssnsssssssssssasssssssss ssssssssssssssssss sasssssssssassss nnssasssnssnsssnssansn
APPENDIX 1: FACilities USE AZIrEEMENT ......ueiiiiieiieeeeciieeeectee e ettt e e e ettt e e stteeestteeessataeeesssaeeessseeeaassseesansaseessseeeasnsseesnnsens
[0 a0 ][ == o TSN
APPENDIX 2: Safety INCIAENT REPOIT.....cciiiiie e cctee ettt e e ee e e st e e e e sata e e e e asaeeessteeeenssseesansaeeesnsseeeasssseesansens
APPENDIX 3: EYE WitNESS FOIM 1 s e s s e e e e e e s e e e s e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e seaeaeaeseaeaesaseaeassaanassnsnsnanns
APPENDIX 4: Replacement and REPAIr COSES .....uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeiitieee e e e eeeittteeeeeeeeesasaaseeeeeeesaabaaseesaaessansssseseaessenanrens
APPENDIX 5: EMErgency REPOIT SNEET ...cccii ittt ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e e bbaa e e e e e e e e nabaseeeaeeeeeannrees
EMERGENCY COMMUNCGATIONS . ..ottt ettt ettt et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e s e s aeesasaeeaeneeeeenens
IMMEDIATE RESPONES FOR INJURIES OR ILLNESS ....ccouttiiitiiiieeiieeiieesiee st sre e st steesteesabeesbeesabeesabeesaseesnseesanee s
COORDINATION ....tteitteeiteeetee et e st e st e ste e s bt e s bt e sabeesabeesabeesabeeeabeesabeesaseesabaesaseesabeeeaseesabaeeaseesabaeenseesabaesnseesabaesnseesans
HELICOPTER MEDICAL EVACUATION (IMEDEVAC) ...ctiitiieieiiiteeieesieeeiee st e st e sveesabeesbaesabeesbeesabeesabaesaseesnsaesasees
RANGE EMERGENCY RESPONSE PACKET ....cceitttitteeieeeiteeteesteeeteesteesteesseesbeesaseesaseesaseesaseessseesasessnseesaseesseessseens
APPENDIX 6: RANEE USE ABIEEIMENT ..ciieeeeiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e eeaeeeaaesasasasaeaeseaeaeseasaesasasesssassssseseseans
APPENDIX 7: Waiver and Release from Liability Agreement
APPENDIX 8: Release, Wavier, Indemnification, Hold Harmless, and Assumption of Risk Agreement ....................... 49
APPENDIX 9: Range INSPeCtion ChECKIIST ........cuiiiieiii ettt et e e st e e e tr e e e eaeae e e snreeeennaeeennneeas 50
APPENDIX 10: RANEE SAf@ty Brief. ... eeiiieeiie ettt e st e e et e e e e aa e e e setee e e staeesensaeeesaseeeeansaeeennnenas 51
A, PUrpose of The SNOOTING EVENT.....cccciiiieiie ettt et e et e e et e e st e e e st a e e e e seeeessseeeesnsaeeesnnneeesnsseeeans 51
S T ¥ [ =T I Yo T U o= o o 1o T (SR 51
C. RANGE SAFELY RUIES ....uveiiiiiieeeeee et e e e e e et e e e e e e e et ataaaeeeeeeesabaaaeeaeeesaansaaaeeaaassaasssaeeeaessannssrens 51
D.  FIRING LINE COMMANDS. ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeereeenaeeaenens 54
E. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES ...ttt s e e s s e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e s s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeesesasasaeasasasanens 55
APPENDIX 11: FENCE PAtlOl LO oo eeiiiiieiee ettt ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e eeesanbaaseeeeeeesatbaseeaaeesaanssaseeaaassannsnrees 56
APPENDIX 12: RANEE LAYOUL e e s s e s e e s s e s e s s s e s e s e s s s s s s s e s e s e s e s s sssesssssssssssssssssssssnsnsssnsnsessansnsssnnnns 57
R L= I 1o T | RS ORORRTON 57
R 1S 2= Y=< S 58
HaNAGUN/ SROTEUN RBNEE......veieiiietieeteeceteeete et ete e et e eete e e eteeete e e ebeeebeeeteeeabeeebeesabessnbeesasessnteeeatessnteesatessnteesareesn 59

Page 3 of 59



PAGELEFT INTENTIONALLY
BLANK

Page 4 of 59



CHAPTER 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION

. Preamble

This procedure outlines the rules and regulations governing the use of the outdoor gun range located
at the BOSR facility with the physical address of 4392 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890.
While shooting incidents are rare on ranges, the following range rules and regulations are
established to ensure safety and discipline for individuals using the range as well as the safety for
our neighbors and surrounding properties.

Page 5 of 59



B. Organizational Chart

The Blackwater Qutdoor Shooting Range (BOSR)

The Timbemeck Corporation

Howell Godfrey Jr. Howell Godfrey Sr. Christal Godfrey
President Vice President Secretary

Jane Doe
Manager

Page 6 of 59



CHAPTER 2: SAFETY PLAN

. Safety Planning

The expression “safety is no accident” implies the necessity of planning. During weekly range
operating personnel staff meetings, safety shall be the first order of business. Observations made
during the preceding week shall be discussed and suggestions made to correct or improve
effectiveness will be evaluated. A written record shall be maintained of suggestions that are adopted
for inclusion in the next revision of this Safety Plan. This plan is a living document, that will be
continually evolving, undergoing constant change as safety procedures are enhanced.

This document has been printed and distributed to all range personnel and members, plus notices
shall be made both verbally and in writing that copies are available for public review and for purchase
at a nominal fee. The annual review date for this document is January 15, at which time this
document will be formally reviewed, modified and updated with, if necessary, with revisions formally
approved by the Board of Directors.

ALWAYS POINT FIREARMS IN A SAFE DIRECTION

The SAFE direction on this facility is straight down when approaching or departing a range. The SAFE
direction when on a range is downrange. As this facility is surrounded by populated areas, an
unintentional discharge, if carrying the firearm with the muzzle pointed upward, could result in
property damage or personal injury.

. Planning for Safety

All elements of a safety plan must fit into an integrated package. Safety is a function of what is best

described as "the Four E's": which include evaluation, engineering, education, and enforcement.

Another purpose of this plan is to continually evaluate the needs of range operating personnel,
members and general public shooters as it relates to existing and planned use of the facility (desired
activities and procedures). Safety rules will vary somewhat with each activity, i.e., rifle, pistol, trap,
skeet, sporting clays, and then there are more subtle differences as it pertains to rim-fire and center-
fire firearms.

Since there will be a variety of live-fire activities conducted at this facility, each one must be
evaluated as it relates to the overall operation. The primary reason for this constant vigilance and
planning is based on design criteria. For example, a smallbore rifle range used for high power rifle,
may defeat the original design criteria and would likely result in damage to the range, and possibly
create a safety hazard involving projectile escapement. Hence, it is necessary to engineer (construct
or modify) the range(s) lo accommodate a particular live-fire activity. The use of a range facility
outside its original design limits, violates acceptable

engineering practices and breeches the basic concept of this safety plan. Range operating personnel
must be constantly vigilant to ensure that firearms and ammunition calibers used on a particular
range are authorized. (See Ammunition Check Section for a notation of authorized firearms/calibers).
While it is a good practice to engineer a range to accommodate multiple shooting activities, each
must be evaluated against engineering concepts to ensure the activity IS acceptable for a particular

Page 7 of 59



range.

With the engineering phase complete, education of both range operating personnel and members,
general public shooters or customers is the next step. Training focuses on special criteria to help
range operating personnel become proficient in spotting potential hazards and take timely corrective
action. During live-firing activities, education and training are constant and ongoing.

All range operating personnel will be trained in the teaching methods of basic marksmanship in rifle,
pistol, and shotgun as currently prescribed by the National Rifle Association of America's Basic
Firearms Education Courses. Training shall include periods of instruction designed to qualify range
personnel as Range safety officers and Safety officers. This training will be designed to enhance safety
and reduce risks. Such training also provides greater opportunity for beginning shooters to obtain
additional instruction on the basic elements of safety and marksmanship.

The safety of range operating personnel, members and the general public or customers is primary
and the reasoning behind the aforementioned training programs. Those persons using this facility
expect to have an enjoyable and safe experience. It will be our goal to ensure that will be the case.

Safety rules and emergency procedures shall be written and prominently posted about the facility, to
include the final part of the four E's, enforcement.

Enforcement procedures constitute actions taken to correct errant behavior and shall become an
important part of the safely plan. All range operating personnel, members and the general public or
customers shall be notified of penalties that may be imposed for violating established operating and
safety rules and regulations.

Enforcement includes two types of control: Passive: meaning single shooter no supervision; or Active:
meaning either a range safety officer is in charge or any customer of instructors are on hand to
maintain close supervision. Passive control is practiced more frequently on ranges where individual
members, qualified to do so, are allowed individual unsupervised access. At this facility unsupervised
access will only be approved by the Board of Directors, once the individual concerned has
demonstrated the desired level of competency, and will be considered an exception rather than the
rule. Individuals receiving this privilege will be carefully instructed and evaluated. Those individuals
receiving this approval will be maintained in a separate log signed personally by the facility manager.
Even with this privilege, a second competent individual must accompany the person that will be
shooting to be available to make a call for assistance if it should become necessary.

For all public shooting and basic firearms education exercises, active control shall be required and will
be implemented on this facility.

The Safety Plan

The facilities provided are available to club members, organizations, and the general public. The
general public shooters will normally be limited to those facilities designated for use by the public. An
assigned range safety officer will always be required for any general public activities. Access on to the
ranges shall be through the main office or other points so designated

on or within the facility.

Page 8 of 59



D. Perimeter Gates, Fencing, and Signs

Weekly, the facility manager will cause a physical check of the perimeter fence, gates and signs. An
assigned range volunteer or employee of the range will physically patrol the fence to ensure the
fence is intact and the signs on the fence are current and legible. A report of the results of the check
will be made to the facility manager and the facility manager will record the results of the patrol in
the appropriate log. Once per quarter, minimum, the facility manager will accompany the individual
making the fence patrol. (See Appendix 10 for sample log to record the results of the patrols.)

A pathway to accomplish this patrol will be cleared just inside the fence wide enough to
accommodate a vehicle. The path for the vehicle is necessary not only to accomplish the patrol, but
to effect repairs.

The timing of the patrols will be varied as to the time of day and the day of the week. Patrols may be
made more often if deemed appropriate by the facility manager. The fence patrols will be made only
during times that the range is in a non-firing status.

Reports indicating a break in the fence or the loss or destruction of signs on the fence will be repaired
within two working days. Spare wire and signs will be maintained for this purpose.

It is recommended the individual making this patrol carry a "point-and-shoot” or digital camera
capable of taking medium range telephoto photographs. Anyone observed in or around the property
or the fence giving the appearance of causing or doing damage to the fence shall be photographed.
The photographs will be released to the local law enforcement agency having jurisdiction to
investigate the trespass or of the damage to the property; i.e., the fence or the signs on the fence.

E. Firearms Check

All firearms shall be visually checked by either a safety officer or range safety officer, as appropriate,
prior to their use. This activity involves the observation of the members or general public customers
as they arrive at the field or range to ensure that firearm actions are open and said firearm is not
loaded. Signs shall inform visitors to the range, that firearms must be unloaded prior to entry into
the parking lot. Further, that all firearm actions must be open prior to removal from the conveyance
in which they were transported to the range. Cased firearms may remain cased until they are taken
to the field or range firing line. Upon taking their place on a range firing line within the facility, their
firearms will be visually checked by a range safety officer as it is uncased (or carried) and set into a
gun rack, or carried onto a field, or up to a firing point. Prior to removing a firearm form the case in
which it is carried to the range, the action will be opened.

F. Ammunition Check
Range safety officers (rifle and handgun) will check the ammunition intended to be used by the
customer to verify it is a gauge or caliber that has been approved for use on that field or range and
that the ammunition is the proper gauge or caliber for the firearm to be used. No Armor Piercing,

Incendiary, or Tracer Ammunition may be fired on these ranges:

a. Handgun/ Shotgun Range

Page 9 of 59



i. All currently recognized handgun ammunition, .22 cal. LR rimfire through .45 Government
calibers may be used.

ii. Many rifle cartridges have been adapted to handgun use; i.e., in the Thompson Center
Contender and the Remington XP100, etc. these firearms are also permitted to be used on
this range.

iii. Rifles firing the .22 cal LR rimfire and the .22 cal Winchester Rimfire Magnum cartridges
may also be fired on this range.

iv. In all cases, range safety officers will have the authority to stop anyone from firing any
caliber when the shooter demonstrates insufficient skill or control of the firearm where the
fired bullets are not striking on or near the target and may cause damage to the range
equipment or barriers.

v. Members and general public customers that are required to stop firing, as cited above, will
be encouraged to use a substantially smaller caliber until they demonstrate a sufficient
level of skill where they can return to the larger caliber.

b. Rifle Range

i. All currently recognized rifle ammunition, up to .308 caliber may be used.

ii. Inall cases, range safety officers will have the authority to stop anyone from firing any
caliber when the shooter demonstrates insufficient skill or control of the firearm where the
fired bullets are not striking on or near the target and may cause damage to the range
equipment or barriers.

iii. Members and general public customers that are required to stop firing, as cited above, will
be encouraged to use a substantially smaller caliber until they demonstrate a sufficient
level of skill where they can return to the larger caliber.

G. Safety Plan Reference

All range management and operating personnel shall be required to reference this safety plan during
the planning phase of any modifications to existing ranges, prior to effecting any new installations, or
the construction and use of any existing facility or any use of any range or field, that ensures such use
would not be outside current design specifications.

Any revisions made to this document shall include a record of when and by whom said revisions were
made and accompanied by signatures of the Board of Directors and corporate officers approving
same.

All revisions shall stipulate which portions are superseded and/ or replaced and all previous copies
distributed shall be destroyed and. Or public notice given to those possessing same to destroy
outdated material. The review date for this document is ,

And thereafter on January 15 of each succeeding year. Updated copies of this document will then be
ready right after the first of March following the annual review.

Any exceptions to the rules or regulations as defined herein shall be noted and advisory bulletins
issued to specify the duration of such exceptions and the implications, if any. Exceptions may be
found after each rule to which a specific exception might apply. For example, alcoholic beverages
may be consumed on the premises during parties and award presentations so long as all ranges are
closed and all firearms are secured. (if this provision were to be considered, it is obvious that strict
and positive controls must be imposed.)

Page 10 of 59



The consequence of a person’s failure to comply with the provisions of this safety plan may result in
additional instruction, a warning, the suspension of range privileges for a specified period of time,
permanent suspension of range privileges or legal action. If range operating personnel or an
employee is involved in inappropriate behavior, disciplinary actions may warrant verbal and/ or
written warnings, and/ or dismissal. A notation of said disciplinary actions, if any, shall become a part
of the range operating personnel or employee’s personnel record.

Page 11 of 59



CHAPTER 3: RANGE OPERATIONS

Purpose

This procedure outlines the rules and regulations governing the use of the outdoor gun range located
at the BOSR facility with the physical address of
While shooting incidents are rare on ranges, the following range rules and regulations are
established to ensure safety and discipline for individuals using the range as well as the safety for
our neighbors and surrounding properties.

General

Live fire conducted at the range is designed to provide authorized personnel access to a facility where
they can become proficient with firearms and practice both individual and group shooting sports.

Individuals using the range shall become familiar with these safety rules and procedures prior to
using the range. The range safety rules and procedures help to provide range supervision and allow
for enforcement of these rules to reduce or eliminate incidents from occurring.

All users are required to abide by and enforce these rules. All users are expected to politely point out
to any user in violation of these rules, the nature of the violation, request they stop and if continued
violation occurs, report the incident along with the violators name, if possible, to the Range safety
officer on duty or the Surry County Sherriff's Department for further action.

Definitions
Approved Firing: deliberate, controlled and aimed fire, which results in every shot hitting the impact
berm.

Firing Line: that part of the range where shooting benches are placed designated as a Live Fire
Activities area.

Live Fire Activities: an activity that involves the firing of a gun. Individuals involved in a live fire
activity include the shooter, Range safety officer, and supporting personnel such as score keepers,
timers, and other individuals participating in a shooting activity on a Hot Range.

Range safety officer: an employee or designee of BOSR that is charged with monitoring and
enforcing all rules outlined in this SOP as they pertain to the outdoor range use.

Rapid Firing: firing more than two shots in a one second period.
Uncontrolled Firing: firing from the hip, firing a rifle/carbine/shotgun without the butt of the stock

against the shooter's shoulder, or any other type of firing in which the firearm is not aimed by having
the shooter's eye aligned with the firearm sights and the sights aligned with an approved target.

Cease Fire: shooters stop shooting, firearms are cleared of all ammunition and placed on shooting
bench with actions open and muzzle pointed down range.

Page 12 of 59



Hot Range: no Cease Fire is in effect; guns may be handled and fired.

Cease Fire Range: Cease Fire is in effect, stay away from shooting benches and NO HANDLING
FIREARMS.

Facilities for Use

Live-fire shooting is normally limited to the following ranges and equipment:

Handgun/ Shotgun Range: Handguns up to .45 caliber and shotguns any gauge. (No magnum, tracer
or armor-piercing ammunition)

Rifle Range: Rifles smaller than .50 caliber centerfire. (No tracer or armor-piercing ammunition)

Range Use Requirements

The use of the BOSR outdoor gun range is covered by these Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's).
These SOPs define what every person engaged in live-fire activities must know prior to being
permitted to use the outdoor range facility. These SOPs define what every member and public
participant must know to utilize the BOSR outdoor range. These SOPs are available from the BOSR
office and websitehttps://www.facebook.com/BOSR460.

Restrictions

The following are strictly prohibited on BOSR property:

1. ALL CELL PHONES SILENT. To be courteous to all shooters concentrating on hitting their
target on the range, all cell phones are to be placed on silent.
2. No shooting at wildlife.

No shooting cross-range.

4. Shooters may not consume alcoholic beverages or drugs (including prescription and over-
the-counter medications) that will affect his or her ability to participate with a maximum
state of awareness and in a completely safe manner, before or during live fire activities. The
Range safety officer will deny range access to anyone that is or appears to be in violation.

5. 50 BMG CALIBER FIREARMS ARE PROHIBITED

6. FIRING OF ARMOR-PIERCING OR TRACER AMMUNITION IS PROHIBITED. Armor
piercing ammunition means a projectile or projectile core which may be used in a
firearm and which is constructed entirely, excluding the presence of traces of other
substances, of tungsten alloys, steel, iron, brass, bronze, beryllium copper, or a
combination of tungsten alloys, steel, iron, brass, bronze, or beryllium copper.

7. No bullet impacts off the range, into buildings, signs, storage containers, sheds, or any
other structure or range feature not a BOSR approved impact area.

8. No repeated misses of the target board, or bullet strikes that ricochet causing a danger of
bullets leaving the range.

9. No disruptive activities, such as loud music or children that are not supervised properly on
the firing line.

10. No loaded firearms are allowed on the BOSR property other than on the Firing Line
under a Hot Range condition

a. Exceptions to this are for BOSR employees, BOSR members and customers who
are properly licensed Virginia Carry & Conceal Licensed individuals, and Law
Enforcement personnel.

w

Page 13 of 59



E. AllowableFirearms

1. Handguns up to 45 Long Colt do not need to be checked in with the Range safety
officer on duty.

2. Handguns with a caliber of .45 and larger along with AK and AR style pistols must be
checked in with the Range safety officer on duty.

3. Rifles (shoulder fired) - all calibers with the exception of those identified in the
"Restrictions" section above.

4. Muzzle loaders - all types. Those individuals shooting muzzle loaders must check in with the
RSO for bench assignments so as to not interfere with other shooters with the smoke
discharge when firing.

5. Shotguns - all types.

F. Range Safety Officers

All RSO on duty are required to have taken the NRA Range safety officer training and possess a
certificate identifying them as an NRA certified RSO.

Range Safety Officers (RSO) are required as part of open shooting at the outdoor range. Everyone
using the BOSR range must first watch the safety video and receive a validated video card to be
used as a challenge system by the RSO before anyone can start a live fire scenario. A designated
RSO will be in charge of the firing line(s) and range at all times.

The RSO on duty is tasked with:

e Ensuring that all BOSR members, guests, and customers adhere to the rules and SOPs in this
document.

e Stopping and addressing any and all unsafe behavior. The RSO will address an individual to
inform and point out all unsafe behavior and ensure that they are aware of any safety
concerns. The RSO may call a "Cease Fire" and address the entire line at his/her discretion.

e Escorting anyone (to include members) off the range if the person(s) is deemed a safety
risk to others on the range.

e Require anyone shooting on the range be given additional training before being allowed to
shoot on the range again.

e Reporting to BOSR management any incidents on the range to include:

0 Accidental discharges

0 Personal injuries such as slide bites, forehead scope hits, and etc. that draw blood
0 Trespassers - to include wildlife, pets, and unauthorized people

0 Any other incidents deemed reportable

Page 14 of 59



G.

L.

Range Rules

The rules for using the range are outlined as follows, along with noting any unique rules.

Liability Waiver and Age Restrictions

All users of the BOSR range must fill out and sign a liability waiver on each day that they use the range.
Members must have a current and signed liability waiver on file before using the range.
e Individuals under age 18 are prohibited from entering all range facilities.
e Individuals ages 18 - 20 will be permitted to use the range for shotguns or rifles only if not
accompanied by an adult 21 or older.
e BOSR rules on age and gun possession are in line with federal and state laws.
e Individuals under the age of 21 who possess a handgun will not be allowed on the range and will be
asked to leave the property unless accompanied by someone 21 or older.

Range Training Requirements

All potential users of the BOSR range must complete a range orientation. The orientation may be one
or any combination of a safety video, in-person briefing, and formal classroom training. The amount
of training will be determined by the BOSR management and/or RSO on duty.

Each potential user of the BOSR range will be given a card indicating that they have seen the required
safety video which is endorsement for use of the range. Members will only be issued their membership
card upon completion of watching the required safety video.

NOTE: The RSO on duty is tasked with the authority to require anyone shooting on the range be given
additional training before being allowed to shoot on the range again and revoking their range use
endorsement card.

General Range Rules

1. Everyone is required to adhere to the written Range Safety Operating Procedures (SOP).

2. All scheduled event use of the range shall take precedence over any individual or personal
activity - NO EXCEPTIONS.

3. All vehicles shall be parked in the designated parking area, unless authorized by the BOSR
management.

4. Range is to be used as posted, or as directed by the RSO on duty.

5. BOSR members must sign in at the desk prior to using the range and must have their
membership card in their possession in order to receive discounts & benefits.

6. All patrons must sign in at the desk, and pay for their range use, targets, ammunition, and any other
consumables that they may need on the range, as a receipt is necessary to show the RSO on duty in
order to get an assigned bench. Signing in at the desk prior to using the range also allows for any
updates on special activities that may need to be made known to everyone.

7. Targets may be purchased in the store. Personal targets may be used if they meet the
requirements of BOSR. Plastic bottles, glass targets, tin or aluminum cans, explosive targets, and
any other exotic items may not be used as targets at any time without the permission of the BOSR
management and then only in a closed range or shoot/match scenario. Each shooter on the

Page 15 of 59



10.

11.
12.

13.

14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.
25.

26.

range must clean up their bench and targets down range prior to leaving - this will be enforced
by the RSO on duty.

Exercise caution not to accidentally discharge guns in the direction of range property, range
signs, and stationary furniture.

All shooting can only be done from the firing line.

Offhand, sitting, and prone shooting of center fire rifles is only allowed by

allocated bench positions assigned or observed by the RSO.

If your rounds are not going to hit solidly in the berm - DO NOT FIRE!

Police up your brass and spent caps when finished shooting. All targets are to be removed

from down range when finished shooting - but only during an RSO called "Cease Fire".

All shooters and spectators on the firing lines and staging areas must wear ear and eye
protection. Safety ear and eyewear is available for rent in at the desk.

As part of the range safety procedures, all safety rules will be followed.

Vaping is prohibited on the range.

ALL firearms must be unloaded, cased, or actions open when taken to and from the firing line.
Inexperienced shooters are to advise the RSO if assistance is needed.

When a "Cease Fire" is called by an RSO, stop all shooting and wait for instruction from the RSO.
NO firearms are to be handled or moved until the RSO gives a Hot Range command. All firearms
in need of cleaning or repair during a "Cease Fire" must move to a designated repair area as
identified by the RSO.

Firing in a careless manner will not be tolerated. Shoot at your target only. Do not shoot at any
elevation that will allow a bullet to travel over the backstop berm. Any bullet strikes to facility
equipment, structures, or the like other than a designated target carry a fine/fee to cover costs of
replacement and/or repairs. Those individuals firing in a careless manner will be dismissed from
the range for the rest of the day. A Safety Incident Report will be filled out by the RSO and will be
reported via radio to the staff & desk clerk for collection of fees. See "Replacement and Repair
Costs" chart at the end of this document to be used by the RSO to determine fines/fees to be
assessed.

NO open carry of a loaded firearm on your person is allowed. The RSO and staff along

with Law Enforcement personnel are the exception.

RSO commands and range rules must be accepted at this range. Challenge to any rule or RSO
command may be made in writing or in person to the BOSR management.

Any adult supervising a child will not be allowed to shoot on the range leaving the child
unsupervised.

The minimum age to shoot on the range by one's self is 18 for rifle/shotgun and 21 for handgun.
The RSO on duty will be equipped with first aid supplies, basic tools, and radio for
communications with other RSO and staff.

Keep your area used clean - the RSO will enforce this. Please respect the equipment and clean up
your area when you are through shooting. If you move something, PUT IT BACK. If you break
something, REPORT IT so it can be repaired for future use. If you make a mess - CLEAN IT UP.

J. Hours of Operation

Monday — Tuesday: CLOSED
Wednesday — Thursday: 10AM — 6PM, or dark, whichever comes first
Friday — Saturday: 9AM — 6PM, or dark, whichever comes first

K. Staff Meetings

Page 16 of 59



All staff and employees will attend the weekly staff meeting either in-person or via virtual access, such as
Zoom. Meetings and schedules for the next 30 days will be posted by the manager by the 15™ of the
current month.

L. Alcohol/ Drug Policy

Shooters may not consume alcoholic beverages or drugs (including prescription and over-the-counter
medications) that will affect his or her ability to participate with a maximum state of awareness and in a
completely safe manner, before or during live fire activities. The Range safety officer will deny range
access to anyone that is or appears to be in violation.

M. Personnel Responsibilities

Manager
1. Maintain all range facilities.
2. Ensure RSOs receive written range schedules no later than Thursday for the following week.
Schedules should include matches, recreational fire, and any special instructions.
3. Conduct CRSO and RSO training as needed using the NRA Range Safety Officer Training Program.
4. Ensure proper range flags are displayed as required. Raise and lower range flags pre and post range
operations.

Range Safety Officers

The manager must first approve anyone desiring to become an RSO. RSO status is accomplished by
attending an RSP class given by an NRA certified instructor. Information on dates and times for these
classes can be obtained via https://rso.nra.org/

Check in with the manager a half-hour prior to the first scheduled live fire.

Present membership identification card with RSO stamp.

Obtain the following:

Wavier and Release from Liability agreement forms

Range Use agreement forms

Radio

First-aid kit

Range binder

Flags

Any special instructions

Test the radio to ensure it works correctly.

Conduct range inspection using the appropriate range checklist. Handgun/ shotgun range, Rifle

range (Appendix 8)

6. Check that all shooters have current receipts and/ or membership cards, and that all shooter and
visitors fill out wavier and release from liability and range use agreements. Ensure at least two
individuals (RSO + one) are on the range at all times.

7. Conduct range safety briefing. (Appendix 9)

Request permission to conduct live fire from the manger.

9. Conduct live fire in accordance with the General Rules of this chapter. Failure of shooters to abide

by the procedures listed in this chapter will result in immediate eviction from the range and

possible suspension of future shooting privileges. Report all incidents to the manager.

PR TO OO T O WNE

o

Page 17 of 59


https://rso.nra.org/

10. Announce “Change in status in ___ minutes before calling the range cold. (Normally 10 minutes)
11. Notify the manager by radio when live fire is finished and request a range inspection.
12. Turnin all gear.

Instructors

The manager must first approve anyone desiring to become an instructor. All instructors must be RSO
certified, instructor certified, certified in the course to be instructed, and certified on the firearm(s) to be
utilized during instruction.

Check in with the manager a half-hour prior to the first scheduled course.

Present membership identification card with RSO stamp.

Obtain the following:

Wavier and Release from Liability agreement forms

Range Use agreement forms

“Hold Harmless” agreement forms

Radio

First-aid kit

Range binder

Flags

Any other needed instructional materials

Test the radio to ensure it works correctly.

Conduct range inspection using the appropriate range checklist. Handgun/ shotgun range, Rifle

range (Appendix 8)

6. Check that all shooters have current receipts and/ or membership cards, and that all shooter and
visitors fill out wavier and release from liability, range use, and “hold harmless” agreements. Ensure
at least two individuals (RSO + one) are on the range at all times.

7. Conduct range safety briefing. (Appendix 9)

Request permission to conduct live fire from the manger.

9. Conduct live fire in accordance with the General Rules of this chapter. Failure of shooters to abide
by the procedures listed in this chapter will result in immediate eviction from the range and
possible suspension of future shooting privileges. Report all incidents to the manager.

10. Notify the manager by radio when live fire is finished and request a range inspection.

11. Turnin all gear.

VPSR PO OO0 TY WNE

o

Customer

1. All shooters must check in with the designated RSO in the scheduled range.

2. All shooters and spectators must fill out a wavier and release from liability and range use agreements.

3. All shooters attending instructional courses at the range complex must fill out a “hold harmless”
agreement.

4. Shooters will conduct themselves in an orderly manner at all times and will be responsible for the
conduct of any guests they bring.

5. All shooters are responsible for their guns and ammunition while on the complex.

6. Guns that are out of the case and not being fired must be benched. (Actions open and facing up,
chambers empty, muzzles pointing downrange, and safeties on.)

7. Only load guns on the firing line after the RSO has given the command to load.

8. Do not point guns at anything other than authorized targets.

9. Fire only at your own target.

10. Give the command “Cease firing” if an unsafe condition exists.

11. Follow all instructions from the RSO.

Page 18 of 59



N.

12. Assist in policing the area of brass and any other debris.
13. No pets are allowed on the range complex.

Medical Support

In the event of a medical emergency, call 911 and notify the staff immediately.

Hold Harmless Agreement Form

A “hold harmless” agreement form will be completed annually by each RSO and given to the manager by
January 30" of the current year. (Appendix 7)

Wavier and Release from Liability Agreement Form

A wavier and release from liability agreement form will be completed by each customer prior to occupying
the rang e for each visit and submitted to the staff. (Appendix 6)

Range Use Agreement Form

A range use agreement form will be completed by each customer prior to occupying the rang e for each
visit and submitted to the staff. (Appendix 5)

Range Safety

Range Commands
To indicate emergency or hazardous conditions:

"CEASE FIRE"

To stop all shooting routinely or, in the case of an emergency, immediately. Participants immediately
stop shooting, continue to keep the muzzle pointed down range, remove finger from the trigger, unload
and clear the firearm placing the firearm on the bench with chamber in view and wait for further
instructions.

"MISSFIRE"
To notify the RSO and other participants that a round did not fire when the trigger was pulled and to alert
other shooters along the line that a hazardous condition may exist.

To prepare the range for live fire:

"MOVE FORWARD"

To get shooters into position to prepare to begin shooting. Shooters will move from behind the ready line
to their assigned position. DO NOT TOUCH FIREARM! Get comfortable, adjust your position make sure
you are on the correct side of the bench.

"PROTECTIVE GEAR ON"

Page 19 of 59



To prepare the shooter for a safe experience. Shooters should put on first their eye protection then ear
protection.

"YOU MAY PICK UP YOUR FIREARM"
To prepare line for firing. Shooters will pick up their firearm, sight in on the target, make any final
adjustments and prepare to load.

||LOAD||
To notify the shooters that they may load their first round. Shooters will load their first round and keep
finger off the trigger and stand ready for the next command.

"IS THE LINE READY?"
To determine if all shooters along the line are ready. All shooters NOT ready should indicate their status
to the RSO. Sufficient time will be allowed for the shooter to complete his/her preparation.

"READY ON THE RIGHT?"

To declare that the shooters have indicated they are ready on the right side of the range. Any shooter
not ready at this command may choose to either alert the RSO that he/she is not ready or to complete
the process of getting ready before the final command has been given.

"READY ON THE LEFT?"

To declare that the shooters have indicated they are ready on the left side of the range. Any shooter not
ready at this command may choose to either alert the RSO that he/she is not ready or to complete the
process of getting ready before the final command has been given.

"READY ON THE FIRING LINE?"

To notify all shooters that the range is about to be under live fire and that if anyone is not ready at that
point, he/she should notify the RSO; Otherwise await the next command. Shooters simply await the next
command.

"COMMENCE FIRING" or "HOT RANGE"
To declare the range formally open for live fire. The shooters may commence the prescribed course of
fire.

To STOP FIRING and declare the range SAFE:

"SHOOTERS, YOU HAVE MINUTES REMAINING"
To alert all shooters that a general cease fire is about to be called and to allow the slower
shooters to complete the course of fire.

"CEASE FIRE"

To stop all firing. All shooters shall open the bolt/cylinder, clear the chamber, remove the magazine -
unload the cylinder and lay the firearm down with the bolt/cylinder open and wait for further
instructions.

"COLD RANGE"
To inform the firing line that the range is safe. The RSO is telling all shooters that all guns are
unloaded.

Page 20 of 59



Other Common Commands:

"ON THE FIRING LINE"
To tell shooters to take their assigned place at their firing point and prepare to fire, but do not load.

"CEASE FIRE - ACTIONS OPEN, SAFETIES ON!"
To notify the shooters to stop firing immediately and all chambers and magazines are unloaded and
shooters leave the firing line with the actions of their firearms open.

"GO FORWARD, SCORE TARGETS AND PASTE"
Authorizes shooters to move downrange to score, change, remove or repair target faces.

"RANGE IS CLEAR, YOU MAY HANDLE YOUR FIREARMS"
Shooters may approach the firing line and handle their firearms since no personnel are down range.

"MOVE OUT OF POSITION AND REMOVE YOUR EQUIPMENT FROM THE FIRING LINE"
Authorizes shooters to remove their gear.

"POLICE YOUR ASSIGNED FIRING POINT"
Shooters are to pick up their spent ammunition and clean their firing point of all debiris.

"AS YOU WERE"
Means to disregard the previous command just given.

"CARRY ON"
Means to proceed with whatever was being done before the interruption occurred.

"REMOVE PROTECTIVE GEAR"
Shooters may remove protective gear.

"MOVE BACK BEHIND THE READY LINE"
Means to move behind the ready line and wait for further instructions from the RSO.

"YOU MAY GO CHECK YOUR TARGETS"
Shooters may move downrange to the target area.

Firearms Carry & Handling

1. Except when shooting on the range, all firearms outside a case "open carry" must always be
unloaded, with the magazines/cylinders out and chamber empty.

2. Firearms in a bag or case must remain in the bag or case when transporting them between
the parking lot, clubhouse, and range.

3. Hot Range Procedure: proceed to a shooting bench as directed by the RSO. Uncase the firearm
with the muzzle pointing downrange ensuring the action is open, only take out magazines and
ammunition out of the case for the firearm to be shot. Only one firearm on the firing line bench at
one time.

4. Cease Fire Procedure: Remain behind the firing line and do not uncase any firearms until the

Page 21 of 59



cease fire has been completed and the range is back to a hot range status. Uncase the firearm
with the muzzle pointing downrange ensuring the action is open, only take out magazines and
ammunition out of the case for the firearm to be shot. Only one firearm on the firing line bench
at one time.

T. CeaseFire Procedure

1. When averbal "Cease Fire" is heard all shooting must stop immediately, unload firearm ensuring
the chamber is empty and remove magazines.

2. Fix actions open and insert empty chamber flag

3. Place firearms on the bench with muzzles pointed downrange, or in a proper rack with muzzles
pointing up.

4. Before anyone moves downrange, all persons must move behind the firing line and
acknowledge the cease fire verbally or visually to the RSO.

5. Fly Cease Fire Flag (white flag)

6. Absolutely no firearm handling during a cease fire. Everyone is either downrange at the targets,
picking up brass in front of the firing line, or behind the firing line.

7. Brass forward of the firing line may be picked up during a cease fire, but the person must then
return behind the firing line without stopping at the shooting bench.

8. Anyone handling a firearm during a cease fire or carelessly sweeping people on a Hot Range
should be reported to the RSO.

AT ALL TIMES THE NRA GUN SAFETY RULES MUST BE OBSERVED:
a. Always keep the gun pointed in a safe direction
b. Always keep your finger off the trigger until ready to shoot
c. Always keep the gun unloaded until ready to use

U. Firing Line Rules

1. Eye protection is mandatory at all times on the range to include staging areas. Designated
spectator areas do not require eye protection, but it is recommended.

2. Ear protection is mandatory at all time in all range designated areas during Hot Range (live fire)
activities. Designated spectator areas do require ear protection.

3. Each firing position is labeled to a corresponding target stand position. Shooters must only
shoot in their prospective shooting lane.

4. While firing off a bench or otherwise, bullets may not leave the impact area. The shooter must
not be able to see above the berm (no blue sky). Anyone caught firing over the berm will be
escorted off the range by the RSO after calling a Cease Fire. No warnings will be given.

5. During a cease fire, all firearms are to be unloaded and empty chamber flags inserted into
the chamber.

6. No one is allowed forward of the firing line unless the range has been declared safe by the RSO.

7. Once on the firing line, a firearm's muzzle must be pointed down range at all times.

8. Loaded firearms must be pointed down range with barrel horizontal at all times.

9. Only one firearm and matching ammunition is allowed on the bench at one time.

10. Only shooting from the bench is allowed, unless approved by the RSO.

11. Shoot only at designated targets.

12. If there is a misfire be sure to keep the muzzle pointed down range (preferably on target) for at
least 45 seconds, in case it is a hang fire.

Page 22 of 59



13. After a misfire or jam, the firearm must be cleared. A misfire is when a cartridge does not fire
after the primer has been struck by the firing pin. A hangfire is a perceptible delay in the ignition
of a cartridge after the primer has been struck by the firing pin. The normal procedure for
handling misfires or hangfires is to:

i. Keep the gun pointed downrange (safe direction).

ii. Wait at least 30 seconds in case it is a hangfire. With muzzleloaders, wait at least two
minutes.

iii. Squib load is when there is less than normal pressure or bullet velocity after ignition of the
cartridge and the bullet gets lodged in the barrel. The normal procedure for handling a squib
load is:

14. Stop firing immediately

i. Keep the gun pointed downrange

ii. Unload the gun - make sure the chamber is empty

iii. Insert a cleaning rod down the barrel from the chamber end (if possible) to make sure
the bullet is not lodged in the barrel.

15. Only one shooter's target is allowed per frame, unless approved by the RSO.

16. Smoking is not allowed under any circumstance on the range, staging areas, or spectator
areas. Smoking is only allowed in a designated area outside the clubhouse.

17. IN ALL CASES THE RSO'S DECISIONS ARE FINAL AND BINDING. HIS/HER DECISIONS ARE BASED ON
THE CURRENT SITUATION AS IT EXISTS, AND HIS/HER JUDGEMENT DICTATES. THE RSO'S DECISIONS
MAY SUPERCEDE THE GENERAL PRINTED RULES OR SOP.

V. Range Rules Specific to Black Powder Firearms

1. No smoking around black powder firearms period. This includes any black powder firearms
situated in a designated smoking area.

2. No charging of muzzleloaders from powder cans or flasks. They are only to be charged from a
powder measure, pre-measured charges, or pellets.

3. Muzzleloaders are to be loaded at the tables behind the firing line, but they are to remain visibly
uncapped (such as in the half-cock position, or in the case of flintlocks the pan unprimed with the
frizzen open and hammer down) until they are on the firing line and ready to fire.

4. Powder containers are not to be brought up to the firing line. They should be kept on the staging
area tables/benches behind the firing line. Close all powder containers when not in use. Only small
quantities of priming powder are allowed on the firing line.

5. Muzzles must remain pointed vertically until the loaded firearm is brough to the firing line. Once
primed or capped, the muzzle must remain at or below the horizontal position.

6. Clearing a misfire

i. Wait a minimum of two minutes to ensure that the gun will not go off due to hangfire.

ii. Remove the cap or check the flint. Clear the flash channel to ensure the flash will reach the
powder, then recap or prime. Attempt to fire.

iii. If it still fails to fire, use a hand-held CO2 discharger to blow the load downrange. There
are adapters designed to fit every type of muzzleloader.

iv. Check the bore for a load (insert ramrod into barrel to check if there is already a load in the
barrel)

v. Half-cock/position the gun for loading (pull the hammer to half-cock and position the gun.
Stand the gun on the ground between your legs so that the muzzle is pointed up and away
from your body. Never work directly over the muzzle.)

Page 23 of 59



W. NRA Hygiene Guidelines

e Refrain from eating, drinking, smoking, applying makeup, or otherwise placing hands in proximity
to the mouth or nose while on the range or cleaning a firearm.

e Wash your hands and face with soap and water after leaving the range or cleaning area before
eating, or drinking.

e Change and wash clothing after a shooting or gun cleaning session to minimize exposure to airborne
particulate lead or solvent and cleaning product residues.

X. Emergencies and Incident Reporting

In the event of an Emergency please follow these procedures:

e Cease Fire Immediately.

e Notify the RSO.

e Follow all instructions given by the RSO.

e Offer assistance if you are able.

e Take charge of the situation. Determine seriousness of injury.

e Render aid. First-aid kit is located in the RSO duty pack.

e Use RSO radio to notify manager on duty to call for help. Manager on duty will call 911 or the
appropriate emergency number(s).

e Direct help to location. Stand post by the main gate to direct emergency personnel as needed.

e There is an Automatic Defibrillator device located in the behind the desk of the main building.

e Take notes as soon as practical. Interview witnesses and get written statements. Safety Incident
report sheets are located in the RSO duty pack.

Y. First Aid Procedures

All personnel rendering first aid should be aware of the precautions surrounding bloodborne pathogens
in the event of an accident. The following guidelines should be followed if someone is injured and you
come in contact with biohazardous materials including but not limited to: blood, secretions,
cerebrospinal fluid, synovial fluid, pleural fluid, pericardial fluid, peritoneal fluid, amniotic fluid, anybody
fluid visibly contaminated with blood, any un-affixed organ or tissue from a human living or dead, and
the disposal of cleaning items and first aid dressings.

Universal precautions should be used; all blood and body fluids listed above must be treated as
potentially infectious.

Government guidelines can be found at www.OSHA.gove, search for OSHA Occupational Exposure
to Bloodborne Pathogens.

Z. Personal Protective Equipment

The following equipment should be used when coming in contact with biohazardous material:

1. Gloves, eye and face protection
2. Fluid-proof over garments
3. Shoe coverings

Page 24 of 59


http://www.osha.gove/

4. Resuscitation mouthpieces for CPR

AA. Procedure for Cleaning Surfaces Contaminated with Biohazardous
Material

Only those personnel trained and designated as the Bloodborne Pathogen Team should be in charge of
the cleanup procedure. In addition to training, each individual should be inoculated for Hepatitis C.
Your local physician is capable of administering the vaccine regimen.

1. An approved Bloodborne Pathogen Cleanup Kit must be used for cleaning if at all possible.

2. If alarge amount of blood or other biohazardous material exists on surfaces or on equipment, the
area must be roped off with "Caution Biohazard" tape. The personnel in charge of the cleanup must
adorn whatever amount of personal protective equipment is needed for protection. The
biohazardous material must be wiped up with paper towels or sprinkled with liquid-congealing
powder. The paper towels or powder must then be placed in a red biohazard bag.

3. The surface, floor, or equipment must then be decontaminated using an approved germicidal
liquid. The solution must remain on the surface for ten minutes or as directed and then wiped off
with water. In addition to commercially available germicides, a 1-part solution of sodium
hypochlorite (common household bleach) to 10 parts water prepared daily is an effective
germicide.

4. For asmall drop of blood or other biohazardous material that exists on a surface or equipment,
wipe off with approved germicidal liquid. Do not use rubbing alcohol as a cleaning solution as it
does not kill viruses. The solution must remain on equipment or surface for 10 minutes and then
wipe off with water.

Disposal of Contaminated Material (i.e., paper towels, personal protective equipment, saturated
dressing):

All contaminated materials including personal protective equipment must be placed in a red biohazard
bag; the bag must be closed with a metal twist closure or tied in a knot. The bag must then be takento a
Biohazard Laboratory for proper disposal.

BB. Facility Operating Procedures
Main Building - Opening Procedure

Designated manager/person will:
1. Unlock the main door.
Turn on lights and open window curtains in all customer areas.
Make bank run for prior day/weekend business deposits as well as change orders.
Put out rental guns.
Stock ammunition and any other necessary retail items from back-stock.
Wipe-down/clean retail areas, counters, floors, and bathrooms as needed.
Check out radio for communications with RSOs and test as each RSO reporting for duty checks out
his/her radio to ensure everyone has proper and working communications.
8. Verify and make ready range rental/retail items:
a. Leadsleds
b. Shooting bags

Nou s wN

Page 25 of 59



Spotting scopes
Binoculars

Bullseye Target Camera
Eye protection

Ear protection

Targets

Ammunition

T ho Qo

Store/Building - Closing Procedure

1. Verify that all range rental items have been checked in, accounted for, and cleaned for the next
business day.
a. Leadsleds
Shooting bags
Spotting scopes
Binoculars
Bullseye Target Camera
Eye protection
Ear protection
Targets
i.  Ammunition
2. Check in communication equipment. Verify all equipment checked out has been checked-
in and are hooked up to be charged for the next business day use.
3. Empty garbage cans taking all trash to the dumpster.

S0 oo0oT

4. Putrental guns away in vault.

5. Close out cash drawer using the system's end of day closing process and prepare bank deposit to
be deposited the next business day.

6. Put cash drawer and bank deposit away in vault.

7. Turn off all other equipment.

8. Turn off lights and close window curtains in all customer areas.

9. Ensure all outside doors are locked from the outside.

Range - Opening Procedure

All RSOs reporting for duty will:
1. Check out RSO duty pack
2. Ensure all items are in RSO duty pack:
Copy of this SOP
Incident Reports
FULL first aid kit
Tourniquet
Pens/Pencils
Sharpie Marker
Note Pad
Witness statement sheets
Rubber Gloves
Trauma Kit
Range inspection sheets

AT T S@ A0 Q0 oo

Page 26 of 59



3. Check out communication equipment and test with staff on duty

4. If not wearing an approved safety shirt, check out RSO vest from desk.
5. Fill assigned range/bay water cooler(s) with sufficient bottled water and ice and place in designated
area(s).
6. If a private event scheduled for a designated range:
a. Review "Event Checklist" and perform the appropriate tasks:
i. Post appropriate "Event" signage on the range(s) announcing a closed range event
ii. Ensure appropriate targets are made ready for event and placed on range(s) as
necessary and outlined in event checklist
iii. Ensure appropriate shooting line/stations are identified and made ready
iv. Ensure appropriate supplies - garbage cans, brass buckets,
v. ldentify event spokesperson prior to event starting and coordinate duties of any
volunteers and/or event staff
vi. Give safety briefing for event with all participants to include those not shooting -
SAFETY FIRST!
7. Verify and make ready rental/retail items (all ammunition only available in store):
a. Leadsleds
Shooting bags
Spotting scopes
Binoculars
Bullseye Target Camera
Eye protection
Ear protection
Targets

> 0 o0 o

CC.Range - Operating Procedure

1. Range inspection:

a. Ensure that there are no hazards/obstructions between the firing line and the impact
area. keep the area clean.

Correct any problems before opening the range.

c. If aproblem is found that can't be corrected immediately you will have to determine if
the range/bay can be run safely with the existing problem. For example: If a section of
the primary impact berm is damaged or eroded away, the range could still be opened
but the affected section/bench will not be used. However, if you determine that the
range cannot be operated safely - DO NOT OPEN THE RANGE/BAY. Report the problem
to the manager as soon as possible so that range operators/owners can address the
problem; hang a sign so that every RSO coming to the range will be aware of the
problem.

2. Supplies:

a. Extratargets, safety glasses, and ear protection will be made available to
shooter(s) in limited quantities by the RSO for a fee.

3. Make sure all target frames are in good working condition. Replace backer boards as needed.
4. For each shooter using the range:

a. Shooter(s) must present a current day receipt for range use or member card to the

RSO on duty.

b. Shooter(s) must present a range safety video card in order to use any of the ranges and
be assigned a bench by the RSO. Members will have seen the range safety video as part

Page 27 of 59



5.

of the membership application process.

c. Friends of employees are paying customers - not free loaders. Friends are to be treated
as a customer and follow the same rules as a paying customer.

d. Family of employees are defined as a spouse, and single sons and daughters of the
employee and/or spouse under the age of twenty-one (21). Any single sons and
daughters of the employee and/or spouse that is a full-time student under the age of
twenty-five (25) shall be construed to be "family." Family of employees may shoot for
no fees, but only if there are operating range benches available. Paying customers have
priority.

e. Upon successful current day receipt and safety video card - or member card -
presentation, RSO assigns a bench to shoot from.

f. Any rental items such as a lead sled, shooting bag, spotting scope, or other item, a
receipt must be presented and surrendered to staff prior to staff issuing rental item.

g. When a shooter(s) has completed their shooting session and rental items are returned
to staff, brass policed and bench area cleaned up, the RSO will inform the desk clerk so
shooter(s) can close-out their tab.

In the event of an incident:

a. ANY minor injury - slide bite, forehead scope event, or any other minor injury event that
draws blood or otherwise injures a shooter or by-stander, an incident report will be filled
out by the RSO and signed by the shooter(s) - or witness if shooter(s) is not able to sign.

b. ANY Catastrophic or serious/fatal injury - RSO or ANY shooter/bystander on the range
will call a CEASE FIRE! RSO will radio all RSOs and staff on duty to CEASE FIRE on all
range/bays and lock-down the entire facility while emergency and first responders
perform necessary tasks. Range closure may be necessary, and in the case of a range
closure of this nature, SAFETY FIRST by following first responder and RSO directions
followed by SAFE egress of shooters and members from the range to either the main
store building or from the property as directed.

c. ANY Accidental Discharge - RSO will fill out an incident report and have shooter(s)
and/or witness(es) acknowledge and sign report. It will be up to the RSO to determine
if the shooter(s) can remain on the range or if their shooting session is concluded.

Making the Line Hot

1.

After all shooters are back from putting out target frames or changing targets and are back behind
the benches and the firing line, double check to ensure that no one is down range.

After confirming that the range is clear and it is safe to shoot, announce: "PUT ON YOUR EYE

AND EAR PROTECTION. "

After confirming that everyone on the range has put on their ear and eye protection, announce:
"THE LINE IS HOT, YOU MAY COMMENCE FIRING WHEN YOU ARE READY."

Fly Hot Range Flag (red flag)

An RSO must always be monitoring the firing line condition. If the RSO must help a shooter and is
on duty alone, the line must be shut down until he is free to continue his duty.

Making the Line Safe

1.

2.

A couple of minutes before calling a cease-fire, warn shooters of the upcoming target change by
announcing: "LAST ROUND, ONE MORE ROUND BEFORE CEASE-FIRE."
Once you have determined that adequate time has elapsed, (couple of minutes for shooters to

Page 28 of 59



fire their last round), then announce: "WE ARE MAKING THE LINE SAFE. CEASE-FIRE, CEASE-FIRE.
UNLOAD ALL FIREARMS AND REMOVE DETACHABLE MAGAZINES. OPEN YOUR FIREARM'S
ACTION, PUT THE SAFETY ON, AND STEP BACK AWAY FROM THE BENCHES BEHIND THE FIRING
LINE. DO NOT TOUCH ANY FIREARM UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE. STAY BEHIND THE FIRING LINE
UNTIL IT HAS BEEN MADE SAFE."

3. Go down the firing line and inspect all firearms. Confirm that:

a. Allfirearms are unloaded with detachable magazines removed.

b. Their actions are open with chambers empty and visible (chamber flags inserted if available)
and safeties applied.

c. Ifan action cannot be locked open, use an empty case, chamber flag, or other inert object
to keep the action from fully closing.

d. Muzzleloaders unloaded, visibly uncapped (or in the case of flintlocks the pan unprimed
and the frizzen open and the hammer down).

e. Everyone is standing back behind the firing line, away from the benches.

f. No one is touching a firearm.

4. Once you are satisfied that it is safe to go down range, fly the cease fire flag (white flag) and
announce: "THE LINE IS SAFE. YOU CAN NOW GO DOWN RANGE AND CHANGE TARGETS.
THERE IS TO BE NO HANDLING OF FIREARMS UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE."

5. Remind shooters to:

a. Stay away from the shooting benches and stay behind the firing line while people are
forward of the benches down range. Spent cases around the benches are not to be
picked up now. They can be picked up later when all shooters have returned back
behind the firing line and the RSO gives the command to approach the benches.

b. Take staplers, tape, and any other target items with them down range so as to minimize the
time spent down range.

c. Keep their safety glasses on down range at all times.

d. That now is also a good time to pick up any brass that has fallen forward of the benches and
pad and to deposit it in the designated brass buckets if they don't want it. Brass on the firing
line can be picked up after the RSO gives the command to do so after all shooters have
returned behind the firing line.

e. Bringtheir target frames back if they are done shooting.

Range - Closing Procedure

All RSOs closing the range will:

1. Make the line safe for the last time. Verify firearms are empty and cleared prior to directing
everyone to case their firearms before declaring the line safe and allowing shooters down
range.

Maintain observation of the line until all shooters have removed their firearms from the range.

Put any equipment such as sandbags and rests in their storage location.

Pick up all trash and dispose of properly. Sweep off shooting area if required.

Place stools on top of shooting benches.

Make sure all baffle doors are UP and secured.

After all shooters have left the range, turn off all lights and electrical equipment.

Return spotting scopes and other items to the store to be put away.

Close and lock all doors of supply cabinets and other secured storage.

10 Ensure that everyone has left the range.

11. Ensure all items are in RSO duty pack and replace/refill items that were used for the shift:
1. Copy of this SOP

©ENDU A WN

Page 29 of 59



12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

17.

Incident Reports
FULL first aid kit
Tourniquet
Pens/Pencils
Sharpie Marker
Note Pad
Witness statement sheets
Rubber Gloves
Trauma Kit
1. Range inspection sheets
Check in RSO duty pack.
Check in communications equipment and ensure that it is plugged in to recharge the batteries.
Check in RSO vest, if issued one.
Drain and put away assigned range/bay water cooler(s).
If a match or private event was held for a designated range:
a. Perform the appropriate tasks:
i. Remove "Event" signage on the range(s) announcing a closed range event
ii. Remove event targets and put them away.
iii. Ensure shooting line/stations are cleaned up.
iv. Ensure garbage cans and any other debris are emptied into the
dumpster
v. Ensure any full brass buckets are replaced with empty buckets. All full brass
buckets are to be put in the designated storage area.
Verify and secure rental/retail items (all ammunition only available in store):
a. Leadsleds
Shooting bags
Spotting scopes
Binoculars
Bullseye Target Camera
Eye protection
Ear protection
Targets

Sm 0 o0 T YN

S®m o oo0 T

Page 30 of 59



APPENDIXES

Page 31 of 59



APPENDIX 1: Facilities Use Agreement

This Facilities Use Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on
(“Effective Date”) between The Timberneck Corporation (DBA: The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range
(“Auxiliary”) and (“User”). The Auxiliary and the User are
sometimes referred to collectively as the “Parties.

Auxiliary, The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range is located at: 4392 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA
23890 (“Range”). User, is located at

For and in consideration of the following promises, covenants and conditions, Auxiliary and User
hereby agree as follows:

Use of Facility
Auxiliary hereby permits User to use the following premises:

1)

2)

3)

which is located at, 4392 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890 (the “Facility”).

User shall use the Facility for the following event(s) or purpose(s):

1)

2)

3)

(the “Event”) only and for no other event or purpose. User acknowledges that use of the
Facility is conditioned on User and Aukxiliary’s execution of this Agreement and User’s payment of the
required Deposit and Facility Use Fee (if applicable). User acknowledges and understands that no
binding or enforceable agreement regarding use of the Facility shall exist until and unless (1) this
Agreement has been signed by User and received by Auxiliary and (2) User has paid the required
Deposit and Facility Use Fee (if applicable).

Date(s) and Time of Use
User shall be permitted to use the Facility on the following dates:

1) (MMM/DD/YYYY)

2) (MMM/DD/YYYY)

Page 32 of 59



3) (MMM/DD/YYYY)

4) (MMM/DD/YYYY)
5) (MMM/DD/YYYY)
between the hours of 09:00 AM and 06:00 PM and on the day(s) of (the

“Event Date(s)”) only.

Access and Event Times

The Facility access and use must be within the time specified above. Date(s) and use times include
individual/organization preparation, decorating, and or rehearsal time, as well as time after the Event to
remove decoration, User equipment, and other items.

Deposit and Facility Use Fee (if applicable)

User agrees to pay to Auxiliary a Deposit of S within five business days of the execution of this
Agreement. User agrees to pay to Auxiliary a Facility Use Fee in the amount of $ for the use of the
Facility.

The Facility Use Fee must be received by the Auxiliary at least 30 days before the Event Date. If either
the Deposit or Facility Use Fee is not timely received by the Auxiliary, this Agreement shall be
automatically void and User shall have no right to use the Facility.

The deposit is non-refundable and non-transferable. If the User cancels the Event, User shall forfeit
the deposit. Cancellations must be received 15 business days prior to Event Date, or no refund of the
Facility Use Fee will be provided.

Responsible Party/Event Coordinating Deadline.

The person(s) who completes and signs this Agreement shall be the Responsible Party. The
Responsible Party shall coordinate all Event details with the Auxiliary and agrees to complete this
coordination for the following:

The Responsible Party, or designated representative, must be the host and in attendance throughout the
Event. The Responsible Party shall take all reasonable actions to assure event safety, to prevent damage
to the Facility and equipment, and to see that these conditions and other policies and regulations,

Page 33 of 59



outlined in this Agreement are met.
User’s Obligations.

a.  User shall not violate any Federal, State, or local law, or rules of the Auxiliary, the Owners/
Investors of the Timberneck Corporation, or the Range. User shall not allow any Federal, State, local
law, or rules of the Auxiliary, the Owners/ Investors of the Timberneck Corporation, or the Range to be
violated.

b.  User shall not make any alterations to the Facility, any fixtures, building systems, or equipment. At
the end of the Event, the Facility shall be left in a clean, safe condition. The User shall remove from the
Facility all property and materials belonging to the User. If User damages the Facility, Auxiliary shall
have the option of either (i) requiring User, at User’'s own expense and risk, to restore the Facility to
the condition existing prior to the Event, or

(ii) itself making the repairs and restorations to the Facility. Auxiliary shall have sole and complete
discretion in deciding which option to exercise. If Auxiliary decides to itself make the repairs and
restorations to the Facility, the costs for same shall be borne solely by User. User shall reimburse
Auxiliary for any repairs or restoration necessary to repair damages to

the Facility caused by User or the attendees of the Event no later than 30 business days after
Auxiliary presents User with a written statement or invoice reflecting the nature and costs of the
repairs.

C. User shall exercise care in the use of the Facility and adjacent Range areas and shall comply
with guidelines to reduce excessive wear or damage. User agrees to keep the Facility and adjacent areas
on the Range in a clean and orderly condition and to remove all waste material at the conclusion of
the Event, unless Auxiliary agrees, in writing, to be responsible for cleanup, removal of waste or
recycling.

d. Specific limitations apply as to the use of tape, balloons, glitter, candles, markers, tack, nails, other
such materials, and signage. Decorations must be fire retardant. User should consult with the
Auxiliary for a full overview of allowable decorations and signage items and to appropriately
accommodate User’s needs. Decorations/signage which causes damage or additional cleaning
requirements will result in additional charges to the User. All decorations and all outdoor and indoor
directional signage must be removed by the User immediately following the Event

User’s Property

Neither the Auxiliary nor Range insure the personal property of the User its employees, agents, guests
or attendees against damage or loss by any means. User assumes the risk of any such damage or loss.

No Assignment or Subletting
This Agreement is non-assignable and non-transferable.
Right to Enter

Auxiliary reserves the right to enter and inspect the Facility at any time for any purpose during the Event.
User shall follow all directives from Auxiliary staff.

Page 34 of 59



Insurance Requirements

User shall procure and maintain for the duration of the rental period insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the rental of
the facilities and the activities of the renter, his guests, agents, representatives, employees, or
subcontractors. The cost of such insurance shall be borne by User.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering
Commercial General Liability (CGL) on an “occurrence” basis, including products-completed
operations, personal and advertising injury, with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Other Insurance Provisions

The general liability policy is to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a) For claims arising out of liability arising out of this Agreement and the User’s use of the Facility,
the User’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Auxiliary and any insurance
or self-insurance maintained by the Auxiliary shall be excess of the User’s insurance and shall not
contribute with it.

b) The User’s Insurance Company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the Auxiliary for
losses paid under the terms of any policy covering the facility rental or any activities of the User, its
guests, agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.

Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A-VII, unless
otherwise acceptable to the Auxiliary.

Verification of Coverage

User shall furnish the Auxiliary with original certificates and amendatory endorsements effecting
coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements must be actually received by the
Auxiliary at least 15 days before the Event Date. If the certificates and endorsements are not timely
delivered to and received by the Auxiliary, this Agreement shall be automatically and immediately void
and User shall have no right to use the Facility. Auxiliary may in its sole discretion, decide not to
approve or accept User’s insurance coverage in which event this Agreement shall be automatically
and immediately void and User shall have no right to use the Facility

Special Events Coverage

Special events coverage may be available for an additional fee to provide the liability insurance
required by this Agreement. User can obtain additional information and cost from the Auxiliary.

Right to Modify

Auxiliary reserves the right to modify these insurance requirements at any time without any advance
notice, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, prior events, insurer, coverage,

Page 35 of 59



or other special circumstances.
Reassignment of Facilities

Should the Facility become unavailable due to an emergency, the Auxiliary reserves the right to reassign
the User to another Range facility or reschedule the event to the next available date.

Termination/Cancellation

This Agreement to use the Facility is granted subject to observance of the Facility’s standard
operating procedures, polices, and regulations. The Auxiliary may revoke this Agreement
effective immediately upon User’s failure to timely comply with any pre-Event requirement, for any
violation of use conditions or regulations required by the Auxiliary or governmental agency, or at any
time for misrepresentation. The Auxiliary may terminate any part of this Agreement without notice in
the event of an emergency which, in the opinion and sole discretion of the Auxiliary, would make the
Event unfeasible. Refunds of any Deposits and/or Facility Use Fees paid will be determined at the
discretion of the Auxiliary, on a case-by-case basis.

Modification of this Agreement

This Agreement contains the entire agreement and any modifications, changes or amendments to
this Agreement must be written and signed by all the Parties to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the
above, the Parties to this Agreement incorporate by reference, as though fully set forth herein, those
specific paragraphs initialed by the Parties in the attached Facilities Use Agreement Addendum.

Acceptance of Terms

| have read and understand the above terms and conditions and agree to abide by these terms and
conditions.

Printed Name

Date:

Signhature

Date:

Howell P. Godfrey Jr.
President, The Timberneck Corporation

Page 36 of 59



APPENDIX 2: Safety Incident Report

Documented by:

Date:

Address:

Time of Incident:

Telephone Number:

Name of person(s) involved:

Indicate Type of Incident

[ ] Accidental Discharge [] Personal Injury

[ ] Other

[ ] Near Miss [] Property

Put a mark (X) under the appropriate response

Yes

No

Was the person(s) involved a member of BOSR?

Was the proper protective equipment being worn?

Was the incident the result of firearm/ equipment malfunction?

Did the incident seem to be the result of improper/ disregard for/ lack of
training/ lack of firearm and safety education?

Was First Aid administered?

Was 911 or other emergency personnel called to the scene?

Was CPR or use of the defibrillator required?

Were bodily fluids/ biohazardous materials properly cleaned up?

First-Aid kit need refilled?

Biohazard Kit need refilled?

All "NO" answers or "Other" type of incident must be commented on in the space provided below. Provide
as much detail as possible for the incident being reported. All incidents must be reported to management

for investigation.

1. Describe the nature and extent of the incident (specify part of body):

2. Describe how the incident occurred:

Page 37 of 59




3. Disposition (specify name of hospital, telephone numbers, time of transport, etc.):

4. Notification of next of kin (specify time, person contacted, and method):

5. Location of incident and conditions of area:

6. Describe steps taken to preserve the scene (equipment, photographs, etc.):
7. Comments:

8. Follow-up:

Signature: DATE:

(Add additional blank pages if necessary)

Page 38 of 59



APPENDIX 3: Eye Witness Form

What did you see?

What did you hear?

Page 39 of 59



What did you do?

Signed Date

Page 40 of 59



APPENDIX 4: Replacement and Repair Costs

The following chart of costs for damages to facility equipment as the result of careless or accidental firearm
discharges or other negligent/accidental actions are to be identified and used by the RSO when filling out

the Safety Incident Report with fines/fees:

What

Fine/Fee

Baffle Strike

510

Target Stand Damage

S50 + Replacement Cost

Spotting Scope Damage

S50 + Replacement Cost

Binocular Damage

S50 + Replacement Cost

Chrono Damage

S50 + Replacement Cost

Bullseye Camera Damage

S50 + Replacement Cost

Facility Structures

5200 + Actual Repair Costs

All other equipment not listed above

S50 + Replacement Cost

Page 41 of 59



APPENDIX 5: Emergency Report Sheet

Effective Date:

EMERGENCY COMMUNCATIONS

. Primary Secondary .
Contact zg:;z: Address Phone Phone Ff;mJ:;Y: if:otr::j;y
Number Number 9 y 9 ¥
Waverly L1> Bank 3t (804) 834-
Rescue Squad Waverly, VA 2835
g 23890
Sussex zszzuizrghsi::; (434) 246-
Sheriff’s Dept. Creek, VA 23882 5000
Waverly Vol. 119 Bank St. (804) 834-
Fire Dept Waverly, VA 2324
Pt 23890
Sussex 15080
Emergency Courthouse Rd, (434) 246-
Operations Sussex, VA 8224
Center 23884
Howell 4362 General
Mahone Hwy, (757) 817- (757) 871-
Range Control GOS:rey Waverly, VA 7292 0357
) 23890
Howell
(757) 945- (202) 465-
Cellular Phone Go;jrfrey 6285 0920

IMMEDIATE RESPONES FOR INJURIES OR ILLNESS

e Call a cease fire if the injured is near the firing line or downrange. Ensure that all guns are unloaded and

clear.

scene and the injured person’s gear.

1. Specific Location or Address of Incident with Directions

a. Location:

Address: 4362 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890

c. Directions:

1)Head north on State Rte. 735 toward Thorton Square

2)Turn right onto VA-40 E

will notify EMS at (434) 246-8224 from the nearest telephone/ radio
located at 4362 General Mahone Hwy, Waverly, VA 23890 and provide the following information:

will coordinate edging or pulling of targets, if possible, and securing the

Page 42 of 59




PNV~ WNPE

3)Turn left after McDonald’s (on the left)
4)Continue to follow US-460 W
5)Destination will be on the right

Telephone number that you are calling from:

Your name:

What happened and possible hazards for rescuers:

Condition of injured orill:

First aid provided:
Wait for EMS to hang up first. Return to the injured and continue care until EMS arrives.

is currently certified in American Red Cross (ARC) Standard First Aid and
CPR. He/ she will evaluate the situation for hazards, protect the injured, and provide first aid until relieved
by more qualified personnel, e.g., physician or EMS. Person listed above will:

Identify self to the injured.

Inform injured of training. (American Red Cross Standard First Aid & CPR)

Inform injured of aid offered.

Receive verbal permission from injured prior to giving care.

Refrain from giving care to a conscious injured person whom objects.

Assume implied permission if the injured is unconscious or unable to respond.

Move the injured only if life is endangered.

Check injured for life threatening condition before providing care. Provide care only within level of
training.

Never dispense aspirin or medications; administer activated charcoal or syrup of Ipecac (or other
treatments) unless directed by EMS or Emergency Operations Center.

will retrieve the first-aid kit located at the check-in desk and assist EMS

personnel as needed.
If the incident involves chemical burns, an eye flush station is located at the check-in desk.

If the incident involves a gun injury, will notify police and preserve the scene
as it appeared at the time of the incident.

Will go to the range entrance and direct EMS personnel to the injured.

Page 43 of 59



LN, A

COORDINATION

Will supervise the situation and ensure fulfillment of emergency

procedures by:

Getting names of witnesses and taking statements.

Providing EMS with treatment release forms, medical history information (maintained on employees and
staff) and next of kin information for the injured.

Notifying next of kin once EMS has examined the injured and prepared for transportation to a medical
facility.

Completing injury report forms.

Notifying official of the organization range, club, etc. concerning activation of the emergency plan.
Notifying insurance company (personal and/ or organization as appropriate).

Filing copies of the injure report form with records as appropriate.

Following up with physician for recommendations and release prior to allowing ill or injured to participate.
Following up with physician for recommendations and release prior to allowing ill or injured to participate.

HELICOPTER MEDICAL EVACUATION (MEDEVAC)

A suitable MEDEVAC site is available at (location and coordinate). Orange flags, smoke signals,
chemical illumination are available for marking the landing site, and are stored at the check-in desk.
Will mark the landing site and guide the MEDEVAC approach and landing.
If smoke is displayed, initiate smoke downwind of the landing zone.

RANGE EMERGENCY RESPONSE PACKET

An emergency response packet for this range dated is on file with EMS, police,
and the fire departments. The packet contains phone numbers, aerial photographs, maps, designations of
possible routes, helicopter and medical evacuation sites and hazards, assembly area(s), floor plans of
buildings indicating gas lines/ mains, electrical sources, and specified locations of hazardous materials with
listings of types and quantities.

Page 44 of 59



APPENDIX 6: Range Use Agreement

1) Fill Out Both Sheet (Front & Back) 2) Watch Video 3) Get in Line at
the Check-In Desk

CUSTOMER INFORMATION (PLEASE WRITE LEGIBLY):
NAME:
ADDRESS:

CITY: STATE: ZIP:

TELEPHONE:

EMAIL ADDRESS:

ID TYPE: NUMBER:

HAVE YOU EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF A FELONY? YES NO

IS THERE ANY LEGAL REASON THAT PROHIBITS YOU FROM POSSESSING A
FIREARM? YES NO

HOW WOULD YOU RATE YOUR LIVE FIREARMS EXPERIENCE?

15T TIMER BEGINNER INTERMEDIATE EXPERT

HOW DID YOU HEAR ABOUT US?

RADIO EMAIL SOCIAL MEDIA  WEBSITE DROVE BY FACILITY WORD-OF-MOUTH
OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY):

Page 45 of 59



BY COMPLETING THIS FORM, YOU AGREE TO GIVE THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE PERMISSION TO
CONTACT YOU USING THE EMAIL ADDRESS PROVIOED. YOU MUST BE AT LEAST 18 YEARS OF AGE TO COMPLETE THIS
FORM. YOUR PHONE, ADDRESS AND EMAIL ADDRESS WILL BE KEPT CONFIDENTIAL AND NOT PROVIOED TO 3%° PARTIES.

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

DATE: _ /_/ CHECK IN TIME: CHECK OUT TIME:
SAFETY BRIEFING VERIFIED BY:
ASSIGNED RANGE #: LANE #:

GUN ID: GUN ID: GUN ID: GUN ID:

Page 46 of 59



APPENDIX 7: Waiver and Release from Liability Agreement

I, , HEREBY WAIVE AND RELEASE, indemnify, hold harmless and forever discharge THE
BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION and its agents, managers, members,
sponsors , employees , officers, directors, affiliates, successors and assigns, of and from any and all claims, demands,
debts, contracts, expenses, causes of actions, lawsuits, damages and liabilities , of every kind and nature, whether
known or unknown, in law or equity, that | ever had or may have, arising from or in any way related to my participation
in any of the events or activities conducted by, on the premises of, or for the benefit of, THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR
SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION, provided that this waiver of liability does not apply to any acts
of gross negligence, or intentional, willful or wanton misconduct.

| UNDERSTAND THAT THE ACTIVITIES THAT | WILL PARTICIPATE IN ARE INHERENTLY DANGEROUS, THAT FIREARMS BY
THEIR VERY NATURE ARE UNPREDICTABLE AND MAY CAUSE SERIOUS OR GRIEVOUS INJURIES, INCLUDING BODILY
INJURY, DAMAGE TO PERSONAL PROPERTY AND/OR DEATH. | UNDERSTAND THAT CERTAIN RISKS, DANGERS, AND
INJURIES DUE TO INADEQUATE OR DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT, AND ALL OTHER POTENTIAL DANGERS

INHERENT TO ACTIVITIES INVOLVING FIREARMS EXIST. On behalf of myself, my heirs, assigns and next of kin, | waive all
claims for damages, injuries and death sustained by me or to my property that | may have against the aforementioned

released party to such activity whether caused by the ordinary negligence of the released party or otherwise, with the

exception of acts of gross negligence, or intentional, willful or wanton misconduct as indicated above.

By this Waiver, | assume any risk, and take full responsibility and waive any claims of personal injury, death or damage
to personal property associated with THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK
CORPORATION, including but not limited to target shooting, using the facilities or equipment in any manner, form or
fashion, and engaging in any other related activities. In the event that | cause injury to another person or their property
at THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION, | agree to indemnify and hold
harmless THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION and its agents,
managers, members, sponsors, employees, officers, directors, affiliates, successors and assigns from any and all claims
for injuries, damages brought by that injured person as a result of my acts or omissions whether negligent or otherwise.

I hereby expressly consent to THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION and
its agents, managers, members, sponsors, employees, officers, directors, affiliates, successors and assigns, the
irrevocable and perpetual right to use my picture, image, voice and other reproductions of the same, (whether by still
camera image or video film) in any manner for marketing, advertising purposes or for the purpose of trade. | waive and
release any claim | may have against THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK
CORPORATION and its agents, managers, members, sponsors , employees , officers , directors, affiliates , successors and
assigns for defamation , invasion of privacy or publicity and any other claims in connection with such use by THE
BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION and its agents, managers , members,
sponsors , employees, officers, directors, affiliates , successors and assigns.

This WAIVER AND RELEASE contains the entire agreement between the parties, and supersedes any prior written oral
agreements between them concerning the subject matter of this WAIVER AND RELEASE. The provisions of this WAIVER
AND RELEASE may be waived, altered, amended or repealed, in whole or in part, only upon the prior written consent of
all parties.

The provisions of this WAIVER AND RELEASE will continue in full force and effect even after the termination of the
activities conducted by, on the premises of, or for the benefit of THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE and
THE TIMBERNECK CORPORATION, whether by agreement, by operation of law, or otherwise.

I have read, understand and fully agree to the terms of this WAIVER AND RELEASE. | understand and confirm that by
signing this WAIVER AND RELEASE | have given up considerable future legal rights. | have signed this Agreement freely,
voluntarily, under no duress or threat of duress, without inducement, promise or guarantee being communicated to me.
My signature is proof of my intention to execute a complete and unconditional WAIVER AND RELEASE of all liability to

Page 47 of 59



the full extent of the law. | am 18 years of age or older and mentally competent to enter into this waiver.

Printed Name: DATE:

Signature:

THE BLACKWATER OUTDOOR SHOOTING RANGE DATE:

Received by:

Page 48 of 59



APPENDIX 8: Release, Wavier, Indemnification, Hold Harmless, and Assumption of
Risk Agreement

WHERE AS, in consideration of being permitted to attend a course for instruction in guns, for the
instruction in guns, for use of premises, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Undersigned agrees to the following:

Undersigned agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend (hereinafter
referred to as “Instructor”), from any and all fault, liabilities, costs, expenses, claims, demands or lawsuits
arising out of, related to or connected with: Undersigned’s presence at and/ or participation in the course of
instruction; the discharge of guns by Undersigned; Undersigned’s presence on or use of the range, buildings,
land and premises (“Premises”); and, any and all acts or omissions of Undersigned.

Undersigned furthermore waives for himself/ herself and for his/ her executors, personal
representatives, administrators, assignees, heirs and next of kin, any and all rights and claims for damages,
losses, demands and any other actions or claims whatsoever, which he/ she may have or which may arise
against Instructor (including but not limited to the death of Undersigned and/ or any and all injuries,
damages or illnesses suffered by Undersigned or Undersigned’s property), which may, in any way
whatsoever, arise out of, be related to or be connected with: the course of instruction: the Premises:
Undersigned’s property (whether or not entrusted to Instructor); and, the discharge of guns. Instructor shall
not be liable for, and Undersigned, on behalf of himself/ herself and on behalf of his/ her executors, personal
representatives, administrators, assignees, heirs and next of kin, hereby expressly releases the Instructor
from any and all such claims and liabilities.

Undersigned hereby expressly assumes the risk of taking part in the course for instruction in guns and
taking part in the activities on the Premises, which include, but are not limited to, instruction in the use of
guns, the discharge of guns and the firing of live ammunition.

Undersigned hereby acknowledges and agrees that Undersigned has read this instrument and
understands its terms and is executing this instrument voluntarily. Undersigned furthermore hereby
acknowledges and agrees that he/ she has read, understands and will at all times abide by all range rules and
procedures and any other rules and procedures stated by the Instructor.

Undersigned expressly agrees that this instrument is intended to be as broad and inclusive as permitted
by law, and that if any provision of this instrument is held invalid or otherwise unenforceable, the
enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired thereby. No remedy conferred by any of the
specific provisions of this instrument is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy now or hereafter existing at law or
in equity or by statute or otherwise. The election of any one or more remedy hereunder by the Instructor
shall not constitute and wavier of Instructor’s right to pursue other available remedies. This instrument binds
Undersigned and his/ her executors, personal representatives, administrators, assignees, heirs and next of
kin.

UNDERSIGNED:

Printed Name: DATE:

Signature:

Page 49 of 59



APPENDIX 9: Range Inspection Checklist

Inspected by:

Range Type:

DATE:

Yes

No

Controlled Access/ Fencing/ Gates Closed

Flags or Signs Displayed

Left and Right Range Limits Displayed

Backstop/ Impact Area Inspected

Number Boards Painted and Visible

Target Frames/ Mounts in Good Repair

Firing Line Marked

Firing Points Numbered/ Clean

Shooting Benches/ Tables Inspected

Sandbags/ Gun Rests on Hand

Ready Line/ Area Marked

Spectator Area Designated

Scoring Area Established

Supplies Available

RSO Control Area Centralized

Emergency Communications Working

First-Aid Kit Filled/ Accessible

PA System/Bullhorn Working

Range Rules Posted

Bulletin Board Hung

Gun Racks Available

Empty Trash Receptacles Available

Brass/ Dud Buckets Labeled

Wash Area Identified

Lockable Storage

Comments:

Page 50 of 59



APPENDIX 10: Range Safety Brief

Follow this outline when conducting range safety briefings. Issue copies of the shooting range rules to all
range users. Conduct the briefing on the range immediately prior to range use. Stand where posted rules,
demonstrations and explanations of range equipment can be included in the briefing. Involve range users.
Have them read rules from posters and handouts. Ask questions to reinforce understanding. If guns are used
during the briefing, the RSO must follow the NRA Gun Safety Rules.

A Purpose of The Shooting Event

e State the purpose, e.g., recreational shooting.
e Provide an overview of the event.
e State the total number of shots and time available.

Range Personnel

e State where range personnel will be located.

® Introduce range personnel.

e Explain that their role is to ensure safety.

e Indicate how they may be identified. E.g., orange vest and hat.

B. Range Layout and Limits

e Conduct a range orientation on, or within view of, the range.
C. Range Safety Rules

1. NRA Gun Safety Rules
i Three Fundamental NRA Rules for Safe Gun Handling
Ask: What is the first rule for safe gun handling?
1. ALWAYS keep the gun pointed in a safe direction.
Ask: What does a “safe direction” mean?
The gun is pointed so that even if it were to go off, it would not cause injury or
damage to anyone or anything.
Ask: What is the second rule for safe gun handling?
2. ALWAYS keep your finger off the trigger until ready to shoot.
Ask: Unless shooting, where should the shooter’s finger rest?
The finger should rest alongside the gun, i.e., on the frame, receiver, or trigger
guard.
Ask: What is the third rule for safe gun handling?
3. ALWAYS keep the gun unloaded until ready to use. (Emphasize that safeties can
fail. Safe gun handling rules should be followed all the time!)

2. Rules for Safe Use

i Know your target and what is beyond.
ASK: What is meant by “know your target and what is beyond?”

Page 51 of 59



1. The shooter must be sure that projectiles will safely impact into the backstop
ii. Be sure the gun is safe to operate.
iii. Know how to use the gun safely.

ASK: What is meant by “know how to use the gun safely?”
1. Shooters need to know how the gun operates, its basic parts, how to safely open
and close the action, and how to remove ammunition or projectiles.
iv. Use only the correct ammunition for your gun.

ASK: What is meant by “use only the correct ammunition?”

1. Only ammunition designed for a particular gun can be safely fired in that gun.
Shooters should ensure that the caliber marked on the barrel, ammo box, and
cartridge case match. This is especially true for antique guns.

V. Wear eye and ear protection as appropriate.

ASK: Why should range users wear both eye and ear protection?

1. Many guns are loud, and the noise can cause hearing damage. Guns can also emit
debris, hot gas, and cartridge cases that could cause eye injuries.
2. Users of air gun ranges, including spectators, need eye protection to prevent
injuries from ricochets.
vi. Never use alcohol or drugs or while shooting.

ASK: What type of substance is implied by “never use alcohol or drugs...?”

1. Any substance that may impair normal mental or physical bodily functions.
Examples include prescription and non-prescription drugs, e.g., cold medicines that
may cause drowsiness, nervousness, balance problems, etc.

2. Anyone taking any medication or substance that may impair normal mental or
physical bodily functions is not allowed on the range.

3. General Range Safety Rules

ASK range users to read rules as you (RSO) point to range posters or refer to handouts.

1. Know and obey all range commands.
2. Know where others are at all times.
3. Shoot only at authorized targets.
4 Do not handle a gun or stand at the firing line where guns are present while other
are downrange.
5. Stop shooting immediately upon the command of “Cease Firing”.
ASK: Why is it important to shoot only at authorized targets?
1. Shooting at different targets, e.g., steel targets or at different distances or angels,

may result in hazardous conditions.
ASK: What actions should shooters perform during a cease fire?

1. Stop shooting immediately.
2. Await further instructions from the RSO.
ii. Stoppages

Explain that there are three common ammunition stoppages.

Page 52 of 59



1. A misfire is when a cartridge does not fire after the primer has been struck by the firing
pin.

2. A hangfire is when a perceptible delay in the ignition of the cartridge after the primer
has been stuck by the firing pin.

3. The normal procedure for handling misfires or hangfires is to:

1. Keep the gun pointed down range (safe direction)
2. Wait at least 30 seconds in case it is a hangfire. With black powder guns, wait at least
two minutes.

4. Asquibload is when there is less than normal pressure or bullet velocity after ignition of
the cartridge. The bullet may or may not exit the barrel. Squib loads are identified by
difference in recoil or noise.

5. The normal procedure for handling a squib load is:

1. Keep the gun pointed downrange (safe direction).

2.  Unload the gun — make sure the chamber is empty.

3. Insert a cleaning rod down the barrel from the chamber end (if possible) to make
sure the bullet is not lodged in the barrel.

4. NRA Hygiene Guidelines

Explain that NRA hygiene guidelines are intended to minimize exposure to airborne
particulate lead and cleaning product residues.

Emphasize that everybody exposed at the range or cleaning area — even if he/ she did not
participate in the shooting session — should follow these guidelines.

Remind range users of these guidelines prior to, during, and immediately after occupying the
range.

Refrain from eating, drinking smoking, applying makeup, or otherwise placing hands in
proximity to the mouth or nose while on the range or cleaning a gun.

Wash your hands and face with cold water after leaving the range or cleaning area before
eating or drinking.

Change and wash clothing after a shooting or gun cleaning session to minimize exposure to
airborne particulate lead or solvent and cleaning product residues.

5. Site-Specific Range Rules

ASK: range users to read rules as you (RSO) point to range posters or refer to handouts.

1. NO SHOOTING OVER BACKSTOP IMPACT BERMS EVER!

Armor-piercing and tracer ammunition is not allowed.

Muzzleloading guns are not allowed.

Targets must be placed at the shooter’s eye level to ensure bullets hit the impact area.

Leave dropped ammunition on the floor until the stage of fire is completed and guns are

benched or grounded.

Notify the RSO when there is a gun stoppage or malfunction.

Dy firing is ONLY permitted at the firing line and ONLY when authorized.

8.  All guns must remain unloaded with actions open except when on the firing line and
authorized to be loaded.

9. When guns are benched or grounded, keep the actions open and ejection ports facing
upward so chambers are visible.

vk wn

No

Page 53 of 59



10. Ammunition is not permitted in the cleaning area.

ASK: Why are shooters required to leave dropped ammunition on the floor until firing is
completed and guns are benched or grounded?
1. This policy prevents shooters from unintentionally pointing the gun at other users while
retrieving dropped ammunition, or inadvertently moving in front of the firing line.

ASK: Why are shooters required to notify the RSO of gun stoppage or malfunctions?
1. Notification is critical for safety.

D. FIRING LINE COMMANDS

State and explain standard range commands that will be used for specific shooting events, e.g.,
formal competition rules are specified in NRA Rule Books.

i.  “CEASE FIRE”: To stop all shooting routinely or, in the case of an emergency,
immediately. Participants immediately stop shooting, continue to keep the muzzle
pointed down range, remove finger from the trigger, unload and clear the firearm
placing the firearm on the bench with chamber in view and wait for further
instructions.

ii. "MISSFIRE": To notify the RSO and other participants that a round did not fire when
the trigger was pulled and to alert other shooters along the line that a hazardous
condition may exist.

iii. "MOVE FORWARD": To get shooters into position to prepare to begin shooting.
Shooters will move from behind the ready line to their assigned position. DO NOT
TOUCH FIREARM! Get comfortable, adjust your position make sure you are on the
correct side of the bench.

iv. "PROTECTIVE GEAR ON": To prepare the shooter for a safe experience. Shooters
should put on first their eye protection then ear protection.

v. "YOU MAY PICK UP YOUR FIREARM": To prepare line for firing. Shooters will pick up
their firearm, sight in on the target, make any final adjustments and prepare to load.

vi. "LOAD": To notify the shooters that they may load their first round. Shooters will load
their first round and keep finger off the trigger and stand ready for the next
command.

vii.  "IS THE LINE READY?": To determine if all shooters along the line are ready. All
shooters NOT ready should indicate their status to the RSO. Sufficient time will be
allowed for the shooter to complete his/her preparation.

viii. "READY ON THE RIGHT?": To declare that the shooters have indicated they are ready
on the right side of the range. Any shooter not ready at this command may choose to
either alert the RSO that he/she is not ready or to complete the process of getting
ready before the final command has been given.

ix. "READY ON THE LEFT?": To declare that the shooters have indicated they are ready
on the left side of the range. Any shooter not ready at this command may choose to
either alert the RSO that he/she is not ready or to complete the process of getting
ready before the final command has been given.

X. "READY ON THE FIRING LINE?": To notify all shooters that the range is about to be
under live fire and that if anyone is not ready at that point, he/she should notify the
RSO; Otherwise await the next command. Shooters simply await the next command.

xi. "COMMENCE FIRING" or "HOT RANGE": To declare the range formally open for live

Page 54 of 59



Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

XViii.

XiX.
XX.

XXi.
XXii.

XXiii.

iv.

fire. The shooters may commence the prescribed course of fire.

"SHOOTERS, YOU HAVE x MINUTES REMAINING": To alert all shooters that a general
cease fire is about to be called and to allow the slower shooters to complete the
course of fire.

"COLD RANGE": To inform the firing line that the range is safe. The RSO is telling all
shooters that all guns are unloaded.

"ON THE FIRING LINE": To tell shooters to take their assigned place at their firing
point and prepare to fire, but do not load.

"GO FORWARD, SCORE TARGETS AND PASTE": Authorizes shooters to move
downrange to score, change, remove or repair target faces.

"RANGE IS CLEAR, YOU MAY HANDLE YOUR FIREARMS": Shooters may approach the
firing line and handle their firearms since no personnel are down range.

"MOVE OUT OF POSITION AND REMOVE YOUR EQUIPMENT FROM THE FIRING
LINE": Authorizes shooters to remove their gear.

"POLICE YOUR ASSIGNED FIRING POINT": Shooters are to pick up their spent
ammunition and clean their firing point of all debris.

"AS YOU WERE": Means to disregard the previous command just given.

"CARRY ON": Means to proceed with whatever was being done before the interruption
occurred.

"REMOVE PROTECTIVE GEAR": Shooters may remove protective gear.

"MOVE BACK BEHIND THE READY LINE": Means to move behind the ready line and
wait for further instructions from the RSO.

"YOU MAY GO CHECK YOUR TARGETS": Shooters may move downrange to the target
area.

ASK: What two range commands may be issued by shooters?
“Cease firing” and “Stop”

ASK: What does “misfire” mean?
That the gun failed to fire and a hazardous condition may exist. The misfire could
actually be a hangfire, which is a delay in the ignition of the cartridge.

ASK: What actions are taken during a misfire?
Due to the possibility of a hangfire, the shooter keeps the gun pointed downrange
and waits at least 30 seconds for modern guns, or at least two minutes for
muzzleloading guns, prior to correcting the malfunction.

ASK: Where and when may shooter dry fire?
Only at their firing points and only when authorized to do so.

E. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

N

Take charge of the situation. (Determine seriousness of injury and assigned duties).
Render aid. First-aid kit should be centrally located.

Call for help via radio or telephone. Emergency phone numbers and information list
should be centrally located.

Direct help to location.

Take notes. Emergency report sheet should be located in range SOP’s binder (See
Appendix 3).

Page 55 of 59



APPENDIX 11: Fence Patrol Log

Date

Time

Person

Report of Discrepancies

Page 56 of 59




APPENDIX 12: Range Layout

Site Layout

HEE=E 1

LR

e

e -

s TS
.......

[
>

ﬂx~E|EE|ﬁHHHHHIHIHH = e ,- S O O I

15 Ac?

Page 57 of 59



Rifle Range

\ e

pf ! Ty |II|II |I '
,-,I||,|||| )
1

|I
1
1
1
I
I
I
N
I
I
I
i
1
1§
1

e i,
iIIFIHiII\I|
,.Iilll.lilflill LIF]
ny

IR BT L
O 171 I T A T T T ¥R TP
. . T [T B 1T TS TR TS| TR
ol || 4 i i g ifgn

| J J +|I TLI . 1 ||'|-I I
I TR T TR TR
\ [T :ﬁl LT T l'l \
\ \ | | I A I I
NI I I I I LA
L P owg g o oy o
1 ik arl

AN AR I
\ L
Y

—— | i1 h Il: (] || Iiy || lig ||||||||||| || Il || i
|1|1||'1||||||I|||I| TR IREA T
||.l|]|l|.|1l.|ll.u|1|ll.|llt|l {1

P! ! 1L il i iy n I

] 1 al i | al o i 1]
| ll| ! I|Il / ¥ !“l'" ll,llill II.I-IJ }l“"" 4|I-I| I
dd il |'L reloefonfonfon o

oo fan v

Illl I.II:_ I| II..{I.I III.I |II Il.jlllnlll:j;lll:lj;”ll:.Jlll III: |'III;-I1!I.
—'Irl:ll 11 : ULCI L T T 'm

Page 58 of 59



Handgun/ Shotgun Range

i (T i}
i 1 v e N vy gb I
| iy '||i'.l|fl|'|11[l::;llli.|
AR IR R T ST ALY,
I e P vk vy Ya
\ f I|,|| Wil Wi v Wy Ly
i e w HI IR 'F,-
| s‘- womaoaw oy
] wWow MR

i| W o e
||-|I | :Ilil:ﬁ: Irr' :
| NIRRT

i

||I_*-,' e wlr W
(T

el r.||| 1

11313

1

1 r.l'llllli.llull.'l
'-: |'I|I|'||||||II::: IIII :Irllllll IIIII|I i
|:||||Ili f'.l III-.I IIII: !
IR Il-I I||| ':l II::l.lI I-.': ] 'JI| :II N

i i '! L I T |! ]

i | Wy ey gy

I
I ||'.a.: dia
gl iy

! "-n{l | .-

1 ||l"-I I|||

FE
J

IR (TEN ETUR LRI e
1

Ill L
I |t||j|h|||r”
vifirpnpanpiagal ol
ILY ERY .".1f. nf.-'.h’-u
|

|l.|| Jlr

L'I

i“-f

— 100 ft——

il

Page 59 of 59



Notice of Public Hearings
Sussex County

Pursuant to Section 15.2-2204 of the Virginia Code, notice is hereby given that the Board of
Supervisors will hold a public hearing at its regular meeting on Thursday, December 15, 2022
beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the General District Courtroom — Sussex Judicial Center, 15098
Courthouse Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884 to consider the following:

Conditional Use Permit #2022-04: The applicant, Howell Godfrey Jr. under CUP #2022-04
seeks a conditional use permit for a shooting range on approximately 20 acres of land. The intent
is to have an outdoor shooting range that is available for public use. The property is located on
the north side of Rt. 460 approximately 2 miles northwest from the Town of Waverly.

A copy of the application, along with supporting documentation are available for review on the
County website as well as in the Planning & Zoning Department located at 20135 Princeton
Road, Sussex, Virginia, during regular business hours Monday through Friday from 8:30 a.m. to
5:00 p.m., Phone number (434) 246-1042 or 1043.

Due to the ongoing COVID health crisis, if attending in person face coverings are encouraged
and social distancing measures should be followed. Comments may also be submitted in writing
to bwalkup@sussexcountyva.gov or via mail to the Department of Planning, 20135 Princeton
Road, Sussex, VA 23884, no later than noon on Monday, December 15, 2022. Any persons
needing assistance or accommodations under the provisions of the American Disabilities Act
should contact Sussex County Administration at 434-246-1000 at least seven (7) days in advance
of the hearing.

Submitted by: Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Action Item #6.01
Subject: Historic Courthouse Analysis Findings and Recommendations, Phase 2
Recommendations — Russell Pearlman, Wooten Company; and Andrew Moore, Glave

& Holmes

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Russell Pearlman of the Wooten Company and Andrew Moore/other representatives
of Glave & Holmes will present their findings and recommendations related to the analysis of the
historic courthouse. This work was approved the Board of Supervisors at the July regular meeting
and is considered the first phase in determining how to move forward with building renovation
and construction within the courthouse complex. The architects will also discuss proposed Phase
2 steps, including the possible addition of the historic Bannister House located across the road
from the historic courthouse. Based on their findings and recommendations, the board should
determine if it wishes to move forward in the process.

Recommendation: No specific action is recommended at this time.

Attachment: None

ACTION: None

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)

Action ltems - Page 1




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Action Item #6.02

Subject: County Building Improvement Recommendations to House EMS — Russell Pearlman,
Wooten Company & Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Russell Pearlman of the Wooten Company will provide an overview of his
recommendations on necessary upgrades to the Sussex County office building in Waverly that is
currently providing temporary housing for contracted EMS staff, based on his inspection of the
facility in March. Staff has not moved forward with recommending any upgrades to this point
because of ongoing good faith efforts to discuss possible use of the Waverly Rescue Squad
building for EMS housing; however, the Waverly Rescue Squad did not provide a price for a
proposed two-year lease of the building by November as requested by the County Administrator.
This inspection was the result of concerns expressed by the Town of Waverly for use of the office
building to provide housing for EMS employees. Mr. Pearlman’s findings are related to
separation of sleeping quarters from the rest of the building and are outlined in the attached
letter.

Public Works Director Jeff Gary will brief the board on receiving bids for this work, estimated to
be approximately $85,000.

Recommendation: Staff recommends appropriation of the necessary funds to bring the county
building into compliance with all applicable codes, as outlined in the letter from Russell Pearlman.

Attachment: Copy of Wooten letter

ACTION: That the Board appropriates the necessary funds to bring the county building into
compliance with all applicable codes, as outlined in the letter from Russell Pearlman.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)

Action Items - Page 2




120 N. Boylan Avenue
ootecn Ralegh, NC 27603
(919) 828-0531

March 29, 2022

Mr. Richard Douglas
County Administrator
Sussex County

PO Box 1397
Sussex, VA 23844

Dear Richard:

Re: Sussex County Rescue Squad
Emergency Medical Services Building at 233 L, South County Drive, Waverly, Virginia

It was a pleasure meeting with you, Reid, Matt, Lee, Jeff, Eric, Michael, and David, on the 10" of this
month in Sussex and Southampton counties. We have reviewed the Use and Occupancy matter for the

above building and our analysis is recorded below.

Mr. Lee D. Copeland, Zoning Administrator and Public Safety Director of the Town of Waverly had the
following concern:

5. The VCC, Sections 301.1, and 302 (concerns Use and Occupancy Classification).

The VCC, Sec 304 Business Use Group B, 310 Residential Use R, and 310.3 Residential
Group R-2, concerns the descriptions of Uses for the different Use Groups. VCC Section
508 concerns Mix Use Groups and the required two-hour Fire Separations between the R
and B Use Groups.

We have determined the following:

1. The building is classified as Business Group B:

a. Business Group B occupancy includes, among others, the use of a building or structure, or a
portion thereof, for office, professional or service-type transactions, including storage of
records and accounts.

2. The two sleeping areas would be most closely classified as Residential Group R-3:

a. Congregate living facilities (transient) with 10 or fewer occupants.

3. The sleeping areas would be considered an Accessory Occupancy:

a. Aggregate accessory occupancies shall not occupy more than 10 percent of the floor area of
the story in which they are located.

b. You have two sleeping rooms

A" e/ DESIGNING THE FUTURE »

Action ltems - Page 3



Mr. Richard Douglas
Page 2 of 2
March 29, 2022

i. Large bedroom12 feet by 20.6
ii. Small bedroom:10 feet by12
iii. 6.1% of the 6,015 Square foot building.

4. The Accessory sleeping areas shall be separated from the Business Group B Occupancy by Fire
Partitions.

a. Fire Partitions shall have a fire-resistance rating of not less than 1 hour.

b. In this building, the Fire Partitions shall extend from the top of the floor slab to a fire-
resistance-rated ceiling rated not less than 1 hour and shall be securely attached thereto.

c. The Fire Partitions shall be fireblocked per code (718.2) at the ceiling level

5. You can achieve the required rating on your ceilings and walls with
a. Two layers of 5/8" Type-X Sheetrock
b. Applied as two layers to one side of wood studs or

c. Applied in one layer to both sides of wood studs

6. Penetrations into or through your fire partitions and rated ceilings must be protected per code (714)

a. Girills for HVYAC
b. Light fixtures

c. Electrical boxes
d. Data boxes

7. Fire-rated door assemblies to include the door, frame, hardware shall be rated at 20 minutes.
a. Inthe partitions noted above

8. Inyour Group R-3 accessory occupancies provisions shall be made for emergency escape and
rescue openings.

a. You will need operable windows complying with the code (1030).

If I may clarify any of the above for you, don't hesitate to reach out. Do confirm with Matt Westheimer,
Building Official for Surry and Sussex Counties, that your installation complies with the above.

Prepared by,
THE WOOTEN COMPANY

Russell D. Pearlman, AIA
rdp

\\

Action ltems - Page 4



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Action Item #6.03
Subject: Proposed Legislative Recommendations

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: The Board of Supervisors recently granted staff the authority to develop a Legislative
Program for Sussex County. In furtherance of that request, the following legislative wish list has
been prepared for the Board’s consideration. Generally, this wish list addresses three topics:

1. The Virginia Department of Corrections’ exemption from making PILOT payments to
Sussex County for the Sussex | & Il prisons

2. Granting the Town of Waverly the ability to create a vacant building registry

3. Endorsing the 2023 Legislative Program of the Virginia Association of Counties (VACo)

If adopted by the Board of Supervisors, staff would reach out to the County’s state legislative
delegation (Delegate Otto Wachsmann and Senator Louise Lucas) to request that they introduce
legislation and/or amendments to effect these changes.

Recommendation: Staff recommends the Board of Supervisors adopt the draft 2023 Legislative
Program.

Attachments: Draft 2023 Legislative Program

ACTION: That the Board adopt the draft 2023 Legislative Program.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)

Action Items - Page 5




"Rooted in the past...Growing for

Board of Supervisors

Susan B. Seward, Chair
Wayne O. Jones, Vice-Chair
C. Eric Fly, Sr.

Alfred G. Futrell

Debbie P. Jones

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

2023 Le ogram

2022

e Future!”

County Administrator

Richard Douglas

Post Office Box 1397
20135 Princeton Road
Sussex, Virginia 23884
Telephone: (434) 246-1000
Facsimile: (434) 246-6013
Www.sussexcountyva.gov

Action ltems - Page 6



http://www.sussexcountyva.gov/

Sussex County
2023 Legislative Program

Budget Priority

Remove Department of Corrections PILOT Payment Exemption

Relevant Statute: Item 404 (G), Chapter 1, 2022 Acts of Assembly, Special Session | (attached with
highlights)

Background

Section 58.1-3403 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, provides that “a service charge may be
levied on real property owned by the Commonwealth if the value of all such property located
within a county, city or town exceeds three percent of the value of all real property located within
such county, city or town.” The service charge is generally referred to as payments in lieu of taxes
(PILOTs), which Chapter 34 of Title 58.1 of the Code of Virginia governs. Generally, these payments
are made to compensate localities for the cost of furnishing police and fire protection, collection
and disposal of refuse, and the cost of public school education (w, student and faculty housing
of an educational institution is involved).

Provisions within the State Budget have provided the Virgi ment of Corrections (DOC)

Prisons.

This exemption has a significant effect on Sussex
Sussex County has missed $3,366,5808158in PIL payments since 2015, which represents an

ounty’s average revenues. According to the

annual “Report on Comparative : i evenue Effort, and Fiscal Stress of Virginia’s
Cities and Counties” produced.b ommission on Local Government (CLG), Sussex County is
one of most fiscally stressg e Commonwealth of Virginia (ranked 4" highest out of
95 counties). These two at the DOC PILOT exemption strains the Sussex County’s
ability to provide services ich are state-mandated — to county citizens.

Resolution of this matter wou 2 a significant difference to the County, which not only affects
Sussex but also many other similarly situated localities across the Commonwealth, including
approximately 18 facilities in Senate District 18 and 14 facilities in House District 75 — both of which
represent Sussex County at the state legislative level.!

! Based on a review of listed DOC facilities for the “Eastern Region” at the following link:
https://vadoc.virginia.gov/facilities-and-offices/ The exact numbers of facilities may be lower because some facilities may
be leased and some localities are only partially covered by the House and Senate Districs.

l|Page

Action ltems - Page 7


https://vadoc.virginia.gov/facilities-and-offices/

Sussex County
2023 Legislative Program

Initiative
Add the Town of Waverly to list of localities authorized to create a vacant building registry
Relevant Statute: § 15.2-1127 of the Code of Virginia (attached)

Background

Section 15.2-1127 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, authorizes any city and the Towns of Clifton
Forge (Alleghany County), Pulaski (Pulaski County),? and Timberville (Rockingham County) to
require the owner or owners of buildings (1) that have been continuously vacant for 12 months or
more and (2) that meet the definition of “derelict building” in § 15.2-907.1 of the Code of Virginia,
as amended, to register such buildings on an annual basis. Such registration may include the
imposition of a registration fee — not to exceed $100 — to defray the cost of processing such
registration. Failure of the owner or owners to register such buildifigs shall be a $200 civil penalty.

According to the Local Initiatives Support Corporation (L U.S. non-profit community

development financial institution, vacant and neglected buj ide cover for activities such
as vandalism and drug dealing. Moreover, they can cre ecurity in a community.
This aligns with the “broken window” theory of co velopment that posits that visible

sighs of crime, anti-social behavior, and civil dis eate an urban environment that
encourages further crime and disorder, including serious‘chi

by organizations such as the Center for Commu ess and the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development. Virginia’s G (VGR) recently commissioned an analysis by
Downtown Strategies to enhance mobilize the community’s efforts towards
revitalizing and rejuvenating dow iti€s within the VGR area. One recommendation
from this study was to develop a ant Storefront Tax “to incentivize property owners to

losely align with this recommendation.

engaged in efforts to revitalize their community, especially
in parts of their downtown are effort has been successful with several new buildings opening
along West Main Street in the 1ast several years. Granting the Town such a power could help
augment these successes in an impactful way and in alignment with community development best
practices.

2 Limited to conservation and rehabilitation districts of the Town of Pulaski.

2|Page

Action ltems - Page 8



Sussex County
2023 Legislative Program

Position Statement

Endorsement of Virginia Association of Counties’ (VACo) 2023 Legislative Program

Relevant Document: VACo 2023 Legislative Program for the 2023 General Assembly Session
(attached)

The Virginia Association of Counties exists to support County officials and to effectively represent,
promote and protect the interests of counties to better serve the people of Virginia. VACo is the
predominant voice of local government interests in the General Assembly, providing crucial
assistance to local governments as they seek to obtain enabling legislation to benefit their citizens.
Sussex County is a member-locality of VACo.

Each year, VACo membership adopts an annual legislative program with the most recent program
being adopted on November 15, 2022. The program contains a vagi€ty of policy positions on topics
of interest to Sussex County including: economic developme d planning, education funding,
energy, farm and forestland preservation, water supply, an itigation of the effects of tax-
exempt property on the local tax base.

3|Page

Action Items - Page 9



Sussex County
2023 Legislative Program

Atta

3

e

4|Page

Action Items - Page 10



VIRGINIA STATE BUDGET

2022 Special Session |

Budget Bill - HB30 (Chapter 2)

Bill Order » Office of Public Safety and Homeland Security » ltem 404
Department of Corrections

Item 404

First Year - FY2023

Second Year - FY2024

Administrative and Support Services (39900) $193,189,083

General Management and Direction (39901) $33,235,862
Information Technology Services (39902) $80,215,543
Accounting and Budgeting Services (39903) $6,327,168
Architectural and Engineering Services (39904) $18,395,849
Jail Regulation, Inspections, and Investigations (39905) $971,215
Human Resources Services (39914) ,806,733
Planning and Evaluation Services (39916) $1,917,612
Procurement and Distribution Services (39918) $16,842,666
Training Academy (39929) $11,144,616
Offender Classification and Time Computafio 0) $10,331,819
Fund Sources:

General $185,743,442

Special $7,290,106

Dedicated Special Revenue $155,535

$192,727,270

$32,977,922
$80,201,040
$6,327,168
$17,973,910
$971,215
$14,039,302
$1,917,612
$16,842,666
$11,144,616

$10,331,819

$185,281,629
$7,290,106

$155,535

Authority: 8§ 53.1-1 and 53.1-10, Code of Virginia.

A.1. Any plan to modernize and integrate the automated systems of the Department of Corrections shall be based

on developing the integrated system in phases, or modules. Furthermore, any such integrated system shall be
designed to provide the department the data needed to evaluate its programs, including that data needed to

measure recidivism.

2. The appropriation in this Item includes $600,000 the first year and $600,000 the second year from the Contract

Prisoners Special Revenue Fund to defray a portion of the costs of maintaining and enhancing the offender

management system.

B. Included in this appropriation is $550,000 the first year and $550,000 the second year from nongeneral funds to

be used for installation and operating expenses of the telemedicine program operated by the Department of

Corrections. The source of the funds is revenue from inmate fees collected for medical services.

C. Included in this appropriation is $1,100,000 the first year and $1,100,000 the second year from nongeneral funds

Action Items - Page 11


http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/53.1-1/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/53.1-10/

to be used by the Department of Corrections for the operations of its Corrections Construction Unit. The State
Comptroller shall continue the Corrections Construction Unit Special Operating Fund on the books of the
Commonwealth to reflect the activities of contracts between the Corrections Construction Unit and (i) institutions
within the Department of Corrections for work not related to a capital project and (ii) agencies without the
Department of Corrections for work performed for those agencies.

D. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 53.1-20 A. and B., Code of Virginia, the Director, Department of
Corrections, shall receive offenders into the state correctional system from local and regional jails at such time as
he determines that sufficient, secure and appropriate housing is available, placing a priority on receiving inmates
diagnosed and being treated for HIV, mental illnesses requiring medication, or Hepatitis C. The director shall
maximize, consistent with inmate and staff safety, the use of bed space in the state correctional system. The
director shall report monthly to the Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security and the Department of
Planning and Budget on the number of inmates housed in the state correctional system, the number of inmate beds
available, and the number of offenders housed in local and regional jails that meet the criteria set out in § 53.1-20
A. and B.

E. Notwithstanding any requirement to the contrary, any building, fixture, or structure to be placed, erected or
constructed on, or removed or demolished from the property of the Commo#fwealth of Virginia under the control of
the Department of Corrections shall not be subject to review and appro the Art and Architectural Review

Review Board for review and approval by that board. Such oth
district offices or regional offices.

es could include probation and parole

F. The Commonwealth of Virginia shall convey 45 acre w’ $),0f property, being a portion of Culpeper
County Tax Map No. 75, parcel 32, lying in theg@ed ain Magisterial District of Culpeper County, Virginia, in
consideration of the County's construction C and service line(s) adequate to serve the needs of the

Department of Corrections' Coffeewood(Fa d artment of Juvenile Justice's Culpeper Juvenile
Correctional Facility (hereinafter "the facilitie$”). The cost of the water improvements necessary to serve the
facilities, including an eight-inclifwa ervicelline, and including engineering and land/easement acquisition
costs, shall be paid by the Cqg : ¥ except (i) the value of the property for the jail conveyed by the
Commonwealth to the Count ased on valuation by the Culpeper County Assessor), and (ii) the cost of
increasing the size of the water setyi from eight inches to twelve inches, in order to accommodate planned
county needs.

G. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 58.1-3403, Code of Virginia, the Department of Corrections shall be exempt
from the payment of service charges levied in lieu of taxes by any county, city, or town.

H. The Department of Corrections shall serve as the Federal Bonding Coordinator and shall work with the Virginia
Community College System and its workforce development programs and services to provide fidelity bonds to
those offenders released from jails or state correctional centers who are required to provide fidelity bonds as a
condition of employment. The department is authorized to use funds from the Contract Prisoners Special Revenue
Fund to pay the costs of this activity.

I. In the event the Department of Corrections closes a correctional facility for which it has entered into an
agreement with any locality to pay a proportionate share of the debt service for the establishment of utilities to
serve the facility, the department shall continue to pay its agreed upon share of the debt service, subject to the
schedule previously agreed upon.

J. Included in the appropriation for this Item is $1,000,000 the first year and $1,000,000 the second year from the
general fund for the costs of security technology and hardware for the inmate telephone system.

Action Items - Page 12


http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/53.1-20/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/53.1-20/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/2.2-2402/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-3403/
dconmy
Highlight


K. From the appropriation in this Item, $500,000 the first year and $500,000 the second year from the general fund
shall be used to present seminars on overcoming obstacles to re-entry and to promote family integration in the
correctional centers designated for intensive re-entry programs. The department shall submit a report by October
15 of each year to the Chairs of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance and Appropriations Committees, the
Secretary of Public Safety and Homeland Security, and the Department of Planning and Budget on the use of this
funding.

L. Included in the appropriation for this Item is $426,832 the first year and $426,832 the second year from the
general fund and four positions to assist the State Board of Local and Regional Jails in carrying out its duties under
the authority of § 53.1-69.1, Code of Virginia, to review deaths of inmates in local correctional facilities. One of the
positions provided is for an Executive Director.

M.1. Consistent with the provisions of Chapter 198 of the 2017 Session of the General Assembly, the Director,
Department of Corrections, shall implement the recommendations relating to the Department of Corrections made
by the Department of Medical Assistance Services in its November 30, 2017 report on streamlining the Medicaid
application and enrollment process for incarcerated individuals.

2. For the purpose of implementing these recommendations, included i
$37,400 the first year and $37,400 the second year from the general
the second year from nongeneral funds and two positions.

ppropriation for this item are
12,200 the first year and $112,200

N. By September 1 of each year, the Department of Correction
of Planning and Budget and the Chairs of the House Appropriatio

it data to the Director of the Department
d Senate Finance and Appropriations

Committees regarding medical treatment provided to cility. The data shall include, as a
proportion of average daily population at each facility, ates who received care, including: the
specific proportions of inmates from each facidi eated as inpatients, the specific proportion of
inmates from each facility who were treat data on prescription drug administration, and the

O. The Department of Correct ed to purchase from the Town of Craigsville approximately 122 acres,
a Correctional Center. In consideration for this acreage, the
Department will provide wastewater ment services to the Town at no cost for a period adequate to equal the
value of the property conveyed. The value of the property shall be established by averaging the value of one
appraisal provided by the Department of Corrections and one by the Town of Craigsville.

P. The Commonwealth of Virginia shall convey 65 acres of property consisting of Clarke County Tax Map No. 27,
new parcel A, situated in the Greenway Magisterial District of Clarke County, Virginia, to the Virginia Port
Authority (VPA), on behalf of the Virginia Inland Port (VIP). The VPA, on behalf of the VIP, shall collaborate with
representatives of Clarke County to promote the use of the land for economic development purposes. The VIP shall
enter into a memorandum-of-understanding with Clarke County on the development and execution of mutually
advantageous economic development proposals.

Q.1. Included within the appropriation for this item is $7,281,666 the first year and $7,281,666 the second year
from the general fund and $1,000,000 the first year and $1,000,000 the second year from the Contract Prisoners
Special Revenue Fund for implementation of an electronic health records system in all facilities.

2. The Department of Corrections shall report on the total costs of implementing electronic health records at all of
its facilities based on the selected vendor and the sufficiency of its on-going funding for full implementation at all
facilities. The report shall identify all funding currently budgeted for the project, the timeline for implementation,

Action Items - Page 13


http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/53.1-69.1/

and the inter-operability of the system with the information technology systems used by the Department and its
vendors. The Department shall utilize its nongeneral funds appropriated for this purpose prior to using the general
fund appropriation. The Department shall provide a report containing the aforementioned information to the
Chairs of the House Appropriations and Senate Finance and Appropriations Committees within 60 days of selecting
its vendor.

R. 1. Included in the appropriation for this item is $7,909,652 in the first year and $8,125,783 in the second year
and 105 positions from the general fund for the Department to implement the earned-sentence-credit structure set
forth in House Bill 5148 and Senate Bill 5034 of the 2020 Special Session I.

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 53.1-202.3, Code of Virginia, a maximum of 4.5 sentence credits may be
earned for each 30 days served on a sentence that is concurrent with or consecutive to a sentence for a conviction
of an offense enumerated in subsection A of § 53.1-202.3, Code of Virginia.

S. Included in the appropriation for this Item is $500,000 the first year from the general fund for the estimated net
increase in the operating cost of adult correctional facilities resulting from the enactment of sentencing legislation
as listed below. This amount shall be paid into the Corrections Special Reserve Fund, established pursuant to § 30-
19.1:4, Code of Virginia.

1. House Bill 434 -- $50,000

2. House Bill 451 -- $50,000

3. House Bill 496 and Senate Bill 687 -- $50,000

4. House Bill 740 and Senate Bill 729 -- $50,000

5. House Bill 993 and Senate Bill 440 -- $
6. House Bill 763 and Senate Bill 403 -- $
7. House Bill 1332 and Senatg
8. House Bill 1306 -- $50,000
9. Senate Bill 227 -- $50,000

10. Senate Bill 249 -- $50,000

Action Items - Page 14


http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/30-19.1:4/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/30-19.1:4/

Code of Virginia

Title 15.2. Counties, Cities and Towns

Subtitle II. Powers of Local Government
Chapter 11. Powers of Cities and Towns

Article 2. Additional Powers of Cities and Towns

§ 15.2-1127. Vacant building registration; civil penalty

The Town of Clifton Forge, the Town of Pulaski, in a conservation and rehabilitation district of
the town, the Town of Timberville, and any city, by ordinance, may require the owner or owners
of buildings that have been vacant for a continuous period of 12 months or more, and which meet
the definition of "derelict building” under § 15.2-907.1, to register such buildings on an annual
basis and may impose an annual registration fee not to exceed $100 to defray the cost of
processing such registration. The registration of buildings shall be on forms designated by the
locality and filed with the agency designated by the locality. Failure to register shall be a $200
civil penalty; however, failure to register in conservation and rghabilitation districts designated
by the governing body, or in other areas designated as blig pursuant to § 36-49.1:1, shall be
punishable by a civil penalty not exceeding $400. Notice mailed to the owner or owners,
at the address to which property tax notices are sent, s prior to the assessment of
the civil penalty.

1993, c. 829, § 15.1-29.24; 1997, c. 587;1999, c. 250;
145.

, C. 299;2013, cc. 253, 355, 405;2020, c.

The chapters of the acts of assembly referenc e hiStorical citation at the end of this

section(s) may not constitute a co w asivellist of such chapters and may exclude chapters

whose provisions have expired.

1 12/8/2022 12:00:0C
Action Items - Page 15


/vacode/15.2-907.1/
/vacode/36-49.1:1/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?971+ful+CHAP0587
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0250
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?991+ful+CHAP0250
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0299
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?061+ful+CHAP0299
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0253
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0355
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0405
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0405
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?201+ful+CHAP0145

* K* Kx K K* K K

VACO0 2023
LEGISLATIVE

ADOPTED BY VACO
MEMBERSHIP ON
NOVEMBER 15, 2022

A ' 4
‘ﬁ

. Virginia Assgciation of Counties
A ala om P ala o




Environment and Agriculture

2023 Legislative Program
Virginia Association of Counties

Table of Contents

Economic Development and Planning p-2

Education P-4
Energy Q P-7

Finance p- 11
General Government p- 14
Health and Hum p-17
Transportation p. 22

Action ltems - Page 17



45

46

47

48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89

Positions

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND
PLANNING

Priority

Broadband
VACo requests that the Commonwealth provide 100 percent funding to counties
to build the necessary telecommunications infrastructure to deploy universal
affordable access to the internet for all areas, particularly in underserved and
rural areas, and streamline the application process for Virginia
Telecommunication Initiative (VATI) grants. Additionally, VACo supports
legislation that provides additional tools for counties to finance, build and
operate open access networks in partnership with c ercial internet service
providers. VACo also supports efforts to streamli e permitting of broadband
infrastructure in the VDOT right-of-way, at rai ssings, and within utility
easements.

Affordable and Workforce Housi
VACo supports increasing federal and sta
assist localities in fostering affordable housi
employees such as teachers and fi

ing and appropriate incentives to
s well as workforce housing for

Economic Develo
VACo supports econom elopment policies and programs that bolster local

rts by maintaining and expanding state funding,

development orga ons (REDOs) to foster regional cooperation in expanding
business and job opportunities. VACo also supports additional state and federal
funding for the maintenance and expansion of infrastructure, including airports,
to foster regional economic development.

Land Use

VACo supports maintaining and expanding local authority to plan and regulate
land use and opposes any legislation that weakens these key local responsibilities.
VACo also supports legislation that grants localities additional tools to adequately
meet increasing needs for public services driven by new development without
burdening current residents with the cost of new growth through increased real
estate taxes. Such additional tools may include broad impact fee authority for all
counties, and adequate public facilities provisions.

Action ltems - Page 18



90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134

135
136

Regulation of Event Spaces
VACo opposes exemptions to local review and enforcement of building, fire, and other
health and safety regulations for event and assembly spaces.

Regulation of Home-based Businesses

VACo opposes any legislation that limits or restricts local authority to regulate
home-based businesses, including short-term rentals regardless of whether
services or goods are purchased through an online hosting platform.

Impacts of Federal and Military Facilities
VACo supports maintaining federal and state funding and technical assistance to
mitigate the impacts on counties affected by federal budget cuts and to sustain
current and future federal facilities in Virginia. VACo supports state and local
partnerships that work to prevent encroachment and non-compatible land uses
next to military installations. VACo also supports
retraining for programs that support defense acti

Impacts of State Facilities

VACo recommends that prior to the pro
of any state facilities, the Department o
plan to the locality regarding removal, de
reuse of buildings. VACo also rec
financial resources to assist locali
have on the local economy.

r sale, or disposition
ervices shall provide a detailed
on, rehabilitation and/or adaptive
he state provide technical and

ing the impacts any closure will

Maintain Public Se i ite Sewer Program

VACo supports an on : at the Virginia Department of Health
(VDH) that protects publiedh the environment in all regions of the
Commonwealth wealth should give special focus to addressing the

ms and allow localities authority to develop and
pport the state’s program. VACo supports the private
age system design, installation, and repair services, as
be provided at affordable rates and in a timely manner,
ontinues to provide these direct services as well.

long as the service
and as long as VDH

Siting of Transmission Lines
VACo supports requiring utilities to seek input from localities and property
owners before any actions to construct, modify or enlarge transmission facilities.

Electric Grid Capacity Planning

VACo supports legislation and policy that requires electric grid operators to
continually share with localities where current and planned infrastructure to
transmit and store energy exists that may feasibly accommodate the development
of large-scale renewable energy facilities.

Action Items - Page 19



137
138

139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160

161

162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181

Positions

EDUCATION

Priority

Education Funding

VACo urges the General Assembly to provide full state funding for public
education, including the Standards of Quality (SOQ) as recommended by the
Board of Education, where these recommendations coincide with prevailing local
practice, targeted incentive programs, capital, and maintenance support, and
teacher salaries. Full state funding should be achieved without reduction to other
parts of state public education budgets or to other core services.

VACo supports additional state resources and additional statewide funding
options for localities for capital and school construction costs, including
expanding dedicated local sales and use tax authorig§first given to select counties
by the General Assembly in 2019 as well as conti to fund the School

Construction Grant Program and School Con i sistance Program.
VACo supports voluntary incentives ocalities to increase

teacher salaries to reflect the national av on, as long as this is

done without a required minimum loca e state share of compensation

resources to educate, train, and
credential students, especially in high d’and critical shortage fields of
employment.

Appointed
VACo suppa
members.

yrityto choose the selection process for school board

Charter Schools
VACo supports the continuation of local authority to establish charter schools.

Laboratory Schools
VACo supports innovative approaches to K-12 education as long as they do not
divert state or local funds away from local public schools.

Childhood Development and School Readiness
VACo supports efforts to increase at-risk children’s access to high-quality,
enriching learning environments, including more resources and flexibility for
localities participating in programs like the Virginia Preschool Initiative and
Head Start.

VACo supports additional federal and state funding for programs such as
the Child Care and Development Block Grant (CCDBG) to support increased

Action ltems - Page 20



182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227

demand for childcare services. VACo supports local flexibility to administer or
expand support services for childcare.

Critical Thinking Skills

VACo supports changes to educational programs and standards that rely less on
standardized testing and more on critical thinking skills such as performance-
based assessments. VACo opposes efforts to impose additional standardized
testing burdens on students and school staff.

Funding Support Personnel
VACo supports full restoration of budget cuts, including the elimination of the
funding cap on support positions, and full reinstatement of the Cost of
Competing Adjustment “COCA” for support staff. In addition to meeting its
obligations to fully fund instructional staff, the Commeonwealth should meet its
obligation to fully fund K-12 support staff.

Library System
VACo supports additional state resources f
system.

e fundi the local library

Reversion of Funds

VACo supports the current practigé ear-end funds appropriated to
the school divisions by the locali ality, retaining discretion with
the governing body to evaluate and'@pj 2 reallocation of year-end fund
balances.

School Consolidatic D13
VACo supports additiona s, flexibility and incentives that allow
counties to vol Solidate or regionalize K-12 services to increase

VACo supports eff@ 0 improve school safety and preparedness. VACo supports
continued local authority and state funding to implement appropriate security,
preparedness, and health measures. VACo supports dedicated state funding that
may include capital and operational costs.

Special Education Regional Tuition Reimbursement Program

VACo supports enhancing local capacity to serve children with high-level support
needs in the least restrictive environment, including regional special education
programs. VACo supports local flexibility in the structure of such programs.

K-12 Staff Shortage and Retention

VACo urges the General Assembly to approve and fund strategies addressing the
teacher shortage in the Commonwealth. VACo supports a targeted approach to
teacher shortage by prioritizing areas in critical need, as recommended by the

Action Items - Page 21



228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274

Virginia Department of Education. VACo supports using district-level data to
determine how to best fill shortage gaps, especially in hard-to-staff divisions.

VACo supports reducing burdens on the teacher workforce in the
Commonwealth. VACo supports programs aimed at reducing student debt for
teaching in public schools. VACo also supports programs that encourage teachers
to stay in the profession including measures that provide mentorship, guidance
and other forms of support for teachers in their first five years in the profession.

VACo also supports similar efforts to address the shortage of school bus
drivers at both the state and federal level including incentives to recruit and
retain drivers and additional flexibility regarding driver requirements.

Workforce-Ready Students

VACo supports changes in curriculum and funding that will increase the number
of students leaving the K-14 system with workforce-ready credentials. VACo
supports incorporating career and technical educati@n curriculum at the
elementary and middle school levels. VACo sup igh school students
earning academic credit for participating in a ip, apprenticeship,

ative models for
workforce skills
ved education or training

through certifications, or licensure from
provider.

VACo supports establishin
workforce pipeline in a variety of

o strengthen the school-to-
uaranteed employment
g opportunities shared between
local community colleges ols. VACo supports opportunities for
: i ctual work sites in cooperation with local

VACo suppo giéxpansion and funding of workforce training programs
such as the Virg Aecelerator Program and the Virginia Jobs
federal grant programs with state funding.
ission and activities of local Workforce Development
Boards across t omm@nwealth of Virginia to assist businesses in securing a
qualified workforce meets current and future job demand, including efforts
to coordinate actions’across state agencies within Virginia under the
Commonwealth’s Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) plan.

Action ltems - Page 22



275
276
277

278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287

288

289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320

Positions

ENERGY

Priority

Energy Policy

VACo supports energy policies and goals that reduce greenhouse gas emissions
without compromising reliable and affordable access to electricity, and that
address potential environmental impacts and life cycle costs for the manufacture,
disposal, re-use, or recycle of material inputs. New sources of potential energy
generation should include a range of technologies such as solar, wind,
hydroelectric, hydrogen, and small modular nuclear reactors. Such policies
should allow for responsible coal and natural gas extraction, processing, and
transport while protecting agricultural interests and natural resources.

Renewable Energy Production and
VACo supports legislation allowing cou lement renewable energy and
ce of third-party power
purchase agreements (PPAs) to segve muni electric accounts, as well as other

elopment of renewable energy

Utility-Scale Renewa neration and Energy Storage

VACo supports maintei al 2 ity to address all impacts and all choices
associated with utility-S ons of solar power, wind power, and energy
storage facilitie

Utility-Sca eneration and Transmission Projects

: ision of adequate direction and resources at the state
level to improve ng and enforcement of erosion and sediment control
(ESC) and stormwater (SWM) requirements by entities constructing utility-scale
projects for energy generation or transmission (including fuel). The state should
have relevant agencies conduct an annual review of the standards, specifications,
and construction general permit requirements to determine adequate protection
of water quality, water supply, and natural resources.

Local Tax Revenue

VACo opposes any imposition, expansion, or extension of state-mandated
exemptions on local property taxes for energy generating and storage equipment.

Action ltems - Page 23



321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328

329

330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366

ENVIRONMENT AND AGRICULTURE

Priority

Water Quality Funding

VACo supports sufficient and sustained financial and technical assistance to
counties to improve water quality and meet all federal and state standards to
reduce pollution.

Positions

Agriculture and Forestry Best Management Practices

VACo supports voluntary state and federal conservatign programs, including the
United States Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) &nvironmental Quality
Incentives Program and the Conservation Stew. ip Program, to assist
producers with the implementation of best m ractices.

Biosolids
VACo supports an effective statewide re
application of biosolids. Such a program s
of local governments to monitor
governments to propose amendm
by DEQ. VACo further recommend

rogram governing land

d not infringe upon the authority
o supports the ability of local
permits as they are considered
or appropriate funds to DEQ to

VACo support [ inue to restore and protect the Chesapeake Bay but
i lations on wastewater treatment facilities that

Dam Safety
VACo supports programs that keep downstream owners and developers aware of
potential inundation zones. VACo also supports sufficient state and federal
funding for the repair and maintenance of dams.

Farm and Forestland Preservation

VACo supports increasing state allocations to the Office of Farmland Preservation
(OFP) Purchase of Development Rights (PDR) locality matching funds program.
VACo also supports increasing allocations to the newly established Forest
Sustainability Fund, created as an incentive for the establishment and
maintenance of local forest land use valuation programs. Such programs preserve
prime soils for food production and protect important forest land and
environmentally sensitive areas in the Commonwealth.

Action ltems - Page 24



367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413

Flood Preparedness

VACo supports continued funding and resources that assist localities in
preventing and reducing the impacts of flooding. VACo supports greater
flexibility in these programs and funding sources that will maximize their
benefits and best suit local and regional needs.

Hydraulic Fracturing
VACo supports a stringent state regulatory program for hydraulic fracturing
(“fracking”) that addresses the potential to tap into natural gas reserves in ways
that protect public and private groundwater supplies and preserve local
government authority to regulate and/or ban this type of mining activity through
their land use ordinances. VACo supports transparency efforts that require the
disclosure of all chemicals and chemical mixes used in the fracking process prior
to their use.

Invasive Species and Noxious Weeds

VACo supports funding for, and the complete i
Invasive Species Management Plan. VACo
“noxious weeds,” enabling additional inv,

impact, allowmg no more than a neghglble act on Virginia’s agricultural
industry. Finally, VACo supports state prevention and mitigation
practices, including coordination Department of Transportation
(VDOT) to assist counties in species

allowing farmers and pro ers sufficient flexibility when protecting livestock
against predat \ als. VA Co encourages the USDA Wildlife Services Division
Agriculture and Consumer Services to allow
edator control tools required for the continuation of
effective livesto@
Program and the al relief it provides to producers who have lost livestock
to the attacks of federally protected predators.

Southern Rivers Watershed

VACo supports continued funding for the Southern Rivers Watershed
Enhancement Program to improve water quality in non-Chesapeake Bay
watersheds.

Stormwater Programs

VACo supports state funding that enables local governments to fully satisfy the
resource and funding needs associated with local stormwater management
programs. VACo supports legislation that proposes creative and cost-effective
stormwater management practices. VACo supports initiatives that clarify and
modernize stormwater regulations and permitting processes, including measures
that make permitting more efficient, reevaluate the fee structure system, and

9

Action ltems - Page 25



414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460

allow for considerations of factors such as long-term maintenance costs. VACo
supports legislation that proposes new and innovative solutions to facilitate
compliance with stormwater standards in ways that promote economic
development while achieving water quality goals.

Tree Conservation and Replacement

VACo supports strengthening and expanding tree replacement and tree
conservation statutes to include all localities in Virginia. VACo supports
providing greater flexibility to all local governments to achieve their specific
goals.

Onsite Wastewater Systems
VACo supports legislation ensuring that potential buyers of real property are told
about the type, size and maintenance requirements and associated costs of the
wastewater systems on the property prior to the si g of the initial sales
contract and the recordation of engineered syste at and deed at the time of
sale.

Uranium Mining
VACo supports continuation of a moratotium ranium mining and milling
within the Commonwealth of Virginia.

Technical Assistance

gforéntities that provide critical resources

VACo supports robust state fundln
i heir efforts to comply with
This includes, but is not limited to,

and technical assistance tgfloe
environmental policie 0
organizations such as'§ ' onservation Districts, the Virginia

Cooperative Exten; and Planning District Commissions (PDCs).

ions adequate to ensure full funding by the state for the
implementation of state-mandated water supply plans.
VACo does not sup overly burdensome permitting processes or applications
for water usage. VACO supports initiatives by the state to assure adoption of
actions to reduce high chloride concentrations and loss of artesian head pressure
in Virginia’s aquifers. VACo also supports a review of regulations and supports
education initiatives that promote reclamation of water on a local level for
industrial and irrigation uses to offset future demands on all ground and surface
water used for human consumption.

10

Action ltems - Page 26



461

462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472

473

474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506

Positions

FINANCE

Priorities

Local Finance
VACo supports preserving the authority of county governments to collect
revenues necessary to provide local public services.

VACo appreciates the starting point that the discussions in the 2022
legislative session took regarding adjustments to sales taxes on food purchased
for human consumption and essential personal hygiene products -- that any local
revenue losses would be replaced. VACo believes that the compromise forged in
the budget negotiations in 2022 protects local K-12 revenue and respectfully
requests that no further changes be made to this important local funding source.

Appeals of Tax Assessments
VACo opposes proposals to make major chafiges to the ent appeals processes
for real or tangible personal property assé€sSments, such as‘changes to the
assessor’s presumption of correctness o of the state Tax Commissioner
with respect to valuation of property.

Federal Relief and Infrastruct
VACo encourages coordination wi C
American Rescue Plan : fra ucture Investment and Jobs Act funds so
that each federal dollax aximized for the benefit of the residents of the

Commonwealth.

meet its obligations to fund appropriate staffing, to
s, for the state’s system of justice, to include clerks,

employees, and proBafion office employees. In the absence of adequate state
support for this critical function of government, localities are frequently placed in
the untenable position of supplementing the justice system with local dollars in
order to ensure its continued functioning.

VACo urges the Commonwealth to meet its full funding obligations, to
include realistic levels of staffing to enable constitutional offices to meet their
responsibilities and limit the need for localities to provide additional locally-
funded positions.

VACo supports flexibility in the use of state funds for compensation of
constitutional officers and state-supported local employees, as well as state
funding levels for compensation increases that more closely reflect the true cost
of providing such increases across the state-supported local workforce, which
encompasses both state-supported and locally-funded positions. For example,
state-funded salary increases typically provide funding only for Compensation
Board-funded positions for employees in Constitutional offices and for

11

Action ltems - Page 27



507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553

instructional and support positions recognized in the Standards of Quality for
school divisions. In these instances, in addition to any required local matches for
state-recognized positions, localities must provide comparable salary increases
for locally-funded positions purely from local dollars in order to preserve parity
between state-funded and locally-funded positions in the workforce.

VACo supports a more robust state-local partnership in funding local and
regional jails. In FY 2020, the Compensation Board reported $1.05 billion in
total expenditures, including capital costs, to house inmates in local and regional
jails — localities contributed $605.1 million of these costs, and an additional $15.6
million to house inmates in other jurisdictions, while the state contributed
$364.7 million.

A key mechanism through which the state assists with operating costs is
per diem payments. Prior to action by the 2022 General Assembly, per diem
rates had not been adjusted since FY 2011, when the payment of $8 per day for
local-responsible inmates was reduced to $4 per d nd the state-responsible
rate was adjusted from a bifurcated rate of 8 per or the first 60 days and $14
per day thereafter to a standard rate of $12 pe o is grateful for action

inmates and to adjust the rates in the futu that payments keep pace with

rising costs. While the increase ingthe nsible rate is an important step
in the right direction, the current
underfunded mandate on counties.

VACo support or the Department of Corrections to accept
state-responsible in sliftto the state correctional system unless a local or
regional jail agy holding such inmates at the applicable per diem
rate. The D artment O rections is better equipped than local and regional

2-entry programming, offering more than 125

and 1nd1v1duals u ommunity supervision. The Department of Corrections
reports that state-responsible inmates who spend their entire sentences in local
or regional jails recidivate at a higher rate than offenders who spend at least part
of their incarceration in a Department of Corrections facility (26.9 percent and 21
percent, respectively).

VACo supports payment of the medical costs of inmates using a cost-
effective program jointly funded at the federal and state levels.

The state must provide sufficient funding to enable local and regional jails
to meet any new standards for the provision of health care, including behavioral
health care, for individuals incarcerated in these facilities. A report issued in
2021 by the Department of Criminal Justice Service and the Compensation Board
estimating compliance costs for proposed behavioral health standards suggests
that jails will need certain baseline staffing to comply with the standards, to
include 24/7 coverage, either on-site or on-call, by a registered nurse; on-call and
regularly scheduled services from a psychiatric provider; a qualified mental

12

Action ltems - Page 28



554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600

health professional to provide group and individual therapy services; and
behavioral health case management services, to include discharge planning. The
2022 Appropriation Act included funding for 125 behavioral health case manager
positions and 127 partially-funded medical/treatment positions, to be phased in
over the biennium, representing approximately half of the staffing recommended
by the Compensation Board. This funding is a significant investment in helping
jails to comply with proposed behavioral health standards. VACo supports a
continued state partnership with localities in ensuring that jails are able to meet
state standards in caring for these vulnerable individuals.

Mitigation of the Effects of Tax-Exempt Property on the Local Tax
Base

VACo supports reinstating state payments (PILT) to counties that mitigate the
impacts of state correctional and behavioral healthcate facilities on county
revenue. VACo supports measures to ameliorate t fects of large amounts of
other tax-exempt property on the local tax base, i ing state assistance with
the costs of state-mandated property tax exe

Legislation with Local Fiscal Impa
VACo supports legislation or other mea
localities to review legislation that may ha

iding additional time for
impact on local revenues or

expenditures.
Modernization of Communic ales and Use Tax Structure
VACo supports updating € cations Sales and Use Tax (CSUT) to
ensure that it reflects th : munications landscape, which has
evolved since the CS imJanuary 2007.

VACo oppo pdirther diversion of Communications Sales and Use Tax
Trust Fund do and the uses already specified in statute. These revenues
should be h localities and not diverted for general state purposes.

ommunications Sales and Use Tax Trust Fund are
taken “off the to Department of Taxation’s costs to administer the tax,
the telephone relay er operated by the Department for the Deaf and Hard of
Hearing, and any franchise fees owed to localities. Language adopted in the
2018-2020 biennium budget and continued in the 2021 Appropriations Act
provides for an additional diversion of funds to the state General Fund from
assumed savings in the telephone relay contract; these funds would otherwise
flow to localities.

Real and Personal Property Tax Exemptions Enacted Prior to 2003
VACo supports providing localities the ability to decide whether to maintain
property tax exemptions granted by the General Assembly prior to passage of the
Constitutional amendment vesting the authority to grant such exemptions with
localities. The Constitutional amendment which was passed by the voters in
2002 and took effect in January 2003 placed decision-making authority about
local tax exemptions with local governing bodies, within certain limits, and this
authority should apply to exemptions granted before 2003 as well.

13

Action ltems - Page 29



601
602
603

604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620

621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644

645

Positions

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Priorities

Local Authority

VACo supports relaxation of the Dillon Rule and supports legislation maintaining
and enhancing local authority and autonomy in matters including land use,
revenue measures, procurement, and other issues of local concern. VACo
supports extending powers currently granted to some local governments to all
local governments. VACo opposes legislation that erodes local authority.

Unfunded Mandates

te to localities. When
funding for a mandated program is altered, the te should be suspended

until full funding is restored. When legislatio

Collective Bargaining
VACo opposes any effo

havingone date for primary elections, establishing countywide
voting places and gsimilar measures. The state should provide adequate
funding to localities$0T voting equipment and registrar costs and should assist
localities with the resources necessary to implement state requirements, such as
meeting election security standards. VACo also supports legislation to minimize
or eliminate Split Voting Precincts. Additionally, VACo supports a streamlined
process to address situations in which census boundaries do not align with locally
drawn or commonly adhered to boundaries. VACo supports additional flexibility
for localities in the requirements for drawing precinct and district boundaries.

primary electio

Ethics Reform
VACo supports common sense efforts to strengthen Virginia’s public ethics and
conflicts of interest laws that are applicable and practical at the local level.

14

Action Items - Page 30



646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692

False Reports / Swatting

VACo supports efforts that discourage and hold individuals accountable for
making false reports that result in the deployment of law enforcement or other
first responders.

First Responder Recruitment, Retention, Training, and Support

VACo urges the General Assembly to provide additional resources that would
assist local governments with the recruitment, retention, training, and support of
first responders such as law enforcement, fire and EMS personnel, and 9-1-1
dispatchers.

Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)

VACo opposes changes to the Virginia Freedom of Information Act that would
impose additional burdens on localities. VACo suppotis the option for local and
regional bodies to meet electronically. VACo supp
confidentiality of citizen complainants’ personali
under FOIA.

Grievance Hearings

VACo supports legislation authorizing 1
officer and existing grievance panels and p dures, and opposes the mandate of
a three-member panel. VACo als i
government employees, officers, v
panel members for claims arising o
procedures.

dministrative hearing officers and
ation in personnel grievance

Interoperability
VACo supports th al that agencies and their representatives at the local,

burden localities, financially or otherwise.
Local Government Representation in the Courtroom

VACo supports legislation that provides local government entities the right to
have a representative/ witness in the courtroom for the full duration of a trial.

Pretrial Services

VACo supports increased funding for and expansion of pretrial services. If the
Commonwealth adopts a funding formula for pretrial services, it must hold
harmless the localities currently participating.

Public Notice, Public Hearing and Public Procurement
VACo supports legislation to streamline required newspaper advertising for
public notices, public hearings and public procurement including legislation to

15

Action Items - Page 31



693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739

give localities the option to use electronic or other forms of notification as an
alternative to newspaper advertising.

Public Safety — Body Worn Cameras
VACo supports maintaining the ability of local governments to adopt policies and
practices regarding body worn cameras that reflect local needs and fiscal realities.

Sovereign Immunity

VACo opposes any substantive change in local governments’ present defense of
qualified immunity and sovereign immunity. VACo opposes bringing counties
under the Virginia Tort Claims Act.

State Assistance for Police Departments

VACo supports increasing state assistance for police
Aid to Localities. This funding is designed to equali
counties in which the sheriff department provid
cities, counties, and towns with a police depa

artments through “599”
tate funding between
enforcement and those

Workers’ Compensation Presump
pensation presumptive illnesses
eligibilities for public employees that is not e in concert with additional state
funding assistance to local govern dditional insurance liabilities.

Cybersecurity

VACo supports dedicatg ral funding for local governments to
acquire and maintain@@ ed c urity to protect vital systems and
sensitive data. Incident ti quirements should not impose an undue
burden or inter incident response.

16

Action ltems - Page 32



740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780

Positions

HEALTH AND HUMAN RESOURCES

Priorities

Health and Human Resources Funding
VACo supports transparent state policies and funding to ensure the
Commonwealth’s at-risk families have access to high quality and appropriate
services. The Commonwealth should provide full funding to localities and their
state administrative entities for state-mandated human services and provide the
necessary program flexibility to enable localities to provide comprehensive and
case-tailored services.

VACo supports resources necessary for behavioral health and mental
health facilities to ensure the protection of residents’ and staff health and safety,
such as appropriate staff qualifications, training, compensation, and condition of
the facilities.

Crisis Services and State Hospital Ca t Individuals
Subject to Temporary Detention Or
VACo supports efforts to address censu
near-term funding measures that will ena

admissions of individuals subject

s at state hospitals through
state hospitals to receive
etention orders without delays.
r state hospital direct care
staff. In addition, ongoing efforts t@sug ymmunity-based crisis services
must continue.

Aging/Long-

VACo suppo, seniors to remain at home in a safe and secure
environment he General Assembly to provide sufficient funding for
companion se pme services, and home-delivered meals. Due to the

increasing numbe der adults in Virginia and the rise of Adult Protective
Services (APS) cases, VACo supports additional state resources to ensure
adequate training for APS workers on topics such as financial exploitation.

Behavioral Healthcare

VACo supports continued funding by the Commonwealth sufficient to allow
Community Services Boards (CSBs) (or equivalent county agencies)! to meet
adequately the charge of providing services through a community-based system
of care. State support must adequately enable CSBs to provide the services
mandated by the General Assembly as part of the STEP-VA initiative, as well as

1 The term “Community Services Boards” is used here to encompass the operating or administrative policy
Community Services Boards, behavioral health authority, and local government departments with policy-advisory
Community Services Boards.

17

Action ltems - Page 33



781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824
825
826
827

any additional requirements that may be added. Funding must be sufficient to
ensure adequate staffing in a competitive market.

Any changes to CSB funding should involve meaningful consultation with
localities as key funding partners in the behavioral health system. In addition to
local contributions to CSBs, localities make significant commitments to
behavioral health through support for services funded through the Children’s
Services Act and local spending on behavioral health care in local and regional
jails, among other funding commitments.

Proposed changes to the funding structure, such as the creation of new
funding formulae, should apply only to new funding. As an alternative, hold-
harmless funds must be provided to those CSBs that would stand to lose state
funding under any new funding structure.

VACo supports the ability of the Department of Behavioral Health and
Developmental Services to waive local matching requiztements for CSB funding
for localities experiencing financial hardships.

Realignment of the behavioral health fun tructure to incentivize
community-based treatment rather than use itals will require
additional state dollars and must not rely o

VACo supports the provision of additi resources to meet the
behavioral health needs of justice-involve
services and other diversion prog
supplements to, law enforcement

e appropriate substitutes for, or
work should be coordinated
d commitment of resources from

Alert system; these resg st be\in addition to, and not at the expense of,
the funding needed to% v of community-based services established

under STEP-VA.

other supports for

VACo support
individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities in the community,
approximately 13,877 of whom were on a wait-list as of August 2022.

VACo supports efforts to improve efficiency and save staff time for child
abuse or neglect or family abuse cases in juvenile and domestic relations courts
by allowing behavioral health care providers the ability to submit written reports
documenting mental health conditions, similar to the current ability for
documentation of physical conditions or injuries to be submitted in writing by
certain health care providers, provided that all current standards of
confidentiality are preserved.

Children’s Services Act

VACo supports equitable cost-sharing between the state and localities for the
costs involved in the placements of children in residential treatment facilities for

18

Action ltems - Page 34



828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841
842
843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870
871
872
873

non-educational reasons. VACo opposes proposals to limit state participation in
funding services for children and youth who are mandated to be provided with
special education and foster care services.

VACo supports enhancing the ability of local school divisions to serve
children with disabilities, to include flexibility in use of state pool funds to serve
children with high-level needs in local or regional programs tailored to meet
those needs, at local option; exploration of enhancements to the Students with
Intensive Support Needs Application (SISNA) or a similar funding mechanism
within the Department of Education to enable more children to be supported
within the public school environment; and additional support for special
education wraparound services to help support children in their communities.

VACo supports state assistance to localities with contracting for CSA
services to improve localities’ ability to negotiate with providers of these services,
such as private day placements. Rate setting by the state must not limit the
state’s funding obligation at the expense of localiti a provider refuses to
accept the negotiated rate.

VACo appreciates the investment of an

d supports continued
investment of state resources to assist in inistration of CSA
programs. As CSA becomes increasingl and the Office of Children’s
Services is charged with ensuring effective ementation, the state should

ocal programs.

Early Intervention
VACo supports sustainab i art C Early Intervention, which is an
entitlement program th ices for Virginia’s infants and toddlers.
VACo requests that thel@ eibly continue to increase state general
funding to addres caseloads and fund rates that address the costs of
providing the sefv unding this entitlement program puts pressure on
local revenug

Emergency
VACo supports poligies'to protect consumers who require air ambulance services.
VACo opposes proposals that would add additional legal and administrative
burdens on local first responders regarding decisions about methods of
transportation in emergency situations.

Foster Care

VACo supports continued state efforts to ensure successful implementation of
federal legislation governing federal funding for children placed in foster care, to
include improving access to the evidence-based prevention services that may be
funded by Title IV-E dollars and ensuring that congregate care providers are able
to meet new standards required in the law. This legislation will allow federal
participation in prevention services that previously have been funded by state
and local dollars, but services must meet certain standards in order to qualify for
federal funding.

19

Action ltems - Page 35



874 VACo supports state assistance in recruiting appropriate foster families to

875 care for children who must be removed from their homes. VACo supports state
876 assistance in recruiting and retaining child welfare workers to address high rates
877 of turnover in local departments of social services, such as by increasing the

878 number of partnerships with universities in Virginia, improving training for child
879 welfare workers by implementing an academy model, and expanding the Child
880 Welfare Stipend program.

881

882 Healthcare

883 VACo supports continued state funding for dental care, school nurses and

884 preventive services and maternal and child health programs offered through local
885 health departments and local school systems. VACo encourages the state to

886 prepare for emergency health services access to care and to develop and fund

887 incentives that would alleviate the nursing shortages felt in many communities.
888 VACo supports efforts to reduce the cost of cription drugs for

889 individual consumers as well as for local govern " health insurance plans for
890 county employees, such as through an afford w process and the

891 establishment of Upper Payment Limits fo ription drugs,

892 provided there is an opportunity for loc uch a process.

893

894 Human Trafficking

895 VACo supports treating survivor, cking as victims, not criminals,
896 and supports their access to servic ther trauma victims, such as
897 job placement services, housing assisi ess to education, legal services,
898 and mental health service

899

900 Implementation o ansion

901 VACo supports conti ate funding for the local costs associated with

902 Medicaid ocal eligibility workers, as well as state assistance
903 with revie gibility of more than 1.2 million cases as required

904 after the termihati ' federal public health emergency (which has barred
905 disenrollment o ivid@ials during the emergency period as a condition of the

906 state’s receipt of ti hanced federal match rate).

907

908 Local EMS Involvement

909 VACo supports increased local involvement in state EMS planning to ensure

910 statewide needs are met and to avoid imposing unnecessary barriers to

911 volunteerism.

912

913 Prevention Services

914 VACo supports increased state general funding for community-based service
915 programs. VACo recognizes programs such as Healthy Families, Comprehensive
916 Health Investment Project (CHIP) of Virginia, Smart Beginnings, and Resource
917 Mothers as important models and requests that the General Assembly provide
918 additional funding for these home- and community-based activities. Investments
919 in programs that ensure a strong start for children can help reduce the need for
920 costlier interventions later in life.

20

Action ltems - Page 36



921
922
923
924
925
926
927
928
929
930
931
932
933
934
935
936
937
938
939
940
941
942
943
944
945
946
947
948
949
950
951
952
953
954
955
956
957
958
959
960
961
962
963
964
965
966
967

Substance Abuse

Efforts to address substance dependency must be comprehensive and
coordinated with localities. The state should develop and support evidence-based
prevention initiatives and should continue to improve access to treatment.

Telehealth

VACo supports the use of electronic information and telecommunications
technologies to support long-distance clinical health care, patient and
professional health-related education, public health and health administration.
Flexibility in the delivery of these services is essential in meeting the needs of
residents.

21

Action Items - Page 37



968
969
970
971
972
973
974
975
976
977
978
979
980
981
982
983
984
985
986
987
988
989
990
991
992
993
994
995
996
997
998
999
1000
1001
1002
1003
1004
1005
1006
1007
1008
1009
1010
1011
1012
1013

TRANSPORTATION

Priority

Transportation Funding

VACo supports continued study and action to address the causes for declining
growth in transportation revenues and to develop recommendations to grow
revenue over time to meet increasing demands for new construction and
maintenance for existing transportation infrastructure. Such action must address
the secondary road needs of counties throughout the Commonwealth, including
additional funding for the paving of unpaved roads.

VACo supports changes to simplify the Smart Scale process for allocating
transportation funds to reduce time and costs to prepare and review applications.
VACo supports adequate funding levels to maintai sting transit capital state
match rates.

VACo supports continuing efforts to re egional funding that was

liminating the state
sales tax on groceries, without redirecti ifig for other transportation
purposes.
While VACo supports the pas 021 Infrastructure Investment
S e the necessary funding the
egapding their transit and
lexible funding for transportation, transit
Jommonwealth.

transportation plat d the Commonwealth’s transportation priorities. VACo
also opposes the redtiction of local control that is associated with the CTB’s
process of designating Corridors of Statewide Significance and the
implementation of Arterial Preservation. Additionally, VACo supports additional
flexibility within the VDOT project approval process and standards to be
responsive to localities’ individual needs, including utility coordination. VACo
supports the expansion of authority and discretion of Resident Administrators of
VDOT to approve modifications to design standards where appropriate with local
needs, including reduction of speed limits.

Positions

Airports
VACo supports additional state and federal funding for the maintenance and
expansion of airports to foster regional economic development.

22

Action ltems - Page 38



1014
1015
1016
1017
1018
1019
1020
1021
1022
1023
1024
1025
1026
1027
1028
1029
1030
1031
1032
1033
1034
1035
1036
1037
1038
1039
1040
1041
1042
1043
1044
1045
1046
1047
1048
1049
1050
1051
1052
1053
1054
1055
1056
1057
1058
1059
1060

Autonomous Vehicles

VACo supports continued collaboration with local governments on the
development, deployment, and restrictions of use for autonomous vehicles, aerial
systems, and related support infrastructure.

Electric Vehicle Charging Stations

VACo supports increased state and federal funding that provides for the
availability and installation of interoperable, electric vehicle charging stations in
collaboration with localities.

Devolution of Secondary Roads
VACo opposes legislative or administrative initiatives that would transfer to

counties the responsibility for the construction, maintenance or operation of new
and existing roads.

Maintenance Priorities
VACo supports a requirement imposed upon
plan with the local governing body to establi

T
mainten

plement a notification
e priorities.

Orphaned Drainage Outfalls
VACo supports the recommendations of th
Report to mitigate the impacts of ditai
entity across the Commonwealth.

aluation of Drainage Outfalls Final
ls with no assigned maintaining

Parking
VACo supports genera nties to adopt ordinances regulating,
including prohibiting; boats, RVs, utility trailers, campers, etc. on

subdivision street on, VACo supports additional authority that would
allow localities inglardinances the ability to enforce such ordinances
under contracfhwith the lpeality.
Railways
VACo supports efforts by the Commonwealth to expand sustainable passenger
and commuter rail service, including Transforming Rail in Virginia, to currently
unserved areas of the Commonwealth as well as areas where demand exceeds
available service. VACo supports continued collaboration with local governments
regarding Commonwealth Rail Fund projects funded by the state and constructed

within their jurisdictions. VACo supports efforts to safely improve mobility issues
on roads that cross railway lines.

Recordation Tax Distribution to Localities

VACo supports the restoration of state recordation tax revenues distributed to
counties and cities for use of transportation or public education purposes.

23

Action ltems - Page 39



1061
1062
1063
1064
1065
1066
1067
1068
1069
1070
1071
1072
1073
1074
1075
1076

Regional Transportation Funding

VACo opposes any efforts to divert existing dedicated regional transportation
revenues to areas and purposes outside of that region unless additional dedicated
funding sources are provided to hold such funding harmless.

Truck Size and Weight

VACo opposes any legislation that seeks to increase truck size or weight beyond
the current federal standards, thereby stressing the capacity of the
Commonwealth’s road systems and putting highways, roads and bridges at risk of
increased damage or deterioration.

Transit

State funding for transit should account for the needs of each region and
community to foster regional economic development,

24

Action ltems - Page 40



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Action Item #6.04
Subject: Proposed Changes to Outside Organization Funding Guidelines

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: The Board of Supervisors adopted a Policy Governing Contributions to External
Organizations which establishes guidelines and procedures related to external organizations that
will be funded by the County. Upon implementation of the policy during the Fiscal Year 2023
budget cycle, staff identified potential refinements to the policy. Generally, these
recommendations help clarify policy elements, provide for a more streamlined review, and
ensure greater equity among the diverse organizations that have historically received funding
from the County.

The attached document contains the red-lined changes to the existing policy based upon the
recommendation of staff.

Recommendation: Staff recommends the Board of Supervisors adopts the recommended
changes to the existing policy.

Attachment: Policy Governing Contributions to External Organizations — Proposed Changes

ACTION: That the Board adopts the recommended changes to the existing policy.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)




1L

1L

Iv.

County of Sussex, Virginia

Policy Governing Contributions to External Organizations
Approved by the Board of Supervisors:
Effective Date:

Purpose

Sussex County desires to assist non-profit and community organizations that provide
important public services. The Board of Supervisors agrees the services provided by these
external organizations are vital to the success of the community but are not within the scope
of the County government. In these cases, outside agencies may be able to provide the
service in a more efficient and effective manner than if the program were managed directly
by the County.

The requests from outside agencies are expansive and, unfortunately, the County cannot
fund all requests. The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines and procedures
related to external organizations that will be funded by the County.

Scope

This policy applies to all external entities seeking financial assistance from Sussex County
for any purpose. This does not apply to established Fire and Rescue volunteer agencies,and
other governmental organizations that are statutorily entitled to funding, and organizations
for which the County has a contractual obligation to provide funding.

Examples of applicable organizations include: nonprofit agencies; community groups;
groups managing and promoting festivals and other cultural events; arts groups; sports
groups; educational groups; and animal welfare groups.

Whenever a question arises as to whether or not an organization is subject to the Sussex
County’s Policy Governing Contributions to External Organizations, final determination

shall be made by the County Administrator in consultation with the Finance Director and/or
Treasurer.

Objectives

1. Ensure that Sussex County considers all requests fairly and responsibly, with a clear
and consistent set of standards and procedures.

2. Ensure that contributions are consistent with the County’s overall goals for the
community

3. Ensure transparency in the funding request and approval process

Eligibility

Organizations shall be subject to certain eligibility requirements based upon the level of funding for

which they apply, which shall be broken down into three thresholds. Those thresholds and the

eligibility requirements for each are listed below:

Action ltems - Page 42



e Tier One Organizations: funding requests up to $10.000
o Must be located in Sussex County or have their principle clientele within the
County
o Must be a nonprofit, charitable, or similarly established organization
o Must submit all required information in Section V of this policy.

e Tier Two Organizations: funding requests between $10,001 and $50,000 “"{ Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.22" + J

Indent at: 1.47"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.22" + }

o Must be located in Sussex County or have their principle clientele within the Indent at: 1.47"

County

o Must be a nonprofit, charitable, or similarly established organization
o Must be registered as active and in good standing with the Virginia State Corporation

Commission
o Must be registered as a tax exempt organization with the Internal Revenue Service

or similar tax exemption status

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 2 + Aligned at: 1.72" +
Indent at: 1.97"

o Must submit all required information in Section V of this policy. "4{ Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Bulleted + Level: 2 + }
e Tier Three Organizations: funding requests greater than $50.000 Aligned at: 1.72" + Indent at: 1.97"
o Must be located in Sussex County or have their principle clientele within the \{ Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.22" + }
County Indent at: 1.47"

o Must be a nonprofit, charitable, or similarly established organization
o Must be registered as active and in good standing with the Virginia State Corporation

Commission
o Must be registered as a tax exempt organization with the Internal Revenue Service "——{ Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 2 + Aligned at: 1.72" + }

o__Must have an unqualified audited financial statement for the most recently concluded Indent at: 1.97"

fiscal year
o Must submit all required information in Section V of this policy

Action Items - Page 43



benit all reauired information in Secti s moli

The following organizations are aet-NOT eligible for County funding under this

policy:
1. For profit organizations
2. Individual persons
3. Any entity involved in any illegal activities
4. Any group involved in partisan political activity
Procedures
1. All contributions will be in compliance with the Code of Virginia §15.2-953.
2. Contributions to external entities will be considered once annually during the County’s

budget process_through an external organization funding request application process
developed by County Administration.

3. Organizations interested in County funding wil-shall submit an application to the
County Administration in accordance with timelines established by County

Administration so that the requests may be reasonably reviewed during development
of the Countv s fiscal year budget SH-bHH—t—a—F%qH%St—PH—WHHHg—EG—ﬂ%%F—H%G%

4, Generally, apphcatlons shall 1nclude but not be llmlted to requestmg the following
information from organizationsWreittenrequestsshall-include the followingwhichshall
b Lo bt e e e sl

a. Name of the organization
b. Name of the principal point of contact for the organization

c. Contact information for the principal point of contact

¢ Ata minimum, an email address or phone number shall be provided Formatted

d. Description of how the organization meets the criteria of being a nonprofit, charitable \( Formatted: Font: 12 pt

or similarly established organization

e. Description of the organization’s principal location/service area and/or principal
clientele

f._Total amount requested in the following fiscal year, /{ Formatted: Not Expanded by / Condensed by

a-g. The purpose of the funding request

b:h. If this is a one-time request or will be an ongoing annual request

el. A description of the other funding sources_for the funding request, including
but not limited to other localities

J.__A description of the organization’s mission and goals

dk.-and-aAn overview of the organization’s principal leadership demonstrating the
ability to implement the project or program for which funding is requested

el. A description of the prejeet-orprogram-for-which-funding isrequested-to-
inelude-the-goals;methods of implementation; and evaluation of success_
for the proposed project or program for which funding is sought.

£m.A description of how the project or program meets the goals of the County or
meets needs that have not already been identified

en. A description of how the project or program will have long-term positive effects
on the County and the community

5. Additionally, the following additional information shall be provided based on tier levels ( based*’——[ Formatted

on the amount of requested funding):

a. For Tier Two Organizations (those requesting funding between $10,001 and $50.000)

Action ltems - Page 44



¢ Proof of the organization’s “Active” and “In Good Standing” status with the Virginia
State Corporation Commission

e Proof of the organization’s tax exemption status with the Internal Revenue Service or
similar tax exemption status

b. For Tier Three Organizations (those requesting funding greater than $50,000)

¢ Proof of the organization’s “Active” and “In Good Standing” status with the Virginia
State Corporation Commission

»  Proof of the organization’s tax exemption status with the Internal Revenue Service or
similar tax exemption status

¢ Proof of the organization’s unqualified audited financial statement for the most
recently concluded fiscal year.

‘ - . .

1 A £} : : s ¢

5:6.Once requests are received, the-Finanee Department County Administration will determine
if the request meets eligibility requirements_and prepare a review summary of all

applications.

7. e ol e o aly,—tThe County

Administrator will submit to the Board of Supervisors a report of eligible projects,
amount requested, summary of project or program requested for funding, and a
recommendation for funding given present budget constraints. This information will be
submitted to the Board of Supervisors within a reasonable time period to assist the
Board with budget considerations in the upcoming fiscal year budget.

7-8.The Board of Supervisors will consider each request during the budget development process and
will determine if each request will be funded. The Board’s consideration will be based solely
upon the writtenrequestapplication submitted by the organization. The Board will not consider
any request unless written-an application has been submittedapplieation-is-made-as-speeified in

accordance with this policy.
&—The Board of Supervisors may establish additional conditions of the award of financial support

"__{ Formatted

"__{ Formatted

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

J

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right, Indent: Left: 0.97",
Tab stops: 0.97", Left

|

Action ltems - Page 45



for any project or program. "4[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

VL Additional Provisions

Organizations that do not comply with the requirements and procedures found within this policy or
established by the Board of Supervisors will be ineligible for funding the next fiscal year.
Additionally, the County Administrator will withhold funding from any organization that is found to
be in non-compliance with the requirements set forth herein.

In addition to the above, the following requirements are established:

2.1.Funds must be used by the organization for the activity stated in the application. Utilizing funds
for purpose other than stated in the written request is prohibited_unless a formal request is
submitted and presented to the Board of Supervisors for consideration.

3.2.Funds may not be transferred to another organization.

3. Organizations must submit regular progress reports to the County Administration regarding the
use of their funding allocation. Such reports shall be collected using a form and method as
determined by County Administration and shall include questions on the quantitative and

qualitative impacts of the funding on the organization’s programming. Reporting shall be
submitted based on tier levels:

a. For tier one organizations (those requesting up to $10,000), progress reports shall be

1

Formatted

submitted annually by the last business day in July (covering the entire fiscal year)

b. For tier two organizations (those requesting between $10.001 and $50.000), progress

reports shall be submitted semi-annually by: Formatted: Superscript

¢ the last business day in January (covering the period July 1% through December 315

Formatted: Superscript

« the last business day in July (covering the period January 1% through June 30)

c._For tier three organizations (those requesting more than $50,000), progress reports Formatted

shall be submitted quarterly by: Formatted: Superscript

« the last business day in October (covering the period July 1% through September 30™)

Formatted: Superscript

« the last business day in January (covering the period October 1% through December

=

318t Formatted
« the last business day in April (covering the period January 1% through March 315 Formatted
4.+ the last business day in July (covering the period April 1% through June 30") Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

o o JC A )

Action ltems - Page 46



SUSSEX COUNTY EXTERNAL ORGANIZATION GRANT APPLICATION FORM FY 2022-2023 Commented [DC1]: This form will be updated after action
is taken — if any — by the Board of Supervisors during their
December 15, 2022, meeting.

1. COVER FORM Organization Name: Additionally, it is likely that the application process will be
migrated over to an online application system through an
online survey system such as Survey Monkey.

Organization Legal Name, if different: Project Name(s):

Organization’s Federal Tax ID#: Year Established:

Number of Years Organization has operated in Sussex County or served Sussex County Residents:
Organization’s Mailing Address: Required Information (Include Street Address, City, State, Zip)
Organization’s Sussex Address (if different): (Include Street Address, City, State, Zip)

Organization’s Authorizing Official Contact Information: Required Information (Include First Name, Last
Name, Title, Phone Number, Email)

Organization’s Application Contact Person (if different): (Include First Name, Last Name, Title, Phone
Number, Email)

Organization 2021 Operating Budget: Total Cost of Services/Project: Amount of Grant Funding Request:
Current Fiscal Year Start/End Date: Brief Overview of Request:

First Time Applicant: Y/N
2. GRANT APPLICATION
a. Statement of Need
Describe the scope of the need for your service(s), including:
What need does your program address? Describe what the proposed funding will be used for

1. Describe your service population’s needs within Sussex County (i.e. number of children in poverty;
number of women in shelters, number of clients on a wait list, number of County residents served
specifically within service area, etc.).

Describe how you track the overall number of Sussex County residents served by your program? Are you able
to track unduplicated numbers of participants among all of your programs? If so, how?

o Describe the data collected to inform and improve service delivery to this population (i.e. client
satisfaction surveys, pre- post- surveys, client focus groups, client participation on your board) for
assessing proposed service.

b. Project Description and Timeline
Based on your responses in the Statement of Need, please respond to the following:

2. What is your proposed solution to the need identified? Why was this service approach chosen?

3. Describe any program characteristics or specializations that set your services apart from similar
providers in Sussex County. Describe the duration (number of visits) and intensity (minutes or hours
per visit) of your services provided to the population described.

Action ltems - Page 47



4. Within the grant period, what is your plan for implementing the program or service?

5. What results are you committed to achieving during the grant period? What evidence will you provide
to show you achieved your results?

¢. Organizational Background, Qualifications and Expertise —
Based on your responses in section a. and b., respond to the following questions about your organization:
Describe your organization including the following:

1. Describe organizational capacity to achieve project objectives (include proven ability to manage
grants, program management, prior experience with area of need and how this program fits with your
organization’s mission, goals and values).

2. Describe your staff and the role and expertise of your board of directors.

3. If your organization has multiple programs, briefly describe the overall populations served.

4. Describe current activities (i.e. current board initiatives, strategic plan), recent accomplishments
within the past 3 years, and future plans.

e. Budget and Supporting Financial Documents
1. Provide a line item budget and justification.

e Submit all of the following: Most recent audit or financial statement (for the prior 2 years if
applicable)

e RS Letter of Determination

e Certificate of Good Standing with Virginia SCC

Action ltems - Page 48



BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Action Item #6.05
Subject: Glyndon & Carver Right-of-Way Certification Resolution

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Attached for your consideration is a Rural Addition resolution required by VDOT to
accept Glyndon and Carver Lanes in Wakefield into the state system and provide for necessary
paving/upgrades. A key component of this resolution is the certification of all necessary right-of-
way and easements. Staff is working to finalize the last needed deeds and easements for
consideration of this resolution at the December board meeting (staff has worked recently with
VDOT to include a T-turnaround at the end of Carver Lane as an alternative to a cul-de-sac).
Supervisor Wayne Jones, administrative and planning staff, the County Attorney, and contracted
legal and surveying services have worked for an extended period of time to acquire all necessary
right-of-way and easements so that these roads can be paved and better serve the area residents.
If the attached resolution is adopted at the December board meeting, VDOT staff has pledged to
complete some much needed road maintenance prior to Christmas, with paving slated in early
2023 (subject to weather conditions).

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Rural Addition resolution for Glyndon
and Carver Lanes.

Attachment: Resolution #22-152 Rural Addition for Glyndon and Carver Lanes

ACTION: That the Board approves the Rural Addition resolution #22-152 for Glyndon and Carver
Lanes.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member

W. Jones
Seward
Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)




Rural Addition Resolution per State Code 833.2-335
Rural Addition Requiring Funds for Improvement

The Board of Supervisors of Sussex County, in regular meeting on the _15th_day of
December , 2022, adopted the following:

RESOLUTION #22-152

WHEREAS, the street(s) described below was established _Glyndon Lane and Carver Lane, and
currently serves 10 owner occupied dwelling units, and

WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Transportation has deemed this county’s current
subdivision control ordinance meets all necessary requirements to qualify this county to
recommend additions to the secondary system of state highways, pursuant to §33.2-335, Code of
Virginia, and

WHEREAS, after examining the ownership of all property abutting this street(s), including the
deeds and related plats, this Board finds no restriction on the use of public funds for the
improvement of the road, and

WHEREAS, after examining the ownership of all properties abutting this street, this Board finds
that speculative interest does not exist; and

WHEREAS, this Board has identified available funding to make improvements required to
qualify the street(s) for addition to the Secondary System of State Highways, based on the
Department’s cost estimate of $149,127;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, pursuant to 833.2-335, Code of Virginia, this Board
requests the following street(s) to be added to the Secondary System of State Highways
maintained by the Virginia Department of Transportation and hereby guarantees the right-of-way
of the street(s) to be clear, unencumbered, and unrestricted, which right-of-way guarantee shall
include any necessary easements required for cuts, fills, and drainage:

Name of Subdivision: Carver Heights
Name of Street: Glyndon Lane
From: Railroad Avenue
To: Carver Lane
Length: .0341 Miles
Guaranteed Right

Of Way Width: 40  Feet

Action Items - Page 50



Name of Street: Carver Lane

From: Glyndon Lane

To: Dead end

Length: .0398 Miles

Guaranteed Right

Of Way Width: 40  Feet

Plat Recorded: Date: March 6, 1961 , Deed Book: _61 , Page: 141

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department of Transportation
to improve said street(s) to the prescribed minimum standards, funding said improvements with
the following funds:

Source of Funds Amount
Secondary funding $149,127

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board agrees to reimburse, within 45-days of
receiving an invoice, all costs that the Virginia Department of Transportation incurs to
relocate existing utilities within the right-of-way that are discovered during the course
of and in conflict with the construction, drawing such funds from resources other than
those administered by the Department; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board agrees to reimburse, within 45-days of
receiving an invoice, all costs that the Virginia Department of Transportation incurs in
the construction of necessary improvements to the road that are over and above the
estimated cost of improvements or to otherwise identify an eligible source of funds
administered by the Department to cover such costs.

Action Items - Page 51




PLAT OF SURVEY OF
GLYNDON LANE & CARVER LANE

R PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY & EASEMENTS
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 1A WAKEFIELD DISTRICT
0.02 ACRES = 735 Sq.ft SUSSEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

VERNON LEE NEWBY
& ELIZABETH NEWBY
T.P. 61A3-1-8
D=142°20'42"

L=111.80'

R=45.00'
CRD=S870°41'22"E
85.18'

NAD 83 VA SOUTH ZONE

N51° 51'42"W
5.00'

D=128°16'16"
L=100.74' PERMANENT NN
LEGEND R=45.00' // RIGHT-OF-WAY 1 \ Doaz 193
CRD=N25°59'50"W 0.06 ACRES \ R=10.00'
RBR - REBAR 80.98 / 2,399 Sq.ft. CRDeS05°37'49"E ANGELANE ELLIS RICKS
FD. - FOUND | 8 80 D.B. 167, PG. 884
géa_ IL)AECI;EED BOOK [ ' S51° 51' 40'E TP 6143-1-10 S51° 51' 40"E
\ o
SAE,;V 55\:;82? ™ \ PERMANENT 5" TEMPORARY
B. \ RIGHT-OF—WAY 2 CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 8 s
IN. - INSTRUMENT NUMBER 0.05 ACRES 0.01 ACRES — 450 Sq.ft.\<
T.P. -—- TAX PARCEL 5" TEMPORARY \ 2,377 Sq.ft. L1 > S
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 2A———XC PERMANENT 7, S52° 21' 13"W
0.01 ACRES — 495 Sq.ft. \ L2 RIGHT-OF-WAY 3 © 5.16'
DY 0.00 ACRES S
BEATRICE F. BLIZZARD  / \ oA D
T.P. 61A3-1-7 YN //
15’ PROPOSED / \?3’ W4 MELVIN ELLIS \ s
DRAINAGE EASEMENT /7 ANy N & LINDA S. ELLIS SV
ALONG EXISTING DITC. oy NS T.P. 61A3-1-9 N51° 51" 40"W 5o 2P
972 Sq.ft. / / 5.17 ®© 9z S51° 51' 40"E
/ g & e 517"
/ 2D s N 5’ TEMPORARY 7
/ N Yo rowmevesars o P 3 o
T.P. 61A3-1-6 N : TRl et id CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 7
S y 0.01 ACRES — 450 Sq.ft.
' M »,° s51°5134°E
/ N 5.17'
S TEMPORARY RUSSELL DABNEY
Y/ V CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 3A 8M1‘:‘ g);;};ﬁl_alz\r EY
Dy 0.01 ACRES — 457 Sq.ft. 4

S§54° 07' 29"W
5.20'

/ 15’ PROPOSED

DRAINAGE FASEMENT
/  ALONG EXISTING DITCH
673 Sq.ft.

5" TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 4
0.01 ACRES — 435 Sq.ft.
S54° 07' 29"W
5.20'

WILLIAM HENRY GRAY
& ELSIE L. GRAY
T.P. 61A3-1-2

MASHANDA HILLARD-GIBBS
T.P. 61A3-1-5

ToN
’ )6"
5' TEMPORARY /’\
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 5

0.00 ACRES - 215 Sq.ft.

S§38° 08' 20"W
5.00

ANTHONY R. HILLIARD

Call Table & ROBERT C. HILLIARD
Call # Bearing Distance
— : LIONEL STITH
L1 S54°07°29°'W 4,60 D.B. 173, PG. 878
L2 S51°51°'40"E 9.37° T.P. 61A3-1-3
Rad:15.00° Arc:11.82
C1 Tan:6.24’ CA:045°09°30" 30 0 30 60 90
© STEVEN L. CRUTCHFIELD Chd:N74°26°26"W Chd:11.52'
Lic. No. 2738

GRAPHIC SCALE — FEET

<. Na
44’0 S'UR\]GL WAKEFIELD DISTRICT SUSSEX COUNTY, VA
Call Table Call Table Call Table REV. DATE:11/15/2022 SCALE: 1"=30"
Call # Bearing Distance Call # Bearing Distance Call # Bearing Distance SHEET 1 OF 1 J.N.: 18626RW
SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE - :
L4 S38'08°20°W 21.40° Rad:15.00’ Arc:11.82° Rad:40.00’ Arc:99.38’ DRAWN BY: SMS CHECK BY: SLC
| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS CURRENT BOUNDARY SURVEY, TO THE BEST OF T - ; c1 Tan:6.24’ CA:045°09'30" cé Tan:117.31" | CA:142°20'42” RATIO OF PRECISION = 1:40.000+
MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, IS CORRECT AND COMPLIES WITH THE MINIMUM 5540729 4.60 Chd:N74'26°26™W | Chd:11.52° Chd:S70°41'22"E | Chd:75.72' d
PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS ESTABLISHED BY THE VIRGINIA STATE BOARD g 15.00 o089 — . : . .
OF ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, LAND SURVEYORS, AND 4 ad: 1.V e o L3 S54°07°29°'W 9.89 Rad:15.00 Arc:13.70 C rutc hf' e I d
CERTIFIED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS. Chdrsag%?fz‘?ﬁ”w CAb(;;()d$02291‘2 000 PR c7 Tan:7.37° CA:052'20'40”
: -V aa:1u. rc.o. Chd:S25'41°21"E | Chd:13.23' :
000 p— c2 Tan:4.51" | CA:048'33'42 s) & Associates, Inc.
aa.4u. rc.J0o. . 3 2z ") . ’ . 349 3
5 Tan:105.75" CA138'3340" Chd:N76°08 32°W Chd:8.22 L5 N51°5140°W 11.68 SURVEYORS - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS
Chd:N31°08°32"W Chd:74.83’ Rad:45.00’ Arc:8.08’ L6 S38°08°20"'W 18.60° 50 MOUNTAIN RD. -P.0.BOX 176
STEVEN L. CRUTCHFIELD, PLS “ Chd?gﬁ';ggzo"w CAQS,LO;31S72'4 HALIPAX, VIRGINIA 24558
VIRGINIA CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2738 : -O- (434)-476-7744 : www.crutchfieldinc.com

Action ltems - Page 52




BOARD ACTION FORM

Agenda Item: Action Item #6.06

Subject: Resolution Designating Shilton R. Butts as County Clerk

Board Meeting Date: December 15 2022

Summary: Attached for your consideration is a resolution that designates Shilton Ricks Butts as
Clerk to the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, a designation currently held by the County
Administrator. Ms. Ricks Butts currently administers most roles of the County Clerk, so this
resolution formally recognizes that role. Ms. Ricks Butts is an active member of the Virginia
Municipal Clerks Association (VMCA) and the International Institute of Municipal Clerks (IIMC).
She is currently pursuing her Certified Municipal Clerk designation, with a goal of completing the
program within the next two years. In consultation with the Board Chair, it is requested that Ms.
Ricks Butts be given a $1,500 annual salary increase in recognition of designating her as Clerk to
the Board of Supervisors.

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of resolution designating Shilton Ricks Butts as
Clerk to the Sussex Board of Supervisors and approval of a $1,500 annual salary increase effective
December .

Attachment: Resolution #22-153 Appointing Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

ACTION: That the Board approves Resolution #22-153 Appointing Shilton Ricks Butts as Clerk to
the Sussex County Board of Supervisors and approve a $1,500 annual salary increase.

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY:

Member

Fly W. Jones
Futrell Seward
D. Jones Tyler

White
(Tie Breaker)




Sussex County Board of Supervisors

Resolution #22-153
Appointing Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

Resolved by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the Board hereby appoints
Shilton Ricks Bultts as the Clerk to the Board pursuant to § 15.2-1538 of the Code of Virginia.
Be it Further Resolved, that in her role as Clerk to the Board of Supervisors, Ms. Ricks

shall have the all the duties and be vested with all the authority set out in § 15.2-1539 of the Code
of Virginia.

Adopted by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors this day of , 2022,

By:

Susan Seward, Chair

Action ltems - Page 54



12/7/2022

Code of Virginia

Title 15.2. Counties, Cities and Towns

Chapter 15. Local Government Personnel, Qualification for Office, Bonds, Dual Office Holding and Certain
Local Government Officers

§ 15.2-1539. General duties of clerk.
It shall be the clerk's general duty to:
1. Record in a book the proceedings of the governing body;

2. Make regular entries of all its ordinances, resolutions and decisions on all questions concerning the raising of
money, and within five days after any order for a levy is made, to deliver a copy thereof to the commissioner of
revenue of his locality or the person performing such commissioner's duties, as the case may be;

3. Record the vote of each supervisor or council member on any question submitted to the board or council, as
required by law or his governing body; and

4, Preserve and file all accounts acted upon by the governing body, with its actions thereon, for a period of five years
after audit and thereafter until the govemning body shall authorize their destruction in accordance with retention
regulations for records established pursuant to the Virginia Public Records Act.

Code 1950, § 15-237; 1956, c. 710; 1960, c. 34; 1962, c. 623, § 15.1-532; 1982, c. 493, 1997, ¢. 587.

Action Items - Page 55



	#1 12 15 2022 BOS Agenda
	#2.01 11 17 22  Regular BOS meeting minutes
	#2.02 August 2022 Warrants & Vouchers
	#2.03-#2.08 Consent Agenda
	#2.04-1 BD Cover
	#2.04-2 Building Department Monthly November 2022 Report
	#2.04-3 SD Cover
	#2.04-4 Sheriff's Office Monthly Report
	#2.06-1 Board Action Form  Leave Carryover 2022
	#2.06-2 Sheriff Letters
	#2.06-3 Sheriff Internal Leave
	#2.07-1 FY24 Budget Schedule
	#2.07-2 FY24 Budget Planning Calendar
	#2.08-2 Draft Resolution. 12.2.2022
	#2.08-3 Budget Amend 2022

	#3 Recognition
	#3.01-1 Head Start Presentation
	#3.02-1 Nan Ellen Bland Seeley amended
	#3.02-2 Nan Seeley
	#3.03-1 Airfield 4-H Update
	#3.04-1 Hudson Retirement
	#3.04-2 RESOLUTION charles hudson
	#3.04-3 Charles Dan Hudson
	#3.05-1 Deputy Bonner Community Assistance (002) amended
	#3.05-2 Bonner Incident (002)
	#3.06-1 Clenera-Clenera Sx Cty Solar Project amended (002)

	#4 Public Hearing
	#4.01-1 Board Action Form
	#4.01-2 CUP #2022-04- Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range application
	CUP #2022-04 1
	BOSR_RANGE_SOP v3 (2)
	CHAPTER 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION
	A. Preamble
	B. Organizational Chart

	CHAPTER 2: SAFETY PLAN
	A. Safety Planning
	B. Planning for Safety
	C. The Safety Plan
	D. Perimeter Gates, Fencing, and Signs
	E. Firearms Check
	F. Ammunition Check
	G. Safety Plan Reference

	CHAPTER 3: RANGE OPERATIONS
	A. Purpose
	B. General
	Definitions

	C. Facilities for Use
	D. Range Use Requirements
	Restrictions

	E. Allowable Firearms
	F. Range Safety Officers
	G. Range Rules
	Liability Waiver and Age Restrictions

	H. Range Training Requirements
	I. General Range Rules
	J. Hours of Operation
	K. Staff Meetings
	L. Alcohol/ Drug Policy
	M. Personnel Responsibilities
	Manager
	Range Safety Officers
	Instructors
	Customer

	N. Medical Support
	O. Hold Harmless Agreement Form
	P. Wavier and Release from Liability Agreement Form
	Q. Range Use Agreement Form
	R. Range Safety
	Range Commands

	S. Firearms Carry & Handling
	T. Cease Fire Procedure
	U. Firing Line Rules
	V. Range Rules Specific to Black Powder Firearms
	W. NRA Hygiene Guidelines
	X. Emergencies and Incident Reporting
	Y. First Aid Procedures
	Z. Personal Protective Equipment
	AA. Procedure for Cleaning Surfaces Contaminated with Biohazardous Material
	BB. Facility Operating Procedures
	Main Building - Opening Procedure
	Store/Building - Closing Procedure
	Range - Opening Procedure

	CC. Range - Operating Procedure
	Making the Line Hot
	Making the Line Safe
	Range - Closing Procedure


	APPENDIXES
	APPENDIX 1: Facilities Use Agreement
	User’s Obligations.
	APPENDIX 2: Safety Incident Report
	APPENDIX 3: Eye Witness Form
	APPENDIX 4: Replacement and Repair Costs
	APPENDIX 5: Emergency Report Sheet
	EMERGENCY COMMUNCATIONS
	IMMEDIATE RESPONES FOR INJURIES OR ILLNESS
	COORDINATION
	HELICOPTER MEDICAL EVACUATION (MEDEVAC)
	RANGE EMERGENCY RESPONSE PACKET

	APPENDIX 6: Range Use Agreement
	APPENDIX 7: Waiver and Release from Liability Agreement
	APPENDIX 8: Release, Wavier, Indemnification, Hold Harmless, and Assumption of Risk Agreement
	APPENDIX 9: Range Inspection Checklist
	APPENDIX 10: Range Safety Brief
	A. Purpose of The Shooting Event
	B. Range Layout and Limits
	C. Range Safety Rules
	A.
	B.
	C.
	D. FIRING LINE COMMANDS
	E. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

	APPENDIX 11: Fence Patrol Log
	APPENDIX 12: Range Layout
	Site Layout
	Rifle Range
	Handgun/ Shotgun Range




	#4.01-3 December 15 2022 BOS Public Hearing Notice

	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 Historic Courthouse
	#6.02-1 County Buildings
	#6.02-2 ToSussexCo_RD220329
	#6.03-1 MtgActionForm - PropLegisRecommendations
	#6.03-2 Draft Legislative Program - 2023
	#6.04-1 MtgActionForm - PropChangesOutsideOrgFundGuide
	#6.04-2 External Org Grant - Proposed Changes
	SUSSEX COUNTY EXTERNAL ORGANIZATION GRANT APPLICATION FORM FY 2022-2023
	a. Statement of Need
	b. Project Description and Timeline
	c. Organizational Background, Qualifications and Expertise –
	e. Budget and Supporting Financial Documents

	#6.05-1 Glyndon & Carver Right-of-Way
	#6.05-2 Resolution.12.15.2022 (002)
	#6.05-3 Revised Plat.111522
	#6.06-1 Clerk as Designation
	#6.06-2 Sussex County Board of Supervisors
	#6.06-3 Code 15.2




